
Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 
Prepared By: Sarah Sumner, Planner Phone #: (512) 854-7687 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowlin, Division Director _Development 
Services and Long Ran e Planning 

Department Head: Ste en M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Daugherty, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Receive comments regarding the revised plat of Travis 
Settlement Section Four Lots 214B and 215 (Two lots into one 5.53 acre lot 
Evidence Cove - existing well and on-site wastewater) in Precinct Three. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
The revised plat of Travis Settlement Section Four Lots 214B and 215 combines the 
two lots into one 5.53 acre lot on Evidence Cove. There is an existing house where 
well and permitted on-site wastewater system already exist. A sign was placed on 
the property with the approved hearing date. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
This application meets Travis County standards and is recommended by staff. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Staff has received no inquiries at this time. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
NA 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Location Map 
Original Plat 
Proposed Revised Plat 
Precinct Map 
Affidavit, 
Sign Photos 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Financial Mana er TNR 
County Executive TNR 

C nthia McDonald 

Item 1Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Anna Bowlin Division TNR (512) 854-7561 
Director_Development 
Services and Long 
Range Planning 

cc: 
ISarah Sumner IPlanner 1(512) 854-7687 

SS:A8:ss 
1101 - Development Services Long Range Planning - Travis Settlement Section Four 
Revised Plat of Lots 2148 and 215 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 
Prepared 'By: Paul Scoggins, Engineer Specialist 
Phone #: (512) 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowlin, Division Director of Development 
Services and Long Range Planning 

(?~{3- L-~ 
Department Head: Steven M. anilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Todd, Precinct Two 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Receive comments regarding a request to authorize the 

filing of an instrument to vacate a ten foot wide public utility easement located along 

the northwesterly side lot line of Lot 10, Block D of River Place, Section 15 
Precinct Two. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

TNR staff has received a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate a 

ten foot wide public utility easement (PUE), more specifically described as an electric 

easement (EE), located along the northwesterly side lot line of Lot 10, Block D of 

River Place, Section 15. The easement is dedicated per plat note. The subject lot 

fronts on James Ryan Way, a street maintained by Travis County. 


The electric utility company operating in the area has stated they have no objection 

to vacating the subject easement. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation request 

meets all Travis County standards. As of this memo, staff has not received any 

inquiries in regards to this request. As such, TNR staff recommends the request. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

According to the request letter the owner of the property would like resolve an 

encroachment issue. It seems a retaining wall was constructed within the boundaries 

of the subject easement without having the easement vacated. Vacating the 

easement should remedy the encroachment issue. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

None. 


Item 2Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



ATTACHM ENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation 
Field Notes 
Req uest Letter 
Utility Statements 
Sign Affidavit and Pictures 
Maps 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director od 

Development Services 
and Long Range 
Planning 

TNR (512) 854-7561 

cc: 

Stacey Scheffel Permits Program 

Manager 
TNR (512) 854-7565 

ps:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services Long Range Planning - River Place, Section 15 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

 
Meeting Date:  November 12, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Juanita Jackson/854-4467 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Sherri E. Fleming,  
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Approve proclamation regarding Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week to be 
held November 18, 2013 through November 24, 2013 in Travis County. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The Ending Chronic Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) is hosting Hunger and 
Homelessness Awareness Week activities, November 18, 2013 through November 24, 
2013. This is an annual event that includes a week of programs designed to educate the 
Austin community on the root causes of hunger and homelessness in Central Texas.  
To learn more about ECHO’s Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week, visit: 
http://www.austinecho.org/hhweek/. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends approval of the proclamation. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week is the largest annual event that connects 
policy makers, local business leaders, service providers, faith based organizations, and 
community members to engage in implementing active solutions and prevention 
methods for hunger and homelessness in Central Texas.  
The Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week calls attention to those less fortunate 
while furthering ECHO’s vision to create a community fiercely focused on ending 
homelessness. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
None 

Item 5Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



2013 Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week!  
Calendar of Events 

 

��������
�������	�

	
������
�����
�	�

�������
�������	�

����������
������	�

���������
���������

��������
���������

���������
���������

��������
�������	��

HHomeless 
Sunrise 

Memorial  
 
6:57am 
The 
Homeless 
Memorial  & 
Tree of 
Remembra
nce is at 
South First 
and Riverside 
Dr. at 
Auditorium 
Shores. 

EECHO Annual 
Meeting 

 
 
3pm - At this 
meeting, ECHO’s 
Work Groups will 
share their 
achievements and 
voting members 
will elect the 2014 
Membership 
Council. A 
reception will 
follow. Location 
TBD. 
 
Please RSVP at 
http://www.austin
echo.org/annual-
meeting 

HHomeless and 
Mental Health 

Awareness Event 
 

3-4:30pm - Join us 
in listening to the story 
of a woman who has 
experienced mental 
illness and 
homelessness and 
persevered to become 
an advocate for those 
with mental and 
physical disabilities.  
L ifeworks -  835 N 
Pleasant Valley Rd 
Coffee and snacks 
provided. 
RSVP:dawn.buhler@au
stintexas.gov  

SSuggestion 
 
 
 
For our young 
advocates - 
Hold a hot 
coco stand 
and donate 
the proceeds 
to a local 
nonprofit! 

MMLF Event 
 
8:30-11:30  
MLF’s 
Community 
First Model 
Park will 
showcase 
features of 
their 
Community 
First Village, 
including 
carving out a 
garden bed & 
constructing a 
beehive.  
 
 
Sign up at 
mlf.org/volunte
ersgg 
 

SSuggestion 

 

Sign Up - Each 
Thanksgiving, 
Operation 
Turkey 
organizes 
volunteers to 
cook, prepare, 
and deliver 
thousands of 
hot meals to 
people in need. 

www.operation
turkey.com 

HHunger Event 
 

8am-2pm 
Volunteer at 
Johnson’s 
Backyard 
Garden & then 
eat lunch 
(provided) while 
Capital  Area 
Food Bank
presents on 
hunger issues 
in Austin. 
Volunteers can 
be 12+ with 
parent/guardia
n! 
 

RSVP:dawn.buh
ler@austintexas
.gov  

EEmpty Bowl 
Project 

 
11am-3pm $20   
Join us for one of 
our City’s tastiest 
and worthiest 
traditions – the 
Austin Empty 
Bowl Project at 
the Marchesa Hall 
& Theatre in 
Lincoln Village.  
 
For more 
information, go to 
www.austinempty
bowl.org/   

�������	
����	��	����������������������������������	����������	�������������	����	�����	�� ��!�
"���� #����#�� ���#�����������������������	�����	��$%&&   '����(��!'���&��)��	��

� �������� ������������ ����������� � �������� �

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 
Prepared By: Sarah Sumner, Planner Phone #: (512) 854-7687 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowlin, Division Director_ Development 
Services and Long Range Plan Ing 

Department Hea: v n ilia, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Daugherty, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on the revised plat of 
Travis Settlement Section Four Lots 214B and 215 (Two lots into one 5.53 acre lot 
Evidence Cove - existing well and on-site wastewater) in Precinct Three. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
The revised plat of Travis Settlement Section Four Lots 214B and 215 combines the 
two lots into one 5.53 acre lot on Evidence Cove. There is an existing house where 
well and permitted on-site wastewater system already on exist. A sign was placed 
on the property with the approved hearing date. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
This application meets Travis County standards and is recommended by staff. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Staff has received no inquiries at this time. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
NA 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Location Map 
Original Plat 
Proposed 
Revised Plat 
Precinct Map 
Affidavit 
Sign Photos 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

I Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager 
I Steven M. Manilla County Executive 

TNR 
TI\JR 

I (512) 854-4239 
I (512) 854-9429 

Item 6Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Anna Bowlin Division TNR (512) 854-7561 
Director_Development 
Services and Long 
Range Planning 

cc: 

ISarah Sumner IPlanner 1(512) 854-7687 

ss:AB:ss 
1101 • Development Services Long Range Planning· Travis Settlement Section Four 
Revised Plat of Lots 214B and 215 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
S II. VI N ;V I. iVIM ,!!!. 1A P I: C()l! NT Y I:.\l .Cl ;,nVL 
-111 \\ ( ' \ 131h Slr« \ 
I ·\(eull\ ( on;e( Ilutld illg 
I' .( ) 110\ 17-1 X 
. \U 'II Il . I <:\J , 7X7h7 
lei ~ 12-X:i-1-9JX3 
1;1\ ~ 12 -X~ -1--1h-1l) 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

TO: 	 Count)' Judge 
County Commissioners 
Tra"is County, Texas 

A rubl ic Notice or Plat Revision sign was posted on 	 , 2013 , at d-lt>hev- )b 
5001 Evidence Cove at a point as near as practical to the area being revised , and was also posted 
at the Travi s Coullty Courthouse . 

CE RTIF I FD THIS TH E _--,I,--b DA Y OF --,aC-,-O~( V ___. 20 \3 . _ __ "",,--_ ____ 

SIGN ATU R[: -7"'''--------=---=-----

NAME (PRIN1):~·Me.. Gan:.(~ 


TlTLE 7JPFtj£.I g ~~ 


cc: Garcia (sign shop) 

C: \Users\GarciaJ\AppData\Loca I\Microsoft\Windows\ Temporary Internet Files\Content. Outlook\AJBA03JB\Sign RequE 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



NOTICE OF 

PUBLIC HEARING 


NOVEMBER 12. 2013 AT 900 AM 

REVISED PLAT 

LOTS 2148 AND 215 

TRAVIS 5tTTliMENr 


SECTION fOUR 

iWO LOTS INTOONE OT 


PRECINCT 3 

AT THE TRAVIS COUNTY 


COMMISSIONERS COURTROOM 

700 LAVACA (FIRST FLOOR) 


AUSTIN, T6=XAS 78701 


fOR MORE INfORMATION CAlL 512-854-7687 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis Settlement Section Four 


Revised Plat of Lots 2148 and 215 


Location Map 


NOT-YO-SCALE 


Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



-----
-----

1U0l1: _~Lloc. 

~;.r'"
"po' 

'. 
~ 
I,..t. 
". I ••

'q, • 

211A. 
2.86 All. 

! 
" 1: 

212 
1.57 At. 

J~J>.~ 
J>, 0,. .

" , 

211B 
1.69 Ac. 

.' 

~' ,p""> 
"po'~ 

210. 
3.50 Ac . 

I 
I 

\/'~/ 
2Z1 

~ 
.\ 

9. 
\ 

~~.. .~214A 
2.24 A&. , 

--_/t 
I 
I 
I 

I
/ 

I 
I 
I 
I---------..... 

---~~ 

Vol fN PI(eJlq. 

OlllD}HAL SCALE 
" - 100' 

\ 

\ 


~:... 
215 

•;'f7 .:..~' 3 67 Ac . 
rIt, A 227 \, 1 !fA 	 ~..- "\ 

c,-t 
¢ 

Z09 .!' 
/ 

~ 
0;.0/ 

,w., Btl r, ~'fD 

__ 8. 3207 

LE9END 

+ 	 ,rot_ n:uo ..... .., .y 
o 	 III[III('.III'T HJlHUr ..........,. rtIlJO 

-..1\......,.. KT 

...- ..-'-"" 

YDU9t TaA.-'" CDMfY • ., IIiIIUIIOI 

""'I: 

CD( CCNlUtV...rlOff I. DII'....ur , .."n 
l UIIT'(IIL.IIIII 

LDT ....au fItJ' ~ a ano IKI.! 

CI••" "",... .. , ....... _. 
aL... -"'. .u. .....,... 


I ....... 
 _. - ... .... ... ---" ......... 

I r ....... --_. .... LO ..n ........ 

I u·.,... .... ,... ........,
....... ... ... ... ...........
... ...•&0 I .. " .........
.....(.,..- IU,.·....... ... ""....,.. ...'"' 

• .....'t1" ITUII .... .u• "u ....·'"'"' ·....... "... ... ..• •......N' 


••"11 ....U ,,..... _ ._ · ....... ... ... ..
.... ,.n .... ..- ......... 

II I....-n- I ••• .... lot ........, 
... •.. .n IPI(II('" .... "UI _" IM._ ~,.......... 
II ....... 

•• .... -:.: :!"X:U 
• O'WY 

-..", KEn 
~~ 

DABNEY-BYRN 

_I 
'USOCIATEB. INC. 


!I!O~ ~, UlIg~ ~ 

...,.. --.-.. -...-. 

...., ." 

TRAVIS SETTLEMENT 
SECTION FOUR 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



cuoo: 
DAn: 

f? q"1?"'Jm.pP~lyqAVol. ell Pqe.3M J4tj) :jl,,!?q J?C& 
........I~- ..... 1111_ 

0A10IN"~ SCAU 
s· - '00· 

222 

oj. 

i~~\ 

~ "" •J.-;"~ 
.p

-~. 
ff, 

':. 
~ 

,f· 
~-(,' 
~\ 
~ 
~, 

P£IIn' 1lrIDTIE>Ifa. I!'oc , 

OCTOIUI 4. .... 

215 
3 . 28 At . 

~,,.d",. 
..~••;,y 
.p

,,

21G 
I 91 At . 

" 
'" '" '" "",

,/ 
,/ 

229 

----~// 
".,. 

,~".'\ .:\, 

\. ~"I 

216 
3 . S6 Ac . 

\. , . 
'\ 

230 "b. 

'\ \~\.." ~.'\, .~ " .,~~ 

',.
-" 

"\ I '!:~ 
/ ... 

'\ I v.,.~ 
/ '~;,. 

" I '\ ." ,.. '\ 23' ~;
..): '\ / 

~ ,00' ....r _ "". ~ '\ I" .~ "" '\ /
I" "/• .. . . '\ If\. 

'\ 232 

\. " / 
iu' tea " \.""','\~ 

217 
5.89 At. 

218 
3 . B8 At . 

...... ",// 

/'<
" ........ 

207 " 
_~'i.~'\ ~';I. 

.... !.~~~.'f. ':J' "" 

........ 

".. 
~ 

) 

1/ 

Y 
//, 

/ I 
/ I 

/ I 

// :, 
\/ 

\ 

Y 

/\
".,. \ 

".,. \ 
".,. \ 

/ \ 
/ \ 205 

\ 

I 
204 B I 

I 
I 

\ 
\ 

\ 
/ \ 

/ \ \ 

\ 
\ 

i"~?'~'-:" 
';,t',\,i\{'lt 

.c~-.: '3\"'$.. 
S~..... 

" " ...... 

206 

...... ...... ...... 

V 

I, 
I 

/ 

" ,~",. / 
, 1\""-/ 

204 A 

I 
I 

I 

/ 
/ 

• ,\~~?-'f:." 
"c("·\\~~

*:: ..... 

....., "1 ."'6" ~-,.. 

84 3208 

LEDENO 

+ UfOj ,., , CIIQ-_on 
0 t:I:Irc.T'f M'''' IiIHICWf nuo 
Q MtUDI.D ..-n1 If' 

'DO .,.. 

~ "-"I' ccum DUO trttCQIIQI 

turv( 

CDUtll.' 

t:l C!)t."'ftT.aN. OIl"''' (A..lIUN" 

ClJII"t[ 00111. - ... - .. - -_ ........ .... .. ... .... ..~ ....... ... ,u' •• ..... ..,.,... 
.nr.. ... ... ... ...., ......" 
~...,. .. .. .. ~..........."...·r .. .. ... .................. •• ... .f_ ... ....... 

1 U·.... •• ...n ... ..... .,."......... .. ... .... ...........·...... ... ... ... a.••••.,...
• .,..r u ..... ... ... ,u·..... 
u ...... ... ... .. ... ......,....... ... ,.. ... ..... ..........· ...... .. ... .. ~J"...... 

of ~~\'Jc::. 
S~\:·'i·' • 

"" ",ru at!f.T 0IlIf1 

DABNEY-BYRN 
C ASSOCIATES, JNC , 

tJ(J 'loUJIII fItf'IYntRI LAI«) J:Il.JHIrM KUPmIS 

IWTl'O..,-, ..........-
OUT II' 

-_..... 

TRAYIS SETTLEMENT 
SECTION fOUR 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



STATE or TEXAS: 
COU Po'TY Of TRA~ GENERAl NOlES: 


1) TRAVIS COUNTY ()[V[LOP~ENT p(R...rr REOUIRED PRIOR 10 I>H'f SITE DEvnOP~ENT. 
 TRAVIS SETTLEMENT SECTION FOUR REVISED 
KNOWN TO ALL WEN THAT LlL.l~ CAVI~, OWNER Of LOT 2"8 ANO LOT 215, TRAVIS scnLEMENT 2) NO O&IECTS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIWIltO 10, BUILDiNGS. fENCtS. OR lANDSCAPING 
SECTIGN fOUR, RECORDED IN VOL ua.lE 1S4 . PAGES 29C-J1A, PLAT RECORDS Of TRAVIS COUNTY, SHAu BE ALLOWED IN A DRAJN}l.GE US(MEKT EXCEPT AS APPRQV[D BY TRAVIS 

CO'JtlTY.TEXAS AS C'ON'JrYED BY WARRANT'!' DEED RECORDED IN DOCUIo![NT I 20 11DJ9987 AND DOCUWENT , PLA T OF LOTS 214B AND 215 
20110431 •• , OFfICIAl PUBLIC RECOR OS or TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY' RESUBDMDE LOT 3) AlL DRA.I~ (ASEIo4ENTS ON PRIVAIE PRO P(RT'r' SHAll BE Iro&AJh'TAlNED BY THE 
2148 AND LOT 215, OF SAlO SUe DMSJQN HAVING BEEN APPROVED fOR R[SUBDMSION PURSlJ,t,NT, TO OWNER OR HIS/HER ASSIGNS 
CHAPTER 132.009, or THE LOCAl GCM:RN"'ENT COOL TO BE KNOWN AS THE "R(SUBOMSION Of LOT 4) PROPERtY OWNER OR HIS/HER ASSIGNS SHAl.L PRO'IlDE fOR ACCESS to THE 
214B ok LOT 115. TRAVIS SmLEWENT S[CllON fOUR, AND DO HEREBY OCOICAT[ TO THE PUBliC THE 
USE Of THE STREETS, RlGHT Of WAY AN D [AS[IoIENTS AS SHOWN HEREON, SUBJ(Cl TO I>H'f 
EAS["'[NTS AND/OR RESTRICTIONS HERETOFOR£ GRMTEO A.HO NOT REl£.AS[o. 

~ CAVlN -- - -- 0.1£ 
6804 \ItA CORR[TO 
A.usnN. TEXAs 787 49 

NOTARY 

STATE Of TEXAS 
COUNTY Of TRAVIS' 

BEfORE "'E. THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORIlY. A NOTARY PUBLIC fOR THE STATE Of TEXAS. ON THIS 
DAY PERSO~LLY APPEARED LILLIAN CAVIN, KNOWN TO "'E TO BE THE PERSONS WHOSE ..w.ES ARE 
SUBSCRIBED TO THE F"DRE GCfNG INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO WE THAT TH['I" EXECUTED SAIoIE 
fOR THE PURPOSE AND CON$IDERAiJOt-I THEREIN EXPRESSED. '" 11i[ CAPACITY THEREIN STAT[O. GIVEN 
UNDER ",Y Hot.NO AND SEAl... or Of"n CE, THIS THE ___ DAY Of ___. 20_, A.D 

NOTAA'f PUBLIC IN AND fOR THE ST ATE or It.u.s 

NOTARY PUBliC ·"~. .,. " .....[,-· P "'"'["'0 = -- 
MY' CO"' ...ISSIOH DP,R[S: _____ _ 

SURVEYOR'S CERTl flCATION' 

I, RONNIE WILLIS. A.W AI.JTl-iORIZ£D UhOER I HE LAWS or THE STAT[ or TEXAS TO PRACTICE 
THE PROfESSION or u-HO SURVCYING. AND HEREBY STATE ALL EXISTING EASEWENTS OF 
RECORD OF WHICH I A.W AWARE HAVE BEEN SHOWN OR NOTED HEREON. TO IHE BEST Of WY 
KNOWLEDGE. 

fLQO{)PI..AIH NOTE: 

NO PORTICN Of" THIS tRACT LIES WITHIN IHE DESIGNAIED FLOOD HAZARD AREA AS SHOWN ON 
TH( fEDERAl E).I..!:RGENC'f J.W.IAGE"'E"'l A.G£NCY (fE/oIA) fLOOD INSURANCE RATE t.IAP ( nRW) 
NO. 4845JC 0385 H. OATED SEPTEIoIBER 26, 20015 

PRELIMINARY NOT FOR RECORDING 
RONN1: WilU5 DAlE 
REGIST£RED PRor[SSIONAl.. lANO SlJRvtYOR 
STAT[ or TEXAS foiO. 50462 
WlNDROSE LAND SERVICES A.USTIN LlD 
.1 70 CDN...[RCIAl.. C[:flTER DRrvE. sunE .lOD 
AUSTIN. TEXAS 78744
PHONE: 512-326-1.l()() 
rA.)(: 511-J26-2770 

STAT[ or TEXAS: 
COUNTY Of TRAVIS : 

I DANA OEBEAUVOIR, CLERK Of l RAViS COUPo'TY, lEXAS 00 HEREBY CERTIfY THE 
fOREGOING INST~IoIENT Of WRITING AHO ns CERTifiCATE Of ALJlHEtfl"lCAtION WAS 
F"lLED roR RECORD I~ ~Y OfflC[ ON THE _ _ _ DAY Of • 
20_. A.D. AT _ _ _ O'CLOCK _ .... .. DULY RECORDED ON THE _ _ DAY 
OF _ __' 20_, A...O ~ . D AT __ O'CLOCK _~., IN DOCU ...[tfl" 
NU~BER _ ,__ • 0fTICW.. PuBLIC RECORDS Of TRAVIS COUNlY. 1EXAS. 

WITNESS IoIY HAND AND S[AL or orn c ( OF THE COUNTY CLERK. I HIS ___ 
DAY' or 20_. A,O 

DANA OEBEAU'lQIR. CQUPo'TY C\.ERl<, lRAVIS COUNTY. lEXAS 

OEPUlY 

SlAt[ or 1[)(AS' 
COUNTY or TRAVIS: 

I, [),J,NA Dc-BE1J.1VO~. CLERK OF THE COU Po'TY COURT. or TRAVIS COUNTY. TEXAS , DO 
HEREIrl' CERTIFY THAT ON TI-"E _ _ __ DAY' or __ . 
20_, A.O .. THE cow"'!SS!ONtR'S" COURT or lRAVIS COUNTY. TEXAS PASSED AN 
ORD[R AVT~RIZ1~ THE f lt.lNG fOR RE CORD Of THIS PLAt. AND TH.A.l SAID ORDER 
WAS OUL Y [NTERED IN TH E "'!NUTE S or SAIO COURT. 

WJl"NE.SS IoIY HANO AND SEAl or ornCE Of THE COUNTY COURT Of SAlO COU Po'TY 
TH[ ___ DAY OF , 20_, A.D. 

DI'INA ~B[AUVOtR, COU NTY CL ERJ( 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

OEPUlY 

=~- ------LH,nH 
. --~.r..~~ A,anYn 

..- I " ..... _1.~fe.n9'.e-e... _ ...... ;., __ '~~I, '''' ~~ 
I II .- • __I ",!,,:,,_ _ _...., ._........ , ~--- ...... -::j~<'\U _ 

Joe NO. 2..38 

DRAINAGE £.ASEIo4ENl AS ......Y BE N(CESSARl' AND SIiALL NOT PROtfall ACCESS BY 
TRAVIS COU.NTY fOR INSP[CTION OR Iro&AJNTE.N.ANCE or 5AJO EASEMEi'lT. 

5) RAlNfAil RUN-OfT StW..L BE HElD TO THE .t.WOUNT EXlStiNC AT UNDEVELOPED 

STATUS BY PONOING OR OTHER APPROVED "'(THOOS. 

6) 1 LOT TOTALING 5.53 ACRES . 

7) AlL LOTS HAVE: A 20' BUIlDING SEl-8.ACK UN£ FRO... IIU. 5TR(l"t R.O.w.'s A 10' 

P.U.£. ALONG THE STRE[T SlOE Of ALL LOIS, 

e) THE WINI...t..IroI J,R[A roR All SINGLE rAWl Y LOTS SHAll BE 1.5 ACRE. 

9) SUBJECl TO RESTRlCTM CCM;"......'lTS BY VOl. 84. pes. 29C-31A, T.C.P.R_. VOL 

118J9. PC. 24~. VOL 11816. PC. 907, VOL 119:.0. PG. 2~!!I, WI... 1326!!1. PC JJ. 

VOl- l.l309, PC. 131, T.C.R.P R •• OOC. NO. 1999017591. DOC . NO. 2000007J06. DOC 

NO. 2001 120963. DOC. NO. 2(01 1318)~. DOC. NO. 2002089«5. DOC. NO. 

~. DOC. NO. 200511473"7, DOC. NO. 20052009~, DOC. NO. 1OC6ll56900. 

DOC NO. 2006184091. DOC . NO 200623737. , DOC . NO, 2007225688, DOC. "'0 

2007225689, OOC. NO. 2()()810D609, DOC. NO. 1009207136, DOC NO 2011006951. 

T C.O.P.R. 

10) 10' ElECTRIC AND T[LEPHONE [AS(WENT (ALONG STRE(T R.O.W.'S) BY VOl.. 3930, 

PC 155(1, 1.C.D R 

II ) SUBJECT TO A Bl.ANK[T-Tl'PE UTlL.IT'f EASE...ENT BY VOL. 12217. PC. 227. VOL 
12217, PG. 229. T.C R P.R 
12) ::I' PUBLIC Ul""IlIl"Y AND ORAlN...c;E OOE.wENT ALONG AlL liNES BY DOC. NO 
19990521771. T.C.O.P.R 
13) BUILOING UNE R[STRlcnoNS 8'1' DOC NO. 19990::12171, T.C.O.P.R. 
14) All R[STRICTIONS rR0t04 THE PR(VIOUSLY' R(COROCD SUBDMSION PLAT(S) WILL 
APPLY TO THIS tRAViS smLEWENT SEcnoN fOUR R[VISED PLAT OF LOTS 2,.8 ANO 
215. 
15) THERE SHAlL BE: NO OCCUP""''C'I' Of A STRUCTURE IN IHIS D£V[lONENT UNllL 
WAIER s.AnSfACTOR'Y fOR HUWNiI CQNSUIoIPTIQN IS AVAIlABlE fROt.I A SOURCE Of 
AD£OUA.TE AND sunlCIENT SuPPLY SAID SuPPLY' SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE TEXAS 
STA1[ HEAl..TH O[PAA'lw[NT AND THE SYSTE'" or sum Y SIiotU BE BUILT TO HEAl...TH 
DEPARiW[NTS STNII(W«)S. 
16) THERE SHAlL BE: NO OCCUPANCY or 1HE STRUCTURE IN "NIS D[V(LOP"'(Nl UNTIL 
A SEPTIC TAN K S'f'ST[N HAS BEEN INSTALLED IN ACCORON«:E WlTK THE RULES. 
RECULATIONS or THE TEXAS STAlE HEAlIH DEPARl ... ENT AND UN11L AFPR(NAL or THE 
TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH OfTlC[R IS O81A1HEO PER THE SPEClrlC LOT; TI-WS STAIEw[NT 
IS APPl.ICABL£ ONlY TO THOS[ LDTS OVTS!O( IH[ Le.RA JURISDICTION. 

CO WWISSIONER'S COURT RESOlUTION 

IN APPR(N\NG THIS PlAT. THE COWIo4/SS10NERS COURT Of TRAVIS COUtfTY, TEXAS, 
ASSU"'ES NO OBLUtlON TO BUILD THE STREfTS, ROADS, AND OTHER PUBUC 
I MCROI.iGHfARES SHOWN ON THIS PLAt OR N'lY BRIDGES OR CUL'I[Rl'S IN 
CONNECTION 1H[RE',.,1'H- THE BUILDING or AU... STRE[TS, ROADS, ,1.."0 OTHER PUBLJC 
lHOROUGHfARES SHOWN ON TH IS PLAT AND AlL BRIDGES AND CU~V[RTS NECESSARY 
TO B[ CONSTRUCtED OR PLACED IN SUCH STREfTS, ROADS, OR OTHER PUBLIC 
Tl-t()J«)VCHfARES OR IN CONNECTION THERtwlTH. IS lKE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE 
OWNER AND/OR DEVtLOPER Of THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLA1 IN 
ACCOROA.NCE WITH PlANS AND SPECIrlCAT10NS PRESCRIBED BY T~E COJ.lWISSiONERS 
COURT Of TRAVIS COUPo'TY, TEXAS. 

TH[ OWNER(S) or THE SUBOMSION SHAU CONSlRUC1 IHE SUBOIVISION'S STRE[l 
AND DRAINAGE IWPRQII£wENTS (THE 'WPRQlrt"'ENTS1 to COUtfTY STANDARDS IN 
ORDER fOR THE COUNTY TO ACCEPT THE PuBLIC IJ,IPRC>'"v1:WEHTS FCR I.tAlNTENANCE 
OR TO RELEASE fiSCAl SECURfTY POSTED TO SECURE PRIVATE l "'PRO'I["'ENTS. TO 
SECURE THIS OBLIGATION. THE OWHER(S) wuST POST nsc.AL S[CURITY WIlH THE 
COlNTY IN THE AMOUNT or THE ESTIW,TEO COST Of THE IUPR()V[IroI[NTS TH[ 
OWNER(S) OBLIGATION TO CONSTRUCT THE I"'PRovEJ.lENTS TO COUNTY STANDAROS 
AND TO POST THE F"tSCA.l. SECURfTY TO SECURE SUCH CONSTRUCTION IS A. 
CONlIHUING OBLIGATION BIN()INC ON THE OWNERS ANO TH[lR SUCCESSORS NIIO 
ASSlCNS UNllL THE PUBLIC I ... PROVEIoIEHTS HAV[ BEEN ACCEPTED f OR IoWNTENANCE 
8'1' 1HE COUtfTY. OR THE PRIVATE IwPRCNt"'ENTS 1iAV[ BEE N CONSTRUCTED AND ARE 
P(RfDRIotIINC TO COUNTY STANOAROS. 

IHE .-lfTHORI2ATlON or THIS PLAT BY IHE CO ...... I$SIONERS COl..."RT fOR F"lLING OR 
Hi( SUBSEOUENT ACCEPTANC[ rOR i.WNTENNoIC[ BY TRAVIS COL"fITY, TEXAS, or 
RCW)5 AND STREETS IN THE SUBOIV!SION DOES NOT OBLI~tE IHE COUNTY TO 
INSTALL SlRE(T NAlolE SIGNS OR ERt CT TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS. SUCH AS SPEED 
LI...rr, STOP SIGNS. AND YIELD SIGNS, WH ICH IS CONSIDERED TO BE A PART OF THE 
0 [ VE1DPER'S CONSTRUCTION. 

TRAVIS COUtfTY ON~ SIlE wAIER AND WASTEWAIER PROGRAM NOTES: 

1) NO STRUCTURE IN THIS SUBOMSION SHAU. BE OCCUP:ED UNlll CONNE CTED to A 

PUBliC S(W[R SYST[104 OR A PRlVA1E ON-sm WASTEWATER (SEPnC) S'r"5TE'" tHAT 

HoIoS BEEN APPROVEO AND UCENSED f OR oPERAnON BY THE lRAVIS COUNTY ON-SITE 

WASI EWATER PRQGR.fJ.I . 

1) NO CONSTRUCTION /oIAY SEelN ON ANY LOT IN IHIS SUBDMSION UNllL PlANS fOR 

THE PRIVATE ON-SITE S("WA.CE 01SPOS.A.L SYSTE'" ARE APPRQ'I/[O BY THE TRAVIS 

COUNTY ON-srrr wASTEWATER PROGRAM. 

J) OfVELOPu[NT ON [ACH LOT IN THIS SUBOMSION SHAlL B[ IN COt.IPUANCE WITH 

THE ",INI ... UM REOUIREWENTS or IHE TllLE .lO or TH[ T[XAS A.()J.llN1STRATlV[ CODE 

CHAPTER 285 AND TRAVIS COUPo'TY CODE CHolPTER 48 THA1 AR[ IN [frECl ,1..1 11-/[ 

TlJ.IE Of CONSTRUCTION, 

4) THESE RESTRIClIONS AAE ENfORCOBLE BY THE 1RAVIS COUNTY ON-S1l"E 

WASTEWATER PROGRAM. 

5) ALL LOTS IN THIS SUBDMS!ON ARE RESTRICTED TO ONE SlNGL[ FAMilY DWElliNG 

PER LOT . A SINGLE rlUollL Y' DWELLING INCLUDES ,AlL DETACHEO BUILDINGS LOCAIEO 

OH THE LOT THAT ARE ROUTINELY liSED ONLY BY "'E"'BERS Of THE HOUSEHOLD Of 

THE S!NGLE fAUILY' DWE LLING. 

6) i'K} StRUClURE IN THIS SUBOMS1DN SHALL BE OCC UPI[ D UNllL COt-6NECTED to A 

POIABLE WATER SUPPLY fRO'" AN APPRovtO WAlIR SYSl['" OR A PRIVAtE WELL. . 

7) NO WATER WELL IN THIS SUBDMS'ION /oIAY BE LOCATED WiTHIN 15D rE[T Of tHE 

SUBDMSION BOUNDARY WHKOur THE CONSENl or THE ADJOINJNG LAND OWNER(S). 


STACN SCHEffEl, D.R. PROGRAM ~ER. DATE 
ON-SHE WAST[ WATER. TRAVIS COUNTY lNR 

[lJ NOTE 

HtlS PROPERTY IS NO' LOCAlEO IN .-NY CITT"S EXlRA-TERRlTORIAl JURISDICTION. 

W~E 

V 

s 

SCALE : 1- = 100' 

100 100 1 00 300 rut 
HHHHH 

;\ '~ 
'~""... \ . ~(,;,

-c.. ' •. ~< ~. I\~ ,~ 
. .(;. \ . 

VJ11~~~ 

~~~~~ 
~~~, \ 

iO. ~,~ 

~\~ 
~.(,.. \ 

,.;.. ~, 

....~ 

~.s~ 

®.~" ... 

." -$-' 

~\.: 

Wi" 1..'" #., ~ .. 
'~':':"":- ~ '~ :

LEGEND ..." 
0"'" 
0 
.~ 

UL 

.. ... ~ - _ - J.: 

@ 
( ) CASENCl--

BtEET 2 OF 2 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

http:S("WA.CE
http:AD�OUA.TE
http:WJl"NE.SS
http:DRAJN}l.GE
http:VOLua.lE


Travis Settlement Section Four 


Revised Plat of Lots 214B and 215 


Precinct Map 


Precinct Location by Address 

* 

:; 

~. il $ 1m. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



I 
~ 


,J J~ i ~ - i 
0 

i ~ . 


.-;,,, ... 
I~;' , " 

! 

,. 
... ... 

~~:~. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins, Engineer Specialist 
Phone #: (512) 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowlin, Division Director of Development 
Services and Long Range Planning 

/1~~~
Department Head: Ste"'ven M. Marrlitta, P.E., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Todd, Precinct Two 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on a request to 

authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate a ten foot wide public utility easement 

located along the northwesterly side lot line of Lot 10, Block D of River Place, 

Section 15 - Precinct Two. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

TNR staff has received a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate a 

ten foot wide public utility easement (PUE), more specifically described as an electric 

easement (EE), located along the northwesterly side lot line of Lot 10, Block D of 

River Place, Section 15. The easement is dedicated per plat note. The subject lot 

fronts on James Ryan Way, a street maintained by Travis County. 


The electric utility company operating in the area has stated they have no objection 

to vacating the subject easement. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation request 

meets all Travis County standards. As of this memo, staff has not received any 

inquiries in regards to this request. As such, TNR staff recommends the request. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

According to the request letter the owner of the property would like resolve an 

encroachment issue. It seems a retaining wall was constructed within the boundaries 

of the subject easement without having the easement vacated. Vacating the 

easement should remedy the encroachment issue. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

None. 


Item 7Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation 
Field Notes 
Req uest Letter 
Utility Statement 
Sign Affidavit and Pictures 
Maps 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director of TNR (512) 854-7561 

Development Services 
and Long Rang 
Planning 

cc: 

Stacey Scheffel Permit Program TI\lR (512) 854-7565 

Manager 

PS:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services Long Range Planning - River Place, Section 15 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



ORDER OF VACATION 


STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

WHEREAS, the property owner requests the vacation of a ten foot wide public utility easement 
(more specifically described as an electric easement) located along the northwesterly side lot line of Lot 
10, Block D of River Place, Section 15 as recorded at Volume 103, Pages 56-60 of the Real Property 
Records of Travis County, Texas; 

WHEREAS, the electric utility company known to be operating in the area has indicated they have 
no need for the public utility (electric) easement as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 

WHEREAS, the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department recommends the 
vacation of the subject public utility (electric) easement as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 

WHEREAS, the required public notice was posted and the Travis County COnmllssioners Court 
held a public hearing on November 12, 2013 to consider the proposed action; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, by unanimous vote, the COnmllssioners Court of Travis County, Texas, 
orders that the ten foot wide public utility (electric) easement located along the northwesterly side lot line 
of Lot 10, Block D of River Place, Section 15, as shown and described in the attached field notes and 
sketch, is hereby vacated. 

ORDEREDTHISTHE ___ DAYOF_______ 2013. 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE, COUNTY JUDGE 

COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS COMMISSIONER BRUCE TODD 
PRECINCT ONE PRECINCT TWO 

COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY COMMISSIONER MARGARET GOMEZ 
PRECINCT THREE PRECINCT FOUR 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



ExmBIT"A" 	 PARTIAL EASEMENT RELEASE AREA 
PG.I0F3 

BEING 993 SQUARE FEET, OR 0.023 OF AN ACRE, TRACT OF LAND, MORE 
OR LESS, OUT OF LOT 10, BLOCK D, RIVER PLACE, SECTION 15, A 
SUBDMSION OF RECORD IN VOLUME 103, PAGES 56-60 OF THE PLAT 
RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS CONVEYED TO ROSS MCIVER 
AND JEANETTE MCIVER IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2013124509 OF THE 
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING A 
PORTION OF A 10.0 FOOT ELECTRIC EASEMENT (E.E.) CREATED BY SAID 
RIVER PLACE, SECTION 15 SUBDIVISION; SAID 993 SQUARE FEET, OR 
0.023 OF AN ACRE, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES 
AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING at a Yz" rebar found in the westerly line ofLot 9, said River Place, 
Section 15, said point being the western most comer ofLot 8, Block A, River Place at 
Panther Hollow Creek, a Subdivision of record in Document No. 200400081, Official 
Public Records of said County and being the eastern most comer of said Lot 10; from 
which a W' rebar found in the easterly right ofway line of James Ryan Way, being the 
southwesterly comer ofsaid Lot 8, and the southwesterly comer of said Lot 10 bears, S 
45°19'16" W (Bearing Basis)t a distance of 121.38 feet; 

THENCE N 43°18'59" W, with the common boundary lines of said Lot 9 and said Lot 
10, a distance of 82.86 feet to a calculated point in the southerly line of said 10 foot E.E. 
for the southeasterly comer and the PLACE OF BEGINNING, hereof; 

THENCE running through said Lot 10 with the southerly line of said 10 foot E.E., being 
the southerly line hereof, the following three (3) calls: 

1. 	 24.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 555.00 
feet and chord bearing and distance of S 44°25'36" W for 24.86 feet to a 
calculated point, said point being the point of tangency of said Easement 
and the Tract hereof; 

2. 	 S 43°06'55" W, a distance of 81.68 feet to a calculated point, said point 
being the point ofcurvature of said Easement and the Tract hereof; 

3. 	 8.92 feet along the arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 10.00 feet 
and a chord bearing and distance of S ] 8°04'28" W, a distance of 8.63 feet 
to a calculated point, said point being the southeasterly corner hereof; 

THENCE S 82°30'47" W. running through said Easement and continuing through said 
Lot 10, being the southerly line hereof, a distance of 10.00 feet to a calculated point at the 
intersection point of the northerly right ofway line ofBig View Drive and the easterly 
right of way line of said James Ryan Way, for the southwesterly comer hereof; 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



~ . 

PG.20F3 

TIIENCE 7.72 feet along the arc ofa curve to the right, having a radius of 20.00 feet and 
a chord bearing and distance ofN 03°34'30" E, for 7.67 feet to a calculated point for the 
northwesterly comer hereof; 

THENCE N 42°36'04" E, departing said right of way and nmning through said Lot 10 
and said 10 foot Easement, a distance of 116.74 feet to a calculated point in the 
aforementioned westerly line ofLot 9 for the northeasterly corner hereof; from which a 
~' rebar found at the northwesterly comer of said Lot 9, being the northeasterly comer of 
said Lot 10 bears, N 43°18'59" W, a distance of0.79 feet; 

THENCE S 43°18'59" E, with the common boundary line of said Lots 9 and 10, running 
through said easement, a distance of9.21 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING hereof 
and containing 993 square feet or 0.023 of an acre of land, more or less. 

THIS DESCRlPTION TO BE USED WITH THE ATTACHED SKETCH ONLY. 

~)# M~ ~'. 
VICTOR M. GARZA-,:r:cs:(t;= 
B & G SURVEYING, INC. 
1404 W. NORTH LOOP BLVD. 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78756 
(5] 2) 458-6969, FAX: (512) 458-1129 

B0800713 ER LEGAL 
TCAD Parcel ID: 0139340842 
hHp:llwww.bandgsurv~y.cQ.m 

DATE 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



~/z31/..3 (50' R.O.W.) 
.~--~--~~--~~~--------

VICTOR tot. GARZA R . .I .J. H40 OATE 
I, Victor M. Garza, licensed to practice lond Surveying in the State of Texas, hereby certify 

20'
that the foregoing metes and bounds legal description and sketch were based on on on the 
ground survey, that all protrusions and encroachments into the easement area are accounted 
for including but not limited to, building footprint, eaves and roof overhangs and all visible 
improvements whatsoever. 

LEGEND 
• ! /2" REBN! FOI.WOB"G SURVEYING, INC. --<r-- CALaJlAlED POINT 

-{9- 1/2" IflOH PIPE fDUNI)DEWEY H. BURRIS &ASSOCIATES, INC. • 600 HAL rotJHO 
8L 8111.D1HG UHESurveyed by: B.t G Surveying. In<:. PIJflUC IJIIIJIY f'ASEIEI{TP.UL 
££ El£CmtC EASDIEHT 
() PER V. !OJ. PG. 56-60

WWW.BANOGSURVEY.COM C.". roH'll'iCI. UOHUII£NT 
1404 West North Loop Blvd. Austin. Texas 78756 R,o.w. RIGHT OF IIIIIY 

P.D.A PLOC£ OF ~Office 512· 458-6969. Fox 512-458-9845 

SKETCH TO ACCOMPANY F LD NOTES FOR PARTIAL EASEMENT RELEASE 
I LOT 9 

i') ; rr ) J!/' ! 
__S_ 43"18'59" [ 

82.86' ---6;0~ 
, C.M• 

. R=555.00·, A=24.86' 
0 

I
r- ,." C8=S 44'25'36· W. 24.86'

0::: :; 
m0 ,...) 'C!

:r r- m 

U 


PARTIAL EASE NT 
~ w w. RELEASE AREA(!) 0> '0 r") 

z: ,." N 

a;: "'¢ "'¢ '0 


,." C>.1i r- en 
993 SQ.FT. OR 0.023 Ae.0 

CD 
N 0 N "" I

:z :z :z 

>:z 
w ~ m ~ 
C> ,...: ,...)
:z .n 
~ LOT 10 

BLOCK D 
r- ,."

(J N<D r- C> RI'4:R PLACE, SECTION 15 
0<: ,...) 04: r- V. 10J, PG. 56-60 

ROSS AACIVER AND JEANETTE MCIVER 

DOC. NO. 2013124509 


TCAD PARCEl 10: 0139340842 

N r- oo 

N~ "'¢--' '0 r  ...,.W 0 
0 en N <0 

,." N N 

I(f) 
0 C> C> 

~ C> C> C>
15 0 a 0 R=10.00' A=8.92' 

N N N~ 
,,-/ CB=S 18"04'28" W. 8.63' 

W 
> N ,." I0:: U 

U " S 82"30'47" W / 

::J U (J 

~- 10.00' /- (10' £.E.) - - .___ 
C.M. 

N 4702'14· W 68.68' 
(N 4052'52" W 68.58') 

JA ES RYAN WAY 

0 20' 

REVISED: oe 

EXHIBIT W8 W 

SHEET 3 OF 3 

JOB I: 8080071 3_ A....ER 
DATE: 08/19/13 
SCAlE: 1-. %tI 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

http:R=555.00
http:WWW.BANOGSURVEY.COM


I---

-

I~ 

~ -

K • 

, I 

Ii 
I' 

~ n 

1\ 

fL4.J 

1~0<..lL 

;cAM.; 

U 

) 

" 

~ 

~~~Att-w ~ ~-<..U-I~~ ~ 

~¥~dlaJM-~
~ 


~ WCUf  --~---

~~~~~~ ..:1..00/ ~ .d.. ~ 
I 

~~,~t:i.v~~~ 
Ji -1u-~ tA-. ~:U..t.a..1.1. ~~~ 
~ A.JO.. ~~..a .UL C4v_~~ 

J ~~~~~~k-~ 
tJ-~ flLU.i:, ~io ~-t ~~~----t 

Mu.-~~ ~~~~------I 
~~ aA.L.. ~~~,__-t 

k~ .j..tvu :t:::Iv-. ~~ .:i:o ~ 
~~~ ~:fA ......... __----t~A"-'U,~L~_ ~ 

f)....~ ~~. 

()L~~ W-R-~~ ~___-I 

~~J _________~~~ .i::N-~ 

~~~~~~~ 

I\dal../("een Mor?hew 

401 A..eRCJWHeAO Po/AI T ;:2p 


13GLToN I 7GXA5 7~S13 

morp..be W @ vv'm, com 

(2G4 780- 2.383 

~ .L-U 254 7GO-{'/493 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



x 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

STEyEN M MANI!'! APE COUNTY EXEC!!T!yE 

4J I West 13th Street 
Executive Office Building 
POBox 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
(512) 854-9383 
FAX (512) 854-4649 

EASEMENT REQUIREMENT STATEMENT FOR VACATION OF PROPERTY 

An application is being made to Travis County for the vacation of property 
at 10224 James Ryan Way (address) and/or 
Lot 10, Block D, River Place, Section 15 (legal description) and as 

described on the enclosed drawing or document. An action of the Commissioners' Court of 
Travis County is pending your return of this statement. Your prompt reply is requested. 

STATEMENT 

We do not have need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 

document. 


We do have a need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 

document. A descc;pt;on of the cequ;ced easement;s attached. ~ 


~CJtZ 
Printed Name 
Mgr., PIRES 

Title 
Austin Energy 

Utility Company or District 
September, 30, 2013 

Date 
Please return this completed form to : 

Ross & Jeanette McIver 

Name 
10224 James Ryan Way 

Address 
Austin, TX 78730 

City/State/Zip 

morphew@vvm.com 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

mailto:morphew@vvm.com


TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
St£yc,( .11. .IIunilfjJ,..f..~'J _ColI..!.!!I .t;:xc(IjJir..c 
700 LllwCII Street - 5'" Floor 
Traris COllllty Admillistratioll BllildillN 
1'. O. Box 17-18 
/1lis/iII. Trxm' 78767 
/el .'iI2-85./-938.J 
fax 512-85,/-16./9 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

TO: 	 County.Judge 
County Commissioners 
Travis County, Texas 

AJ!..ublic Notice of Vacation sign for a ten foot wide public utility easement was posted on 
.~d06er ;AI ,2013, along the northerly ROW line of James Ryan Way at 
its intersection with Big View Drive in front of Lot 10. Block D of River Place. Section 15 at a 
point as ncar as practical to thc area being vacated, and was also posteu at the Travis County 
COUl1holisc. 

CERTIFIED THIS THE . __ ..i!_(_.___DAY OF {1';;ler ____.__,2013. 

SIGNATURE:~.~~ 
NAME (PRINT): ~/m~ GaY"c ,~ 
TITLE: 'LiY1l-/tf.# &~ 

cc: Garcia (sign shop) 
M:\PERMITS\Vacate\13PUE\13-JamesRyanWay\SignRequest-JamesRyanWay.doc 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



NOTICE OF 

PUBLIC HEARING 


NOVaIlER 12. 2013. AT 900 AM 

PlIIllC UTUTYEASEMENT VACATION 


TO APPIIM 11£ V1£Amf If ATEN rOOT 
m: P\JIIX UTUTY EASa£NT LOCATED 

AUK 11£ t«J!THWESTERlYSIlE lOT L.I£ 
II" LOTKl. !LOCK DII" RIVER PI..AC( 

SECTQ IS- A SlIDVISI(J4 NPImtT 2 

A HEARING WLL BE ~ AT 
THE TRAVIS CQlRIITY 

Cor.MSSIOf'£RS COURTROOM 
700 LAVACA ST tAUSTIN. TEXAS 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis CAD - Map of Property ID 583749 for Year 2013 

474650 474692 \ 4747J5 

474651 

474652 

474691 /./-'\ 

/ 

./ 47465~,/ 

0 74655 

474660 '074656 

474689 

583746 

- Streets 

o Selected Property 

Property Details 
Account 

Property ID: 583749 
Geo ID: 0139340942 

Type : Real 
Legal Description: LOT 10 BLK D RIVER PLACE SEC 15 

Location 
Situs Address: 10224 JAMES RYAN WAY TX 78730 
Neighborhood : RIVER PLACE INTERIOR 

Mapsco: 522F 
Jurisdictions: OA, 03, 2J, 52, 59, 68, 69 

Owner 
Owner Name : NUNES GARY & CORINNE 

Mailing Address: , 2161 EL MONTE DR, , THOUSAND OAKS, CA 91362-1826 

Property 
Appraised Value: $597,625.00 

http://propaccess .traviscad .org/Map/View/Map/ 1/583749/2013 (~~pr~~~~~~t~'A~CC ~_~~_ = =~====!SS
Map DI$clauTlt!r. This tax map .....as compiled solely (or the use of leAD Areas depicted by these digital products are apPco)Clmate, and afe not necessanly accur.3te to mapping, surveYing or enQ.n~erln~ st andards. Conclusions drawn (rom this 

mformation are the responslblllty of the user. The TeAD makes no claims, promises or guarantees about the accuracy, completer,e::;s or adequacy of this in formatlon and expressly disd alms lidblhly 'or lIoy erro~ and omissions. The mapped date 
does nol constItute a legal document. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

http://propaccess
http:597,625.00


-

J 

rriSo 
~0 

n Hollow 

'\(}~ 
0°' 

((\So(\ ,c~ 
0° q'5' 

City 
of 

Austin 
qt 

fi!v 
~ 

Q;).::i %
<l',.-<9. 

~~ 
C). 

<.'0 

~ . ,v'<2?2 ~ 
"7' ~ ..... 

~ ~"6 ~o'2. 0 

\~ 1l 
!Sy... ~ 

p~rve 

Lak~Jiit1s 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



!" 

~ 
1!" ~ 

\........ 

f 
". 
~ 

Ay,'I.-~ 

"'" 

" 

'\, 

'\ 
~ 

\ 

'" 

~~"--r\ 
- 1~1,.,. ... \ 

WILLIAMSON 
-I I r . 1 \

1;{",;;. I n~ 

" \".,f f 1," j~ ; I { I>-' j ,'"., I " I ~ co. . < I 
t~ ~.,i.......,u~'-"1 1~ ' I ~ ~r · (', " 

,I 
2 

• I ...}'\~"----\ 
.' ! , 

t ("TI '''1 1 .. ·e _~~ \\ City of '\ 
Leander \- - " 

"'-.... '-. 

~ 

\ PRECINCT 3 

-....;;;..~ ~ . Ct 
iYlr 

\.. 

City of 
lago Vista 

t 
! 
~ . 
1r 

~-.\ 
./ 

~.-~ 

,-=-

Cltv of 
Jonestown 

-..... 
-..:; 

TI" 

~ 

r::" "~ "'" j~ 

~ 

-
f 
QII..-.f' . 

""- Xi", , 
~'~\, I. ~~ 0t~ .. 

~ "'*-.,,-.... :' 
Village of 

Point 
Venture City of 

lakeway 

\ 

e· 

COUNT Y 

" 
\ --~ 

,, ~ ,' 

Legend 

Road 
- State Maintan ed 

• •• •  Park 

Incorporated 

Trav15 Count:y Maintained 

Not Matnlalned 

Puvate 

. RerectlOn 01 Oechcahon 

Undedlca1ed. Private 

--R..n.ao 
water Body 

• Po'" 

City Jurisdiction 

2011 Commi..loner Prac1nct5 

Tr.vls County Location Map 

Source(s )" City of Austin RoadS - COA 2013, 
Umncorporaled Roads - Tr;rvis County 
2013, Cruu - NHD 2005. Parks - Trav!s

sti.. 
L---.l'Afe 

~,.. 

City of 
Austin 

ThiS product is fOf in'offnatJo nal purposes and may not hav~ been prepared for 0: be silltlble 
for legal , engiM enng or surveYing purpOSH . II does. not repres ent an on-the"'9found '9.XVeV 
and repreunts only the approximate relatNe !ocaDon of prop erty boundaries. Tr."';, County 
has prodlJGed Ihls produC'! lor reference purposes onty Bnd offers no warranties fOI the 
product's accuracy or completeness. 

Travis County Roadways, Map C o 
I 

Miles 

Map Prep.ued by Tra" I'S County. 
Depl of Transport3110n & Natural 
Re.sources . Date 5/21/2013 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 
Prepared By: Chiddi N'Jie, P.E., Engineer Specialist 
Phone #: (512) 854-7585 
Division Director/Manager: Steve Sun, P.E., Assistant Public Works Director 

~(1S- ~ 
Department Head: Steven M.lV1a j./ a, .E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Davis, Precinct One 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on a request to 
authorize using $1,200,000.00 from the 2001 Precinct One Road Bond Savings for 
the Howard Lane Extension Project from Cameron Road (Harris Branch Road) to 
S.H. 130 in Precinct One. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
The Howard Lane II roadway extension project was authorized under the 2005 Bond 
Program. It is jOintly funded by adjacent landowners, Travis County, City of Austin 
(City) (through an Interlocal Agreement), and Texas Department of Transportation 
(TxDOT) (through an Advance Funding Agreement). The proposed design is a four
lane divided roadway (MAD4) with, 2 bridges, a bicycle lane and slidewalk on each 
side of the street, subsurface storm drainage system, waterline extension, and 
associated utility relocations. 

The Howard Lane limits are from Cameron Road/Harris Branch Pkwy to S.H. 130. A 
segment of Cameron Road/Harris Pkwy, from just south of Howard Lane to Gregg 
Lane, is also included in the project limits. This segment of roadway will be improved 
from 2-lane to 4-lane plus subsurface storm drainage system, and associated utility 
relocations. Futher, improvements to a section of Hill Lane is also included in this 
project per the Public-Private Participation Agreement. Funds for Hill Lane 
improvements have been received from adjacent landowners. 

This roadway is classified by Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(CAMPO) as an arterial (MAD4) in the CAMPO Mobility 2035 transportation plan. 

This funding transfer is needed to cover the balance needed in the county's funding 
to construct the road. A strengthened pavement structure now required over the 
heavy clay subgrade is the main reason that additional funds are required. Recent 
improvements of the economy may have also contributed to the higher bid price to 
be about 5% over the engineer's construction cost estimate. 
The total bid amount is $19,966,546.58. 

Item 8Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

http:19,966,546.58
http:1,200,000.00


Cyd Grimes Purchasing Agent Purchasing (512) 854-9700 
Hannah York Auditor's Office Auditor (512) 854-9125 
Tawana Gardner Financial Analyst TNR (512) 854-7679 
Chiddi N' Jie Engineer Specialist TNR 
Steve Sun Assistant Public Works 

Director 
TNR (512) 854-4660 

Donna Williams-Jones Financial Analyst TNR (512) 854-7677 

CN:55:cn 
3101 - Public Works/CIP 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



~E ._ ..::.t:. 
E 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



ATTACHMENT "B"" 

BID SUMMARY 

Item Description & Funding Entity Bid Amount 
A Base Bid Howard Ln ( Travis County) $8,199,974.50 
B Additive Alternate #1 Howard Ln (COA Howard Ln) $8,620,137.90 
D Alternate #1 (COA Cameron Rd/Hanis Branch to Gregg Lane) $2,246,441.33 
E Additive Alternate # 3 Hill Lane (Trafalgar) $215,415.35 
F Additive Alternate # 4 (COA Waterline) $546,629.00 
G Additive Alternate # 5 (Trafalgar Howard Ln Culvert System) $137,948.50 
Total Contract Amount $19,966,546.58 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



ATTACHMENT "C" 

ACCOUNT RESERVATION INFORMATION 

WBS Element: RDCN.149.000011 
Fund 
Reservation 

Fund Fund Center GIL Amount 

300000849 4043 1490190000 522040 $579,879.00 
300000849 4046 1490190000 522040 $620,121.00 

Total Amount $1,200,000 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 
Prepared By: Linda Laack, Enviromental Resources Management Senior 
Phone #: (512) 219-6190 
Division Director/Manager: J~n \/Yhi1 "!,,endY Connally - Natural Resources and 
Environmental Quality Division ~ 

Department Head: ~. Manilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Daugherty, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action regarding a License 
Agreement with Bobby Jay Williamson for trapping and controlling the feral hog 
population in Travis County's Parks and the Balcones Canyonlands Preserve (BCP) 
in Precinct Three. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
The goal of this request is to control the serious feral hog damage on Travis County 
Parks and the BCP. Feral hogs are members of the same family as domestic hogs, 
and include European wild hogs, feral domestic hogs, and hybrids. Feral hogs are 
omnivorores. They destroy large areas of vegetation as they search for roots and 
invertebrates in the soil. They also prey on native animals. Adjacent to parks and the 
BCP, feral hogs destroy landscaping in subdivisions, damage cropland, and kill 
young livestock. The feral hogs in Travis County either escaped captivity or were 
introduced to undeveloped areas of the county primarily for hunting purposes. Since 
most fences do not restrict their movements, the feral hog population has been 
spreading out and expanding its range within the county. Currently, the largest 
numbers of feral hogs appear to be located in the northwestern, far eastern and 
western parts of the county. 

The feral hog is an unprotected, non-game animal under Texas Parks and Wildlife 
Department regulations and therefore may be taken at any time of the year. This 
plan to remove feral hogs from Travis County BCP lands is in accordance with our 
BCP Land Management Plan that was approved by the BCCP Coordinating 
Committee and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. Use of License Agreements with 
volunteer hog trappers is an approved practice in the Wildlife Management Permit 
for Travis County Managed Parks and Preserves. 

Travis County is currently managing over 12,000 acres of Parks and Preserve 
lands, much of which is currently populated by feral hogs. On the BCP, hogs are 
doing serious damage to sensitive habitats, including along springs and streams 

Item 9Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 


Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Jon White Natureal Resources 

Envriomental Quality 
Division Director 

TNR-NREQ (512) 854-7212 

cc: 

Wendy Connally Natural Resources 

Program Manager 
TI\IR (512) 854-7214 

Julie Joe County Attorney CA (512) 854-4835 
Charles Bergh Parks Program 

Mana~er 

TNR (512) 854-9408 

Robert Armistead Parks Division 
Manager 

TNR (512) 854-9831 

0801 - NREQ

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



LICENSE AGREEMENT BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND 

BOBBY JAY WILLIAMSON FOR USE OF COUNTY PROPERTY 


TO TRAP FERAL HOGS 


This License Agreement (this "Agreement") is made and entered into by 
and between Travis County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas 
("County") and Bobby Jay Williamson, an individual residing in Travis County, 
Texas ( "Licensee"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, County owns or manages certain undeveloped lands 
throughout Travis County (the "Property"); 

WHEREAS, County has recognized a need to control the feral hog 
population on the Property and desires to permit Licensee to use certain and 
specific acreage within the Property for the purpose of trapping, shooting, and 
removing feral hogs; 

WHEREAS, the County Executive of the Travis County Transportation and 
Natural Resources Department ("County Executive") coordinates all wildlife 
control operations performed on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, Licensee desires to perform the feral hog trapping, shooting, 
and removal services (the "Services") at no charge to County and affirms that he 
is an experienced shooter and trapper qualified to provide the Services in 
accordance with the terms and conditions stated herein; 

NOW, THEREFORE, County and Licensee, in consideration of the mutual 
promises herein expressed, covenant and agree as follows: 

I. GRANT AND SCOPE OF LICENSE 

1.1 County hereby grants to Licensee the right to enter portions of the 
Property designated by the County Executive or his designee at the dates and 
times specified in a written request to the Licensee for the sole and exclusive 
purpose trapping, shooting, and removing feral hogs from the Property (the 
"License"). Licensee does not have the right to enter upon any portion of the 
Property not described in the written request and County has the right to exclude 
Licensee from unlicensed areas at ALL times. 

1.2 The License includes the right to bring onto the Property personal 
property, limited to firearms, materials and equipment, for the purpose stated 
herein. 

300461v2 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



1.3 Licensee must be present during performance of the Services. Licensee 
acknowledges and agrees that he does not have authority to permit agents, 
employees, guests or any other person to enter the Property, except for two 
assistants who may accompany Licensee during performance of the Services. 
The only assistants who may accompany Licensee are Chance Lane Williamson 
and Ty Matthew Williamson. These assistants are not allowed to shoot on the 
Property or as part of this Agreement. 

II. PURPOSE 

2.1 Licensee has the right to enter and use the Property for the sole and 
exclusive purpose of trapping, shooting, and removing feral hogs in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement. 

III. CONTROL OF TRAVIS COUNTY 

3.1 Licensee must at all times obey the direction and commands of the 
County Executive or his designees while on the Property. Any disregard of 
directions is grounds for immediate revocation of the License by the County 
Executive or his designated representatives. Duly authorized representatives of 
County may enter the Property, or any portion thereof, at any time, and on any 
occasion without restrictions whatsoever by Licensee. County reserves the right 
to prohibit persons, including Licensee and his assistants Chance Lane 
Williamson and Ty Matthew Williamson, from entering the Property at any time 
safety may be a concern. 

3.2 Licensee must use his best efforts not to interfere with the transaction of 
County business in and on the Property. 

3.3 Licensee agrees to leave the Property in the same and as good a 
condition as when it was received, reasonable wear and tear excepted. Licensee 
must not injure, mar, nor in any manner deface the Property, and must not cause 
or permit anything to be injured, marred or defaced. Unless Licensee has 
obtained prior written and express consent from the County Executive, Licensee 
and his assistants may not make any modifications to fences, gates, trails, roads, 
or any buildings, furnishings or fixtures located on the Property. Licensee is 
expressly prohibited from bringing any flammable materials onto the Property 
and may not light fires or fireworks on the Property. 

3.4 Licensee must dispatch hogs in a quick and humane manner. No live 
hogs may be removed from the Property. No animals, other than feral hogs, may 
be intentionally trapped and no other animals may be killed or removed from the 
Property. 

300461v2 2 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



IV. TERM OF LICENSE 

4.1 The License commences on the Effective Date, as defined herein, and 
terminates three years from the Effective Date (the "License Term"); however, 
the County and Licensee have the right to terminate this Agreement under the 
provisions set forth in Section XIV herein. 

4.2 County has the option to extend this Agreement for one additional one
year period, during which all provisions will remain unchanged and in full force 
except for the termination date. To be effective, County must exercise this option 
in writing at least 30 days prior to expiration of the License Term. 

V. LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 

5.1 LICENSEE AGREES TO AND MUST INDEMNIFY, SAVE, AND HOLD 
HA'RMLESS COUNTY AND ITS OFFICIALS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES 
FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, 
CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, 
AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, OR 
PROPERTY DAMAGE ARISING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY 
NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR OMISSION OF LICENSEE, OR ANY OF ITS 
AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OR INVITEES, ARISING OUT OF OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR LICENSEE'S USE OF THE 
PROPERTY. 

VI. RELEASE OF LIABILITY 

6.1 Licensee agrees to release, waive, discharge and covenant not to sue 
County, its agents, officers, and employees for any personal injury, death, or 
property damage that may occur while Licensee is on the Property, including any 
injury, death, or property damage caused by the negligence or intentional tort of 
County, its agents, officers or employees. 

6.2 Licensee agrees that this release is binding on his assigns, heirs and next 
of kin. 

6.3 Licensee agrees that this release applies to any premises or special 
defects arising from the Property. 

6.4 Licensee agrees to release County, its agents, officers, and employees 
from any claim whatsoever on account of first aid or medical treatment rendered 
for injuries sustained if Licensee or his assistants are treated for any purpose. 

300461v2 3 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



6.5 Licensee agrees that this release, waiver and covenant not to sue is 
intended to be as broad and inclusive as permitted by the laws of the State of 
Texas. 

VII. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS 

7.1 Licensee and anyone coming upon the Property in connection with this 
Agreement must comply with all Federal, State, County, and municipal laws and 
ordinances applicable to the Property, including without limitation, ownership of a 
valid Texas hunting license issued by the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department. 
Anyone who violates any applicable laws, ordinances, rules, or regulations may, 
at County's discretion, be removed from the Property. 

VIII. LICENSES AND PERMITS 

8.1 Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, Licensee is responsible 
for obtaining or providing all required permits, taxes, excise fees, and license 
fees required by any governmental authority, including, without limitation, the 
United States Fish and Wildlife Service and the Texas Parks and Wildlife 
Department, to provide the Services. 

IX. SECURITY 

9.1 County and Licensee agree that County is not responsible for the 
protection or security of personal property brought onto the Property by Licensee 
or any of his agents, employees, guests or any other person coming upon the 
Property. Further, County and Licensee agree that Licensee is solely 
responsible at all times during the License Term for the actions and safety of any 
person utilizing the Property under this Agreement, including, without limitation, 
protecting the person from injury or death. 

X. OCCUPANCY INTERRUPTION 

10.1 If the County Executive or any of his designated representatives 
determines that, due to conditions beyond the County's control, including 
property damage caused by fire, flood, tornado, windstorm, or vandalism, civil 
tumult, riots, or any other act over which County has no control, it is impossible or 
unsafe to provide access to the Property as contracted herein, County may 
revoke the License granted hereunder and have no other liability to Licensee on 
account of such revocation. 

XI. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

11.1 Except as provided herein, County will exercise no supervision or control 
over Licensee, its employees, or any other person in the service of Licensee, and 

300461v2 4 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



County will provide no special services other than those specifically mentioned 
herein. 

11.2 Nothing contained in this Agreement is to be deemed or construed to 
create a partnership or joint venture between County and Licensee, or cause 
County to be liable in any way for the debts and obligations of Licensee. 

XII. 	 NON-ASSIGNMENT 

12.1 Unless Licensee has obtained express written consent from County, 
Licensee may not transfer or assign this Agreement, sub-lease the Property, or 
allow use of the Property other than as herein specified. If Licensee attempts to 
sub-lease the Property, County may terminate this Agreement and revoke the 
License granted hereunder. NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF TRAVIS COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EXPRESS 
OR IMPLIED, TO AMEND THIS AGREEMENT OR TO WAIVE ANY BREACH 
OF THIS AGREEMENT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT SPECIFIC 
AUTHORITY BY THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

XIII. 	 MONITORING 

13.1 Licensee must perform the Services at a standard acceptable for similar 
services in Travis County and in a prompt and efficient manner. Specifically, 
Licensee must perform the Services in conformance with the following trapping 
standards: 

13.1.1 Prior to commencing the Services, Licensee must coordinate with 
designated County staff to obtain written approval from the County 
Executive or his designee for all baiting, trapping, and trap site shooting 
locations and all trap designs. 

13.1.2 Licensee must monitor set traps every day and must place the traps, to 
the extent possible, in shaded locations. 

13.1.3 Licensee must treat trapped animals as humanely as possible and 
dispatch trapped animals in a humane fashion. Licensee must perform 
each killing as quickly and painlessly as possible and immediately remove 
each carcass from the Property. Licensee may not remove live-trapped 
animals from the Property. 

13.1.4 Licensee must obtain prior written approval from the County Executive 	or 
his designee for any firearm or other weapon to be used by Licensee in 
performing the Services. 

13.1.5 By the 15th day of each month that this Agreement is in effect, Licensee 
must provide to the County Executive or his designee a written report of 

300461v2 5 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



the total number and the sex of each feral hog handled, killed, and 
removed during the previous month. 

13.2 	 County reserves the right to perform periodic on-site monitoring of 
Licensee's compliance with the above-listed standards and the other 
terms of this Agreement and the adequacy and timeliness of Licensee's 
performance. 

XIV. 	 TERMINATION 

14.1 County has the right to terminate this Agreement and to revoke the 
License granted hereunder at any time if the County Executive, in his sole 
discretion, determines that Licensee has failed to abide by the terms and 
conditions set forth herein. If the County Executive decides to exercise this right 
of termination, he will provide Licensee written notice of the termination and 
either: 

(a) grant Licensee an opportunity to cure within ten days following 
receipt of the notice by Licensee and specify that Licensee's right to enter and 
use the Property will cease if Licensee fails to cure the default before the 
eleventh calendar day after Licensee receives a notice of termination , or 

(b) specify the effective date of termination, and upon that date, 
Licensee's right to enter and use the Property will cease. 

14.2 Either party may terminate this Agreement for any reason prior to 
expiration of the License Term by providing 30 days' advance written notice to 
the other party at the address set forth in Section XV of this Agreement. Such 
notice must state the effective date of termination, and upon that date Licensee's 
right to enter and use the Property will cease. 

XV. 	 NOTICES 

15.1 Any notice to be given hereunder by either party to the other must be in 
writing and may be effected by personal delivery, in writing, or registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested. Notices will be considered sufficient if 
made or addressed as follows: 

If to Licensee: Mr. Bobby Jay Williamson 
2200 Park Lane 
Webberville, Texas 78621 

If to County: Mr. Steven M. Manilla, P.E. (or successor) 
County Executive 

300461v2 6 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis County Transportation & Natural Resources Dept. 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

XVI. NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT 

16.1 No payment, act, or omission by either party may constitute or be 
construed as a waiver of any breach or default of the other party which then 
exists or may subsequently exist. The failure of either party to exercise any right 
or privilege granted in this Agreement is not to be construed as a waiver of that 
right or privilege. 

16.2 All rights of either party under this Agreement are specifically reserved 
and any payment, act or omission will not impair or prejudice any remedy or right 
of either party under it. No right or remedy stated in this Agreement will preclude 
the exercise of any other right or remedy under this Agreement, the law or at 
equity, nor will any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed 
a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

XVII. MEDIATION 

17.1 When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising 
under this Agreement, the parties agree to use a mutually agreed upon mediator, 
or a person appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction, for mediation as 
described in Section 154.023 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies. Code. 
Unless both parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation 
will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute. All 
communications within the scope of the mediation must remain confidential as 
described in Section 154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code, 
unless both parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality. 

XVIII. VENUE AND CHOICE OF LAW 

18.1 ALL OBLIGATIONS AND UNDERTAKINGS PERMITTED UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT ARE PERFORMABLE IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS. THIS 
AGREEMENT IS GOVERNED BY AND IS TO BE CONSTRUED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. 

XIX. SEVERABILITY 

19.1 If any portion or portions of this Agreement are ruled invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder 
of it will remain valid and binding. 

300461v2 7 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



xx. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

20.1 This Agreement represents the sole, entire, and integrated Agreement 
between County and Licensee with respect to the subject matter herein and 
supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
oral or written. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and Licensee have executed this Agreement 
effective as of the later date indicated below (the "Effective Date"). 

TRAVIS COUNTY: 

By: 
Samuel T. Biscoe 
Travis County Judge 

Date: 

LICENSEE: 

Bobby Jay Williamson 

Date: 

300461v2 8 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Meeting Date: November 12,2013 
Prepared By: Joe Arriaga, Planner Senior 
Phone #: (512) 854-7562 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowlin, Di sion Director of Development 
Services and Long Rang~ 

Department HeadlTitle: Steven M. alia, P.., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Daugherty, Precinct Three 

-

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests in Precinct Three: 

A) On a final plat for recording - The Hills of Bear Creek-Section 1 - Final Plat (Long 

Form Final Plat - 83 total lots - 26.22 acres - FM 1626 - City of Austin ET J); and 

B) A Subdivision Construction Agreement between Travis County and Milestone 

Community Builders. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

This long form final plat consists of 83 total lots (78 single-family lots, 2 open space 

lots, 1 amenity lot, and 2 drainage lot) on 26.22 acres. The property is located in the 

City of Austin 2 Mile ETJ. There are 3,734 linear feet of public streets being 

proposed with this final plat. The parkland fees totaling $7843.00 have been paid to 

Travis County. Fiscal surety has been posted. Water and wastewater service to be 

provided by the City of Austin. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

As this final plat was approved by the City of Austin's Zoning and Platting 

Commission on November 5, 2013, and the plat meets all City of Austin/Travis 

County subdivision standards; Single Office staff recommends approval of the final 

plat. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

Staff has not been contacted by anyone via e-mail, telephone, or letter on this 

development, and staff has not registered any interested parties nor received any 

other inquiries for this project. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

N/A 


Item 10Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 
Location Map 
Proposed Final Plat 
Subdivision Construction Agreements 
Precinct Map 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald TNR (512) 854-4239Financial Manager 
(512) 854-9429Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR 

CC: 


JA:AB:ja 
1101 - Development Services Long Range Planning- Hills of Bear Creek 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



/ 
\ 

" 

/ 

LOCA TION MAP 


Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



, ;:to CI 100 

I rw 

-'",...-.-,-"""

• 
••o•o 

/ 
I 

...0.• ...-rtll ... 

/ 
/ 

OL __ 

I'..uL "-&C IIm1'r C4m1Df --... 

1Q..1~~'" 

/ 
/ 

( ' ...... ~... ~~CLltA.f-' l'. 
t.U lC IJ !II!! mxJIIm' (II ...... aunt D.r:I 

(Va.e., _~~tJI ........~OAI 
CV''-~f ~~.-:z.-tIf' ....~~ 

<:> 
~ ~~o..~~· ~~~________________1 
o :t ""-'... "'" 
~ rn ~--~------------------~ 

l1 ., E-~' =======l~Jc-

---.,..
.. ..,....~~~L.. III1 ':t 

tlArt. ,~ "., III'" 
JUIiI~""" UHD~ IC. 

DIGIGJt"~ ""~t"~ Ie 

\ 
THE HILLS OF BEAR 

SECTION Ol'lE 
FINAL PLA T 

CREEI( 

1 
\ 

U&~~aot ' 
DOC.l:.~ \ 

\ 

~-----

- -----"".~-----
"e•.:a. 

L""--OQC.W)1'OICODDI. 
VA IC. l 

1M.. an rrn!ll'P'!!!'jj 
··I~l!l.'· 

HPE 
-",;..,~-~:.=-~~----....-~.......,.--..-

.............. 
CBJ-20 12-0095.1A 

'I:: 
-.s8.N f..-c U\t"etL IN:. 
~__.....f""'" ---~....",,-~ 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



---

GRAPHIC SCAlf 

100 50 0 100 

IN FEET 


LOTU 
8U)0<4 

SCioI;JK...r.C~4l S!J8DMSlOH 

OOC. :.0. 2OOOOOl!19 


OP.A. T.C.T. 


LOT 1 
BlOC>< • 

OPEN SPA(;( 
DR AlNA.G£ EA.SOI(NT 

pueuc Ul\UTY E:.4.S£IoI[NT 
3.9156 AC. 1 


LOT 2 L 

EX"; PRESlAR SU8DIVlS!ON 

DOC. ~g:/fg~:}054 \ 

0;; \ 
.~ 

JOHNSON LANE 
(fiO.OO· R.o.w.) 

,\),I(NITY 

(S :;"~'4Q: [ 311.20') \.~2~C. 

1.1l.] -''''ES 
 e ..11 ,~S 89' '''4- 260.00' 

POfI1[R~C 

A.N!) HOll-'~ LOT L 
VOL.lQoIl IP-'G(.lfI PORT[A s.J8m~5IOH 

o.R.T.C.T. 	 NU..lI£It T'LIIO 

/ 
/ DOC. NO. 200lOO1Ji 

O.P.1t.t,c.t, 

/ 
, . , , , , t M'~l'(4'" '( 'JS 4 sr' 


/ GABRIELLES WAY (so.oo· R.o.W.) 


v,\b .l lS,.ol, 
 f'I.Bi (4i· .w. ~1. ')~ 

"'05 ...cqES 

PED€RHfU..£.S ElLCTRlC 


COOf'£R-'TI-..<, INC. 

'IOL6~.P-'ctll24 

D.IlT.C.t. 

LOT 2 
PORTUI Si.,·BDI'.-tSIOH 


",u..BER T\IIO 

Ooc. NO. 2OOlOO1J~ 


120.00' O.P. R.T.C.T. 13 
o~ 

120.05':13 
o ~ ~ 1~0 .t.CR~ " 

P.a.RCfi ONE 	 "'''''',.....,.rN'-,89·51'44~ W .35.3.18' 
TH[ RII'tG CO. 


Ooc. NO. 200&03268.3 

O.P.R.f.C.T. 

O\ILN£R: 	~ 2012.. U.C (A TEXAS U"IT'[O U-'ElUrv COW'~'1 
i'11 JCl..LY\a.l.[ ROAD 
SUIT'[ 111LEGEND 	 -'lIStlN, TIXAS 711~ 

o\CflEM;[: 26.220 -'£:RES 

SUR'o£Y: WALkER IIIIII..SOH SUR'£Y NO. :1 · • 

LOT 7 
COW..:RClAI.. TR-'CT 

()(-'PA~S!JBOI""Sl()ol 
DOC 1'1 0. 20040(0)4 

O.P.R.T.C.Y. 

OAT'[: 2.J OCT08[R 2013.. .... ......,
• 
 SUSI:\£'«lR: 81.SCuN£ LN'O SUR'o£YOA5. INC.
CONCIICJ[~' ("~ (lW(') 

o ITNCC POST ITJMJ ("OR ~ 	 (NQt.IEEA.:; HAlCAAHMI PAl:TCHARO 910N(;[AIHC. INC. 

i UH[1oR f£[l Of HEW STR[[1"S.: 3,72.' 

1/1- HUlAR Sfr IItrW PlASlIC CAP 


I NlJ.U8(R or La rs.: III 

ItO.W. 

~ IODS "BASllK M;' 
1 

NUY8(Jt Of LOTS BY T'!"P£: R£Sloom AJ...: 711 lOTS.; OPEH sP.t.C£./ORA.!Not.CE/p.U.[.: 2: OPEN SP.toC£{I'.U.(: I ; I
D.E. /lIWNAC( C.ASOI£HT 	 ~Mrv ~1IR LOT: I.: OPE.-. SPACt:/DR~.t.GE.; 1.I 
P. U.E. PWUC I/JfUTY [A"OflIfNI BsffrI -'OI:EAC( 8Y LOT fI1'(.: R.O.W•.: • . ~211 '\c.; R(SIDOH1AL 12..7 43 -'c.; iF(N sP-'C£jORAJNAC[.: 1.092 AC. ; 

=t~~~~~r.J{~I5.21l1 AC.: OP[N SPAQ:/P.V.E..: 0.1V9 AC.;
(J .Q[CORfl_o. POI' DOC. NO. 101121554.J, D.p.R.lc.r. I 

I =~1:~ 
(D,IlT,c.T.) D([D R(00ffDS OF fRA"IIS WlMTf, TD'AS I 9[N()'(wNlK W4f'QAWATItw: COTTOO SPtNOl.[ 5[t At TH[ IttT£RSECnOti OF Tl1[ EAST RleHT Of " ....Y or P .... 

(1lPRr.C.T.) RlAlPfffJP(1Hl'fh.1:OIIDSOflJW'SCOIM1Y, rr;us I It5Zti AUD THE SCXJTH RIGHT (F WAY or Be. ..IOI-tNSON I....ANE: ....pPROx. ~I' 
I "IO!nl1£ AST Of' Tl-f[ NORTH\II£ST ~OPERTY CORMER. 

()I7DN. PfJIIUC R£COW)S Of fRA"IIS CXJVIIrY, IUAS EL(VATION • 	 CBJ-2012-0095.1At517.i8I 
F~;S:IP'roj«ts~IOwg~ J Rt* f'W.rIMJ 

Q ~(Hor.): r "" oo' {)Me: JOf1l/JJ BaseTHE HILLS OF BEAR CREEK HPE Line~ ~~~~'=~~~~'~R~________________~ 
a :::r::: awctedE1y: RLW 8A.SELlIit:1.AI'«:lSUlt>'ElOitS,l/WC.._·~~lIOC 

~TH>~ ""~lMC)~.'ftjI\~n~ ~ e::._,=c.:.:".c..:-=:'-----------I 	 SECTION ONE ldJ ooa.-..:CII....... 
~fI:"'_ 

~.II.L~,....£tl._.,... 

~ ::::; FINAL PLAT 
~4: 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

http:CBJ-2012-0095.1A
http:SPACt:/DR~.t.GE
http:4-260.00


82.401 (El SUBDIVISION CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS 

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Milestone Community 
Builders, LLC, (the "Subdivider") and Travis County, Texas, (the "County), 
hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties". 

WHEREAS, the Subdivider owns the tract of real property described in Exhibit "A", 
which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, (the "Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Subdivider desires to subdivide the Property, pursuant to the 
proposed final plat of "The Hills of Bear Creek, Section 1" (the "Subdivision"); and 

WHEREAS, the County desires to set forth the Subdivider's responsibility for the 
construction of the Subdivision's roads and drainage facilities (the 
"Improvements"); and 

WHEREAS, the Subdivider desires to set forth the County's responsibility to accept 
the constructed Improvements for maintenance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. Subdivider's Obligations 

A. Improvements. The Subdivider shall construct the Improvements. required to 
complly with the County's Standards for the Construction of Streets and Drainage in 
Subdivisions (the "Standards"). The Improvements will conform to the construction 
plans, permits, and specifications approved by the County prior to commencement of 
construction. 

B. Security. To secure the Subdivider's obligations, the Subdivider will provide a 
financial guarantee of performance in the amount of the estimated cost of constructing 
the Improvements (the "Security"), which has been determined by a professional 
engineer and approved by the County's Transportation and Natural Resources 
Department ("TNR"). The Security must be in a form approved for use in the Standards 
or otherwise approved by the County Attorney's Office. 

C. Alternative Fiscal. Notwithstanding any other prov,isions of this Agreement, the 
Subdivider may request the Commissioners Court to hold t ine administratively 
approved plat in abeyance until all streets, alleys, sidewalks, and drainage 
improvements in the Subdivision. The Subdivider must post fiscal security to secure 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



restoration of disturbed areas should construction not be completed. Upon satisfactory 
completion, the submitted pl:at shall be forwarded to the Commissioners Court for 
approval and recording , provided adequate fiscal security has been posted to secure 
the one year Construction Performance Period described below. 

D. Completion. The Improvements must be constructed no later than three (3) years 
after the effective date of this Agreement. This period may be extended by the delivery 
to the County at least forty five (45) days prior to the expiration of the Security of an 
extension of the Security in a form approved by the County. Upon completion of the 
Improvements, the Subdivider will provide the County with a complete set of 
construction plans for the Improvements, certified "as built" by the engineer 
responsible for preparing the approved construction plans and specifications. 

E. Warranty. The Subdivider warrants the public Improvements will be free from 
defects for a period of one (1) year from the date the County accepts the construction 
of the public Improvements (the "Performance Period") . The Subdivider shall correct 
and repair any defects in materials or workmanship, including design inadequacies 
and damage to or deterioration of the public Improvements that occur before and 
during this Performance Period due to any cause. As a condition of the County's 
acceptance of dedication of any of the public Improvements, the Subdivider must post 
fiscal security in the form of cash, a performance bond, or other approved form and in 
the amount of ten percent (10%) of the cost of constructing the public Improvements, 
to secure the warranty establ ished by this Agreement. It is expressly acknowledged 
that the public Improvements must meet County Standards at the end of the one year 
Construction Performance Period in order for the County to release the construction 
performance fiscal security. 

F. Increase in Security. If the County determines the cost of constructing the 
Improvements exceeds the posted Security, within thirty (30) days after notice and 
demand, the Subdivider shall provide additional Security in an amount equal to the 
additional estimated cost. 

G. Reduction in Security. During the construction of the Improvements, the Security 
may be reduced in accordance with the percentage of completion of the 
construction. The Executive Manager of TNR will execute Statements of Partial 
Reductions in the Amount of Security, when provided with the following 
documentation: 

1) a professional engineer's certification of quantities of work completed; 

2) a contractor's invoice for work completed; and 

3) a TNR inspection report, indicating the completion of the portion of the work 
represented by the contractor's invoice. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



After the approval and acceptance of the construction of the Improvements, the 
Security for the public Improvements may be reduced by ninety percent (90%) of 
the cost of the approved construction and held for the one-year Performance 
Period. After the approval of the construction of the private Improvements, the 
Security posted for the private Improvements will be fully released . In addition, the 
County agrees to release or reduce, as appropriate, the Security provided by the 
Subdivider, if the County accepts a substitute Security for all or any portion of the 
Improvements. 

H. Covenant, Restriction, and Condition. In the event that the Improvements are not 
constructed to County Standards and the required Security has expired, the 
Subdivider shall not sell , transfer, or convey any of the lots in the Subdivision until 
sufficient Security has been posted with the County for the completion of the 
construction. 

II. County's Obligations 

A. Inspection and Approval. The County will inspect the Improvements during and at 
the completion of construction. If the Improvements are completed in accordance with 
the Standards, the County will approve the Improvements and accept the public 
Improvements. 

B .Notice of Defect. The County will notify the Subdivider, if an inspection reveals that 
any portion of the Improvements is not constructed in accordance with the Standards 
or is otherwise defective. However, the County is not responsible for the construction 
of the Improvements, the quality of the material, or the construction methods utilized. 
In addition, the County is not responsible for making continuous on-site inspections of 
the construction work and the County has no privity with or responsibility for the 
construction contractor or any subcontractors. The Subdivider will have thirty (30) days 
from such notice to cure the defect. It is an event of default under this Agreement, if 
the defect is not cured prior to the exp,iration of the time to cure. 

C. Performance Period Security Release. Upon the expiration of the one-year 
Performance Period with no damages or defects which the Executive Manager notifies 
the Subdivider must be corrected, the Executive Manager will release the 
Performance Period Security. 

D. Conditions to Draw on Security. The County may draw upon any Security posted 
under this Agreement upon the occurrence of one or more of the following events: 

1. The failure of the Subdivider to construct the Improvements to the applicable 
County Standards; 

2. The Subdivider's failure to renew or replace the Security at least forty-five (45) 
days prior to its expiration; 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



3. The acquisition of the Property or a portion of the Property by the issuer of the 
Security or other creditor through foreclosure or an assignment or conveyance in 
lieu of foreclosure; 

4. The arrangement by the Commissioners Court for the completion of one or more 
of the Improvements; or 

5. The determination by the Commissioners Court that the completion of one or 
more of the public Improvements is in the public Interest. 

E. Notice of Intent to Draw. The County shall provide ten (10) days written notice 
of the occurrence of such an event to the Subdivider with a copy provided to any 
fiscal surety, lender, or escrow agent. The notice will include a statement that the 
County intends to provide for the performance of some or all of Subdivider's 
obligations hereunder for the construction of the Improvements, if the failure is not 
cured . The County shall be entitled to draw the amount it considers necessary to 
perform the Subdivider's obligations under this Agreement up to the total amount 
allocated for the Improvements. In lieu of a drawing based on an event described 
in subparagraphs (b) or (c), above, the County may accept a substitute Security. 

F. Use of Proceeds. 

1) The County must utilize the proceeds of any posted security solely for the 
purpose of completing the Improvements to the County's Standards or to correct 
defects in or failures of the Improvements. 

2) The County may in its sole discretion complete some or all of the unfinished 
Improvements atthe time of default, regardless of the extent to which development 
has taken place in the Subdivision or whether development ever commenced , 
without incurring any obligation to complete any of the unfinished Improvements. 
If the County uses the proceeds to complete, repair, or reconstruct the 
Improvements, it will do so as a public trustee of the development process in order 
to protect purchasers and taxpayers from the adverse consequences of a 
subdivider default or to protect the public interest by completing the Improvements. 

3) The County is not a private subdivision developer and its draft on the Security 
and utilization of the proceeds to complete, repair, or reconstruct the 
Improvements is not an acceptance of the dedication of the Improvements. The 
acceptance of the Improvements is specifically contingent upon the delivery to 
the County of Improvements, which have been constructed to County Standards 
or the express order of acceptance by the County's Commissioners Court. 

4) The Subdivider has no claim or rights under this Agreement to funds drawn 
under the Security or any accrued interest earned on the funds to the extent the 
same are used by the County hereunder. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



5) All funds obtained by the County pursuant to one or more draws under the 
Security shall be maintained by the County in an interest bearing account or 
accounts until such funds, together with accrued interest thereon (the "Escrowed 
Funds"), are disbursed by the County. 

6) The County shall disperse all or portions of the Escrowed Funds as 
Improvements are completed by the County, or in accordance with the terms of a 
written construction contract between the County and a third party for the 
construction of the Improvements. 

7) Escrowed Funds not used or held by the County for the purpose of completing 
an Improvement or correcting defects in or failures of an Improvement, together 
with any interest accrued thereon, shall be paid by the County to the Issuer of the 
Security or, if the Security was originally in the form of cash, to the Subdivider, no 
later than sixty (60) days following the County's acceptance of the Improvement 
or its decision not to complete the Improvements using Escrowed Funds, 
whichever date is earlier. 

G. Releases. The Executive Manager will, subject to the performance of the 
Subdivider of its obligations under this agreement and the Travis County Standards for 
Construction of Streets & Drainage in Subdivisions, execute such releases of this 
Agreement as are necessary and reasonable upon the request of the Subdivider or a 
purchaser of a portion of the Property. 

III. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Covenants, Restrictions, and Conditions. These Covenants, Restrictions, and 
Conditions will operate as covenants running with the land and will be binding upon the 
Subdivider and the Subdivider's legal representatives, successors and assigns. 

B. Measure of Damages. The measure of damages for breach of this Agreement 
by the Subdivider is the actual cost of completing the Improvements in conformance with 
the County's Standards, including without limitation its associated administrative 
expenses. 

C. Remedies. The remedies available to the County and the Subdivider under this 
Agreement and the laws of Texas are cumulative in nature. 

D. Third Party Rights. No non-party shall have any right of action under this 
Agreement, nor shall any such non-party, including without limitation a trustee in 
bankruptcy, have any interest in or claim to funds drawn on the posted Security and held 
in escrow by the County in accordance with this Agreement. 

E. Indemnification. The Subdivider shall indemnify and hold the County harmless 
from and against all claims, demands, costs, and liability of every kind and nature, 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



including reasonable attorney's fees, for the defense of such claims and demands, arising 
from any breach on the part of Subdivider of any provision in this Agreement, or from any 
act or negligence of Subdivider or Subdivider's agents, contractors, employees, tenants, 
or licensees in the construction of the Improvements. The Subdivider further agrees to 
aid and defend the County, if the County is named as a defendant in an action arising 
from any breach on the part of Subdivider of any provision in this Agreement or from any 
act or negligence of Subdivider or Subdivider's agents, contractors, employees, tenants, 
or licensees in the construction of the Improvements. 

F. No Waiver. The waiver of any provision of this Agreement will not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision, nor will it constitute a continuing waiver unless expressly 
provided for by a written amendment to this Agreement. The County's failure to enforce 
any provision will not constitute a waiver or estoppel of the right to do so. 

G. Attorney's Fees. The prevailing party in any litigation hereunder is entitled to 
recover its costs, including reasonable attorney's fees , court costs, and expert witness 
fees, from the other party. If the court awards relief to both parties, each will bear its own 
costs. 

H. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is binding on the Subdivider and the 
heirs,successors, and assigns of the Subdivider and on any person acquiring an 
ownership interest in the Property through the Subdivider. The Subdivider's obligations 
under this Agreement may not be assigned without the written approval of the County; 
provided the County's approval shall not be unreasonably withheld if the Subdivider's 
assignee expressly assumes all obligations of the Subdivider under this Agreement. An 
assignment shall not be construed as releasing the Subdivider from Subdivider's 
obligations under this Agreement and Subdivider's obligations hereunder shall continue 
notwithstanding any assignment approved pursuant to this Paragraph unless and until 
the County executes and delivers to the Subdivider a written release. The County agrees 
to release the Subdivider, if the Subdivider's assignee expressly assumes the 
Subdivider's obligations under this Agreement and has posted the Security required by 
this Agreement. The County in its sole discretion may assign some or all of its rights under 
this Agreement and any such assignment shall be effective upon notice to the Subdivider. 

I. Expiration. This Agreement will terminate upon the vacation of the Subdivision 
by the Subdivider or the completion of the Subdivider's obligations under this Agreement, 
whichever occurs first. 

J. Notice. Any notice under this Agreement must be in writing and will be effective 
when personally delivered or three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. Mail, postage 
prepaid, certified with return receipt requested, and addressed as follows: 

Subdivider: Milestone Community Builders, LLC 
9111 Jollyville Road, Suite 111 
Austin, TX 78759 
Attn: Garrett Martin 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



County: Transportation & Natural Resources Department 
P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, Texas 78767 

Attn: County Executive 


Copy to: Travis County Attorney's Office 
P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, Texas 78767 


The parties may change their respective addresses for notice to any other location in 
the United States in accordance with the provisions of this Paragraph. 

K. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court to be illegal, 
invalid, or otherwise unenforceable, such illegality, invalidity, or unenforceability shall not 
affect the validity of any other provision and the rights of the parties will be construed as 
if such provision was never part of this Agreement. 

L. Jurisdiction and Venue. T~lis Agreement concerns real property located in Travis 
County, Texas, and shall be governed and construed under Texas law. Venue for any 
action arising under this Agreement shall be exclusively in Travis County, Texas. 

M. Captions Immaterial. The captions or headings of the paragraphs of this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be considered in construing this 
Agreement. 

N. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. Any oral representations or modifications 
concernin9 this Agreement shall be of no force or effect, except a subsequent written 
modification executed by both parties. NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, OR AGENT OF THE 
COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO AMEND, 
MODIFY, OR OTHERWISE CHANGE THIS AGREEMENT, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO 
SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE GRANTED BY THE COMMISSIONERS 
COURT. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



This Agreement is executed as of the dates set forth below and is effective upon approval 
by the County of the final plat for the Subdivision or upon approval of Alternative Fiscal in 
accordance with County regulations. 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS SUBDIVIDER: 

County Judge 

Date:__________ Date:__ Cf -__---'-- __------''-- ' ~-~D_'_"'{ 3"",

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the 16th day of September, 2013, by 
Garrett Martin, President, in the capacity stated herein. 

~cf{gi~~m 

,>"~~~Y:H~;,,, ELLEN K. HARI'l ISON Signature of Notary!cj:AJ:"%Nota ry Public. State of Texas 
~~.~..~j My Commission Expires 
"":!'f.r,i~~~$' June 02 , 2015 

After Recording Return to: 

County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



EXHIBIT A: 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Page I of 4 

LanaSurveyors) Inc. 
8333 Cross (l'ar/(fJJdve 
}lrtstiUJ fJ'qas 78754 

Office: 512.374.9722 
'l~ 512.873-9743 

METES I\ND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 

BElNG 26.220 ACRES OF LAND OUT Of THE WALKER WILSON SURVEY NO.2, IN 
TRAV]S COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING A PORTION Of A 72.60 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED 
TO JOHNSON 2012 LLC, BY INSTRUMENT Of RECORD IN DOC. NO. 2012216543 OFTHB 
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY TEXAS, THEREIN KNOWN AS 
"FIRST TRACT" AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND 
BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING at a 112" rebar found with a 2" aluminum cap which reads "TX Dept. of Trans. 
Property Cornel)' in the east right-of-way line of FM 1626 (R.O.W. varies), 85.58 feet right of 
Engineer's Centerline Station 254+51.74, same being in the west line of said 72.60 acre tract, anci 
also being the north comer of the proposed "Parcel 63" as shown on the R.O.W. lIlap oftlle FM 1626 
right-of-way Widening Project, prepared by SAM, Inc., from which a Type I concrete monument 
found for a point of curvature in the east right-of-way line of said FM 1626 and the west line of said 
proposed "Parcel 63", bears South 61 °12'02" West a distance of 61.23 feet (record - South 
61 °12'02" West a distance of 61.23 feet); 

THENCE along the east right-of-way line ofFM 1626 imel the west and north Jines of the 72.60 acre 
tract line the following tlU'ee (3) c'ourses: 

I. 	 North 61 °59'59" East (record - Norlh 61 °59' 59" East) a distance of 39.22 feet to a type I 
concrete monument for a point of curvature, from whieh a Type I concrete 1ll011l1ll1ent found in 
the west right-o f-way line of FM 1626, the east line of a remainder of an 11.229 acre h'act of 
land conveyed to Marbridge FOllndation, Inc. by insh'ument of record in Vol1lme 11566, Page 
929 of the Real Property Records of Travis COllnty, Texas, and Also being in the east line of 
proposed "Parcel 59" of said R.O.W. map, bears North 28°33'44" West a distance of 80.26 feet 
(record - 80.00 feet); 

2. 	 Along a tangelltial Cllrve to the left, havulg a radius of 858.51 feet (record - 858.51 feet), a 
length of 231.39 feet (record - 231.39 feet), a delta angle of 15°26'33" (record - 15°26'33") and 
a chord which bears North 53°37'49 East a distance of 230.69 feet (record - North 53°37'49" 
East a distance of 230.69 feet) to a 112" rebar set with plastic cap which rcads "Baseline, Inc." 
for the norlhwesl conter ofllle 72.60 acre tract; 

3. 	 North 80°51'32" East a distance of 66.91 feet (record - NOith 800 51 '32" East a distance of 
66.91 feet) to a ]/2" rebar set with plastic cap which reads "Baseline, Inc." at the point of 
intersection ofthe east right-of-way line ofFM 1626 and the sOHth right-of-way line ofJoJUlson 
Lane (R.O.w. varies); 

THENCE along the 1I0rth and east lines of the 72.60 aere tract and the sOllth and west right-of-way 
lines of said JohJlson Lane the followulg foul' (4) courses: 

1. 	 N0l1h 75°01'16" East (record - North 75°01'16" East) a distance of 86.42 feet to a nail 
found; 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

http:254+51.74


Page 2 of 4 

2. 	 NOlih 77°59'35" East (record - North 77°59'35" East) a distance of 120,91 feet to a 
calculated pain!; 

3. 	 North 80°45'02" East (record - NOIih 80°45'02" East) a distance of 336,32 feet to a 
calculated point for the northeast corner of thc 72,60 acre tract; 

4, 	 South 12° II '04" East (record - South 12° 11 '04" East) a distance of 649.55 feet to a 112" 
reba I' set with plastic cap which reads "Baseline, Inc." for an angle point in the east line of 
the 72.60 acre tract and the west right-of-way line of Johnson Lime, and being the nOlihwcst 
corner of Lot I, Porter Subdivision Number Two, a subdivision of record jn Doc. No, 
200300139 of/he Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas; 

TI·ffiNCE South 27°40' 14" West (record - South 27°40' 14" West), along the east line of/he 72.60 
acre tract and the west line of said Lot 1, POIier Subdivision Number Two, a distance of 360.02 feet 
(record - 360.02 feet) to a 1/2" rebar found for all angle voint in the cast lille of the 72.60 acre tract 
and the west line of Lot 1, Porter Subdivision Number Two; 

THENCE South 00°05'30" West (record - South 00°05'30" West), along the east line of the 72.60 
acre tract and the west line of Lot 1, Porter Subdivision Number Two, passing at a dist<1l1ce of 182.96 
feet (recorcl- 182,96 feet) a 112" rebar found for the sonthwest comer of Lot I, Porter Subdivision 
Nnillber Two and the northwest cO;ller of Lot 2, Porter Subdivision NUl1lber Two, and continuing 
along the east line of the 72.60 acre tract and the west line ofLot 2, POlier Subdivision Number Two 
a total distance of 503,68 feet a 112" rebar set with plastic eap which reads "Baseline, Inc.", fi-om 
which a 1/2" rebar found for an aJlgle point ill the east line oflhe 72.60 acre tTact and the west line of 
Lot 3, Palter Subdivision Number Two, bears South 00°05'30" West (record - South 00°05'30" 
Wcst) a distance of 372.09 feet; 

THENCE crossing througll the 72.60 acre h'act the following six (6) courses: 

1. 	 Nortll 89°21 '49" West a distance of 180,09 feet to a 112" reba!' set with plastic cap which 
reads "Bascline, IIlC."; 

2, 	 NOlih 00°08' 16" East a distance of 9, 14 feet to a 112" rebilr set with plastic cap which reads 
"Baseline, Tnc,"; 

3. 	 NOlih 89°51 '44" West a dis[(\Jlce of 353.18 feet to a 112" rebar set with plastic cap which 
reads "Baseline, Inc."; 

4. 	 South 87°27'38" West a distancc of 143.19 feet to a 112" rebar set with plastic cap which 
reads "Baseline, Inc."; 

5. 	 NOlih 02°32'22" West a distance of7.23 fee! to a 112" rebar set with plastic cap which reads 
"Baseline, Inc."; 

G. 	 South 87°27'38" West a distance of 195.09 feet to a 112" rebat' set with plilstic cap which 
reads "Baseline, Inc," in the wcsterly line of the 72.60 acre h'act and the east line of a 4.05 
acre tract of land conveyed to Pedernales Elech'ic Cooperative, Inc, by instrument of record 
ill Volume 6554, Page /124 of the Deed Records of Travis COllnty, Texas, fi'om which a 
Typc I concrete monument found for the southeast comer of said 4.05 acre h'act, the 
llortheast comer of a 15.0 acre hact of land conveyed to The Ring Co. by instillment of 
record in Doc. No. 2008032683 of the Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas, 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Page 3 of 4 

therein designated "Parcel Olle", and being an angle point in the westerly line of the 72.60 
acre tract, bears South 02°37' 11" East (record - South 02°37' 11" West) a distance of 42.96 
fcct; 

THENCE NOl1h 02 0 37' II" West (record - NOJih 020 37' II" East), along Ihe westerly line oflhe 
72.60 acre tract and the east line oflhe 4.05 acre tract, a distance of 485.49 feet to a 112" rebar set 
with plaslic cap which reads "Baseline, Inc." for the soutll\vcst corner of a remainder of a 66.24 acrc 
tract conveyed as "First Tract" in deeds to Chester T. Johnson and Martha Ellen Johnson of record in 
Volume 10223, Page 435 and Volume 10223, Page 440, both of tile Deed Records of Travis COllnty, 
Texas, fL"OIl1 which a 112" rebar found for the northeast corner of the 4.05 acre tract, being in the 
south line of a remainder of a 1.53 acre tract of land conveyed to Chester T. Johnson and Martha 
Ellen Johnson by instnllllent ofrecord in Volume 1140, Page 413 of the Deed Records of Travis 
COllllty, Texas, and also being an angle point in the westerly line of said remainder of a 66.24 acre 
tract, bears North 020 37' 11" West (record - Nortll 020 37' 11" East) a distance of 154.15 feet; 

THENCE along the westerly line of the 72.60 acre tract and the sO\ltherly line of the remainder of a 
66.24 acre tTact the following three (3) courses: 

I. 	 NOlih 86°49' 50" East a distance of 19.14 feet (record - Nodh 86°49'50" East a distance of 
19.14 feet) to a 1/2" rebar set with plastic cap which reads "Baseline, Inc."; 

2. 	 NOlth 360 37'40" East a distance of 165.34 fect (record - North 36°37'40" East a distance of 
165.34 feet) to a 1/2" rebar sct with plastic cap which reads "Baseline, IlIc."; 

3. 	 South 84°15'40" East a distance of31 1.20 feet (record - South 84° 15'40" East a distance of 
311.20 feet) to a 112" rebar set with plastic cap which reads "Baseline, Inc." for the southeast 
cornel' of the remaillder ofa 66.24 acre tract; 

THENCE North 05°38'00" East (record - North 05°38'00" East), along the westerly line of the 
72.60 acre h'act, the easterly line of the remainder of a 66.24 acre h'act, and along the easterly line of 
a remainder of a 6.5 acre tract conveyed as "Second Tract" in said deeds to JOIUlSOIJ, a distance of 
243.57 feet (record - 243.57 fect) to a 1/2" rebar set with plastic cap which reads "Baseline, JlIC." for 
the nOliheast comer of said remainder of a 6.5 acre tract; 

THENCE along the westerly line of the 72.60 acre tract and the northerly line of tile relllainder ofa 
6.5 acre tract tile fol lowing two (2) courses: 

1. 	 NOlth 78°30'26" West a distance of 431.21 feet (record - North 78°30'26" West a distance 
of 431 .21 feet) to a 112" rebar set with plastic cap which reads "Baseline, Inc."; 

2. 	 NOlth 13°02'04" West a distance of 160.53 feet (record - Norlh 13°02'04" West a distance 
of 160.53 feet) to a calculated point in the proposed east right-of-way line of FM 1626 per 
said R.O.W. map, fi'om which a 112" rebar found with a 2" aluminlllll cap which reads "TX. 
Dept. of TrailS. Propeli)' Corne," for the southeast corner of proposed "Parcel 63" and the 
northeast corner of proposed "Parcel 62" in I he proposed cast right-of-way line of rM 1626, 
92.60 feet right of Engineer's Centerline Station 250+40.18, being in the soulh Jine of a 
remainder of a 2.0 acre tract conveyed as "Tract rive" in said deeds to Johmon, and also 
being in the north line of said relllainder of a 1.53 acre h'act, bears South 44°35 '27" West 
(record - SoutI144°35'27" West) a distance of250.72 feel; 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

http:of250.72
http:250+40.18


Page 4 of 4 

THENCE NOlth 44°35'27" E<1st (record - North 44°35'27" Ensl), along the westerly line of{lle 
72.60 acre tract and the proposed east right-of-way linc of FM 1626, a dist<1nce of 159.43 feel to 
the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

This parcel contains 26.220 acres of land, more or less, Ollt of the Walkcr Wilson Survey No.2, ill 

Travis County, Texas. 

Bearing Basis: Texas State Plane Coordinate System, Cenlral Zone (4203), NAD 83/96 CORSo 

~~--tAt ote"IJ 
1. Scolt Laswell Date 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 5583 

File: S:\Projects\Johnson Tract\Docs\FielcJ NOles\Phasc I Final PlatM&B.doc 
Drawing: S:\PlOjects\Johnson Ttact\Dwg\PiJ!lse 1 Fillal Pl!lt.dwg 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



JOHNSON 

LANE 


M cI 
PROJECT 

SITE 

o 0 
- II 

COMMISSIONER'S PRECINCT MAP 

COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY - PRECINCT 3 


Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 

Prepared By: Cynthia C. McDonald, Financial Manager 

Phone #: (512) 854-4239 , 

Division Director/Manag~rol B. Jose hffNR Assistant Director 


Department HeadlTitle: ~ M. M nil a, {~ ., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Gomez, Precinct Four 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests in Precinct Four: 

A) Approve the issuance of $16,606,000 of Certificates of Obligation for the Maha 

Loop Road: Pearce Lane to SH71 project; and 

B) Approve an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Central Texas Regional 

Mobility Authority (CTRMA) for completing the Maha Loop Road: Pearce Lane to 

SH71 project. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

On October 1, 2013, the Commissioners Court approved a resolution to allow TNR 

to negotiate an agreement with CTRMA for the construction of roadway 

improvements in Southeast Travis County. One of those improvements is the Maha 

Loop Road: Pearce Lane to SH71 project. The project includes the construction of a 

new road consisting of two through lanes and a continuous center left-turn lane with 

a bike lane and a sidewalk on one side, extending south approximately 1.9 miles 

from SH71 to Pearce Lane. The project itself was approved by the Commissioners 

Court on September 24, 2013. This agenda item is to ask the Court to approve the 

issuance of $16,606,000 of Certificates of Obligation (CO) to fund the project, and to 

approve the interlocal agreement with the CTRMA so they can construct the project. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

TNR staff has reviewed the latest cost estimates provided by the CTRMA, and the 

interlocal agreement prepared by the County Attorney's Office. TNR recommends 

that the approval of both items A and B above. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

The approval of the funding and the interlocal agreement are time-sensitive, and 

therefore TNR has discussed the project funding with the Planning and Budget 

Office (PBO). Due to critical deadlines with CTRMA, PBO has agreed to put a 

reimbursement resolution on the Court's agenda for approval, provided the Court 

approves the $16,606,000 issuance of the CO for this project. 


Item 11Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
This project will be be funded by the CO for the entire $16,606,000. However, a 
reimbursement resolution is being placed on the Court's agenda to allow for funding 
to be in place prior to actual issuance of the CO, and so that the County can move 
forward with the interlocal agreement with CTRMA. 

EXH I BITSI ATTAC HM ENTS: 
1) CTRMA Preliminary Estimate of Construction Costs 
2) CTRMA Proposed Design Document 
3) Interlocal Cooperation Agreement Draft 
4) Resolution Authorizing CTRMA to Constuct Roadway Improvements in Southeast 
Travis County 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 1512L 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Leslie Browder County Executive PBO (512) 854-9106 

cc: 

Jessica Rio Budget Director PBO (512) 854-4455 
Travis Gatlin Assistant Budget 

Director 
PBO (512) 854-9605 

Steve Sun Assistant Director, 
Public Works 

TNR (512) 854-4660 

3101 • Public Works/CIP· 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



CTRMA 

Maha loop Road: Pearce ln to SH 71 (3-ln Rural) 

Preliminary Estimate 

ITEM NO DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICE TOTAL COST 
100 2002 PREPARING ROW sTA 96 $ 873.86 $ 83,931.31 
1102001 EXCAVATION (ROADWAY) CY 37,290 $ 10.64 $ 396,795.21 
1322006 EMBANKMENT (FINAL)(DENS CONT)(TV C) CY 12,430 $ 7.36 $ 91,501.23 
1642035 DRILL SEEDING (PERM) (RURAL) (CLAY) SY 1,518 $ 0.12 $ 178.37 
2472044 FL BS (CMP IN PLC)(TY A GR 4)(FNAL pas CY 16,525 $ 42.29 $ 698,855.64 
2752001 CEMENT TON 2,244 $ 114.66 $ 257,267.82 
3102001 PRIME COAT (MC-30) GAL 12,748 $ 5.00 $ 63,740.51 
4002005 CEM STABIL BKFL CY 432 $ 103.28 $ 44,601 .92 
4162020 DRILL SHAFT (SIGN MTS)(36 IN) LF 7 $ 165.00 $ 1,155.00 
4622029 CONC BOX CULV (10 FT X 5 FT) LF 600 $ 370.00 $ 222,000.00 
4662054 WINGWALL (PW)(HW=10 FT) EA 4 $ 27,457.14 $ 109,828.57 
5302007 DRIVEWAYS (CONC) EA 7 $ 6,307.99 $ 44,155.90 
5312004 CONC SIDEWALKS (6") SY 5,203 $ 48.32 $ 251,423.62 
6362001 ALUMINUM SIGNS (TV A) SF 240 $ 19.75 $ 4,738.80 
6442004 IN SM RD SN SUP&AM TV1 OBWG(1 )SA(T) EA 10 $ 446.95 $ 4,469.47 
6472001 INSTALL LRSS (STRUCT STEEL) LB 504 $ 3.89 $ 1,961 .92 
6662003 REFL PAY MRK TV I (W) 4" (BRK)(100MIL) LF 5,854 $ 0.36 $ 2,114.60 
6662012 REFL PAY MRK TV I (W) 4" (SLD)(100MIL) LF 1,800 $ 0.36 $ 647.73 
6662063 REFL PAY MRK TY I(W)(BIKE SYML)(1 OOMIL EA 10 $ 165.97 $ 1,659.67 
6722015 REFL PAY MRKR TY II-A-A EA 73 $ 3.34 $ 243.71 
32242008 D-GR HMA(QCQA) TV-B PG64-22 TON 11,686 $ 89.27 $ 1,043,250.50 
32242030 D-GR HMA(QCQA) TY-C SAC-B PG76-22 TON 4,102 $ 75.37 $ 309,162.54 
XXX 0001 Bridges (Typical) SF 91,800 $ 60.00 $ 5,508,000.00 
XXX 0007 Detention Pond EA 2.0 $ 200,000.00 $ 400,000.00 
XXX 0009 Water Quality Pond EA 2 $ 200,000.00 $ 400,000.00 

CONSTRUCTION ITEM SUBTOTAL $ 9,941,684.04 
Erosion Control I Temporary Drainage 1.0% $ 99,416.84 

Landscaping 1.0% $ 99,416.84 
Traffic Control Plan 2.5% $ 248,542.10 
Mobilization 10.0% $ 1,038,905.98 

SUBTOTAL $ 11,427,965.81 
Construction Contingency 20.0% $ 2,285,593.16 
Environmental $ 100,000.00 
Utility Relocation $ 48,950.00 
Engineering 10.0% $ 1,371 ,355.90 
CE&I 10.0% $ 1,371,355.90 

TOTAL (2013$) $ 16,605,220.76 

NOTES: 
1. All unit prices are derived from TxDOT Austin District and statewide average low bid prices (September 2013). 
2. Maha Loop includes a 1500-foot bridge (at Dry Creek), 300-foot bridge (at Dry Creek Tributary #5), a single 1 0'x4' box culvert, 

and a double 10'x4' box culvert for the preliminary estimate to limit impacts to the 1 OO-year floodplain. A detailed study will be 
required to determine actual impacts and a Letter of Map revision (LOMR) may have to be processed through FEMA. 

3. Two detention ponds and two water quality ponds have been included on Maha Loop per discussions with Travis County. 
4. No right of way costs have been included per direction of Travis County. It is assumed that all land required for the roadway 

and associated detentionlwater quality facilities is to be donated at no cost to the project. 
5. A 20% construction contingency is included based upon the preliminary nature of this estimate. This contingency will be 

reduced as the design is refined. 

Preliminary Pavement Structure 
2" HMA Type C surface 
5" HMA Type B base 
14" flex base 
16: cement stabilized subgrade 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

http:9,941,684.04
http:400,000.00
http:200,000.00
http:400,000.00
http:200,000.00
http:5,508,000.00
http:309,162.54
http:1,043,250.50
http:1,659.67
http:2,114.60
http:4,469.47
http:4,738.80
http:251,423.62
http:44,155.90
http:6,307.99
http:109,828.57
http:27,457.14
http:222,000.00
http:1,155.00
http:63,740.51
http:257,267.82
http:698,855.64
http:91,501.23
http:396,795.21
http:83,931.31


_______ 

't 't "I 

I I Y:PGL I I 

TY I I C~ ~WER 
ULTIMATE 5-LANE ARTERIAL 

SOWK I , 

I I I 

\~ 

~ 

I ~ 3' 
1 01( 

~ , II' II' II' 6'I 

SHL DI LANE LANE LANE SHLO 
BIKE BIKE 

l ~ t 
Y:PGL I 

,I 

PROPOSED 3-LANE ARTER I AL (RURAL) 

I ~ 3' 
~--, -

'  Z' , 
~ , , II' II' II' 6' 6' 15.5'01( 

ISHLO LANE LANE SHLO SOWK 
BIKE BIKE 

, 

~ t I 

I 
j' V~ I (:CRENELLATEO CURB

I' 

~ 

PROPOSED 3-LANE ARTERIAL (URBAN) 

~ 

f 
~ 
~ 

\ 

I ~9' 

~ -4 ' , II' II' II' 6' 6' 

SHLO I LANE LANE LANE SHLO SOWK 
BIKE BIKE 

l ~ t 
~ I(PGL 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

40 

45 

DRAfT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES: SUBJECT TO REVISION 

I INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

2 


3 This Interlocal Cooperation Agreement ("agreement") is between Travis County, Texas (the 

4 "County" ) and the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"). The County 


and the Authority may be referred to collectively in this agreement as the "parties," and 

6 individually as a "party." 

7 


8 WHEREAS, the parties intend to participate and collaborate in the design and 

9 construction of new three lane rural arterial road consisting of two through lanes and a 


continuous center left-tum lane with a bike lane and a sidewalk on one side, extending south 
II approximately 1.9 miles from SH 71 to Pearce Lane, as approved by motion of the Travis 
12 County Commissioners Court on September 24, 2013 (the. "Project"); and 
13 
14 WHEREAS, the Project is generally described and depicted in the attached iExhibit Ii, alld 

16 WHEREAS, the County has agreed to fund the direct and indirect costs of the Project as 
17 detailed in this agreement, and the Authority has agreed to manage the design, procurement, and 
18 construction of the Project as detailed in this agreement; and 
19 

WHEREAS, the parties, as political subdivisions ofthe State of Texas, intend for this 
21 agreement to conform in all respects with the provisions of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Texas 
22 Government Code Section 791.001, et seq.; 
23 
24 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

26 1. Financial Obligations . II 
27 

28 (A) The County will provide funding for the Project at the .Eestimated Project !:;eost of 
29 $Sixleen MIIIi r1 SI. Hundred tive Thousand Two Hundred Twenty and 7611 00 Dollars 

($16,605,220.76) . The Authority's sole contribution to Project costs are certain in
31 kind services provided under this agreement. 
32 

33 (B) The Authority will develop a detailed Project budget, to include a cash disbursement 
34 projection (the "Budget"). The Budget will include the following costs to be paid by the 

Authority to outside consultants. vendors, and the successful bidder on the construction contract 
36 for the Project: 

I
37 (I) pre-development costsJ 
38 (2) preliminary engineering; 
39 (3) capital costs (design and construction); 

(4) engineering oversight (including design reviews, construction management , materials 
41 testing, inspection); 
42 (5) legal , administrative, and other fees and expenses related to this agreement, procurement, 
43 and Project development and oversight; 
44 (6) environmental approvals, ifrequired; 

(7) public notices and involvement activities; 
46 (8) utility relocations; 

I October 23 , 2013 Page I of9 I 

Comment [Al]: Do we have this! Do we need i t~ 

[ Comment [A2]: What docs this include·! 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

http:16,605,220.76


5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

40 

45 

DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES: SUBJECT TO REVISION 

(9) contingencies; and 

2 (10) all other costs reasonably projected as necessary to complete the Project, excluding the cost 


of a party's in-kind services provided through a party's employee. 

4 


(C) 
6 on the Budget, provided the County's Representative mllst obtain Commissioners Court 
7 approval if the Budget is to exceed the E timated Project Cost, No later than lfive days after the 
8 parties have approved the Budget, as evidenced by a written notice of Budget approval signed by 
9 (the apprel'lriate County amI erAuthority Repre entatives aaAliAislFAlive eflieiall and delivered 

to the other party, the County shall pay to the Authority an initia l payment identified in the 
II Budget for use by the Authority to pay Project costs incurred prior to and after the date of Budget 
12 approval. Funds paid by the County shall be deposited and held by the Authority in a separate 
13 trust account for the payment of Project costs (the "Trust Account"). If the parties have not 
14 agreed on a Budget by [insert reasonable deadlinet or if the Coul"\ty ~ef.aults. iI1ITla.kingany 

payment to the Authority required by the Budget, the Authority may terminate this agreement in 
16 accordance with section 5 of this agreement. 
17 

18 (D) After the Budget is approved, it may be revised by written agreement of the parties1 

19 provided the County RepresentaliveE;l(e6utiv6 must obtain tommisslOners Court approval ir the 
Budget is to exceed the Estimated Project Cost. If the total cost of the Project is projected to 

21 exceed the Estimated Project Costeslilft&ll!sel feRA ill sub!leStien (A) eftkis seetieA, the parties 
22 may engage in value engineering in an attempt to control costs. If the projected Project costs 
23 exceed funding available from the County from its own funds or from sources other than the 
24 Authority, the County may elect to provide the funds required to pay the additional Project costs. 

If the County fails to provide the funds required to pay excess Project costs, either party may 
26 terminate this agreement in aeeeraat'!€e witA st;dUGA 5 eftllis agreement. 
27 

28 (E) The County anticip8tesinf6eds to seJlln.g ceI1ificates of obligation in March, 2014, in an 
29 amount sufficient to provide all or part ofth funding needed to pay the Project costs identified 

by the Budget. The County may pay all or a portion of the Project costs using funds available 
31 from th c or other sources, including funds provided to the County by third parties other than 
32 the Authority. if the County cannot finance the Project costs 011 terms acceptable to the County, 
33 either party may terminate this agreement. 
34 

36 (F) Authority shall Mtha'rl; RO obligal ioR te execute a construction contract for the Project, or 
37 to issue a notice to proceed under a construction contract until the County has securedpaia a ll 
38 funds required by the Budget to fully fund the construction contract, related oversight and 
39 inspection costs, and the contingency fund established in the Budget. 

41 (G) Authority may disburse funds from the Trust Account in accordan e with the Budget to 
42 pay its outside contractors and to pay the contract price for construction of the Project to the 
43 bidder selected for the contract, including any change orders approved under this agreement. No 
44 later than two days after making any disbursement from the Trust Account, the Authority will 

provide to the County a copy of the disbursement, together with sufficient information to 
46 establish that the disbursement complies with this agreement. 

I October 23. 2013 Page 20f9 I 

{ Comment [Al]: Is this adequate time"! 

..~tJ~4]: What is a reasonabl ~ date ' 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

40 

45 

ORAFT FOR OISCUSSION PURPOSES: SUBJECT TO REVISION 

I 

2 (H) Any funds remaining in the Trust Account shall be disbursed to the County no later than 

3 five days after the date the Authority has disbursed and paid all Project expenses that were 

4 payable and due on the date the County accepts the Project in accordance with this agreement. 


6 (I) Authority shall keep and maintain records to document and support that each 
7 disbursement made by the Authority is for an authorized purpose under this agreement. All of the 
8 Authority 's disbursements paid from the Trust Account shall be subject to review by the County 
9 at County' s request and sole expense. 

II (1) The Authority shall obtain written approval from the County before approving any 
12 ~ro~osetl eiSeFelioARry change order that wOl:lltl iR€reoase !hu Gas! of tile Prejeet as established iR 
13 lhe BuElge~ or tflat 'i/Olils selay tRe Elate reqliireEl fer sl:tast8fltia:i eefH~le~ioB es!£tbJishea by the 
14 construetioR COR tract fer the Prejeet. The Authority will notify and CORsul' with-the County in 

writing oifi any proposed change order. If the County does not provide its approval or 
16 disapproval within 48 hours of submi sion, the County is deemed to have appro ed the change 
17 order and ~the Authority is Rereby-authorized to approve ~~change order 
18 Reeessary to complete tBe Prejeet as desigRed BRd &eheduled ifsuffieieRt flmd!:l ~fe R'lailable iR 
19 the TFl:ISI Aceo"m! 10 pay all costs re(ltiltiAg !fOAl the ool;\Rge orser together wilil /Ill other I:IflflaiEl 

oosts-KIeffitfte&-ffl.-!fle-BHdget. 
21 

22 2. Project Development. 

23 

24 (A) County will timely acquire and make available to the Authority all right-of-way, licenses, 


easements of any na~ure and duration, and rights of possession ("Real Estate Interests") needed 
26 to complete the Project. County will obtain any additional Real Estate Interests rights or right of 
27 way-needed for design changes or betterments to the Project requested and funded by the 
28 County. If the County cannot a quire the Real E:.1atc Interests on terms acceptable to lhe ounty, 
29 either party may tenninale this 3!!l'eemenl The Authoritv is aulhorized to enter or u~e aLI Real 

Estate Interests acquired by the County am' sueR righl of way. lieeR!,B:;. Basements. or rights of 
3 t eossessi9fl to complete the Project. 
32 
33 (8) The design, plans, and specifications for the Project shall comply with applicable design 
34 and construction, materials testill'!; and inspection standards established or followed by the 

County, including "ut not limited to tho e for storm water managemenl unless otherwise agreed 
36 by the parties (the "Standards" ). 
37 
38 (C) The Authority will manage the design and construction of the Project pursuant to the 
39 Standardst\f}~lieaale aREl agreed criteriil, including (i) preliminary estimates, (ii) development of 

the engineering design, plans and specifications for all roadway improvements, (iii) surveying, 
41 (iv) construction, and (v) inspection and testing. 
42 

43 (D) When design work for each design package is 30% complete, and again when the design 
44 work for each design package is 90% and 100% complete, Authority shall submit the complete 

design package to the County. County will review and provide comments on the design package 
46 to the Authority. The parties wiJl participate in joint monthly coordination and review meetings 

I October 23 , 2013 Page 3 of9 I 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

40 

45 

DRAfT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES: SUBJECT TO REVISION 

with representatives from all affected County reviewers to avoid or resolve conflicts in review 
2 comments. County agrees to complete its review and notify the Authority of its approval or 
3 disapproval of the design package no later than five days after receiving the design package. If 
4 County does not provide its approval or disapproval by the deadline, the County is deemed to 

have approved the design package. If County disapproves the information submitted, it shall at 
6 the same time notify Authority of the reasons for its disapproval and actions necessary for the 
7 design package to meet County approval. Authority will have an opportunity to correct or submit 
8 additional information to cure any defects or deviations identified by County. Any defects or 
9 deviations will be discussed in an over-the-shoulder review meeting and incorporated into the 

next submittal. 
II 

12 I(E) The ~ shall be responsible for any required permitting and environmental 
13 assessments and clearances associated with the Project. j . __ 
14 

frlAuthority agrees to develop and construct the Project on an exped'ted timetable in 
16 accordance with the Budget using resources and procurement methods available to and as 
17 determined by the Authority to be in the best interests of the Project. 
18 
19 (Q) The Authority will ensure that the design engineer provides professional liability, 

automobile liability, and general liability insurance in accordance with the standard requirements 
21 of the County. Both the Authority and the County shall be named as an additional insureds with 
22 respect to such general liability and automobile liability coverage. 
23 

24 3. Project Bidding & Award of Construction Contract. 

26 (A) The Authority will be responsible for the solicitation of bids for the construction of the 
27 Project based on the approved plans and specifications and in accordance with the Authority's 
28 bidding policies, laws, practices, and procedures. The Authority will notify the County of the 
29 lowest responsible bidder and the amount of the bid for the Project. 

31 (B) Any construction contract executed by the Authority shall include, without limitation: 
32 (1) a deadline for substantial completion of the Project that is no later than I ~__ 
33 unle otherwi e agreed b~ the part es; 
34 (2) assessment of liquidated damages against the contractor for failing to meet that deadline, 

if the delay is not attributable to the Authority, the County, or a force majeure event; aI*I 
36 (3) provisions that e~tablish the Authority's right to assign the construction contract to 
37 County upon the County's acceptance of the Project, together with a conveyance to the 
38 County of all contractor warranties, guarantees, and bonds~ 

39 (4) a requirement the construction s;.ontractor will be responsible for any defects in 
workmanship or materials (ordinary wear and tear excepted) following acceptance and a 

41 one year warranty and maintenance bond in a form approved by Seller .. 
42 Hi(5) IHUBt 
43 

44 
(B) Prior to award of the con truction contract. the Authority shall submit it to the County for 

46 B[)provaI. If the County does not provide its approval or disapproval within 48 hours of 

I October 23, 2013 Page 4 of9 I 

Comment [AS]: We need to discuss this one. We 
aIso need to address the LOMR issue . 

( Comment [A6]: WhO t d:n.? 

Comment [A7]: Which entity's HUB 
requirements will we usc? 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



2 

3 

4 


6 


7 

8 

9 


10 


II 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 

23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 

30 


31 


32 


33 

34 


35 

36 

37 


38 


39 


40 


41 


42 


43 


44 


45 


DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES: SUBJECT TO REVISION 

ubmission, the County is deemed to have approved the contract. 

(g If no acceptable bid is low enough to allow til Project to be completed within the 
Budget. the County may require that the parties to engage in value engineering in an attempt to 
control costs and then re-bid or make legally allowable adjutment to the bid. I f new or adjusted 
bid are not low enough to allow the Project to be completed within the Budget, the either party 
may terminate this agreement. 

4. Pro ject Management. 

(A) The Aut110rity ' S (the hAuth rity Repre ' enlative" ) TIle AtiHJeFi~y will acl on behalf of 
the Authoritv with respect to the Project. AltlletigBl:he AlcttAonty agrees Ie coornjRate with the 
Cel:IBty. Tfhe Authority Representative will coordinate \vi!h the County, receive and transmit 
information and instnlctions, and will have complete authority to interpret and define the 
Authority ' sCOtiflty' s policies and decisions with respect to the Project. The Authority will 
designate a Project Manager and may designate other representatives to transmit instructions and 
act on behalf of the Authority with respect to the Project. 

~The County's County Executive for Transportation and Natural Resources (the "County 
Representative") will act on behalf of the County with respect to the Project, coordinate with the 
Authority, receive and transmit information and instructions, and will have complete authority to 
interpret, define, and communicate to the Authority the County's policies, recommendations, and 
decisions with respect to the Project. By written notice deli vered under this agreement, the 
County Representative may designate a County Project Manager and may designate other 
representatives to transmit instructions and act on behalf of the County with respect to the 
Project. 

~a~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

(0) The County may ob erve or inspect all work done and materials furnished al reasonable 
time and places. If the County noti lies the Authority that the Project i. not being constructed in 
accordance with applicable requirements or is otherwise materially defective. the Authority shall 
promptly require the construction contractor to remedy any defect. 

eE) Seller ball notify Purcha er in writing upon substantial completion of the Project. The 
County will conduct a final inspection of the Project wit11in ten (10) business days after receiving 
the written notice of substantial completion. 

(f) Upon the County' s final acceptance of the Project. all warranties for the Project hall be 
Lransferred to the County. 

(0) Within thirty (30) Jay of final acceptance by the County. the Authority hall deliver to 
the County all plans including as built plans. specifications. and files pertaining to the Project 
which materials will he the property of t11e County. 

{ Comment [AS]: Need 10 discuss LOMR. 

I October 23, 2013 Page 5 of9 I 


Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



DRAFT FOR OISCUSSION PURPOSES: SUBJECT TO REVISION 

I 
 I 


I October 23, 2013 Page 6 of9 I 


Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

40 

45 

DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES: SUBJECT TO REV1SION 

2 5. Dispute Resolution. 
3 

4 The Authority Representative and the County' Representative will appoint, and convene as 
necessary or appropriate, a Leadership Team to serve in a management role and discuss issues 

6 that arise during the design, construction, and operation of the Project, including the resolution of 
7 major issues relating to the parties' responsibilities under this agreement. The Leadership Team 
8 will consist of two staff members each from the County and the Authority. Consultants may not 
9 serve on the Leadership Team. The team will meet as necessary and serve in an advisory role to 

discuss: 
II (l) procurement progress and related schedule impacts; 
12 (2) the County's participation in design and construction oversight; and 
13 (3) resolution ofmajor issues relating to the parties' responsibilities under this agreement that 
14 may arise during the design, procurement, or construction of the Project. 

16 5. Default ; Remedies; Termination. 
17 

18 (A) Either party may terminate this agreement if the other party defaults in its obligation and, 
19 	 after receiving notice of the default and of the non-defaulting party's intent to terminate, fails to 

cure the default no later than five days after receipt of that notice. 
21 

22 (B) This agreement will terminate on the date when the COUnty has accepted the Project for 
23 maintenance and all Trust Account funds have been disbursed by the Authority in accordance 
24 with the terms of this agreement. 

26 6. Liability. To the extent allowed by Texas law, the County and the Authority are 
27 responsible for their respective proportionate share of any liability for personal injury or death or 
28 property damage arising out of or connected to its negligent acts or omissions in connection with 
29 this agreement as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction. Neither party waives, 

relinquishes, limits or conditions its governmental immunity or any other right to avoid liability 
31 which it otherwise might have to a third party. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as 
32 creating any liability in favor of any third party or parties against either County or Authority, nor 
33 shall this agreement ever be construed as relieving any third party or parties from any liabilities 
34 of such third party or parties to the County or the Authority. 

36 7 . Miscellaneous. 
37 
38 (A) Force Majeure. Whenever a period of time is prescribed by this agreement for action to 
39 be taken by either party, the party shall not be liable or responsible for, and there shall be 

excluded from the computation of any such period of time, any delays due to strikes, riots, acts 
41 of God, shortages of labor or materials, war, terrorist acts or activities, governmental laws, 
42 regulations, or restrictions, or any other causes of any kind whatsoever which are beyond the 
43 control of such party. 
44 

(B) Notice. All notices, demands or other requests, and other communications required or 
46 permitted under this agreement or which any party may desire to give, shall be in writing and 

I October 23.2013 	 Page 7or9 I 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

40 

45 

COUNTY : 

DRAfT FOR DIs(USSION PURPOSES: SUBJECT TO REVISION 

shall be deemed to have been given on the sooner to occur of (i) receipt by the party to whom the 
2 notice is hand-delivered, with a written receipt of notice provided by the receiving party, or (ii) 
3 two days after deposit in a regularly maintained express mail receptacle of the United States 
4 Postal Service, postage prepaid, or registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, express 

mail delivery, addressed to such party at the respective addresses set forth below, or such other 
6 address as each party may from time to time designate by written notice to the others as herein 
7 required or (iii) facsimile or electronic mail transmission (the latter of scanned documents in 
8 formats such as .pdf or .tif) for which confirmation of receipt by the other party has been 
9 obtained by the sending party: 

II AUTHORITY: ? 
12 Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
13 3300 N. IH-35 , Suite 300 
14 Austin, TX 78705 

(512) 966-9784 (facsimile) 
16 Email address : ?@ctrma.org 
17 

18 

19 WITH COpy TO: Andrew Martin, General Counsel 
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 

21 3300 N. 1H-35, Suite 300 
22 Austin, TX 78705 
23 (512) 225-7788 (facsimile) 
24 Email address : amartin@ctrma"org 

26 ? 
27 [Address] 
28 Austin, TX 78701 
29 (512) XXX-XXXX (facsimile) 

Email address: ?@X 
31 

32 

33 WITH A COpy TO: Tom Nuckols, Land Use Division Director 
34 Travis County Attorney's Office 

314 West lIth Street 
36 Room 300 
37 Austin, TX 78701 
38 (512) XXX-XXXX (facsimile) 
39 Email address : ?@X 

41 (C) Calculation of Days. Each reference in this agreement to a day or days refers to a day that 
42 is not a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday observed by either the County or the Authority. If 
43 the last day of any period described in this agreement is a Saturday, Sunday, or such legal 
44 holiday, the period is extended to include the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or such 

legal holiday. 
46 

I October 23 , 2013 Page 8 of9 I 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES: SUBJECTTO REVISION 

(D) Entire Agreement. This agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the 
2 parties with respect to the subject matter of this agreement and supersedes all other agreements, 
3 whether written or oral, between the parties. 
4 

(E) Modification; Waiver. No amendment of this agreement will be effective unless it is in 
6 writing and signed by the parties. No waiver of satisfaction of a condition or failure to comply 
7 with an obligation under this agreement will be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the 
8 party granting the waiver, and no such waiver will constitute a waiver of satisfaction of any other 
9 condition or failure to comply with any other obligation. 

II (F) Effective Date. This agreement will become effective when signed by both the County 
12 and the Authority. The date of this agreement will be the date this agreement is signed by the last 
13 party to sign it , as indicated by the date associated with that party's signature. 
14 

(G) Counterparts. If the parties sign this agreement in several counterparts, each will be 
16 deemed an original but aU counterparts together will constitute one instrument. 
17 
18 (H) Other Instruments. The parties shall execute other and further instruments and documents 
19 as may become necessary or convenient to effectuate and carry out the purposes of this 

agreement. 
21 

22 (I) Invalid Provision. Any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this agreement 
23 held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective shall not impair, 
24 invalidate, or nullify the remainder of this agreement, but the effect ihereof shall be confined to 

the clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article so held to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective. 
26 
27 
28 [Signatures] 

I October 23. 2013 Page 9 of9 I 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis County Commissioners Court 

RESOLUTION 

Authorize Agreements with the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority for Funding and 

Construction of Roadway Improvements In Southeast Travis County. 

Whereas, Travis County has identified sources of funding needed to pay for improvements to the 

county roadway system to serve the residents, landowners, businesses and the traveling 

public In Southeast Travis County; and, 

Whereas The Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority ("Mobility Authority") was created 

Pursuant to the request of Travis and Williamson Counties and in accordance with 

provisions of the Transportation Code and the petition and approval process 

established In 43 Tex. Admin Code §26.01, et seq. (the "RMA Rules"); and, 

Whereas, The Mobility Authority has constructed, completed, operates the 183A Turnpike Project 

In Williamson County, the direct connects between US Highway 183 and US Highway 

290 East in Travis County, and Is currently constructing the Manor Expressway between 

US Highway 183 and just east of Parmer lane in the right-of-way for US Highway 290 

East in Travis County; and, 

Whereas, Both the Mobility Authority and Travis County are authorized to design and 

Construct roads needed to relieve existing and future traffic congestion and to improve 

the transportation network that serves Travis County residents and the traveling public; 

and, 

Whereas, The Mobility Authority is authorized by state law to use the design-build method of 

construction to develop a transportation project, specifically Including the design and 

construction of roadways in Travis County with a functional classification greater than a 

local road or a rural minor collector; and, 

Whereas, The Mobility Authority has successfully used the design-build construction method to 

develop and complete its transportation projects within an expedited time period; and, 

Whereas, Under the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Government Code, the Mobility 

Authority and Travis County may enter into one or more agreements to cooperate in 

funding, designing, building, and maintaining improvements to the roadway system 

that serves the residents, landowners. businesses, and the traveling public in Southeast 

Travis County; and, 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Whereas, 	 The County Executive for Transportation and Natural Resources recommends that the 

Court authorize negotiation of appropriate agreements with the Mobility Authority to 

combine the efforts and resources of the Mobility Authority and Travis County to 

develop improvements to the roadway system in Southeast Travis County. 

NOW THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Executive for Transportation and Natural Resources 

and his staff are hereby authorized and directed to negotiate one or more agreements with the 

appropriate officials at the Mobility Authority under which the Mobility will develop and implement 

necessary and feasible improvements to the roadway system in Southeast Travis County and under 

which Travis County will provide funding and other resources as may be necessary to pay project 

development costs incurred by the Mobility Authority for its consultants and a design-build contractor; 

and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THE County Executive for Transportation and Natural Resources bring 

his recommendation for Court approval of any proposal agreement with the Mobility Authority to the 

Court for its consideration and approprlate action. 

Signed this '~day of October, 2013. 

~TIb~d 

." SAMUELT. BISCOE 

County Judge 

GE~~f-~RON DAVIS 
County Commissioner, Pet. 1 County Commissioner, Pet. 3 

~~;-J~'"1iBRUCE TODD 
County Commissioner, Pet. 2 	 County Commissioner, Pet. 4 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 12Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 13Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 14Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  November 12. 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett, LMSW / 854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on items related to the Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice for the Community Development 
Block Grant provided by HUD:  
 
A. Request to approve November 13, 2013 through December 12, 2013 

as the 30-day public comment period for the public to review and 
comment on the draft;  
 

B. Request to approve a public hearing date on December 3, 2013, at 
the Travis County Commissioners Courtroom at 9 am to receive 
public comment; and  
 

C. Request to approve the draft for public comment.   
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5301), the federal government through 
the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development sponsors the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), a program that provides 
annual grants to cities and counties to develop viable urban communities 
by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment, and by 
expanding economic opportunities for low and moderate income persons.   

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has a 
commitment to eliminate racial and ethnic segregation, physical and other 
barriers to persons with disabilities, and other discriminatory practices in 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 15Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

the provision of housing. HUD extends the responsibility of affirmatively 
furthering fair housing to local jurisdictions through a variety of regulations 
and program requirements.  
 
As an entitlement county receiving Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds from HUD, Travis County must fulfill its fair housing 
responsibilities by developing an Analysis of Impediments (AI) to Fair 
Housing Choice and by taking actions to overcome the effects identified in 
the AI through implementation of a Fair Housing Plan ("FHP") and maintain 
records reflecting the analysis and actions taken.   

 
An AI is a review of impediments or barriers that affect the rights of fair 
housing choice, and when completed, will serve as the basis for fair 
housing planning, provide essential information to housing stakeholders 
and assists in building public support for fair housing efforts.  A FHP 
identifies the actions needed to eliminate fair housing barriers which have 
been identified.  HUD defines impediments to fair housing choice as: 
 

-  any actions, omissions or decisions taken because of race, color, 
religion, sex, disability, familial status or national origin which restrict 
housing choices or the availability for housing choices; and 

 
-  any actions, omissions or decisions which have the effect of 
restricting housing choices or the availability of housing choices on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, disability, familial status or 
national origin.  
 

Since the inception of the County’s CDBG Program, the County has been 
operating under the City of Austin’s AI published in 2005.  In 2012, the 
County contracted with the consulting firm Mullins & Lonergan to conduct 
an AI.  The preliminary results were presented to the Commissioners Court 
on November 5, 2013.  
 
Staff proposes a 30 day public comment period, which is not required, but 
demonstrates transparency on behalf of the County.  The advertising 
strategy will include posting on the County’s website, Travis County 
Community Centers and postal and email notices to the CDBG mail out list 
only.  No newspaper advertising is required.  Additionally, a public hearing 
may be scheduled at the Court’s discretion.   
 
 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
A. Staff recommends approval of the 30-day public comment period from 

November 13, 2013 to December 12, 2013. 
B. Staff recommends approval of the public hearing date to be on 

December 3, 2013. 
C. Staff recommends approval of the draft of the AI for public comment. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

A. The AI looks at processes, policies and procedures of the County as 
a whole, which impact fair housing choice.  This means that multiple 
Departments and entities such as the Travis County Housing Finance 
Corporation and the Housing Authority of Travis County are included 
in this broad level assessment.  The results identify areas of potential 
collaboration and/or recommendations for improvement; 

B. The completion of the AI is required as part of the CDBG program’s 
fair housing obligation;   

C. Pages 106-107 of the AI maintain summary level fair housing 
observations; 

D. Pages 108-112 contains public and private sector impediments to fair 
housing choice along with Action Steps to address each identified 
impediment.   

E. A Fair Housing Plan must be created based on the identified 
impediments.  A 5 year fair housing plan will be created from the 
action steps located on pages 108-112 and will be implemented 
simultaneously with the PY14-18 Consolidated Plan.   

F. After receipt of comments, the final draft and fair housing plan will be 
presented for approval.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
No cost associated with the posting for public comment.   
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
None. 
 
Cc: Steven Manilla, TNR 
 Anna Bowlin, TNR 
 Lee Turner, TNR 
 Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Office 
 David Walch, Purchasing Office 
 Nicki Riley, Auditor’s Office 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Janice Cohoon, Auditor’s Office 
 Leslie Browder, PBO 
 Aerin Toussaint, PBO 
 Mary Etta Gerhardt, County Attorney’s Office 
 John Hille, County Attorney’s Office 
 Craig Alter, Housing Authority of Travis County 
 Andrea Shields, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation  
  
 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


                 

         

 
As part of Travis County’s ongoing public engagement related to its Community Development Block Grant (CDBG,) Travis 
County will make available to the public its Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (AI). 
 
An AI is a review of barriers in the public and private sectors that affect the rights of fair housing choice  This report informs 
a 5 year Fair Housing Plan which includes actions to address known obstacles.  This report has been completed to meet 
federal requirements. 
 

COMMENT PERIOD AND DRAFT DOCUMENT 

Comments will be accepted for 30 days beginning November 13, 2013 at 8:00 a.m. and ending December 12, 2013 at 5:00 
p.m.  Beginning November 13, 2013, a draft document will be available for download on the Travis County CDBG page 
www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG or available for review at any of the seven Travis County Community Centers: 

 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

The public can provide their comments by attending a Public Hearing scheduled for Tuesday, December 3, 2013 at 9:00 
a.m. at the Travis County Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca St., Austin, TX. 

MAILING COMMENTS 

The public can also mail their comments to: CDBG Program, Travis County, HHSVS, P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX  78767 or e-
mail them to the CDBG program at cdbg@co.travis.tx.us 

 
For additional information contact Christy Moffett, at cdbg@co.travis.tx.us or call 512-854-3460.  To request that an American Sign Language or Spanish 

interpreter be present at the public hearing, please contact staff at least five business days in advance. 

Travis County is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended. Reasonable modifications and equal 
access to communications will be provided upon request. Please call 512-854-3460 for assistance. 

South Rural Community Center 3518 FM 973, Del Valle 

Travis County Community Center 15822 Foothills Farm Loop, Bldg D, Pflugerville 

West Rural Community Center 8656-A Hwy 71 W., Suite A, Oak Hill 

Northwest Rural Community Center 18649 FM 1431, Jonestown 

East Rural Community Center 600 W. Carrie Manor, Manor 

Palm Square Community Center 100 N. IH-35, Suite 1000, Austin 

Post Road Community Center 2201 Post Road, Suite 101, Austin 

INVITATION TO COMMENT 
ON THE 

 

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


sEPTEMBER 2013

Analysis of impediments
to fair housing choice

Travis County, Texas

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

introduction

Demographic and 
housing market conditions

purpose of the ai
fair housing responsibilities of urban counties

fair housing choice

the federal fair housing act

the texas fair housing act

comparison of accessibility standards

methodology

analytical approach

development of the ai

overview of settlement patterns

population trends

racial and/or ethnic concentrations

quantifying integration

race/ethnicity and income

residential segregation by income

disability and income

familial status and income
ancestry and income

employment and protected class status

distribution of neighborhood opportunity

housing inventory

home ownership and protected class status

household size and protected class status

housing costs

foreclosure

3

4

8

10

11

6

12

13

13

14

15

30

32

34

24

36

37

39

40

41

44

49

51

55

50

1
3

14

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



TABLE OF CONTENTS

existence of fair housing complaints
discrimination testing

county involvement in fair housing cases

58

62

62

records of housing
discrimination

Review of public 
sector policies

policies governing investment of funds 
in housing and community development

appointed boards and commissions

accessibility of residential units

63

70

71

language accommodations
zoning, land use and 
comprehensive planning

72

73

housing authority of travis county75

property taxes

public transit
83

85

general fair housing 
observations

impediments to fair 
housing choice

fair housing action plan

evaluation of current 
fair housing profile

PROGRESS SINCE PREVIOUS AI
FAIR HOUSING ACTIVITIES

FAIR HOUSING ADVOCATES

102

102

103

58

63

private sector
policies and practices

mortgage lending
AUSTIN BOARD OF REALTORS

NEWSPAPER ADVERTISING

89

101

101

91

104

appendix a:
stakeholder chart

106

108

113

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



1

1EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY

The preparation of this Analysis of Impediments 
to Fair Housing Choice (AI) serves as a 
component of Travis County’s efforts to 
satisfy the requirements of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended, which requires that any community 
receiving Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) funds affirmatively further fair 
housing.  The AI is a review of local regulations 
and administrative policies, procedures and 
practices affecting the location, availability 
and accessibility of housing, as well as an 
assessment of conditions, both public and 
private, that affect fair housing choice. 
 
Following an extensive stakeholder consultation 
process, the County built the context for analysis 
by examining demographic, economic and 
housing market trends within the framework of 
access to housing opportunities.  Population 
explosion across the unincorporated areas of 
Travis County, which comprise nearly all of 
the Urban County’s CDBG jurisdiction, has 
resulted in an increase in ethnic diversity and 
residential income segregation, with some 
lower-income neighborhoods at the fringe of 
urban development isolated from interaction 
with the local economy.  Census data indicate 
that racial and ethnic minorities, persons with 
disabilities and female-headed households 
with children are more likely to experience 
poverty and unemployment.  Concentrations of 
lower-income minorities are most prevalent in 
the eastern crescent outside of Austin.  Larger-
lot enclaves farther west are generally more 
expensive, a fact that has strongly limited the 
location of Housing Choice Voucher Holders 
in that area.  Across the County as a whole, 
rent rates and housing values have risen 
substantially during the last 10 years while 
household incomes have not kept pace.  

An analysis of housing discrimination 
complaints revealed the persistence of 
unequal treatment in the local sales and rental 
markets, particularly on the basis of disability.  
Additionally, housing advocates reported that 
the lack of minimum construction standards 
in unincorporated areas has resulted in the 
construction of new multi-family developments 
that are non-compliant with accessibility 
standards.  Older housing stock is often not 
required to be accessible, and the majority of 
aging homes in unincorporated areas are not.  
Housing choice for those with disabilities is 
further limited by the absence of regular public 
transit service outside of Austin.

The AI’s review of public policies covered the 
aspects of local government most closely tied 
to housing, including the County’s entitlement 
grants programs, appointed boards and 
commissions, building codes enforcement, 
language accommodations, land use 
regulations, public housing, taxes and transit.  
CDBG program administration was found to 
affirmatively further fair housing, though the 
County’s lack of authority to adopt land use 
restrictions and enforce building standards 
limits the extent to which it can compel other 
entities to meet fair housing standards.  

Private-sector policies were additionally 
evaluated from a fair housing perspective.  
A thorough review of mortgage application 
data suggested that upper-income minorities 
are more likely to experience loan denials or 
high-cost lending than lower-income White 
applicants.

Many of the impediments identified in this report 
can be found in communities throughout the 
country and are not unique to Travis County.  
Economic and racial/ethnic segregation, among 
many other challenges identified in this report, 
are national problems, but the responsibility 
for addressing these issues falls primarily to 
each local jurisdiction where they are present.  
Affirmatively furthering fair housing is an 
ongoing process that requires the leadership 
of elected officials, and the development of 
this plan is the first step toward increasing fair 
housing choice in Travis County.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



2 INTRODUCTION

The Urban County of Travis County has 
prepared an Analysis of Impediments 
to Fair Housing Choice to satisfy the 
requirements of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, 
as amended.  This act requires that 
any community receiving Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds 
affirmatively further fair housing.  As a 
result, the Urban County is charged with 
the responsibility of conducting its CDBG 
programs in compliance with the federal 
Fair Housing Act.  The responsibility of 
compliance with the federal Fair Housing 
Act extends to nonprofit organizations 
and other entities, including local units of 
government which receive federal funds 
through Travis County. 

These requirements can be achieved 
through the preparation of an Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice and 
implementation of recommended action 
items. The Analysis of Impediments to 
Fair Housing Choice (AI) is a review of 
a jurisdiction’s laws, regulations and 
administrative policies, procedures and 
practices affecting the location, availability 
and accessibility of housing, as well as an 
assessment of conditions, both public and 

a.  purpose of the ai

3

private, affecting fair housing choice.
Entitlement communities receiving CDBG 
entitlement funds are required to: 

• Examine and attempt to alleviate  
 housing discrimination within their  
 jurisdiction

• Promote fair housing choice for all  
 persons

• Provide opportunities for all persons  
 to reside in any given housing   
 development, regardless of race,  
 color, religion, sex, disability, familial  
 status or national origin

• Promote housing that is accessible to  
 and usable by persons with   
 disabilities, and

• Comply with the non-discrimination  
 requirements of the Fair Housing Act.   

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



b.  fair housing     
      responsibilities of   
      urban counties

In recent years, the federal government 
has increasingly emphasized the obligation 
of grantees to affirmatively further fair 
housing and, specifically, the way in which 
entitlement communities comply with their 
required fair housing certifications.  Each 
year when an entitlement community 
submits its Annual Plan to HUD, the chief 
elected official is required to certify that 
the jurisdiction will affirmatively further fair 
housing.  However, the Fair Housing Act 
of 1968, which created that mandate, did 
not specify what precisely it meant, leaving 
open a wide range of interpretations 
reflected in the varying policies and 
practices of grantee communities.  Legal 
proceedings between grantees, HUD and 
the U.S. Department of Justice within 
the last 10 years have provided some 
clarification.

In August 2009, Westchester County, 
NY settled a fair housing lawsuit 
brought against the county by the Anti-
Discrimination Center of Metro New York, 
Inc.  This $180 million lawsuit charged 
that Westchester County, an urban 
county entitlement under HUD’s CDBG 
program, failed to fulfill its obligation 
to affirmatively further fair housing and 
ensure non-discrimination in its programs.  
At issue in the case was not whether 
Westchester County created affordable 
housing.  In fact, since 1998, the County 
spent more than $50 million in federal and 
state funds to aid in the construction of 
1,370 affordable rental units and another 
334 affordable owner units.  It was the 

4

geographic location of affordable housing 
units that were created within the county that 
was the critical factor in the lawsuit, as the 
Center alleged that the county increased the 
pattern of racial segregation in Westchester 
County.  Furthermore, the suit charged that 
the county violated its cooperation agreements 
with local units of government which prohibits 
expenditures of CDBG funds for activities in 
communities that do not affirmatively further 
fair housing within their jurisdiction or otherwise 
impede the county’s action to comply with its 
fair housing certifications.

Under the terms of the settlement, the County 
will pay $21.6 million to HUD in non-federal 
funds to be deposited in the county’s HUD 
account and used to build new affordable 
housing units in specified census tracts with 
populations of less than 3% Black and 7% 
Hispanic residents.  An additional $11 million 
will be paid to HUD, the Center and its counsel.  
The county will add $30 million to its capital 
budget to build affordable housing in non-
impacted (i.e., predominantly White) areas. 

In another example, HUD threatened in July 
2012 to withhold more than a half billion dollars 
in disaster recovery funds from the City of 
Galveston in response to the City’s refusal to 
rebuild 569 low-income housing units lost as 
a result of Hurricane Ike.  The City’s mayor, 
who had promised during his campaign not 
to rebuild the units, favored allocating rental 
vouchers to those displaced by the storm, which 
he said would allow residents to live “where 
they have job opportunities, which do not 
exist in Galveston.”  HUD argued that this was 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



effectively a means of limiting the affordable 
housing opportunities available in Galveston, 
a problem that would disproportionately affect 
members of the protected classes. The agency 
authorized $109 million in federal funds to 
replace the lost housing within the City in 
mixed-income developments, mandating that 
Galveston rebuild.

In August 2011, the U.S. Department of 
Justice filed a lawsuit against the City of Joliet, 
IL, alleging that the City violated the Fair 
Housing Act and Community Development Act 
by seizing via eminent domain an affordable 
housing development of 356 units, displacing 
750 residents, almost all of whom were Black.  
The Department argued that the displaced 
residents would have nowhere within the City fo 
live if the units were destroyed, due to the lack 
of affordable housing available locally and the 
absence of a “meaningful plan” to counteract 
the effects of the loss of units.  Therefore, 
according to the argument, the City’s actions 
would have the effect of limiting the number 
of Black residents within Joliet, perpetuating 
segregation.  The City’s Department of 
Economic and Community Development, 
which had administered more than $1 million 
in federal funds, was accused of violating 
Section 109 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act by its involvement in City 
actions to condemn the affordable housing 
development.

The significance of these proceedings for HUD 
grantee communities throughout the U.S., 
particularly urban county entitlements, is clear.  
First, the requirement to affirmatively further 

fair housing applies to all aspects of county 
government, not just HUD programs.  Second, 
an urban county has an obligation to ensure 
that each local unit of government within 
its boundary that participates in its federal 
programs affirmatively furthers fair housing.  
When an urban county makes this pledge to 
HUD, it is making the promise not just in its 
own right but also on behalf of each local unit 
of government in the county.  

This does not necessarily mean that each 
municipality must finance and develop 
affordable housing, but it does mean that 
no municipality may impede or obstruct the 
creation of such housing by other entities.  An 
urban county should provide CDBG and HOME 
funds to municipalities that affirmatively further 
fair housing.  Furthermore, an urban county 
should not provide CDBG or HOME funds to 
municipalities that impede fair housing as such 
actions undermine the urban county’s own 
obligation to affirmatively further fair housing.  

Finally, within the scope of its authority, an 
urban county must take action to eliminate 
barriers to fair housing wherever they may 
exist in the county.

5

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



c.  fair housing
      choice

6

Equal and free access to residential housing 
(housing choice) is a fundamental right that 
enables members of the protected classes to 
pursue personal, educational, employment or 
other goals.  Because housing choice is so 
critical to personal development, fair housing 
is a goal that government, public officials and 
private citizens must embrace if equality of 
opportunity is to become a reality.

The federal Fair Housing Act prohibits 
discrimination in housing based on a person’s 
race, color, religion, sex, disability, familial 
status or national origin.  Persons who are 
protected from discrimination by fair housing 
laws are referred to as members of the 
protected classes.

This Analysis encompasses the following five 
areas related to fair housing choice:

• The sale or rental of dwellings (public 
 and private)

• The provision of financing assistance  
 for dwellings

• Public policies and actions affecting  
 the approval of sites and other building 
 requirements used in the approval 
 process for the construction of publicly 
 assisted housing

• The administrative policies concerning 
 community development and housing  
 activities, which affect opportunities of 
 minority households to select   
 housing inside or outside areas of  
 minority concentration, and

• Where there is a determination   
 of unlawful segregation or other  
 housing discrimination by a court 
 or a finding of noncompliance by  
 the U.S. Department of Housing and  
 Urban Development (HUD) regarding  
 assisted housing in a recipient’s  
 jurisdiction, an analysis of the actions  
 which could be taken by the recipient  
 to remedy the discriminatory condition, 
 including actions involving the   
 expenditure of funds made available 
 under 24 CFR Part 570 (i.e., the CDBG 
 program regulations).

As a federal entitlement community, the 
Urban County of Travis County has specific 
fair housing planning responsibilities.  These 
include:

• Conducting an Analysis of Impediments 
 to Fair Housing Choice

• Developing actions to overcome  
 the effects of identified impediments to 
 fair housing, and

• Maintaining records to support the  
 jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively  
 further fair housing.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



7

HUD interprets these three certifying elements 
to include:

• Analyzing housing discrimination in a  
 jurisdiction and working toward its  
 elimination

• Promoting fair housing choice for all  
 people

• Providing racially and ethnically   
 inclusive patterns of housing
 occupancy

• Promoting housing that is physically  
 accessible to, and usable by, all  
 people, particularly individuals with  
 disabilities, and

• Fostering compliance with the   
 nondiscrimination provisions of the 
 Fair Housing Act.

This Analysis will:  

• Evaluate population, household,  
 income and housing characteristics by 
 protected classes in each of the   
 jurisdictions

• Evaluate public and private sector  
 policies that impact fair housing choice

• Identify blatant or de facto impediments 
 to fair housing choice where any may  
 exist, and

• Recommend specific strategies  
 to overcome the effects of any   
 identified impediments.

HUD defines an impediment to fair housing 
choice as any actions, omissions or decisions 
that restrict or have the effect of restricting the 
availability of housing choices, based on race, 
color, religion, sex, disability, familial status or 
national origin.

This Analysis serves as the basis for 
fair housing planning, provides essential 
information to policy makers, administrative 
staff, housing providers, lenders, and fair 
housing advocates, and assists in building 
public support for fair housing efforts.  The 
elected governmental bodies are expected to 
review and approve the Analysis and use it for 
direction, leadership and resources for future 
fair housing planning.

The Analysis will also serve as a point-in-
time baseline against which future progress in 
terms of implementing fair housing initiatives 
will be evaluated and recorded.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



8

c.  the federal 
      fair housing act

i. 
The federal Fair Housing Act covers most 
housing. In some circumstances, the Act 
exempts owner-occupied buildings with no 
more than four units, single family housing 
sold or rented without the use of a broker, 
and housing operated by organizations 
and private clubs that limit occupancy to 
members.

What does the Fair Housing Act 
prohibit?

a.  In the sale and rental of housing

What housing is covered?

ii. 

No one may take any of the following 
actions based on race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status or national 
origin:

• Refuse to rent or sell housing

• Refuse to negotiate for housing

• Make housing unavailable

• Deny a dwelling 

• Set different terms, conditions  
 or privileges for the sale or  
 rental of a dwelling 

• Provide different housing  
 services or facilities 

• Falsely deny that housing is  
 available for inspection, sale,         
 or rental 

• For profit, persuade owners to  
 sell or rent (blockbusting), or 

• Deny anyone access to or  
 membership in a facility or  
 service (such as a multiple  
 listing service) related to the  
 sale or rental of housing. 

b.  In mortgage lending

No one may take any of the following 
actions based on race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status or national 
origin:

• Refuse to make a mortgage loan

• Refuse to provide information   
 regarding loans

• Impose different terms or  
 conditions on a loan, such as  
 different interest rates, points  
 or fees

• Discriminate in appraising   
 property

• Refuse to purchase a loan, or

• Set different terms or   
 conditions for purchasing a  
 loan.

c.  Other prohibitions

It is illegal for anyone to:

• Threaten, coerce, intimidate or  
 interfere with anyone exercising  
 a fair housing right or assisting  
 others who exercise that right 

• Advertise or make any   
statement that indicates a 
limitation or preference based 
on race, color, religion, sex, 
disability, familial status, or 
national origin. This prohibition 
against discriminatory advertising 
applies to single family and 
owner-occupied housing that is 
otherwise exempt from the Fair 
Housing Act. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



9

Additional protections for 
people with disabilities

iii. 

If someone has a physical or mental 
disability (including hearing, mobility and 
visual impairments, chronic alcoholism, 
chronic mental illness, AIDS, AIDS 
Related Complex and mental retardation) 
that substantially limits one or more major 
life activities, or has a record of such a 
disability, or is regarded as having such a 
disability, a landlord may not:

• 

• 

Refuse to let the disabled person  
make reasonable modifications to 
a dwelling or common use areas, 
at the disabled person’s expense, 
if necessary for the disabled 
person to use the housing.  Where 
reasonable, the landlord may 
permit changes only if the disabled 
person agrees to restore the 
property to its original condition 
when he or she moves. 

Refuse to make reasonable 
accommodations in rules, policies, 
practices or services if necessary 
for the disabled person to use the 
housing.  For example, a building 
with a “no pets” policy must make 
a reasonable accommodation and 
allow a visually impaired tenant to 
keep a guide dog.

Housing opportunities for 
families with children

iv. 

Unless a building or community qualifies 
as housing for older persons, it may not 
discriminate based on familial status. That 
is, it may not discriminate against families 
in which one or more children under the 
age 18 live with:

• A parent or

• A person who has legal custody  
 of  the child or children or 

• The designee of the parent or   
 legal custodian, with the parent or  
 custodian’s written permission. 

Familial status protection also applies to 
pregnant women and anyone securing 
legal custody of a child under age 18.

Housing for older persons is exempt from 
the prohibition against familial status 
discrimination if:

• 

• It is occupied solely by persons   
 who are 62 or older, or 

• 

A transition period permits residents on or 
before September 13, 1988 to continue 
living in the housing, regardless of their 
age, without interfering with the exemption.

The HUD Secretary has 
determined that it is specifically   
designed for and occupied by  
elderly persons under a federal, 
state or local government   
program, or 

It houses at least one person who 
is 55 or older in at least 80% of the 
occupied units, and adheres to a 
policy that demonstrates the intent 
to house persons who are 55 or 
older, as previously described. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



10

d.  the texas 
      fair housing act

The Texas Fair Housing Act (TFHA), 
codified in Chapter 301 of the Texas 
Property Code, prohibits housing 
discrimination based on the same seven 
protected classes as the federal Fair 
Housing Act.  The TFHA covers most 
housing but in some circumstances, 
exempts owner-occupied buildings with 
no more than four units, single-family 
housing sold or rented without the use 
of a broker and housing operated by 
organizations and private clubs that limit 
occupancy to members.  

One distinction between the TFHA and 
national standards is the interpretation 
of disability.  Section 301.003(6) of the 
Property Code follows its definition of 
disability with specific exceptions that 
do not appear in the Fair Housing Act, 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or 
Rehabilitation Act:  “The term [disability] 
does not include current illegal use 
or addiction to any drug or illegal or 
federally controlled substance and does 
not apply to an individual because of an 
individual’s sexual orientation or because 
that individual is a transvestite.”  While 
persons currently with or recovering 
from substance abuse problems are 
considered to have a disability under 
both the ADA and the Fair Housing Act, 
Texas law is generally interpreted as 
not prohibiting discrimination against 
alcoholics or drug users in treatment or 
recovery.  National laws do not prohibit 
discrimination on the basis of sexual 
orientation or gender identity, but they 
also do not specifically exclude these 
categories.

The TFHA includes the same prohibitions 
involving the sale or rental of housing and 
mortgage lending as the federal Fair Housing 
Act.

The Texas Workforce Commission 
Civil Rights Division (TWCCRD) is the 
administrative agency tasked with overseeing 
the processing and investigation of fair 
housing complaints filed with the State of 
Texas.  TWCCRD was created by the Texas 
Commission on Human Rights Act, which 
charged the agency with enforcing the state’s 
anti-discrimination laws. 
 
State or local laws may be certified as 
substantially equivalent to the federal Fair 
Housing Act when the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
determines that the law provides rights, 
procedures, remedies and judicial review 
provisions that are substantially equivalent to 
the Act.  Currently, the TWCCRD participates 
in HUD’s Fair Housing Assistance Program 
(FHAP) by virtue of the Texas Fair Housing 
Act having been deemed substantially 
equivalent to the federal Fair Housing Act.  
TWCCRD’s participation allows the agency 
the opportunity to receive funding to support 
a variety of fair housing administrative and 
enforcement activities, including complaint 
processing, training, implementation of data 
and information systems and other special 
projects.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



e.  comparison of             
     accessibility  
     standards

11

There are several standards of accessibility 
referenced throughout the AI.  These 
standards are listed below along with 
a summary of the features within each 
category or a reference to the full set of 
detailed standards.

Fair Housing Acti. 

In buildings that are ready for first 
occupancy after March 13, 1991 and 
include four or more units:

• There must be an accessible   
 entrance on an accessible route.

• Public and common areas   
 must be accessible to persons   
 with disabilities 

• Doors and hallways must be wide  
 enough for wheelchairs 

• All ground floor units and all units  
 in elevator buildings must have: 

 aAn accessible route into and   
     through the unit 

 aAccessible light switches,   
     electrical outlets, thermostats   
     and other environmental    
     controls 

 aReinforced bathroom walls to   
     allow later installation of grab   
     bars, and 

 aKitchens and bathrooms that   
         can be used by people in   
     wheelchairs. 

If a building with four or more units has 
no elevator and will be ready for first 
occupancy after March 13, 1991, these 
standards apply to ground floor units.  
These requirements for new buildings do 
not replace any more stringent standards 
in state or local law.

Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA)

ii. 

Title II of the ADA applies to state and local 
services, including state and local housing 
programs.  Government entities are obliged 
to assure that housing financed through 
state and local programs complies with 
ADA accessibility guidelines.  A complete 
description of the guidelines can be found 
at www.ada.gov/stdspdf.htm.

Uniform Federal Accessibility 
Standards (UFAS)

iii. 

UFAS accessibility standards are required 
for facility accessibility by people with motor 
and sensory disabilities for Federal and 
federally-funded facilities. These standards 
are to be applied during the design, 
construction, and alteration of buildings 
and facilities to the extent required by 
the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as 
amended.  A complete description of the 
guidelines can be found at www.access-
board.gov/ufas/ufas-html/ufas.htm.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



12

Visitability Standardsiv. 

The term “visitability” refers to single-
family housing designed in such a way 
that it can be lived in or visited by people 
with disabilities. A house is visitable when 
it meets three basic requirements: 

• At least one no-step entrance 

• Doors and hallways wide   
 enough to navigate a wheelchair  
 through, and 

• A bathroom on the first floor   
 large enough to allow a person   
 in a wheelchair to enter and close     
 the door. 

Universal Designv. 

Universal design is the design of products 
and environments to be usable by all 
people, to the greatest extent possible, 
without adaptation or specialized design.  
Seven principles guide Universal Design.  
These include:

• Equitable use (e.g., make the   
 design appealing to all users)

• Flexibility in use (e.g.,   
 accommodate right- or left- 
 handed use)

• Simple and intuitive use  
 (e.g.,  eliminate unnecessary  
 complexity)

• Perceptible information (e.g.,   
 provide compatibility with   
 a variety of techniques or   
 devices used by people with   
 sensory limitations)

• Tolerance for error (e.g., provide  
 fail-safe features)

• Low physical effort (e.g.,   
 minimize repetitive actions)

• Size and space for approach   
 and use (e.g., accommodate   
 variations in hand and grip size).

f.  methodology
The firm of Mullin & Lonergan Associates, 
Inc. (M&L) was retained as consultants 
to conduct the Analysis of Impediments 
to Fair Housing Choice.  M&L utilized a 
comprehensive approach to complete the 
Analysis involving the Urban County of 
Travis County.  The following sources were 
utilized:

• 

• 

• 

•

• 

• 

• 

• 

•

•

•

The most recently available 
demographic data regarding 
population, household, housing, 
income, and employment at the 
census tract and municipal level

Public policies affecting the siting 
and development of housing  

Administrative policies concerning 
housing and community development  

Financial lending institution data 
from the Home Mortgage Disclosure 
Act (HMDA) database

Agencies that provide housing and 
housing related services to members 
of the protected classes 

The Consolidated Plan, Annual 
Plans and CAPERs for the Urban 
County

Fair housing complaints filed with 
HUD and the Texas Workforce 
Commission Civil Rights Division 

Real estate advertisements from 
area newspapers of record

Historic race and ethnicity data and 
shapefiles from a National Historic 
GIS, a project of the University of 
Minnesota Population Center

The Geography of Opportunity 
report and shapefiles created for the 
Austin region through a collaborative 
project with the Kirwan Institute

Interviews conducted with agencies 
and organizations that provide 
housing and housing related services 
to members of the protected classes.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



13

g.  analytical approach
Fair housing choice is defined as the ability 
of persons, regardless of race, color, 
religion, sex, disability, familial status, or 
national origin, of similar income levels to 
have available to them the same housing 
choices. This AI analyzes a range of fair 
housing issues regardless of a person’s 
income. To the extent that members of the 
protected classes, those who are protected 
from discrimination by fair housing laws, 
tend to have lower incomes, then access to 
fair housing is related to affordable housing. 
In many areas across the U.S., a primary 
impediment to fair housing is a relative 
absence of affordable housing. Often, 
however, the public policies implemented 
in towns and cities create, or contribute 
to, the lack of affordable housing in these 
communities, thereby disproportionately 
affecting housing choice for members of 
the protected classes. 

This document goes well beyond an 
analysis of the adequacy of affordable 
housing in Travis County. This AI defines 
the relative presence of members of the 
protected classes within the context of 
factors that influence the ability of the 
protected classes to achieve equal access 
to housing and related services. 

Throughout this report, emphasis is placed 
on the Urban County rather than on the 
entire county of Travis County.  The Urban 
County of Travis County includes all of the 
unincorporated area within Travis County 
and one incorporated place, the Village of 
Webberville.  The Urban County CDBG 
program does not currently include any 
other incorporated cities or villages.  This 
analysis includes includes data on those 
areas for purposes of comparison.  

In all cases, the latest available data was 
used to describe the most appropriate 
geographic unit of analysis.  In most 
cases, 2010 Census data and 2010 
American Community Survey (ACS) were 
available and incorporated into this report.  
Where the margin of error for block group 
estimates was unacceptably high due to 
small sample size, census tract data has 
been used.

H.  DEVELOPMENT OF THE AI
Within the Department of Health and Human 
Services and Veterans Services, the Travis 
County CDBG Office was the lead agency 
for the preparation and implementation 
of the AI.  The CDBG staff identified and 
invited numerous stakeholders to participate 
in the process for the purpose of developing 
a thorough analysis with a practical set of 
recommendations to eliminate impediments 
to fair housing choice, where identified.

The County engaged in a consultation 
process with local public agencies, nonprofit 
organizations and other interested entities in 
an effort to develop a community planning 
process for the AI.  A series of written 
questionnaires were mailed to many of the 
interviewees and detailed lists of issues 
were developed for the focus group sessions 
and interviews.

During the week of June 12, 2012, the 
consulting team conducted a series of focus 
group sessions and individual interviews to 
identify current fair housing issues impacting 
the various agencies and organizations 
and their clients. Comments received 
through these meetings and interviews 
are incorporated throughout the AI, where 
appropriate.

Public meetings were held at two separate 
sites on consecutive evenings to solicit 
comment on fair housing issues.  While no 
members of the public attended a meeting 
on June 12 at the West Rural Community 
Center, several residents participated in 
a meeting at the South Rural Community 
Center on June 13.  Public notices 
announcing the meeting were distributed in 
English and Spanish among social service 
providers and posted in well-trafficked public 
locations.  Translators were available at both 
meetings.

A completed draft of the AI will be placed 
on public display at various community 
locations and online for 30 days, during 
which time stakeholders and members of the 
public will be invited to review the analysis 
and submit any comments.  Any comments 
received will be addressed in an appendix to 
this document.  Notice of the public display 
period will be disseminated according to the 
County’s Citizen Participation Plan.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



14

3 Demographic and 
Housing Market 
Conditions

Beyond the continually broadening borders 
of the City of Austin, Travis County continues 
to experience rapid population growth that 
increasingly demands the conscious effort of 
balance.  As land historically spanned by farms 
and ranches gives way to the development of 
livable neighborhoods, community interests 
and individual property rights are more often 
at odds.  The limited public resources available 
for investment in water, sewer, road and other 
infrastructure demand equitable and strategic 
distribution.  The demographic characteristics 
of the County’s population continue to shift 
in ways driven by the local and national 
economy and housing market.  These and 
other conditions present an opportunity for 
unprecedented integration, as Travis County’s 
policies concerning fair housing are now more 
critical than ever to the developing identities of 
its communities.  

Racial integration in Travis County was spurred 
by the outcome of Sweatt v. Painter, a 1950 
U.S. Supreme Court decision that rejected 
the prevalent “separate but equal” doctrine 
by requiring the University of Texas to fully 
integrate its Black students.  The case paved 
the way for the Court’s Brown v. Board of 
Education ruling four years later that declared 

segregated public schools to be illegal.  At that 
point, public schools in Travis County began 
to integrate.  In addition to Black residents, 
Hispanic residents fought discrimination in 
the 1960s and 1970s, though some measure 
of success became clear as minorities were 
represented in government. Blacks and 
Hispanics became school board members, 
state representatives, city councilors and Travis 
County Commissioners during the late 1960s 
through the 1970s.1   During AI interviews, 
stakeholders referred generally to a crescent-
shaped pattern of minority (traditionally Black) 
concentration.  This section of the report will 
explore and characterize such patterns.

Like all county governments in Texas, Travis 
County is authorized to exercise only limited 
authority over development regulation.  This 
has allowed for land consumption to proceed 
mostly unfettered in unincorporated areas, 
which is where a large portion of population 
growth during the last decade has occurred.   
A perceived freedom from land use controls 
represents a selling point for some households 
moving out of the City of Austin.2   In 1980, 
about 85% of Travis County residents lived 
in Austin, compared to  less than 74% in 
2010.  The decline comes in spite of the city’s 
considerably aggressive annexation policies 
during those years.  While population has 
continued to stream into the widening city, the  
net influx has been even greater in northern 
and southern suburbs and near Lake Travis.

1  Smyrl, Vivian Elizabeth. Handbook of Texas Online (www.tshaonline.org/handbook/online/articles/hct08), July 2012. Pub-
lished by the Texas State Historical Association.  
2 “Travis County Land Use Authority: Draft Report.”  Commissioners Court, July 2008.  Prepared by NuStats, Austin, Texas.

Overview of 
Settlement Patterns

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Population Trends

Travis County led all Texas counties in 
population growth between 2000 and 2010, 
notching a gain of 26.1% during the decade.  
This rate outpaced the remarkable 20.6% 
increase in total population statewide, which 
was driven primarily by minorities.  Texas’ non-
White population accounted for about 90% 
of its net gain in residents since 2000, with 
Hispanics alone accounting for 65%.3

In total, the number of people living in Travis 
County has more than tripled since 1970, 
reflecting a population boom that has endured 
across the entire five-county Austin-Round 
Rock metropolitan statistical area (MSA).  
Since 1970, the MSA has decenially gained 
residents at a rate near or exceeding 40%.  
A higher rate across the more rural MSA 
compared to Travis County, especially since 
2000, indicates that rural areas are growing 
more rapidly than the urban core.

3  Ramsey, Ross, et al.  “Minorities Drove Texas Growth, Census Figures Show.” Texas Tribune, February 18, 2011.
4 As explained in the introduction, federal CDBG entitlement areas comprising the Urban County currently include 
unincorporated space and the Village of Webberville.

The overall population 
boom since 2000 
reflects steady gain in 
the urban core outpaced 
by rapid growth across 
unincorporated areas of 
the County.

15

Figure 3-1
Decennial Population Change, 1970-2010

1970 1980 10-Year 
Change

1990 10-Year 
Change

2000 10-Year 
Change

2010 10-Year 
Change

% Change 
1970 - 2010

Urban Travis County* 125,218 179,287 43.2%
Travis County 295,516 419,573 42.0% 576,407 37.4% 812,280 40.9% 1,024,266 26.1% 246.6%
Austin-Round Rock MSA** 398,938 585,051 46.7% 846,227 44.6% 1,249,763 47.7% 1,716,289 37.3% 330.2%
State of Texas 11,198,655 14,225,513 27.0% 16,986,510 19.4% 20,851,820 22.8% 25,145,561 20.6% 124.5%

* Includes all unincorporated space plus Webberville.  Populations of incorporated place parts within county unavailable prior to 2000.

Source:  U.S. Census Bureau

**The definition of the MSA containing Austin changed in 2003 when the Austin-San Marcos MSA became the Austin-Round Rock MSA. All data is based 
on the 2005 MSA (CBSA) definition.

Urban Travis County currently includes all 
unincorporated space plus the Village of 
Webberville.4  In 2010, the Urban County 
represented 179,287 residents and 17.5% 
of the total population in Travis County.  The 
Urban County’s population swelled 42.9% 
during the last 10 years, indicating expansion 
of a much greater magnitude in unincorporated 
space than in Austin and other cities and 
towns.  For comparison, across incorporated 
places only, the population grew 23%.  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



16

Figure 3-2
Population Change by Municipality, 2000-2010

Municipality 2000 2010
Austin city* 644,752 754,691
Bee Cave village 656 3,925
Briarcliff village 895 1,438
Cedar Park city 541 489
Creedmoor city 211 202
Elgin city 33 909
Jonestown city 1,681 1,834
Lago Vista city 4,507 6,041
Lakeway city 8,002 11,391
Leander city 0 1,077
Manor city 1,204 5,037
Mustang Ridge city 409 434
Pflugerville city 16,335 46,636
Point Venture village - 800
Rollingwood city 1,403 1,412
Round Rock city 1,076 1,362
San Leanna village 384 497
Sunset Valley city 365 749
The Hills village 1,492 2,472
Volente village - 520
Webberville village** - 392
West Lake Hills city 3,116 3,063
Total Incorporated Areas 687,062 845,371
Total Unincorporated Areas 125,218 178,895
Total Travis County 812,280 1,024,266
* Federal CDBG entitlement community
** Participates in Urban County program

Source:  Census 2000, 2010

Note:  Population figures account for only the portions 
of each place that fall within Travis County.

Differences in population stability, shown in 
Figure 3-2, are less apparent at the municipal 
level due to changes in incorporation status 
and municipal boundaries.  Point Venture, 
Volente and Webberville were not counted 
by the Census Bureau as places in 2000, 
though they exist in 2010 data.  Leander is 
largely in Williamson County, though 1,077 
of it residents were counted in Travis County 
in 2010, suggesting community expansion. 
Large net gains prevailed.

Map 3-1 illustrates the shift in total population 
distribution that occurred between 1990 and 
2010.  Municipal boundaries, in this map 
and throughout the document, represent 
Census Bureau records and may not reflect 
annexations that have occurred since 2010. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



1990

2010

!

!

!

! 1 Dot = 100
! TOTAL

Incorporated Places

map 3-1
Density Distribution of Total Population 
by Block Group, 1990 and 2010

Source:  Census SF-1

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



18

Since 2000, a gain in the raw number of White 
residents across Travis County has outpaced 
the gain among non-Whites, especially in the 
City of Austin.  The number of White persons 
living in Travis County grew by 155,756 
(28.1%), compared to a gain of 56,230 
(21.8%) among non-Whites.  Racial minorities 
constituted 30.7% of all County residents in 
2010, whereas they constituted 31.8% in 2000.  

It is worth noting that this White population 
growth includes some people who are Hispanic, 
because the Census counts origin and race as 
separate categories.  The 2010 Census form 
asked respondents to identify their race and 
whether or not they are Hispanic, noting that 
“Hispanic origins are not races.”  Generally 
speaking, most people choosing “some other 
race” are Hispanic, but many Hispanic people 
alternately identify themselves as White, Black 
or another race.

By any measure, the areas within the CDBG 
jurisdiction of Travis County have become far 
more diverse during the last 10 years.  Of the 
net increase of 56,230 non-White persons 

living across all of Travis County since 2000, 
41.5% were found in unincorporated areas 
or Webberville.  In total, the number of non-
White residents in the Urban County climbed 
from 26,690 in 2000, representing 21.5% of the 
total, to 50,296 in 2010, representing 28.1% of 
all Urban County dwellers.  

The juxtaposition of a growing White population 
in the City of Austin and growing non-White 
populations in its suburbs suggests the appeal 
of comparatively affordable options outside of 
the city for racial minority households, which 
typically have access to a range of housing 
options limited by lower household incomes.  
This generalization will be further explored later 
in this section of the AI, but was corroborated 
by AI interviews reporting a trend of reverse 
White flight, “bright flight,” describing Austin 
as a destination attractive to wealthy young 
professionals who drive up housing demand 
and, therefore, price.  Anecdotally, this is clear 
in the transformation of East Austin, where 
neighborhoods that were once affordable, 
isolated Black and/or Hispanic enclaves 
rapidly gentrified into “hipster havens” where 
minorities can no longer afford to live.5

Figure 3-3
Racial and Ethnic Population Composition, 2000-2010

# % # %
Urban Travis County* 125,218 100.0% 179,287 100.0%
    White 98,258 78.5% 128,991 71.9%
    Non-White 26,960 21.5% 50,296 28.1%
            Black 7,878 6.3% 15,443 8.6%
            Asian/Pacific Islander 5,502 20.4% 10,405 5.8%
            American Indian 720 0.6% 1,343 0.7%
            Some other race 9,917 7.9% 17,518 9.8%
            Two or more races 2,943 2.4% 5,587 3.1%
    Hispanic*** 24,777 19.8% 51,774 28.9%
Total Travis County 812,280 100.0% 1,024,266 100.0%
    White 554,058 68.2% 709,814 69.3%
    Non-White 258,222 31.8% 314,452 30.7%
            Black 75,247 9.3% 87,308 8.5%
            Asian/Pacific Islander 36,845 4.5% 60,051 5.9%
            American Indian 4,684 0.6% 8,555 0.8%
            Some other race 118,294 14.6% 124,706 12.2%
            Two or more races 23,152 2.9% 33,832 3.3%
    Hispanic*** 229,048 28.2% 342,766 33.5%

* Includes all unincorporated space and the village of Webberville.
** This category was not recorded in the 1990 Census.
*** Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.
Source:  Census 2000 and 2010 SF1

2000 2010

5 Smithson, Cate. “Extreme Makeover: Gentrification Transforms East Austin.”  ABC News, April 27, 2009.  Online:   
http://abcnews.go.com/OnCampus/story?id=7399717&page=1#.UD_FMSIvmWQ

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



19

As of 2010, more than one-third of all people 
living in Travis County were Hispanic, 
compared to 21.1% in 1990.   Blacks represent 
a decreasing share of the minority population, 
accounting for 8.5% of all County residents in 
2010, compared to 11% in 1990.  These trends 
are illustrated in Figures 3-4 and 3-5. 

Hispanics account for a smaller share of 
residents (28.9%) in the Urban County than in 
Travis County as a whole.  The share of Blacks 
increased from 6.3% of the total population in 
2000 to 8.6% in 2010. 

Hispanics represent 
the Urban County’s 
largest minority group, 
accounting for 28.9% of 
the total population in 
2010.

Figure 3-4
Expansion of Diversity among Travis County Racial Minorities, 1990-2010

Figure 3-5
Changes in Travis County’s Hispanic Population , 1990-2010

50%

75%

100%

All Other Races

Asian/Pacific 
Islander

0%

25%

1990 2000 2010

Black

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

Hispanic

Non-Hispanic

60%

65%

70%

75%

1990 2000 2010

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



20

Figure 3-6 presents a breakdown of population 
by race and ethnicity in 2000 and 2010 for parts 
of incorporated places that are within Travis 
County.  Some particular changes during that 
decade are worth note, such as the increase 
of 94,604 White residents in the Travis County 
portion of Austin as the City gained 72,224 
Hispanic residents and lost  2,940 Black 
residents.  Of Pflugerville’s net gain of 30,301 
citizens, 33.6% were Hispanic; 18.8% were 
Black. 

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

18

3

12

15

31

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Studying the distribution of population by race 
and ethnicity across the County in years prior to 
2000 is difficult in tabular format, due primarily to 
changing geographic boundaries (both Census 
definitions and local border changes).  Map 3-2 
is a time series comparing the proportion of Black 
persons across tracts from 1970 to 2010, tracing 
distributional patterns across decades.  Map 3-3 
is a similar time series for the Hispanic population, 
but dates only back to 1980, the first Census for 
which data on the “Spanish origin” population 
was available.  These historic patterns provide 
some context for the current areas of racial and 
ethnic concentration presented in later maps.

Reference Map
Places within 
Travis County

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



21

2000 2010 2000 2010 2000 2010 2000 2010
Austin city* 644,752 754,691 419,437 514,041 65,308 62,368 30,325 45,075
Bee Cave village 656 3,925 618 3,435 0 51 1 216
Briarcliff village 895 1,438 853 1,377 4 4 4 7
Cedar Park city 541 489 400 358 42 35 36 28
Creedmoor city 211 202 168 140 2 0 0 0
Elgin city 33 909 22 552 1 201 0 10
Jonestown city 1,681 1,834 1,551 1,651 17 15 7 29
Lago Vista city 4,507 6,041 4,237 5,574 38 73 30 39
Lakeway city 8,002 11,391 7,713 10,521 64 111 69 368
Leander city 0 1,077 0 977 0 20 0 40
Manor city 1,204 5,037 640 2,298 204 1,389 1 75
Mustang Ridge city 409 434 273 311 22 9 3 0
Pflugerville city 16,335 46,636 12,607 29,930 1,545 7,233 704 3,437
Point Venture village - 800 - 757 - 7 - 8
Rollingwood city 1,403 1,412 1,347 1,341 0 0 32 33
Round Rock city 1,076 1,362 821 794 92 283 74 75
San Leanna village 384 497 348 451 3 8 2 10
Sunset Valley city 365 749 336 628 0 10 5 59
The Hills village 1,492 2,472 1,450 2,325 18 37 10 52
Volente village - 520 - 477 - 4 - 19
Webberville village** - 392 - 336 - 32 - 1
West Lake Hills city 3,116 3,063 2,979 2,885 9 7 40 66
Total Incorporated Areas 687,062 845,371 455,800 581,159 67,369 71,897 31,343 49,647
Travis County 812,280 1,024,266 554,058 709,814 75,247 87,308 36,845 60,051
Unincorporated Areas 125,218 178,895 98,258 128,655 7,878 15,411 5,502 10,404
Urban County 125,218 179,287 98,258 128,991 7,878 15,443 5,502 10,405

Total Population White Black Asian

2000 2010 2000 2010 2000 2010 2000 2010
Austin city* 3,835 6,700 106,484 101,050 19,363 25,457 199,126 271,350
Bee Cave village 1 14 23 86 13 123 50 407
Briarcliff village 1 4 20 24 13 22 66 94
Cedar Park city 1 7 39 40 23 21 77 110
Creedmoor city 0 2 35 56 6 4 100 114
Elgin city 0 10 5 97 5 39 18 315
Jonestown city 7 11 60 84 42 44 161 239

Two+ Races Hispanic*Native American Other

Lago Vista city 12 38 114 195 76 122 355 710
Lakeway city 10 30 69 125 77 236 337 836
Leander city 0 6 0 13 0 21 0 72
Manor city 18 48 316 1,001 25 226 587 2,395
Mustang Ridge city 20 2 81 107 10 5 213 292
Pflugerville city 39 289 993 4,053 447 1,694 2,727 12,907
Point Venture village - 2 - 17 - 9 - 66
Rollingwood city 3 3 7 7 14 28 69 92
Round Rock city 2 5 68 142 19 63 139 405
S  L  ill 0 0 22 19 9 9 48 104San Leanna village 0 0 22 19 9 9 48 104
Sunset Valley city 1 3 17 30 6 19 45 133
The Hills village 5 19 2 16 7 23 33 158
Volente village - 1 - 8 - 11 - 41
Webberville village** - 1 - 20 - 2 - 192
West Lake Hills city 9 18 22 18 57 69 120 152
Total Incorporated Areas 3,964 7,213 108,377 107,208 20,212 28,247 204,271 291,184
Travis County 4,684 8,555 118,294 124,706 118,294 33,832 229,048 342,766
Unincorporated Areas 720 1,342 9,917 17,498 98,082 5,585 24,777 51,582
Urban County 720 1 343 9 917 17 518 98 082 5 587 24 777 51 774Urban County 720 1,343 9,917 17,518 98,082 5,587 24,777 51,774
* Federal CDBG entitlement community
** Participates in Urban County program
Note:  Population figures account for only the portions of each place that fall within Travis County.
Source:  Census 2000, 2010

Figure 3-6
Municipal Population by Race and Ethnicity, 2000 and 2010

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



1 Dot = 100

BLK

Incorporated Places

1980

1970

map 3-2
Black Population Distribution 
by Tract, 1960-2010

1 Dot = 100

BLK

Incorporated Places

1990

2000

2010

1 Dot = 100

BLK

Incorporated Places

1980

1970

1 Dot = 100

BLK

Incorporated Places

1980

1970

1 dot = 100 Black residents

Source:  Minnesota Population Center. 
National Historical Geographic Information 
System: Version 2.0. Minneapolis, MN: 
University of Minnesota 2011.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



23

1 Dot = 100

HISP

Incorporated Places

1990

2000

2010

1 dot = 100 Hispanic residents

map 3-3
Hispanic Population Distribution 
by Tract, 1980-2010

Source:  Minnesota Population Center. 
National Historical Geographic Information 
System: Version 2.0. Minneapolis, MN: 
University of Minnesota 2011.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis County’s Consolidated Plan for FY 2011-
2013 establishes a threshold for defining areas 
of racial or ethnic concentration: A concentrated 
area is any in which the percentage of a 
single ethnic or minority group is at least 10 
percentage points higher than across the 
County overall.  For purposes of the AI, census 
block groups were determined to be the most 
appropriate unit of analysis, and countywide 
minority group thresholds were determined to 
identify a manageable number of concentrated 
areas in the Urban County.  (In cases where 
whole County and Urban County thresholds 
differ more substantially than they do here, it is 
possible that selecting the former would result 
in few or no rural areas of concentration.)

Across Travis County in 2010, Blacks 
comprised 8.5% of the population.  Therefore, 
an area of Black concentration would include 
any block group where the percentage of 
Black residents is 18.5% or higher.  Of the 87 
block groups across the Urban County, seven 

(8%) met this criterion, all of which were also 
areas of Hispanic concentration.  An area of 
Asian concentration, by the same definition, 
would include any tract where the percentage 
of Asian residents is 15.9% or higher.  Of the 
87 block groups in the Urban County, two met 
this criterion.  In Hispanic-concentrated block 
groups, at least 43.5% of the population is 
Hispanic.  Of 87 total unincorporated block 
groups, 20 (23%) met this definition.

The CDBG program includes a statutory 
requirement that at least 70% of funds 
invested benefit low and moderate income 
(LMI) persons.  As a result, HUD provides the 
percentage of LMI persons in each census 
block group for entitlements such as Travis 
County.  Travis County invests its CDBG 
funds primarily in areas where the percentage 
LMI persons is 45.14% or higher (LMI areas). 
Generally, the LMI percentage required for 
CDBG eligibility is 51%.  However, due to a 
more affluent population in some areas of the 
County, HUD has established an “exception 
criteria” that lowers the LMI percentage 
requirement for Travis County to 45.14%.  

Map 3-4 displays the distribution of racially 
and/or ethnically concentrated block groups 
in the Urban County.  Map 3-5 shows block 
groups where at least 45.14% of persons 
are considered low- or moderate-income by 
HUD standards.  Map 3-6 compares the block 
groups meeting those criteria with LMI block 
groups, demonstrating the large extent to which 
they overlap.  Map 3-7 isolates block groups 
meeting both criteria, which will be referred to 
as impacted areas in other sections of the AI.  

Racial and/or Ethnic 
Concentrations

There are 22 racially and/
or ethnically concentrated 
LMI block groups in the 
Urban County, most of 
which qualify as low- and 
moderate income (LMI).

24

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



25

Figure 3-7
Racially and/or Ethnically Concentrated Areas, 2010

Black Asian Hispanic
1,024,266 8.5% 5.9% 33.5%
179,287 8.6% 5.8% 28.9%

Manchaca 1772 2 1,787 4.0% 4.2% 53.3%
NE of Austin 1840 1 4,713 16.0% 6.7% 51.8%
South of Pflugerville 1841 1 8,097 16.8% 18.8% 37.0%
NE of Austin 1841 2 2,024 2.8% 2.4% 61.3%
Windemere 1851 1 2,227 10.5% 17.8% 21.9%
Eastern Austin border 2201 1 1,080 47.9% 0.6% 46.9%
Eastern Austin border 2202 3 4,447 33.8% 0.2% 58.9%
Hornsby Bend/Webberville 2207 1 2,846 18.6% 0.2% 66.0%
Hornsby Bend/Webberville 2207 2 5,533 28.2% 0.9% 55.3%
South of Elgin 2209 1 3,077 28.1% 0.9% 51.3%
South of Manor 2209 2 2,721 19.6% 0.8% 49.5%
North of Webberville 2210 2 2,462 4.6% 0.3% 55.8%
Eastern Austin border 2212 1 567 21.7% 0.9% 57.8%
Eastern Austin border 2310 2 2,484 8.8% 0.2% 78.1%
Southern Austin border 2426 1 6,182 11.0% 1.5% 70.6%
Southern Austin border 2428 2 4,097 6.3% 1.9% 47.7%
North of Creedmoor 2432 2 968 1.8% 0.8% 75.2%
Garfield/Webberville 2433 1 1,793 5.0% 0.2% 48.4%
Garfield 2433 2 4,188 13.3% 2.1% 67.4%
South of Creedmoor 2434 1 1,718 4.6% 1.1% 57.3%
SE of Austin 2435 2 5,036 12.6% 1.4% 72.3%
North of Mustang Ridge 2436 1 2,672 3.7% 0.4% 73.0%

*Includes all unincorporated space and the village of Webberville.
Source:  2010 Census SF-1

Urban County*

Vicinity Tract Block 
Group Population Race and Ethnicity

Travis County

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



map 3-4
Areas of Racial and/or Ethnic Concentration, 2010

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

Black AND Hispanic Concentration

Black Concentration

Hispanic Concentration

Asian Concentration

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Incorporated Places

Source:  2010 Census SF-1

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

Block Groups > 45.14% LMI

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere 27

map 3-5
Block Groups of at Least 45.14% LMI, 2010

Incorporated Places

Source:  2012 HUD LMI Estimates

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



map 3-6
Comparison of LMI and Racially/Ethnically
Concentrated Block Groups, 2010

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

Block Groups > 45.14% LMI

Black AND Hispanic Concentration

Asian AND Black Concentration

Black Concentration

Hispanic Concentration

Asian Concentration

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Incorporated Places

Sources:  2010 Census SF-1,
2012 HUD LMI Estimates

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



map 3-7
Impacted Block Groups, 2010

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Incorporated Places

29

Sources:  2010 Census SF-1,
2012 HUD LMI Estimates

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



30

Residential segregation is a measure of the 
degree of separation of racial or ethnic groups 
living in a neighborhood or community.  Typically, 
the pattern of residential segregation involves 
the existence of predominantly homogenous, 
White suburban communities and low-income 
minority inner-city neighborhoods.  Latent 
factors, such as attitudes, or overt factors, such 
as real estate practices, can limit the range of 
housing opportunities for minorities.  A lack 
of racial or ethnic integration in a community 
creates other problems, such as reinforcing 

prejudicial attitudes and behaviors, narrowing 
opportunities for interaction, and reducing the 
degree to which community life is considered 
harmonious.  Areas of extreme minority 
isolation often experience poverty and social 
problems at rates that are disproportionately 
high.6   Racial segregation has been linked 
to diminished employment prospects, poor 
educational attainment, increased infant and 
adult mortality rates and increased homicide 
rates.

Figure 3-8
Travis County Dissimilarity Indices, 2000 and 2010

6 This aspect of segregation is related to the degree to which members of a group reside in areas where their group pre-
dominates, thus leading them to have less residential contact with other groups.  See: Fossett, Mark. “Racial Segregation 
in America: A Nontechnical Review of Residential Segregation in Urban Areas.” Department of Sociology and Racial and 
Ethnic Studies Institute, Texas A&M University, 2004.
7 The index of dissimilarity is a commonly used demographic tool for measuring inequality. For a given geographic area, 
the index is equal to 1/2 the sum of ABS [(b/B)-(a/A)], where b is the subgroup population of a census tract, B is the total 
subgroup population in a city, a is the majority population of a census tract, and A is the total majority population in the city. 
ABS refers to the absolute value of the calculation that follows.

Quantifying 
Integration

White
Black
American Indian
Asian/Pacific Islander
Other
Two or More Races
Hispanic**
Total

White
Black
American Indian*
Asian/Pacific Islander
Other
Two or More Races
Hispanic**
Total

** Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.
Source:  Census 2000 and 2010 SF1, Mullin & Lonergan Associates

20
10

20
00

- 812,280 100.0%

40.6 36,845 4.5%
50.9 118,294 14.6%

37.2 4,684 0.6%

DI with White 
Population

Share of Total 
Population

- 554,058 68.2%

* In these cases, sample size is too small to reliably interpret the DI.  Caution should be 
exercised in interpreting results for subpopulations of fewer than 1,000.

27.2 23,152 2.9%
44.0 229,048 28.2%

53.0 75,247 9.3%

Population

47.0 124,706 12.2%

38.5
3.3%

342,766 33.5%
21.4 33,832

DI with White 
Population Population

87,308 8.5%

41.5

Share of Total 
Population

- 709,814 69.3%

- 1,024,266 100.0%

60,051 5.9%
36.1 8,555 0.8%
48.6

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



The distribution of racial or ethnic groups across 
a geographic area can be analyzed using an 
index of dissimilarity.  This method allows 
for comparisons between subpopulations, 
indicating how much one group is spatially 
separated from another within a community.  
The index of dissimilarity is rated on a scale 
from 0 to 100, in which a score of 0 corresponds 
to perfect integration and a score of 100 
represents total segregation.7   The index is 
typically interpreted as the percentage of the 
minority population (in this instance, the Black 
population) that would have to move in order 
for a community or neighborhood to achieve 
full integration. 

With a 2010 White-Black dissimilarity index of 
48.6, Travis County qualifies as moderately 
segregated by national standards.8  The data 
indicates that in order to achieve full integration 
among White and Black residents, 48.6% of 
one subpopulation or the other would have to 
move to another tract within the County.

Figure 3-9
Changes in Racial and Ethnic Integration, 1960-2010

8 According to Douglas S. Massey, an index under 30 is low, between 30 and 60 is moderate, and above 60 is high. See 
Massey, “Origins of Economic Disparities: The Historical Role of Housing Segregation,” in Segregation: The Rising Costs 
for America, edited by James H. Carr and Nandinee K. Kutty (New York: Routledge 2008) p. 41-42.

Though integration has 
increased during the 
last 10 years, Travis 
County’s Black and 
Hispanic populations 
remain moderately 
segregated from its 
White population.

In addition to a White-Black index of 48.6, the 
County has a White-other race index of 50.9, 
a White-Asian index of 41.5, a White-Hispanic 
index of 38.5, a White-American Indian index 
of 36.1 and a low White-multi-race index of 
21.4.  These numbers indicate that some 
subpopulations are more integrated with 
Whites than Blacks across the County.  

31

Population DI Population DI Population DI
2000 75,247 53.0 36,845 40.6 229,048 44.0
2010 87,308 48.6 60,051 41.5 342,766 38.5

Black Asian Hispanic

Source:  Census SF1, Mullin & Lonergan Associates

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



32

Race/Ethnicity 
and Income

Figure 3-10
Median Household Income and 
Poverty Rates by Race/Ethnicity, 2010

Household income is one of several factors 
used to determine a household’s eligibility for 
a home mortgage loan. The median household 
income (MHI) in Travis County was $54,074 in 
2010, above the state median of $48,259 and 
the national median of $51,914.  Collin County, 
in the Dallas-Fort Worth metropolitan area, 
had the highest median in the state in 2010 at 
$77,671.  Generally, median income levels are 
lower in counties along the state’s southern 
border and much higher in the suburban 
counties surrounding major cities.  

Across racial and ethnic groups in Travis 
County, Whites had the highest MHI at 
$60,809. The  MHI for Asian households was 
$59,690.   It was substantially lower for Blacks 
and Hispanics, at $36,227 and $40,948, 
respectively.  

As suggested by the lower median incomes 
among these groups, minority residents in 
Travis County experienced poverty at greater 
rates than White residents. Less than 13% of 
White residents were living in poverty in 2010, 
compared with 24.7% of Hispanics and 24.6% 
of Blacks. Asian households reported poverty 
at a rate of 16.1%. 

The 2010 median 
income for Black and 
Hispanic households 
in Travis County was 
roughly two-thirds the 
median income for White 
households.

Travis County 16.2%
     Whites 12.9%
     Blacks 24.6%
     Asians 16.1%
     Hispanics 24.7%

Note:  Five-year sample data was selected because 
one- and three-year sample data, while available, 
included an unacceptably high margin of error within 
smaller racial/ethnic groups.
Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-2010 American 
Community Survey (B19013, B19013A, B19013B, 
B19013D, B19013I, B17001, B17001A, B17001B, 
B17001D, B17001I)

Median 
Household 

Income

Poverty 
Rate

$54,074
$60,809
$36,227
$59,690
$40,948

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



33

Distribution of household income by race and 
ethnicity is comparable to the trends described 
above, showing a disparity between White and 
non-White households in the Urban County 
and Travis County overall. While more than half 
of White households and Asian households in 
the Urban County reported household income 
of more than $75,000, only 31.6% of Black 
households and 29% of Hispanic households 
fell into this category.  

Figure 3-11
Household Income Distribution by Race and Ethnicity, 2010

There are some differences in the income 
distribution across racial and ethnic groups 
between the Urban County and Travis 
County overall.  Generally, those living in the 
County’s incorporated areas (most of whom 
live in Austin) make less, as households of 
all races  are more evenly distributed across 
income groups.  However, White and Asian 
households in urban areas are still much more 
likely to report higher incomes than Black and 
Hispanic households.

Figure 3-12
Urban County Household Income Distribution, 2010

All Households
Travis County 390,862 21.5% 24.8% 17.8% 35.9%

Urban County* 58,685 13.3% 21.7% 17.4% 47.6%
White 
Travis County 283,171 18.3% 23.0% 18.0% 40.6%

Urban County* 43,713 12.2% 18.0% 16.5% 53.2%
Black 
Travis County 33,453 33.3% 31.2% 17.2% 18.3%

Urban County* 3,892 25.8% 11.6% 31.0% 31.6%
Asian 
Travis County 21,132 25.1% 19.3% 13.9% 41.7%

Urban County* 3,021 11.3% 18.6% 16.9% 53.2%
Hispanic 
Travis County 96,966 28.3% 31.5% 19.4% 20.8%

Urban County* 12,130 18.4% 32.7% 19.9% 29.0%
* Excludes unincorporated areas and Webberville
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-2010 American Community Survey (B19001, 
B19001A, B19001B, B19001D, B19001I).

Total
$0 to 

$24,999
$25,000 to 

$49,999
$50,000 to 

$74,999
$75,000 

and higher

30%

40%

50%

60%
White Households

Black Households

Asian Households

Hispanic 
Households

0%

10%

20%

$0 to $24,999 $25,000 to 
$49,999

$50,000 to 
$74,999

$75,000+

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



34

Residential Segregation
by Income

The Pew Research Center has developed a 
metric to describe the degree to which high- and 
low-income residents are spatially segregated 
from one another within a metropolitan area.  
The Residential Income Segregation Index 
(RISI) is calculated by combining the share 
of low-income residents who live in majority 
low-income census tracts with the share of 
high-income residents who live in high-income 
census tracts, capturing the magnitude of 
households that live in economically segregated 
neighborhoods.  

Nationwide, the Pew Center found that 28% 
of lower-income households were located in 
predominantly lower-income neighborhoods 
in 2010, up from 23%, and that 18% of upper-
income households lived in predominantly 
upper-income neighborhoods, compared to 9% 
in 1980.9  Researchers cited an overarching 
increase in income inequality as the primary 
reason for the declining share of mixed-income 
neighborhoods.

9 Fry, Richard and Taylor, Paul.  “The Rise of Residential Segregation by Income.”  Pew Social and Demographic Trends, 
Pew Research Center.  Released August 1, 2012.

The Pew Center applied its analysis to the 
nation’s 30 largest metropolitan areas as of 
2010.  The Austin-Round Rock-San Marcos 
metropolitan area ranked as the country’s 
35th largest, just outside of the scope of Pew’s 
work.   In order to compare the metro area in 
which Travis County is located to other areas 
of Texas and the country for purposes of the 
AI, Pew’s methodology was replicated using 
the same data set and research methods 
similar to those applied in the article cited 
below.  The only methodological difference 
was application of a stepwise interpolation in 
lieu of the Sprague interpolation formula to 
split income categories in the metro area’s 350 
census tracts, selected for simplicity following 
the determination that the regression curves of 
the two methods were not drastically different.

Pew’s analysis allows for a description of 
neighborhood composition by income.  Lower-
income households were defined as those 
making less than $37,990, which is two-thirds 
the median household income across the 
Austin-Round Rock-San Marcos metropolitan 
area in 2010 ($57,561), and upper-income 
households were defined as those making at 
least $115,122, which is double the metropolitan 
median.  Lower-income neighborhoods were 
those where at least 50% of households 
made less than $37,990, and upper-income 
neighborhoods are those where at least 50% 
of households made at least $115,122.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



35

According to 2010 American Community 
Survey data, 66,564 of 193,801 lower-income 
households across the Austin-Round Rock-
San Marcos region lived in majority lower-
income neighborhoods, a share of 34.3%.  A 
similar share of the region’s 121,632 upper-
income households, 42,850, or 35.2%, lived in 
upper-income neighborhoods.  Therefore, the 
RISI score for the region in 2010 was 69.5.

The score of 69.5 defines Greater Austin as 
more economically segregated than any other 
metropolitan region for which Pew published 
RISI calculations.  It is not without context, 
as the Pew Center noted that three Texas 
metropolitan areas, San Antonio, Houston 
and Dallas, have the nation’s highest degrees 
of segregated upper-income households.  
Respectively in those areas, 25%, 24% and 
23% of upper-income households live in 
predominantly upper-income areas.  Of the 
10 largest metro areas in the United States by 
number of households, Houston and Dallas 
have the highest overall RISI scores (60 and 
61), topping New York and Los Angeles.  Pew 
researchers connect the high RISI scores in 
Texas to the phenomenal population expansion 
in its metropolitan areas, reflecting influxes of 
households at both ends of the income scale:  
lower-wage immigrant families as well as skilled 
professionals.  This observation is consistent 
with the gentrification patterns reported in and 
beyond Travis County by AI stakeholders.

Austin-Round Rock-San Marcos 69.5
San Antonio-New Braunfels 63
Houston-Sugar Land-Baytown 61
Dallas-Fort Worth-Arlington 60
New York-Northern New Jersey 57
Denver-Aurora-Broomfield 55
Detroit-Warren-Livonia 54
Columbus 53
Los Angeles-Long Beach-Santa Ana 51
Philadelphia-Camden-Wilmington 51
Miami-Fort Lauderdale-Pompano Beach 49
Baltimore-Towson 48
Phoenix-Mesa-Glendale 48
Kansas City 47
Cincinnati-Middletown 47
Washington-Arlington-Alexandria 47
Cleveland-Elyria-Mentor 46
National 46

Source: Fry, Richard and Taylor, Paul.  “The Rise of 
Residential Segregation by Income.”  Pew Social and 
Demographic Trends, Pew Research Center.  
Released August 1, 2012.  Local calculations by M&L.

2010 
RISI

Figure 3-13
Residential Segregation Comparisons 
by Metropolitan Region, 2010

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



36

Travis County residents 
with disabilities are 
substantially more 
likely to live in poverty 
than those without 
disabilities.

Disability and 
Income

As defined by the Census Bureau, a disability 
is a long-lasting physical, mental, or emotional 
condition that can make it difficult for a person 
to do activities such as walking, climbing stairs, 
dressing, bathing, learning, or remembering.  
This condition can also impede a person from 
being able to go outside the home alone or to 
work. 

The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination 
based on physical, mental or emotional 
handicap, provided “reasonable 
accommodation” can be made.  Reasonable 
accommodation may include changes to 
address the needs of disabled persons, 
including adaptive structural (e.g., constructing 
an entrance ramp) or administrative changes 
(e.g., permitting the use of a service animal).  
Across Travis County, 8.6% of the total civilian 
non-institutionalized population reported  a 
disability in 2010.9  

The most common type of disability among 
persons ages 18 to 64 was ambulatory, 
referring to difficulty moving from place to 
place that makes it impossible or impractical to 
walk as a means of transportation.  Of County 
residents between ages 18 and 64, 23,690 
(3.4%) reported this type of difficulty, which 
translates to a need for accessible housing.  
Additionally, about one in every four seniors 
age 65 and above (16,334 individuals) reported 
an ambulatory disability.  Of County residents 
ages 18 to 64, 3% reported a sensory disability 
such as vision or hearing.  Just over one in five 
seniors reported the same.

According to the National Organization on 
Disabilities, a significant income gap exists for 
persons with disabilities, given their lower rate 
of employment.  In Travis County, persons with 
disabilities were substantially more likely than 
persons without disabilities to live in poverty. 
In 2010, 24.1% of residents with disabilities 
lived in poverty, compared to 14.5% of persons 
without disabilities who were living in poverty.10   
Median earnings for disabled persons age 16 
and older were $21,436, compared to $30,578 
for those without disabilities.

Disabled persons and those living in poverty 
were more prevalent in the County’s urban 
core, a fact likely related to the concentration 
of public and nonprofit human services and 
transit available in the County’s most densely 
populated areas.  

9 2008-2010 ACS (S1810).  All available disability estimates were insufficient to subtract entitlement community figures.
10 2010 ACS (S1811). 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



The Census Bureau divides households into 
family and non-family households.  Family 
households are married couple families with 
or without children, single-parent families and 
other families comprised of related persons.  
Non-family households are either single 
persons living alone, or two or more non-
related persons living together.

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 protects 
against gender discrimination in housing.  
Protection for families with children was added 
in the 1988 amendments to Title VIII.  Except in 
limited circumstances involving elderly housing 
and owner-occupied buildings of one to four 
units, it is unlawful to refuse to rent or sell to 
families with children.  

Within the context of continued population in 
the number of households living in the Urban 
County, female-headed households with 
children grew from 6.5% of all households in 
2000 to 7.4% in 2010, while the proportion 
of male-headed households with children 
declined slightly from 2.3% to 2.1%. By 
comparison, married-couple family households 
with children declined from 33.7% to 30.6% 
over the course of the decade.  In the Urban 
County, non-family households held steady 
at about one-fourth of the total.  However, 
non-family households are far more common 
in urban areas: Across all of Travis County, 
more than one in every four households is 
non-family, suggesting that single-person 
households are much more prevalent in Austin 
than in unincorporated areas.  Some of the 
difference can be accounted for by Austin’s 
large student population.  In addition to other 
institutions, the University of Texas at Austin 
enrolls more than 46,500 full-time.

37

Familial Status
and Income

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

2000

2010

0%

5%

10%

Married 
Couples with 

Children

Married 
Couples 
without 
Children

Female 
Households 
with Children

Female 
Households 

without 
Children

Male 
Households 
with Children

Male 
Households 

without 
Children

Non-Family 
Households

Figure 3-14
Trends in Household Type, Urban County, 2000-2010

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Figure 3-15
Household Type and Presence of Children, Urban County, 2000-2010

Over one-third of 
female-headed 
households with children 
in Travis County are 
below the poverty line, 
compared with only 9% 
of married couples with 
children.

Female-headed households with children often 
experience difficulty in obtaining housing, 
primarily as a result of lower-incomes and the 
potential unwillingness of some landlords to rent 
their units to families with children. Although 
they comprised only 12.7% of family households 
in Travis County in 2010, female-headed 
households with children accounted for 45.9% 
of all families living in poverty.11  Among female-
headed households with children, 36% were 
living in poverty, compared to only 9% of married-
couple families with children.

Married couples with 
children under 18 
represent a decreasing 
share of total households 
in the Urban County, 
while single females 
with children have 
become more common 
since 2000.

38 11 2006-2010 ACS(B17012) 

#
With 

Children
Without 
Children #

With 
Children

Without 
Children #

With 
Children

Without 
Children

Travis County 320,766 57.3% 136,632 22.0% 20.6% 33,333 7.3% 3.1% 13,867 2.2% 2.1% 42.7%
Urban County* 43,850 74.1% 26,975 33.7% 27.8% 3,890 6.5% 2.4% 1,619 2.3% 1.4% 25.9%

Travis County 390,862 57.2% 161,083 20.2% 21.0% 43,797 7.2% 4.0% 18,500 2.1% 2.6% 42.8%
Urban County* 58,685 74.0% 34,256 30.6% 27.8% 6,470 7.4% 3.6% 2,679 2.1% 2.5% 26.0%

Source: Census 2000 (SF1, QTP10); 2010 American Community Survey (B11001, B11003)

Male-headed Households

2000

2010

* Includes unincorporated areas and Webberville

Total 
Households

Family Households

Non-family 
Households

% of 
Total

Married-couple families Female-headed Households

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



It is illegal to refuse the right to housing based 
on place of birth or ancestry. Census data on 
native and foreign-born populations reported 
that in 2010, 21.6% of all Travis County residents 
were foreign-born.12   A smaller proportion of all 
people across the Urban County, 12.8%, were 
foreign-born.  By way of origin, more than half 
of the Urban County’s foreign-born population 
(51.8%) came from Latin American nations, 
while 28.2% were Asian, 7.8% were European 
and 3.6% were African natives.

Travis County’s foreign-born population is 
more likely to experience poverty.  According 
to 2006-10 American Community Survey 
estimates, 16.6% of the foreign-born population 
for which poverty status is determined fell 
below the poverty line, compared to 8.8% of 
all persons Countywide for whom this status is 
determined.13 

Persons with limited English proficiency (LEP) 
are defined by the federal government as 
persons who have a limited ability to read, 
write, speak or understand English. American 
Community Survey (ACS) data reports on the 
non-English language spoken at home for the 
population five years and older. In 2010, the 

Figure 3-16
Limited English Proficiency
Language Groups, 2010

12 2006-2010 ACS(B05006) 
13 2006-2010 ACS(B06012) 

Census Bureau reported that 286,963 persons 
across Travis County (31.7%) spoke at least 
one language other than English.  Of these, 
123,846 (43.2%) spoke English less than 
“very well.”   This limited English proficiency 
subpopulation constituted 13.7% of the 
County’s total population.  The four language 
groups with more than 1,000 LEP persons 
included Spanish, Vietnamese, Chinese and 
Korean.  To determine whether translation of 
vital documents would be required, a HUD 
entitlement community must first identify the 
number of LEP persons in a single language 
group who are likely to qualify for and be served 
by the Urban County’s programs.  HUD uses 
1,000 or 5% of the total population as a “safe 
harbor” threshold, meaning that a jurisdiction 
addressing the needs of language groups 
exeeding either figure show strong evidence of 
compliance with Title VI obligations.

Four language groups 
in Travis County have 
large enough numbers 
of limited-English 
speakers to warrant 
further analysis of their 
access to Urban County 
programs and services.

Ancestry and 
Income

Spanish 104,076 11.5%
Vietnamese 5,427 0.6%
Chinese 3,650 0.4%
Korean 1,979 0.2%
Tagalog 611 0.1%
French 560 0.1%

Language Group Number of LEP 
Speakers

Percentage of 
Total Population

Source: American Community Survey 2008-10 Estimates 
(B16001)

More than 100,000 
Spanish-speaking County 
residents have limited 
English proficiency, 
though many are located 
within the City of Austin.

39

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Employment and
Protected Class Status

In 2010, the latest year for which comprehensive 
data is available, unemployment rates in Travis 
County were about on par with statewide levels.  
Black residents were substantially more likely 
to be unemployed than White residents, with 
unemployment rates of 12% and 5.4%, in the 
Urban County, respectively.  Asian residents in 
the Urban County were unemployed at a rate of 
5.8%, and Hispanics reported unemployment at 
a rate of 7.5%.  Black and Hispanic households 
were more commonly unemployed than 
Whites and Asians across all of Travis County 
and Texas in 2010.  Higher unemployment, 
whether temporary or permanent, limits the 
resources available to meet housing costs.

Blacks and Hispanics were 
substantially more likely 
than Whites and Asians to 
be unemployed in 2010 
across the Urban County 
as well as across Texas.

40

Figure 3-17
Civilian Labor Force
and Protected Class Status, 2010

Total % Total % Total %
Total CLF 11,916,548 100% 528,778 100.0% 397,260 100.0%

Employed 11,087,677 93.0% 492,909 93.2% 370,330 93.2%
Unemployed 828,871 7.0% 35,869 6.8% 26,930 6.8%

Male CLF 6,490,088 54.5% 279,676 52.9% 209,997 52.9%
Employed 6,051,128 93.2% 260,632 93.2% 196,201 93.4%

Unemployed 438,960 6.8% 19,044 6.8% 13,796 6.6%

Female CLF 5,426,460 45.5% 249,102 47.1% 187,263 47.1%
Employed 5,036,549 92.8% 232,277 93.2% 174,129 93.0%

Unemployed 389,911 7.2% 16,825 6.8% 13,134 7.0%

White CLF 9,170,064 82.7% 390,375 73.8% 285,598 71.9%
Employed 8,573,012 93.5% 368,840 94.5% 270,187 94.6%

Unemployed 597,052 6.5% 21,535 5.5% 15,411 5.4%

Black CLF 1,383,294 11.6% 44,164 8.4% 32,379 8.2%
Employed 1,222,785 88.4% 39,153 88.7% 28,508 88.0%

Unemployed 160,509 11.6% 5,011 11.3% 3,871 12.0%

Asian CLF 472,532 4.0% 30,357 5.7% 24,242 6.1%
Employed 445,165 94.2% 28,460 93.8% 22,837 94.2%

Unemployed 27,367 5.8% 1,897 6.2% 1,405 5.8%
Hispanic CLF 4,060,129 34.1% 168,611 31.9% 138,525 34.9%

Employed 3,741,144 92.1% 155,703 92.3% 128,098 92.5%
Unemployed 318,985 7.9% 12,908 7.7% 10,427 7.5%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, County: 2006-10 American Community Survey (C23001, C23002A, 
C23002B, C23002D, C23002I).  State: Same tables, 2008-10 ACS.

Civilian Labor Force

Texas Travis County Urban County*

* Includes all unincorporated space and the village of Webberville.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



41

Distribution of 
Neighborhood Opportunity

One effect of sprawl across metropolitan regions 
has been the geographic dilution of jobs and 
amenities, typically in a way that isolates lower-
income minorities living in urban core areas 
from employment and housing opportunities 
in outlying suburbs.  The expansion of low-
density development beyond urban fringes 
exacerbates residential segregation as White 
residents, whose typically higher incomes 
correlate with a greater array of housing 
choices, move farther into more sparsely 
populated areas with lower taxes and lower 
service needs, abandoning the existing housing 
stock and leaving behind a lower-income 
population that consists disproportionately of 
racial and ethnic minorities.  A large body of 
social research has demonstrated the powerful 
negative effects of residential segregation on 
income and opportunity for Black and Latino 
families, which are commonly concentrated in 
“at-risk, segregated communities characterized 
by older housing stock, slow growth and low 
tax bases – the resources that support public 
services and schools.”14   Households living 
in lower-income areas of racial and ethnic 
concentration face diminished opportunities in 
education, wealth acquisition and employment 
prospects.15 

To describe the variation in neighborhood 
opportunity across metropolitan regions, the 
Kirwan Institute for the Study of Race and 
Ethnicity at The Ohio State University has 
developed the “Communities of Opportunity” 
model, a fair housing and community 
development framework that assigns each 
neighborhood a score reflecting the degree 
to which its residents have access to 
determinants of positive life outcomes, such 
as good schools, jobs, stable housing, transit 
and the absence of crime and health hazards.  

14 Orfield, Myron. “Land Use and Housing Policies to Reduce Concentrated Poverty and Racial Segregation.” Fordham 
Urban Law Journal.  Volume 33, Issue 3, 2005.
15 Turner, Margery, et al. “Discrimination in Metropolitan Housing Markets: National Results from Phase I HDS 2000.  Urban 
Institute.  Online:  huduser.org/Publications/pdf/Phase1_Report.pdf
16 powell, john a., et al, “ The Geography of Opportunity in the Austin Region.” Kirwan Institute for the Study of Race and 
Ethnicity, The Ohio State University, 2006.  Includes extensive literature review.

The Institute draws upon an extensive 
research base demonstrating the importance 
of neighborhood conditions in predicting life 
outcomes.  The ultimate goals of this exercise 
in applied research are to bring opportunities 
to opportunity-deprived areas and to connect 
people to existing opportunities throughout 
the metropolitan region.  The Institute has 
argued that “we need to assess the geographic 
differences in resources and opportunities 
across a region to make informed, affirmative 
interventions into failures and gaps in ‘free 
market’ opportunities.”15    

The Communities of Opportunity model is 
highly spatial and is therefore map-based, 
representing the geographic footprint of 
inequality.  The process of creating opportunity 
maps involves building a set of potential 
indicators of high and low opportunity, 
reflecting local issues as well as research 
literature validating connections between 
indicators and opportunity.  Data is collected 
at the smallest geographic unit possible for 
each indicator and organized into sectors 
(education, mobility, etc.), which are then 
combined to create a composite opportunity 
map.  The resulting maps allow communities 
to analyze opportunity “comprehensively 
and comparatively, to communicate who has 
access to opportunity-rich areas and who 
does not; and to understand what needs to be 
remedied in opportunity-poor communities.” 

The Kirwan Institute applied this methodology 
to produce opportunity index distributions for 
the Greater Austin region.  Five dimensions 
were identified, consistent with research 
best practices and issues of local relevance: 
education, economic, mobility/transportation, 
health/environment and neighborhood 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



42

quality.  Each dimension includes a collection 
of variables describing conditions for each 
census tract in the region.  Details are included 
in Figure 3-17.

On the basis of the composite index, combining 
all identified dimensions, the study found 
that higher-opportunity areas were primarily 
concentrated west of I-35, with the most 
opportunity-rich areas in the entire region 
located directly west of the highway in Travis 
County.  

The report found that Hispanic and Black 
populations were concentrated in low- and 
moderate-opportunity neighborhoods.  Nearly 
40% of Whites were located in the region’s high- 
and very-high-opportunity tracts, compared 
to only 20% of Hispanics and 18% of Blacks.  
The report also found that more than half of 
linguistically isolated people were located in 
very-low- or low-opportunity tracts.

Figure 3-18
Opportunity Index Dimensions, 2012

Source: The Geography of Opportunity: Austin Region. Kirwan Institute.  Final report available for review at http://
www,greendoors.org/programs/docs/Geography-of-Opportunity-Austin-2013.pdf

The Central Texas Opportunity Initiative, 
headed by a steering committee representing 
organizations throughout Travis County, 
including County government, arranged for 
an update of the opportunity maps in Summer 
2012 that incorporated updated data and new 
points of comparison.  Map 3-8 incorporates a 
shapefile from the updated analysis, displaying 
the 2012 composite opportunity index for tracts 
across the Greater Austin region.  Lighter 
colors correspond with lower opportunity, while 
opportunity-rich areas are in dark green.

Education

• Adult Educational 
Attainment

• Student Poverty
• Student/Teacher 

Ratio
• School Reading 

Proficiency Rate
• School Math 

Proficiency Rate
• High School 

Graduation Rate
• Enrollment Rate

Economics & Mobility

• Unemployment Rate
• Jobs Within 5 Miles
• Mean Commute 

Time
• Transit Access
• Median Household 

Income

Housing & 
Environment 
Conditions

• Neighborhood 
Poverty Rate

• Vacancy Rate
• Proximity to Parks
• Proximity to Toxic 

Release Sites
• Proximity to 

Brownfields
• Crime Index
• Food Deserts
• Proximity to Health 

Care Facilities

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



43

map 3-8
Regional Composite Opportunity Index, August 2012

Source: Kirwan Institute for the Study of Race and Ethnicity,
The Ohio State Universtiy

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

I- 
35

W
 H

w
y 71

State Hwy 71

State H
w

y 130

S H
w

y 183

US Hwy 290St
at

e 
Lo

op
 1

US Hwy 183

S 
M

o-
P

ac
 E

xp
y

St
at

e 
Lo

op
 3

60

N 
La

m
ar

 B
lvd

St
at

e 
Sp

ur
 2

75

FM
 1

32
5

Lo
ck

ha
rt 

H
w

y

S Lamar B
lvd

Airport Blvd

State Hwy 45

FM 973

Hwy 71 E

W US Hwy 290

I-35

W Hwy 2
90

US Hwy 183

State Hwy 45

US
 H

wy
 2

90

I- 
35

US
 H

wy
 2

90

I- 
35

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

Major Roads

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! Impacted Block Groups

Composite Opportunity Score
Very Low

Low

Moderate

High

Very High

Urban County Exceptions

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Housing 
Inventory

Rapid population growth since 2000 is reflected 
in the large net gains of housing units in both 
Travis County’s incorporated areas (86,163 
units, or 29.9%) and unincorporated areas 
(19,196 units, or 40.1%).  A Comprehensive 
Housing Market Study for the City of Austin 
completed in early 2009 noted that growth 
on the City’s outskirts has been driven by the 
relative affordability of neighborhoods outside of 
City limits.  The median value of a single-family 
home in Austin rose from $129,900 in 1998 to 
$240,000 in 2008, despite complications on 
the national scale of the housing market crash 
that began in 2006.  The report noted that the 
supply of housing affordable to households 
making up to 80% of the HUD median family 
income, or up to $55,280, increased in the 
MSA’s southwest and northern portions, 
in addition to neighborhods in and beyond 
Austin’s eastern fringe.  At the same time, 
there has been a decrease in affordable units 
in all other areas of the City.

Map 3-9 depicts the density of total units by 
block group across Travis County in 2010.  
Impacted areas of both racial/ethnic and LMI 
concentration are also shown for comparison.

Figure 3-19
Total Housing Units by Municipality, 2000-2010

The Urban County gained 
more than 19,000 housing 
units between 2000 
and 2010, an inventory 
increase exceeding 40% 
in only 10 years.

Municipality 2000 2010 Change
Austin city* 271,464 337,930 24.5%
Bee Cave village 246 1,707 593.9%
Briarcliff village 455 717 57.6%
Cedar Park city 248 228 -8.1%
Creedmoor city 89 86 -3.4%
Elgin city 8 305 3712.5%
Jonestown city 770 1,113 44.5%
Lago Vista city 2,155 3,258 51.2%
Lakeway city 3,501 5,249 49.9%
Leander city 0 374 -
Manor city 436 1,645 277.3%
Mustang Ridge city 133 145 9.0%
Pflugerville city 5,239 16,323 211.6%
Point Venture village - 626 -
Rollingwood city 498 516 3.6%
Round Rock city 573 642 12.0%
San Leanna village 153 212 38.6%
Sunset Valley city 154 324 110.4%
The Hills village 657 1,027 56.3%
Volente village - 296 -
Webberville village** - 125 -
West Lake Hills city 1,185 1,279 7.9%
Total Incorporated 287,964 374,127 29.9%

Total Unincorporated 47,917 67,113 40.1%

Total Travis County 335,881 441,240 31.4%

Note:  Population figures account for only the portions of 
each place that fall within Travis County.

* Federal CDBG entitlement community
** Participates in Urban County program

Source:  Census SF1 H1: 2000, 2010

44

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

!

!
! 1 Dot = 10

! UNITS10

ImpactedBG

Urban County Exceptions

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere 45

map 3-9
Total Housing Unit Density by Block Group, 2010

Impacted Block Groups

Incorporated Places

1 dot = 10 Units

Source:  2010 Census SF-1

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Multi-family housing 
structures are less common 
in unincorporated areas, 
where they represent 15.4% 
of the housing stock.  By 
contrast, 44.8% of stock in 
cities and towns is multi-
family.

Figure 3-20
Housing Units by Structure Type Across Municipalities, 2010

In 2010, single-family units comprised 72.3% 
of the housing stock in unincorporated areas 
of Travis County, compared to only 53.5% 
in incorporated areas.  This is driven by 
the prevalence of higher-density residential 
structures in Austin, where about half of all 
homes are in two- or more-unit structures.  

Mobile homes are of notable presence in the 
Urban County, as there were 7,798 located 
outside of incorporated spaces in 2010.  AI 
interviews indicated that this is a common 
avenue of homeownership for lower-income 
households, particularly Hispanic families, 
though some mobile homes are located 
outside of areas with reliable water and sewer 
infrastructure and may represent substandard 
living conditions.

46

Austin city* 329,725 166,564 30,578 21,390 43,258 62,787 158,013 4,905 243
Bee Cave village 1,436 881 49 29 118 335 531 24 0
Briarcliff village 682 641 2 13 4 19 38 0 3
Cedar Park city 284 37 45 21 81 100 247 0 0
Creedmoor city 113 66 0 0 0 0 0 47 0
Elgin city 295 285 10 0 0 0 10 0 0
Jonestown city 1,013 870 16 0 0 0 16 127 0
Lago Vista city 2,922 2,167 255 136 52 157 600 155 0
Lakeway city 5,082 4,332 563 0 72 115 750 0 0
Leander city 258 258 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Manor city 1,654 1,576 0 0 0 15 15 63 0
Mustang Ridge city 183 172 0 0 0 0 0 11 0
Pflugerville city 14,811 12,599 603 293 387 368 1,651 561 0
Point Venture village 627 589 0 38 0 0 38 0 0
Rollingwood city 602 602 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Round Rock city 825 142 74 155 275 159 663 20 0
San Leanna village 246 235 11 0 0 0 11 0 0
Sunset Valley city 236 155 3 0 55 23 81 0 0
The Hills village 1,033 973 39 21 0 0 60 0 0
Volente village 307 301 2 0 0 0 2 4 0
Webberville village** 109 65 0 0 0 0 0 44 0
West Lake Hills city 1,269 1,146 123 0 0 0 123 0 0

Total Incorporated Areas 363,712 194,656 32,373 22,096 44,302 64,078 162,849 5,961 246

Total Unincorporated Areas 63,879 46,175 1,792 1,618 2,726 3,692 9,828 7,798 78

Total Travis County 427,591 240,831 34,165 23,714 47,028 67,770 172,677 13,759 324
* Federal CDBG entitlement community
** Participates in Urban County program
Note:  Figures account for only the portions of each place that fall within Travis County.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-2010 ACS (B25024)

Municipality

Total 
Units

Single-
family 
units

2 to 4 5 to 9 10 to 19 20 or 
more

Total
Boat, RV, 
van, etc.

Multi-family units Mobile 
home

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



47

In 2010, the Census Bureau estimated that 
the occupied housing inventory of 58,586 
across unincorporated areas of Travis County 
was 74.9% owner-occupied, compared to the 
52.6% rate across the County overall.  

To isolate apartment units from condominium 
units that are owner-occupied and located 
within multi-family structures, Figure 3-20 
examines the tenure of units by structure type.  
Of the total owner-occupied housing stock of 
43,878 in unincorporated areas, 8,887 units 
(20.3%) were in multi-family structures.  By 
comparison, there were many more multi-
family units within the rental stock.  Of the 
14,708 rental units in unincorporated areas, 
13,215 (89.8%) were in multi-family structures.  
Multi-family rental units are, unsurprisingly, 
concentrated in incorporated areas of more 
dense urban character.

Owner-occupied units in 
multi-family buildings, 
such as condominiums, 
account for 20.3% of 
the multi-family stock 
in unincorporated areas, 
compared to only 5.6% 
of multi-family housing in 
Austin.

The right-most column of Figure 3-20 
represents the proportion of each community’s 
total occupied housing that consists of renter-
occupied multi-family units.  In many towns 
and cities, particularly smaller settlements or 
those for which only a portion of Travis County 
space is analyzed here, multi-family units 
represent 0% of the total occupied housing 
stock.

Figure 3-21
Housing Units by Tenure and Structure Type, 2010

Austin city* 137,912 127,125 7,741 5.6% 163,964 31,279 118,383 72.2% 39.2%
Bee Cave village 772 748 0 0.0% 537 38 465 86.6% 35.5%
Briarcliff village 492 481 8 1.6% 37 35 2 5.4% 0.4%
Cedar Park city 37 37 0 0.0% 214 0 214 100.0% 85.3%
Creedmoor city 61 30 0 0.0% 44 28 0 0.0% 0.0%
Elgin city 141 131 10 7.1% 154 154 0 0.0% 0.0%
Jonestown city 641 548 0 0.0% 212 173 0 0.0% 0.0%
Lago Vista city 2,068 1,840 103 5.0% 282 180 58 20.6% 2.5%
Lakeway city 3,586 3,444 142 4.0% 817 297 206 25.2% 4.7%
Leander city 258 258 0 0.0% 0 0 0 - 0.0%
Manor city 1,247 1,188 0 0.0% 231 212 15 6.5% 1.0%
Mustang Ridge city 110 106 0 0.0% 12 7 0 0.0% 0.0%
Pflugerville city 10,870 10,544 0 0.0% 3,096 1,649 1,030 33.3% 7.4%
Point Venture village 335 312 23 6.9% 100 100 0 0.0% 0.0%
Rollingwood city 537 537 0 0.0% 28 28 0 0.0% 0.0%
Round Rock city 108 108 0 0.0% 553 34 485 87.7% 73.4%
San Leanna village 192 192 0 0.0% 41 30 11 26.8% 4.7%
Sunset Valley city 151 151 0 0.0% 30 4 26 86.7% 14.4%
The Hills village 818 818 0 0.0% 85 85 0 0.0% 0.0%
Volente village 187 187 0 0.0% 70 64 0 0.0% 0.0%
Webberville village** 96 53 0 0.0% 3 2 0 0.0% 0.0%
West Lake Hills city 1,006 1,006 0 0.0% 141 67 48 34.0% 4.2%

Total Incorporated Areas 161,625 149,844 8,027 5.0% 170,651 34,466 133,393 78.2% 40.1%

Total Unincorporated Areas 43,878 38,745 8,887 20.3% 14,708 4,285 13,215 89.8% 22.6%

Total Travis County 205,503 188,589 16,914 8.2% 185,359 38,751 146,608 79.1% 37.5%

Municipality

Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied

Total
Single-
Family

Multi-
Family

% Multi-
Family

Total
Single-
Family

Multi-
Family

* Federal CDBG entitlement community
** Participates in Urban County program
Note:  Figures account for only the portions of each place that fall within Travis County.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-10 ACS (B25032)

% Multi-
Family

% Renter-
Occupied 

Multi-Family

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!
!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!!
!

!
!!

!
!
!
!
!

!
!

!!!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!
!!
!

!!

!
!

!!!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!!
!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!
!
!!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!
!
!

!
!!!

!
!
!
!!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!!!
!

!!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!!

!

!
!
!

!!

!
!!!

!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!
!!!

!

!

!

!!!!
!

!

!!
!
!!

!

!!!
!
!

!!
!

!

!
!

!!
!!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!!!!
!!
!
!
!

!!!
!

!
!
!

!
!!!!

!!
!
!
!
!!
!
!
!!

!
!!
!

!
!!!

!

!

!!!!

!
!
!
!!!
!

!!!!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!!!
!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!!
!
!

!!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!!!

!

!!

!!
!
!
!!
!!!
!

!!
!
!!
!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!!!

!
!!!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!!!
!
!
!
!

!!
!!!
!!

!!!!

!

!

!!
!
!
!
!
!!
!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!!

!

!
!!!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!!!

!
!
!
!!

!!

!
!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!!
!
!
!
!

!!
!!
!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!
!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!!!

!!!!

!
!
!
!!!

!!!!!!!!!
!!!
!

!

!!

!
!
!!
!!
!
!!!!
!

!
!
!!!
!!
!
!

!
!

!
!!!!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!
!

!!

!!
!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!!

!

!
!
!
!!

!!
!
!!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!
!!
!

!!
!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!
!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!
!

!
!

!
!!!
!
!!!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!
!
!!!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!!
!!

!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!!
!

!
!!
!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!!!

!
!!

!!
!!
!
!

!

!
!!!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!!!!!!
!!!
!
!
!

!

!!!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!!
!

!
!!!

!

!
!!
!!
!!!!

!

!
!
!
!!
!!!
!
!
!
!!!!!!!

!!
!

!!
!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!!
!
!!

!

!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!!!!
!

!!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!
!
!

!
!!!
!

!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!!
!

!!

!!

!
!

!
!!
!!!!!

!
!
!!

!
!
!
!!!!!!
!
!!
!

!!

!
!
!!
!!
!!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!!!

!

!!
!
!!!

!!
!!!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!
!
!!!
!
!
!

!
!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!!
!!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!
!!
!

!
!

!!
!

!
!!!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!!!!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!!
!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!!
!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
! !
!

!!!!

!
!

!
!
!!

!
!!
!

!
!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!
!!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!!
!!!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!!

!!
!!

!
!

!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!
!!
!
!

!

!
!!
!

!!
!
!!
!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!
!
!!!

!!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!!!!!

!!
!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!!!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!!!

!
!!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!

!!
!!!

!
!!
!
!!

!
!!
!
!

!!
!!
!

!

!
!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!!!

!!
!
!!

!!!!!!
!
!
!
!!

!

!!!
!
!!

!!
!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!!

!!
!!!
!

!!

!!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!
!
!!
!
!
!

!!
!!
!
!!!
!!!

!!
!
!!

!
!!!!
!!!!

!!!!
!!

!

!

!!
!!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!
!

!!!!!
!
!!
!
!
!

!
!!
!
!
!!
!
!
!!!
!

!!
!

!

!!

!!!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!
!!!
!
!!!

!!

!

!
!

!
!
!!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!!
!!

!
!

!

!!
!

!!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!!

!
!!
!!

!

!
!

!!!
!
!
!
!
!

!!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!

!!
!
!

!!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!
!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!!
!!!!
!!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!!!!!!!

!!!!
!
!
!!!!!!
!
!
!
!!
!

!!
!
!

!!!

!

!!
!!
!!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!!
!
!

!
!

!!
!
!
!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!!!!

!!
!
!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!!!!

!
!
!!!

!
!!!

!
!

!

!!!!!

!
!

!
!
!
!!
!
!!
!!
!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!!!
!!!
!
!
!

!!
!
!
!
!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!!!
!!!!

!

!

!
!!!!!
!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!
!
!!!

!!!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!
!!!
!!!
!!
!!!!

!!
!
!!

!

!
!!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

! !
!!! !

!!!
!
!
!

!
!
!!
!!

!!
!!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!

! !!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!!
!

!!
!

!
!!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!!
!
!!!!
!
!
!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!!
!

!
!!
!

!

!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!!

!
!!

!
!

!!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!
!
!!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!
!!
!
!!!!

!
!

!!!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!
!
!!!

!!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!!
!!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!!
!!!

!!
!!
!
!

!

!!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!!
!

!

!
!!
!
!

!!
!
!
!!!!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!!

!!
!
!
!!
!!!
!
!

!!!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!!
!!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!
!

!
!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!
!
!!!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!!
!

!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!
!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!
!!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!!!!
!
!

!!
!!!
!!

!

!

!!!

!!
!

!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!!

!
!
!
!
!!
!

!
!!!!!
!

!
!!!
!

!
!
!
!

!!!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!!

!!

!

!!

!!
!

!
!
!

!

!!
!

!
!
!
!!
!!
!!

!
!!!!
!!
!
!
!
!!
!!
!!
!
!
!!

!

!

!!!

!!
!

!!
!
!

!

!!
!!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!
!
!
!
!
!!
!!!!
!
!!!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!
!!!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!
!

!
!
!
!!
!!
!
!!
!!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!!

!!!

!

!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!!!
!!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!!
!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!!!
!

!!
!

!!!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!

!

!
!

!
!
!!

!
!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!
!
!!
!!!!
!!

!

!
!
!
!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!
!!
!!
!
!
!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!!
!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!!
!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!!!!!!

!
!!
!!
!

!

!
!
!
!!
!

!
!

!
!!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!!
!!
!

!

!

!!!

!
!!
!!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!
!
!!!!

!!!
!
!

!
!
!
!!!!

!!
!
!
!!

!
!
!
!

!

!!
!!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!!!!

!

!

!
!

!
!!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!

!!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!
!!
!

!!

!
!
!!!!
!!!!!!!!
!!!!
!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!
!!
!
!!
!
!
!!!

!
!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!

!!!!

!
!

!!
!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!!
!
!!

!

!
!

!

!!!!

!!
!
!

!!
!!!
!!
!

!!
!!!

!!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!!
!
!

!

!!
!!

!!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!!!
!!!
!!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!!
!
!!

!!
!!!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!!
!

!!
!

!
!
!
!
!!

!!!
!!!!
!

!!
!
!
!!
!
!!
!
!

!

!
!!

!!!
!

!
!

!!!

!!
!

!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!!

!

!!

!!!!

!!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!!!!!
!!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!!
!
!!!!

!
!!

!
!

!!
!

!
!
!
!!!!!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!
!
!
!
!!!

!!!

!
!
!

!!

!

!!!!

!
!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!!
!
!

!
!
!!

!!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!!!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!
!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!!
!!
!!!!!!

!!
!
!

!
!!!

!!
!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!
!
!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!
!!!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!!

!!
!!!!!!!
!

!!
!!!!!

!!!!!!
!!
!!
!

!
!!
!

!!
!
!
!!
!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!
!!
!!
!!

!!!

!

!

!!!
!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!!!
!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!!!!!

!!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!
!!
!!

!

!
!!!

!!
!
!!
!

!

!
!!
!

!!
!!
!

!
!
!
!!!!!
!!

!!!
!!
!!

!
!
!
!

!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!!!

!!!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!!
!
!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!!!
!!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!
!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!
!

!!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
! !!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!
!

!!!!
!
!
!!!
!
!
!!!

!

!!
!!
!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!!

!

!
!!!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!
!
!!
!
!

!!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!!!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!!
!!
!
!!
!!!
!
!

!
!!
!

!!!
!
!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

!

!
!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!!
!!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!
!!
!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!
!!

!
!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!!!

!!
!!!!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!
!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!!!

!

!!!!
!
!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!!

!
!!!!!
!
!
!!

!! !
!!

!
!

!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!!

!!
!!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!!

!!
!!
!
!!

!!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!!!

!! !
!!!
!
!!
!

!

!!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!
!
!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!
!!
!
!

!
!!
!!
!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!!

!!

!
!!
!

!

!
!!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!
!

!

!
!
!!

!!

!
!!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!!!!

!

!

!!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!
!
!
!

! !
!!!

!

!!!
! !

!
!
!

!

!

! !

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!!!
!

!

!!
!!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!!!
!

!!!

!

!
!
!

!

!!
!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!!

!!!!!

!
!

!
!!
!
!

!

!!
!
!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!!

!!

!

!
!
!
!!

!
!
!!

!

!

!

!!!
!!

!!

!
!
!
!

!

!!

!
!!

!!

!!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!!

!

!!

!
!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!
!!

!!

!!
!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
!!

!! !
!
!
!
!!

!
!

!
!
!!!!
!
!!!
!!

!!!!!!!!
!
!!
!!

!
!!!
!!!

!!
!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

! !

!
!
!
!

!!

!!

!!
!!!!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!!
!!

!!
!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!
!!
!!

!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

!
!
!
!
!!
!!

!
!!!
!!!
!
!
!!
!!
!
!!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!!!!
!!
!
!!!!
!!!!!
!
!
!

!!
!
!!
!!!!!!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!!
!
!!!
!
!
!
!!!
!

!!
!
!
!!
!
!
!!

!

!!!!!!
!!!
!!
!!!!

!

!!
!

!
!
!!!!
!!
!
!
!

!!!!!!!
!!
!
!!
!
!!!
!
!
!!

!!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!
!

!
!
!!

!
!!
!

!
!!!
!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!!!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!
!

!
!
!!
!
!

!
!
!
!
!!

!

!!!
!
!!

!!

!!
!
!!
!

!!

!!
!!!

!

!!

!!!
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!!!
!
!!!

!

!

!

!!
!!!
!

!

!!
!!!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!
!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!!!

!!

!!
!!!
!!!
!
!!
!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!!!
!!
!
!!!!!!!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!!

!!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!
!
!

!!

!!

!
!!!
!

!

!!

!
!
!!!
!

!

!!!

!

!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!
!!
!

!
!!

!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!
!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!
!!
!!
!
!

!
!
!!
!

!
!!!
!
!!

!!

!
!!!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!!
!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!
!
!!!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!!!

!!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!!

!!
!
!

!!!!
!
!!!
!

!!

!

!!
!
!

!!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!!
!!!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!!!
!

!!

!

!!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!
!!!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!!!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!!
!
!

!!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!!
!
!!
!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!
!
!
!!!
!

!!
!

!
!

!!

!!

!!

!
!
!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!
!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!!!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!!

!
!
!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!
!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!!!!
!
!
!
!!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
! !

!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!!

!

!

!!
!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!!

!

!
!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!!

!!
!

!
!
!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!
!
!!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!!!!
!

!
!

!!!
!
!

!
!

!!!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!!
!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!
!!

!
!!!

!!
!

!!

!

!
!
!

!!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!
!!
!

!!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!! !!

!!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

! !

!

!!
!!!!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!

!

!

!
!!!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!
!!

!

!

!!!

!
!
!

!
!

!!

!
!!
!
!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!
!
!!!
!!!!
!!!!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

! !!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!
!

!

!

!!!!!
!!!
!

!

!

!!
!
!
!
!

!!

!!

!!
!
!
!!!

!

!!!

!

!!!

!

!
!
!!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!
!
!
!

!!!!!

!

!!

!!!

!!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!!!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!!!!!!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!!
!!

!

!!
!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!!
!!!
!!!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!!!

!!!!!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!!!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!
!!!!!!!!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!!
!
!
!

!!

!
!!
!!!!!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!!
!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!
!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!!

!
!

!

!

!!!!!

!
!

!

!
!
!!
!

!

!!

!

!!
!!!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!!!

!

!
!
!!!!!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!!!!

!

!
!!!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!
!!
!
!
!

!!
!
!
!
!

!!!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

! !

!
! !

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!
!
!
!
!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!!
!!

!

!!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!
!

!!
!
!
!!

!

!
!

!!
!!!!
!
!!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!!!!!!!
!!!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!!
!
!

!

!!

!

!!
!
!!

!

!!

!!
!
!
!!

!
!!
!
!
!

!!

!!

!

!

!
!!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!
!!
!

!!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!!
! !

!!!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!!!

!
!
!
!
!!
!!!

!
!!

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

ImpactedBG

Urban County Exceptions
!

!
!

! 1 Dot = 10
! Multifamily Rental

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 3-11
Distribution of Renter-Occupied 
Multi-Family Units, 2010

Impacted Block Groups

Incorporated Places

Multi-family Rental
Units

Source:  2010 Census SF-1

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



49

Home Ownership and 
Protected Class Status

The value in home ownership lies in the 
accumulation of wealth as the owner’s share 
of equity increases with the property’s value.  
Paying a monthly mortgage instead of rent 
is an investment in an asset that is likely to 
appreciate.

Historically, minorities tend to have lower home 
ownership rates than Whites.  In 2010 in Travis 
County, Whites had a home ownership rate of 
57.4%.  By comparison, Asians owned their 
homes at a rate of 47.9%; Hispanics at 40.6% 
and Blacks at a rate of 38.1%.  

Ownership was higher across all racial and 
ethnic groups in unincorporated areas of the 
County, where about eight in every 10 White or 
Asian households were homeowners.  Outside 

Figure 3-22
Housing Tenure by Race and Ethnicity, 2010

HHs % Owners HHs % Owners HHs % Owners HHs % Owners

Austin city* 215,565 50.7% 25,712 32.8% 16,666 39.0% 80,145 34.7%
Bee Cave village 1,234 59.6% 33 21.2% 24 45.8% 124 33.1%
Briarcliff village 495 95.4% 0 - 19 100.0% 32 56.3%
Cedar Park city 161 19.3% 57 0.0% 18 33.3% 15 0.0%
Creedmoor city 80 68.8% 0 - 0 - 39 35.9%
Elgin city 208 62.5% 87 12.6% 0 - 13 100.0%
Jonestown city 740 78.8% 31 0.0% 0 - 867 92.5%
Lago Vista city 2,231 87.4% 66 100.0% 0 - 181 72.4%
Lakeway city 4,169 82.4% 16 100.0% 118 100.0% 90 73.3%
Leander city 232 100.0% 0 - 26 100.0% 102 100.0%
Manor city 795 87.8% 465 74.8% 24 100.0% 272 66.9%
Mustang Ridge city 61 91.8% 5 100.0% 3 100.0% 0 0.0%
Pflugerville city 9,463 80.6% 1,974 63.5% 1,072 84.0% 477 86.6%
Point Venture village 419 76.1% 0 - 16 100.0% 47 85.1%
Rollingwood city 533 94.7% 0 - 18 100.0% 3,213 72.7%
Round Rock city 498 21.7% 10 0.0% 54 0.0% 19 100.0%
San Leanna village 212 80.7% 5 100.0% 0 - 12 100.0%
Sunset Valley city 148 79.7% 0 - 17 100.0% 81 0.0%
The Hills village 863 91.1% 0 - 27 100.0% 38 100.0%
Volente village 254 72.4% 0 - 0 - 22 100.0%
Webberville village** 76 96.1% 6 100.0% 0 - 47 68.1%
West Lake Hills city 1,097 87.1% 0 - 9 100.0% 5 100.0%

Total Incorporated Areas 239,534 53.7% 28,467 35.7% 18,111 42.5% 85,841 67.4%

Total Unincorporated Areas 43,637 78.0% 4,986 51.8% 3,021 80.5% 11,125 64.9%

Total Travis County 283,171 57.4% 33,453 38.1% 21,132 47.9% 96,966 40.6%

** Participates in Urban County program
Note:  Figures account for only the portions of each place that fall within Travis County.
Source: 2006-10 American Community Survey (B25003A, B25003B, B25003D, B25003I)

Municipality

White Black Asian Hispanic

* Federal CDBG entitlement community

of city and village borders, two-thirds of Hispanic 
households and 51.8% of Black households 
owned homes.

As previously noted, the median income for 
Black and Hispanic households in Travis County 
is drastically lower than the median for Whites.  
This is one among several factors that contribute 
to the generally lower rates of home ownership 
among minority families.

Black and Hispanic 
households are less likely 
to own homes than White 
and Asian households 
across Travis County and 
in unincorporated areas.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Larger families may be at risk for housing 
discrimination on the basis of race and the 
presence of children (familial status).  A larger 
household, whether or not children are present, 
can raise fair housing concerns.  If there are 
policies or programs that restrict the number 
of persons that can live together in a single 
housing unit, and members of the protected 
classes need more bedrooms to accommodate 
their larger household, there is a fair housing 
concern because the restriction on the size of 
the unit will have a negative impact on members 
of the protected classes.  Such policies do not 
exist in Travis County at the County level, but 
can potentially exist in municipal ordinances.

In the Urban County, minorities were more 
likely than Whites to live in households with 
three or more people.  In 2010, 45.2% of White 

To adequately house larger families, a sufficient 
supply of larger dwelling units consisting of 
three or more bedrooms is necessary.  In the 
Urban County, there are fewer options to rent 
a unit to accommodate large families. Of the 
14,711 rental units in 2010, only 41.5% had 
three or more bedrooms, compared to 90.7% 
of the owner housing stock.

Figure 3-23
Housing Tenure by Race and Ethnicity, 2010

households had three or more people.  By 
comparison, 49% of Black households, 64.7% 
of Asian households and 67% of Hispanic 
households were considered to be large. 

Figure 3-24
Housing Tenure by Race and Ethnicity, 2010

Only one-fifth of rental 
units in the County have 
three or more bedrooms, 
compared to more than 
nearly four-fifths of owner 
units.

White 33.6% 45.2%
Black 39.8% 49.0%
Asian 46.3% 64.7%
Hispanic 56.8% 67.0%
Total 37.6% 50.8%

Percent of Families with 
Three or More Persons

Travis County Urban  County*

* Includes all unincorporated space and the village of 

Source: Census 2010 (SF1, P28)

Note:  Sample size for other racial groups was not sufficiently 
large for reliable analysis.

 Includes all unincorporated space and the village of 
Webberville.

Urban County*
0-1 bedroom 4,562 31.0% 628 1.4%
2 bedrooms 4,046 27.5% 3,465 7.9%
3 or more bedrooms 6,103 41.5% 39,881 90.7%

Total    14,711 100.0% 43,974 100.0%
* Includes all unincorporated space and the village of Webberville.
Source: 2006-10 American Community Survey (B25042)

Renter-Occupied 
Housing Stock

Owner-Occupied 
Housing Stock

# units % of all units # units % of all units

50

Household Size and
Protected Class Status

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Between 1990 and 2010, 
real median housing 
value soared 55.2% in 
Travis County, while real 
household income rose 
only 17.7%.

51

Housing Costs

Increasing housing costs are not a direct form 
of housing discrimination.  However, a lack 
of affordable housing does constrain housing 
choice.  Residents may be limited to a smaller 
selection of neighborhoods because of a lack 
of affordable housing in those areas.

Between 1990 and 2010, median housing value 
(adjusted for inflation to 2010 dollars using BLS 
indices) increased an incredible 55.2% across 
Travis County, while real median income rose 
only 17.7% in real dollars.  Median gross rent 
increased a comparable 52.8% during the 
same years.  The steep increase in median 
housing value paired with a modest rise in real 
income means that buying a house is relatively 
more expensive for individuals and families.   

The number of affordable rental units in the 
Urban County declined between 2000 and 
2010. The number of units renting for less than 
$500 fell by more than half (55.6%).  During 
the same time, the number of units renting 
for more than $1,000 per month increased 
from 2,403 to 6,666, or 177%.  The data does 
not provide a distinction between units that 
were actually lost from the inventory (through 
demolition, etc.) and those for which rents were 
increased.  This figure should be analyzed with 
an understanding that $500 was worth more in 
2000 than in 2010, due to inflation.  This figure, 
due to the categorical nature of the variable, 
cannot be adjusted for inflation.

Figure 3-25
Changes in Housing Value, Rent and Income, 2000 to 2010

Median Housing 
Value (in 2010 $)

Median Gross Rent 
(in 2010 $)

Median Household 
Income (in 2010 $)

1990 $129,074 $583 $45,961
2000 $164,311 $811 $59,418
2010 $200,300 $891 $54,074

Change 55.2% 52.8% 17.7%
Sources:  U.S. Census Bureau, 1990 Census (STF3-H061A, H043A, P080A), 
Census 2000 (SF3-H76, H63, P53), 2006-10 American Community Survey (B25077, 
B25064, B19013); Calculations by Mullin & Lonergan Associates, Inc. 

Figure 3-26
Loss of Affordable Rental Housing Units, 2000 to 2010

# %

Less than $500 756 336 -420 -55.6%
$500 to $699 2,445 1,832 -613 -25.1%
$700 to $999 3,520 5,465 1,945 55.3%
$1,000 or more 2,403 6,666 4,263 177.4%

Sources: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2000 (SF3, H062), 2006-10 
American Community Survey (B25063)

* Includes all unincorporated space and the village of Webberville.

Units Renting for:
2000 2010

Change

Urban County*

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

Impacted Block Groups

Median Gross Rent
Less than $500

$500 to $700

$700 to $900

$900 to $1,000

More than $1,000

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 3-12
Median Gross Rent
by Census Tract, 2010

Source:  2010 Census SF-1

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



The Urban County lost 
half its units renting for 
less than $500 between 
2000 and 2010, while the 
number of units renting 
for more than $1,000 
more than doubled.

53

The National Low Income Housing Coalition 
provides annual information on the Fair Market 
Rent (FMR) and affordability of rental housing in 
counties and cities in the U.S. for 2012.  In Travis 
County, the FMR for a two-bedroom apartment 
is $989. In order to afford this level of rent and 
utilities without paying more than 30% of income on 
housing, a household must earn $3,297 monthly or 
$39,560 annually.  Assuming a 40-hour work week, 
52 weeks per year, this level of income translates 
into a Housing Wage of $19.

In Travis County, a minimum-wage worker earns 
an hourly wage of $7.25. In order to afford the FMR 
for a two-bedroom apartment, a minimum-wage 
earner must work 105 hours per week, 52 weeks 
per year.  The NLIHC estimates that 53% of Travis 
County renters are currently unable to afford the 
two-bedroom FMR.

Monthly Supplemental Security Income (SSI) 
payments for an individual are $698 in Travis 
County and across Texas. If SSI represents an 
individual’s sole source of income, $209 in monthly 
rent is affordable, while the local FMR for a one-
bedroom is $812.

Minimum-wage, single-
income households and 
those depending on SSI 
payments cannot afford an 
apartment renting at the 
fair market rate in Travis 
County.

Map 3-12 displays median gross rent rates by 
census tract across the County, illustrating the 
extent to which lower-cost apartments are confined 
to particular neighborhoods. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



One method used to determine the inherent 
affordability of a housing market is to calculate 
the percentage of homes that could be purchased 
by households at the median income level.  It is 
possible also to determine the affordability of the 
housing market for each racial or ethnic group in 
the County. To determine affordability (i.e., how 
much mortgage a household could afford), the 
following assumptions were made:

• The mortgage was a 30-year fixed rate   
 loan at a 4.0% interest rate, 
• The buyer made a 10% down payment on  
 the sales price,
• Principal, interest, taxes and insurance   
 (PITI) combined with other consumer debt  
 equaled no more than 35% of gross   
 monthly income, a threshold of financial   
 health commonly used by banks, 
• Property taxes were levied at a combined 
 median tax rate of 3%, and
• Additional consumer debt    
 (credit cards, car payment, etc.) averaged  
 $500.

Figure 3-26 details the estimated maximum 
affordable sales prices and monthly PITI payments 
for Whites, Blacks, Asians and Hispanics in Travis 
County (the sample size for income estimates in 
incorporated areas was too unreliably small for 
subtraction).  

In the Austin real estate market, the 2010 median 
sales price for single-family homes was $175,300.  
The Countywide median household income in 
2010 was $54,074, which translates to a maximum 
affordable home purchase price of $166,500.  The 
fact that the median income in Travis County would 
allow a household to afford less than half of homes 
on the market suggests that the County is an 
inherently unaffordable market.  
  
The maximum affordable home purchase prices for 
Whites and Asians was substantially higher than 
the affordable home prices for Black and Hispanic 
homebuyers.  The maximum affordable purchase 
price at the median household income for Blacks 
was 45.4% of the median sales price and only 
47.7% of the maximum affordable purchase price 
for the County overall.  

Figure 3-27
Maximum Affordable Purchase Price by Race/Ethnicity, 2010

The housing market in Travis 
County is widely considered to 
be increasingly unaffordable.  
Generally speaking, it is the 
most unaffordable to  Black 
and Hispanic households as a 
function of the lower median 
household incomes among 
these groups.

54

Mortgage
Principal & 

Interest
Real Estate 

Taxes

Homeowner's
Insurance & 

PMI
Total Debt 
Service*

Travis County $54,074 $715 $278 $80 $1,573 $166,500
Whites $60,809 $859 $333 $80 $1,773 $200,000
Blacks $36,227 $342 $133 $80 $1,054 $79,500
Asians $59,690 $836 $324 $80 $1,740 $194,500
Hispanics $40,948 $443 $172 $80 $1,194 $103,000

Sources: 2006-10 American Community Survey  (B19013, B19013A, B19013B); the Real Estate Center at Texas A&M 
University; Calculations by Mullin & Lonergan Associates, Inc.

Median
Household

Income

Monthly Mortgage Payment
Maximum
Affordable

Purchase Price

2010 Median Sales Price for Single-Family Home in Austin MLS: $175,300
* Includes PITI and $500 in assumed average monthly consumer debt service

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Foreclosure

In recent years, soaring foreclosure rates 
across the country have threatened the viability 
of neighborhoods and the ability of families to 
maintain housing.  While a growing population and 
job growth in the greater Austin area prevented 
Travis County from experiencing the relatively 
devastating concentration of foreclosure activity 
occurring in some other regions, the number of 
foreclosure filings has increased substantially since 
2007, according to the County’s latest Annual Plan.  
The private financing section of the AI includes 
more details on the lending environment, analysis 
of which indicates that minority households tend to 
receive a greater share of loans with higher interest 
rates, which are typically associated with a higher 
foreclosure risk.

Aside from its most direct consequences of 
displacing families and depleting the local tax base, 
concentrated foreclosure results in neighborhood 
deterioration.  As many properties remain in the 
control of financial institutions for longer periods 
of time, structures are abandoned and streets 
become blighted, devaluing nearby property and 
contributing to nuisance activity.  

These problems present an opportunity to 
incorporate fair housing incentives and affirmative 
marketing conditions in the disposition of property.   
While policy emphasis is often placed on the 
immediate problem of getting abandoned property 
efficiently back into an owner’s hands and onto the 
tax rolls, the volume of foreclosure vacancies and 
the extent to which they disproportionately affect 
racially/ethnically concentrated areas of poverty 
calls for attention to fair housing considerations in 
their disposition.

Map 3-13 displays the location of residential 
properties listed for auction in 2010 and 2011.  Most 
of the listings (3,939 in 2010 and 3,387 in 2011) 
are for single-family homes, though other owner-
occupied home types such as condominiums, 
duplexes, mobile homes and townhomes are 
illustrated with markers of varying colors.  

At the scale required for Map 3-13 to fit into the 
AI document, the map does not display one dot 
per auction record.  However, zooming in to 
particular areas of the map reveals neighborhood-
level patterns, such as heavy concentrations on 
particular street blocks.  Map insets appear as 
Figure 3-27.

While 15.2% of all housing units in Travis County 
were located in unincorporated areas in 2010, 
27.7% of foreclosure auction listings from 2010 
and 2011 were for homes in unincorporated areas.  
Therefore, while the raw number of foreclosures 
occurring in the Urban County is far lower than 
in Austin, foreclosure occurs with greater relative 
frequency in the Urban County.

With regard to other patterns, mobile home 
foreclosures are more common in unincorporated 
areas, though this is also a reflection of the 
distribution of housing by structure type across the 
County.  As mentioned previously in the Housing 
Inventory section, multi-family properties are 
concentrated in Austin, while mobile homes are 
located primarily outside of the city.  Similarly, 
condominium foreclosures tend to be located in 
Austin.

The data analyzed in this section was reported 
by Foreclosure Listing Service, Inc., a proprietary 
source that publishes data on the number of 
properties posted for auction.  This indicates pre-
foreclosure status and a risk for foreclosure, though 
not all postings result in an actual foreclosure.  
Because a property may be listed for foreclosure 
more than once, it is possible that the totals reflect 
any homes that were listed in both 2010 and 
2011, though duplicates within a single year were 
removed from the data.

55

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



map 3-13
Foreclosure Listings by Address and
Structure Type, 2010 and 2011

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!!!!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!!

!
!!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!!!

!

!!

!!!!
!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!
!!

!!

!!

!

!!!!!!!!!!

!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

! !!!

!

!!!!

!!

!

!!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

! !
!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!!!!

!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

! !

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!!!!
!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

! !!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!!
!
!!!

!!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!!

!
! !

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!!!

!

!

! !

!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!! !

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
! !!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

! !!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!! !

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!!!!!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

! Single-Family Residential
! Condominium
! Duplex
! Mobile Home
! Townhouse

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Inset 1

Inset 2

Source:  Foreclosure Listing Service, Inc.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



In 2010 and 2011, 27.7% 
of the County’s foreclosure 
auction listings were in 
unincorporated areas, 
compared to only 15.2% of 
all housing units.

Figure 3-28
Insets, 2010-2011 Foreclosure Auction Filings

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!
! !

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !
!
!

! !
!

!!

!!

! !!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!!!
!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!!
!
!!
!
!
!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!!

!

!!

!
!!!

!
!

!
!!

!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

! !!
!!

!

!!!!
!!
!
!

!!
!
!

!

!

!!
!

!
!!

!

!
!!

!

!!!
!!

!

!!!
!!

!

!
!

!!
!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!
!
!

!
!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!!!

! !!!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!!!
!!!
!!
!!

!!!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

9

Inset 1: Hornsby Bend

57

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!! !

!!

!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

! !!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!! !

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

! !!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!!

!

!!! !

!!

!!

!!

! !

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!!
! !!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!! !

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

! !

! !!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

10

14

13

1

1

21

13

28

Inset 2: Hudson Bend

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



58

4 records of 
housing 
discrimination

Existence of Fair 
Housing Complaints

This section analyzes the existence of fair 
housing complaints or compliance reviews 
where a charge of a finding of discrimination 
has been made.  Additionally, this section 
will review the existence of any fair housing 
discrimination suits filed by the United States 
Department of Justice or private plaintiffs 
in addition to the identification of other fair 
housing concerns or problems.

Citizens of Travis County can receive fair 
housing services from a variety of organizations, 
including but not limited to the Texas Workforce 
Commission Civil Rights Division and the 
Austin Tenants’ Council.  These groups provide 
education and outreach, sponsor community 
events, process fair housing complaints, and 
in some cases investigate complaints through 
testing, and/or work to promote a mutual 
understanding of diversity among residents.  

A lack of filed complaints does not necessarily 
indicate a lack of a problem.  Some persons 
may not file complaints because they are not 
aware of how to file a complaint or where to go 
to file a complaint.  Discriminatory practices can 
be subtle and may not be detected by someone 
who does not have the benefit of comparing 
his treatment with that of another home seeker. 

Other times, persons may be aware that they 
are being discriminated against, but they may 
not be aware that the discrimination is against 
the law and that there are legal remedies to 
address the discrimination.  Also, households 
may be more interested in achieving their first 
priority of finding decent housing and may 
prefer to avoid going through the process of 
filing a complaint and following through with it.  
According to the Urban Institute, 83% of those 
who experience housing discrimination do not 
report it because they feel nothing will be done.  
Therefore, education, information, and referral 
regarding fair housing issues remain critical 
to equip persons with the ability to reduce 
impediments.

a. u.s. department of housing      
      and urban development

The Office of Fair Housing and Equal 
Opportunity (FHEO) at HUD receives 
complaints from persons regarding alleged 
violations of the federal Fair Housing Act.  
Fair housing complaints originating in 
Travis County were obtained and analyzed 
for the five-and-a-half year period of 
January 2007 through June 2012.  In total, 
HUD reported receipt of 649 complaints 
originating in Travis County during this 
period, an average of approximately 
118 per year.  However, all but 39 of the 
complaints originated in Austin, which 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Of the 23 housing 
discrimination complaints 
filed with HUD since 2007 
related to cases outside of 
Austin, six alleged disability-
related discrimination at a 
single property in Pflugerville.

59

is beyond the geographic scope of this 
AI.   Focusing the review of complaints on 
those occurring outside of the city allows 
for the more precise identification of trends 
that the Urban County has the jurisdiction 
to address.  Outside of Austin, 39 housing 
complaints were filed during the last five 
years, an average of about seven annually.  
This is on par with the neighboring Urban 
County of Williamson County, which also 
averages seven complaints per year in 
CDBG-eligible areas.

A note on methodology is worth mention 
here.  Each HUD field office maintains a 
slightly different method of record keeping.  
Complaint data reported by the San 
Antonio field office includes a separate 
complaint record for each issue: Therefore, 
a case dealing with both alleged failure to 
make a reasonable accommodation and 
discriminatory terms would be counted as 
two cases.  For the purpose of this analysis 
from this point on, such cases have been 
combined and are counted as one.  After 
the removal of duplicate records, the 39 
complaints outside of Austin consolidate to 
23 unique cases.

There was no clear trend of increase or 
decline in complaints with HUD during the 
years studied, as a low of one complaint 
in 2008 was followed by a high of 13 
complaints in 2009.  Typically, complaint 
trends in a given area can be driven by the 
activities of a local advocate, in this case 
Austin Tenants Council, or affected by 
public awareness of fair housing rights and 
means of redressing violations.  Five of the 
23 unique cases outside of Austin were 
filed by ATC, which provides the service of 
walking tenants through the discrimination 
complaint process.  HUD provided data 
on closed cases only, so it is unclear how 
many cases are currently unresolved.

 

Of the 23 unique cases outside of Austin, 16 
(69.6%) regarded properties in Pflugerville.  
Round Rock had two cases, while one 
case was reported in each of Del Valle, 
Manchaca and Manor.  HUD also counted 
two Wichita Falls cases in Travis County 
records, though that location is in Wichita 
County.

Six of the 16 Pflugerville cases involved 
allegations of failure to make reasonable 
accommodation at a particular property: 
Cambridge Villas.  This is an affordable 
housing development of 208 fourplex 
apartments for seniors that was developed 
by the nonprofit developer associated 
with the Housing Authority of Travis 
County (the Strategic Housing Finance 
Corporation of Travis County).  According 
to the Corporation, 15 units at this site 
are designed for persons with mobility 
disabilities, including four units that also 
include features for persons with sensory 
disabilities.  A third-party property manager 
oversees the apartments.  Of the six cases 
filed against Cambridge Villas, one ended 
with a conciliation/settlement and five were 
withdrawn by the complainant.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



60

Disability was the predominant basis for 
complaint, factoring into 15 of the 23 unique 
cases (65.2%).  Familial status, race and sex 
were each cited in three cases, and national 
origin was cited once.  Three of the 23 cases 
involved more than one issue.

Of the 23 cases outside of Austin that were 
closed as of June 2012, six (26.1%) resulted 
in a successful conciliation or settlement.  A 
complaint is considered conciliated when 
all of the parties to the complaint enter 
into a conciliation agreement with HUD.  
Such agreements include benefits for the 
complainant, and affirmative action on the part 
of the respondent, such as civil rights training.  
HUD has the authority to monitor and enforce 
these agreements.  The settled cases were 
geographically scattered (Manor, Manchaca, 
Pflugerville, Round Rock), and three were 
filed by ATC.  Four involved disability-related 
charges, such as discriminatory terms, 
conditions or privileges or a failure to make 
reasonable accommodation.  The remaining 
two, both ATC cases, involved discriminatory 
advertising.

Of the 23 total unique cases, four (17.4%) 
were found to be without probable cause.  This 
occurs when the preponderance of evidence 
obtained during the course of the investigation 
is insufficient to substantiate the charge of 
discrimination.  Another 12 cases (52.2%) 
were administratively closed, due to complaint 
withdrawal before or after resolution or the 
complainant’s refusal to cooperate.  

Caution should be used when interpreting 
complaints that are administratively closed.  
This resolution does not always mean that 
housing discrimination has not occurred.  In 
the case of a complainant withdrawing a 
complaint, an uncooperative complainant, 
or a complainant who cannot be located, it 
is possible that the complainant changed 
her mind, experienced intimidation, decided 
against the trouble of following through with 
the complainant, chose to seek other housing 
without delay, or some other reasons.

As Figure 4-1 demonstrates, the most 
commonly cited grounds for complaint were 
discriminatory terms, conditions, privileges 
or services/facilities.  This general category 
represented 15 complaints, about two-thirds 
of the total.  The disability-related issues of 
reasonable accommodation and modification 
surfaced 12 times, and four cases alleged 
discriminatory advertising. 

Issue for Complaint Occurrence % of Total

Terms, conditions, privileges or services/facilities 15 65.2%
Failure to make a reasonable accommodation 9 39.1%
Advertising 4 17.4%
Failure to permit a reasonable modification 3 13.0%
Refusal to rent 2 8.7%
Financing 2 8.7%
Acts under Section 818 (coercion, etc) 2 8.7%
Non-compliance with design requirements 2 8.7%
Source:  HUD, San Antonio Regional Office

Figure 4-1
Issues Cited in HUD Discrimination Complaints, 2007-2012

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Disability was the issue 
most commonly cited in 
fair housing complaints 
across the Urban County.

61

B. TEXAS WORKFORCE 
      COMMISSION 

The Texas Workforce Commission Civil 
Rights Division (TWCCRD) accepts and 
investigates fair housing complaints, cross-
filing each it receives with HUD.  While 
both organizations maintain a record of the 
case, only one agency investigates and 
seeks resolution of each case.   TWCCRD 
provided data on 18 resolved housing 
complaints originating across Travis 
County between January 2007 and June 
2012, 10 of which were outside of Austin.

As with the HUD complaints for the same 
years, the prevalent basis for complaint 
was disability, which factored into nine of 
the 10 cases outside of Austin.  National 
origin was the basis for the remaining 
complaint, and two of the disability-related 
complaints also alleged discrimination on 
the bases of familial status and race.

Also similar to the HUD complaints, a 
large share, seven of 10, were related 
to properties in Pflugerville, though it is 
unclear if any involve the senior housing site 
involved in many of the HUD complaints.  
One complaint involved a property in Cedar 
Park, and two were based in Round Rock.  

One of the Round Rock complaints, 
an allegation of refusal to rent and 
discriminatory terms/privileges on the basis 
of disability and familial status, resulted in a 
conciliation.

With regard to other outcomes, six of the 
10 cases were closed with a determination 
of no probable cause, and three were 
administratively closed due to complaint 
withdrawal or failure to cooperate with 
TWCCRD’s investigation.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



62

Discrimination 
Testing

The Austin Tenants Council (ATC) is a HUD-
certified counseling agency that participates in 
HUD’s Fair Housing Initiatives Program (FHIP), 
through which ATC partners with HUD to help 
people identify government agencies that 
handle complaints of housing discrimination.  
In filing and settling complaints, ATC’s primary 
goal is not financial compensation, but generally 
compelling defendants to complete fair housing 
training and, if applicable, make reasonable 
accommodations.  ATC is not an enforcement 
agency, so its cases are investigated by HUD, 
TWCCRD or a local body, such as the City of 
Austin’s Human Rights Commission.  In Austin, 
local ordinances establish additional protected 
classes, including sexual orientation, marital 
status, gender identity, student status and age, 
that do not apply in the Urban County.  

During AI interviews, ATC staff members 
explained that there is no statutory protection 
from discrimination on the basis of a person’s 
source of income, which makes it legally 
acceptable for a landlord to refuse to rent to a 
family receiving government assistance.  This, 
ATC said, is an important barrier to housing 
choice in Travis County, as only about 10% of 
landlords in Austin accept housing vouchers.  
The number is likely even smaller outside city 
borders, given the relative scarcity of affordable 
rental units in unincorporated areas.

As part of its activities as a FHIP participant, 
ATC has conducted between 100 and 150 fair 
housing tests across Central Texas in recent 
years.  Testing commonly occurs when new 
multi-family rental properties come online to 
determine whether facilities are designed and 
built according to the standards of accessibility 
mandated by federal law.  ATC has found 
multiple sites in violation, including those in 
receipt of federal funding.  The Council also 
conducts paired testing of advertised rental 
or sales properties to determine whether 
landlords, Realtors or sellers comply with their 
responsibilities under the Fair Housing Act.

County Involvement in 
Fair Housing Cases

Travis County is not subject to or operating 
under  any desegregation orders or unlawful 
segregation orders.  The County is not 
currently involved in or a party to any fair 
housing lawsuits, nor has it been a party to 
such litigation in the past five years.

The Del Valle Community Coalition filed a 
discrimination complaint with HUD against 
Travis County that is currently under 
investigation.   The complaint alleges that 
conditions were imposed on a group of Hispanic 
and Black persons in violation of Title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended by the 
Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, with 
respect to the issuance and/or denial of gravel 
mining permits in Travis County. The County 
denies that it discriminated on the basis of race 
and/or national origin, or any other unlawful 
basis. In connection with the complaint, HUD 
requested information regarding TXI Permit 
#08-2115 in particular, as well as information 
regarding all permits issued for sand and gravel 
mining, backfill pits or other similar operations 
for Eastern Travis County and Western Travis 
County since 2001.  The County has complied 
with all requests made to date.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



63

5 review of 
public sector 
policies

The analysis of impediments is a review of 
impediments to fair housing choice in the 
public and private sector.  Impediments to fair 
housing choice are any actions, omissions, or 
decisions taken because of race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status or national origin 
that restrict housing choices or the availability 
of housing choices, or any actions, omissions 
or decisions that have the effect of restricting 
housing choices or the availability of housing 
choices on the basis of race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status or national origin. 
Policies, practices or procedures that appear 
neutral on their face but which operate to deny 
or adversely affect the provision of housing 
to persons of a particular race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status, or national origin 
may constitute such impediments.

An important element of the AI includes 
an examination of public policy in terms of 
its impact on housing choice. This section 
evaluates the public policies in the Urban 
County to determine opportunities for furthering 
the expansion of fair housing choice.

Policies Governing Investment 
of Funds for Housing and 
Community Development

From a budgetary standpoint, housing choice 
can be affected by the allocation of staff and 
financial resources to housing related programs 
and initiatives.  The decline in federal funding 
opportunities for affordable housing for lower-
income households has shifted much of the 
challenge of affordable housing production to 
state, county and local government decision 
makers.

The recent Westchester County, NY, fair 
housing settlement also reinforces the 
importance of expanding housing choice in 
areas outside of high-poverty concentrations 
of racial and/or ethnic minorities.  Westchester 
County violated its cooperation agreements 
with local units of government which prohibit 
the expenditure of CDBG funds for activities 
in communities that do not affirmatively further 
fair housing within their jurisdiction or otherwise 
impede the county’s action to comply with its 
fair housing certifications.  As an Urban County 
jurisdiction, Travis County is similarly bound to 
ensure that its entitlement funds are applied 
only in ways that are consistent with this aim.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



64

Travis County receives federal entitlement 
funds from HUD in the form of the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, 
the primary objective of which is to develop 
viable urban communities by providing decent 
housing, a suitable living environment, and 
economic opportunities, principally for persons 
of low and moderate income levels. For fiscal 
year 2011, HUD allocated $790,136 in formula 
grant funds to the County.  Funds can be used 
for a wide array of activities, including: housing 
rehabilitation, homeownership assistance, 
lead-based paint detection and removal, 
construction or rehabilitation of public facilities 
and infrastructure, removal of architectural 
barriers, public services, rehabilitation of 
commercial or industrial buildings, and loans 
or grants to businesses.

The County’s CDBG program, administered 
within the Department of Health and Human 
Services and Veterans Services, is young 
by national standards.  Urban Travis County 
met the population threshold for entitlement 
community status and was designated as 
a program community in 2006.  The initial 
operation of the grant program was delayed 
due to an allocation error from HUD, which 
resulted in later issues with timeliness.  As of 
the 2011 Annual Plan, the Urban County was 
administering funds from each of the previous 
five years concurrently.

The CDBG program’s spending mix reflects 
an exhaustive and professional Consolidated 
Planning process.  The latest multi-year plan, 
for program years 2011 through 2013, bases its 
identification of local needs in a comprehensive 
analysis of available data indicators and 
community outreach.  The County lists three 
overarching priorities: assisting low- and 
moderate-income households in obtaining 
affordable housing, improving the safety and 
livability of neighborhoods and increasing 
access to services.

To address these priorities, the County has 
invested  CDBG funds in eligible infrastructure 
installation and improvement projects in 
low- and moderate-income areas, funded an 
owner-occupied rehabilitation program and 
home buyer assistance, provided essential 
public services to underserved populations 
and acquired land for affordable housing.

The geographic scope of the Urban 
County’s CDBG program currently includes 
unincorporated areas of Travis County and the 
Village of Webberville, the only participating 
municipality.  Incorporated communities that 
are not part of the Urban County program may 
compete at the state level for CDBG funds.

Due to limited resources, the CDBG budget 
for 2006-2011 did not include a line item for 
pure fair housing activities such as education, 
outreach or testing, though fair housing 
activities are funded in 2012.  The provision 
of fair housing services is eligible as either 
a program administration cost, per 24 CFR 
570.206, or as a public service, per 24 CFR 
570.201(e). Funding from other County 
sources has included allocations for fair 
housing purposes, such as the development 
of this report and renters’ rights assistance 
services.

Travis County does not receive a direct federal 
entitlement of HOME funds, which would 
provide for the development and rehabilitation of 
affordable rental and ownership housing for low- 
and moderate-income households.  However, 
the County’s Housing Finance Corporation 
(HFC) works with the Texas Department of 
Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) 
to address this need, administering a single-
family home ownership program and issuing 
tax-exempt bonds that finance the construction 
or acquisition of multi-family apartments that 
provide affordable rental housing to income-
eligible families.  In the administration of its 
multi-family bond program, HFC has a stated 
goal of promoting efficient, well-planned 
growth and development, particularly proper 
coordination with surrounding uses, including 
mass transit if possible, and the limitation and 
prevention of potential urban blight.

Policies of both the CDBG program and the 
Housing Finance Corporation are covered in 
this section of the AI.

The County has allocated 
general funds for some 
activities that further fair 
housing, such as the AI 
and tenant services.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



The County’s CDBG 
program reflects an 
effort to balance 
the improvement of 
living conditions in 
impoverished areas 
with the creation of 
access to opportunity-
rich neighborhoods. 65

a.  Project proposal 
      and selection

The CDBG program has three separate 
applications: for County departments (and 
Webberville), for nonprofit organizations 
and for resident groups.  Applications are 
accepted on a rolling basis, though each 
year’s funding cycle closes on March 
31.  Staff members review proposals and 
potential sites to identify and evaluate 
all aspects of projects before submitting 
recommendations to Commissioners 
Court on which projects should receive 
funding.  

The Court annually approves the criteria 
for CDBG project selection, which are 
explained in each year’s application 
materials.  Once projects are determined 
to be CDBG-eligible and consistent with 
the program’s national objectives, they are 
ranked according to the degree to which 
they address a high-priority goal of the 
Strategic Plan, their feasibility, the number 
of beneficiaries, the benefit to low- and 
moderate-income persons and whether 
they include a leverage or match of funding 
from another source.  Infrastructure 
projects may be phased over three years 
to achieve 100% funding.

The Housing Finance Corporation 
evaluates proposals for its bond financing 
programs on a rolling basis.  The 
Corporation has not established a points 
system tied to evaluation criteria, but 
considers multiple angles in determining 
whether a project should be funded.  
Feasibility is a primary issue, though 
location is also a factor.  HFC has 
rejected a proposal for affordable housing 
development that was “within a stone’s 
throw” of two other subsidized properties 
to avoid concentration, according to staff 
members.

b.  geographic distribution
      of investments

To incorporate fair housing best practices, 
the County’s CDBG staff incorporates 
mapping to a high degree in planning and 
project selection.  One of the first steps in 
reviewing a CDBG application is to locate 
the proposed site on a map relative to the 
County’s low- and moderate-income areas 
and block groups of racial and/or ethnic 
concentration.  

Because the Urban County’s CDBG 
program is not in the business of housing 
development or redevelopment, its 
investments in broadening housing 
opportunities come in the form of creating 
access, mostly through the installation or 
improvement of infrastructure or acquisition 
of land, such as the acquisition of space 
along Gilbert Lane for the development of 
affordable housing.  By the nature of that 
work, much of it occurs in neighborhoods 
in sore need of an improvement in living 
environment.  In Travis County, this 
includes isolated, impoverished areas 
that may lack access to public water 
and sewer and other basic amenities.  
However, with a goal of connecting lower-
income residents with increased options 
in affordable housing, the County has 
worked to identify street-level pockets 
of poverty in the typically more affluent 
western half of the County where strategic 
CDBG investment could improve access 
to a high-opportunity neighborhood.  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



!

!

!

!
!

!

Gilbert Lane
(Land Acquisition)

Plain View Estates
(Water Connections)

Apache Shores
(Street Improvements)

North Ridge Acres
(Water Connections)

Lava Lane
(Street Improvements)

UV130

UV45N

UV1

UV45SE

tu183

tu290

tu290

¬«71

")620

UV360

Travis County CDBG PY 06 through PY 12 Projects

Note:  Placement of project locations is approximate
Source: Water and County Boundaries are Census 

2011 TIGER/Line Files accessible via census.gov
Created by: Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2012

§̈¦35

Lake Oak Estates
(Street Improvements)

Las Lomitas
(Water Connections)

! Incomplete Projects

! Completed Projects

Major County Roads

Impacted Block Groups

map 5-1
Travis County CDBG Project Sites, 
2006-2012

66

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



67

Map 5-1, which includes sites for CDBG 
projects proposed, in progress and completed 
dating back to 2006, demonstrates a balance 
between improving the living environment in 
impacted areas  and facilitating access to other 
areas of the County.

The Housing Finance Corporation provided 
addresses for its current portfolio of project 
sites, which includes more than 3,600 units 
funded through the multi-family bond program, 
117 homes that were purchased through down 
payment assistance, 34 sites where tenant-
based rental assistance has been used to 
make apartments or rental homes affordable, 
and eight Neighborhood Stabilization Program 
(NSP) undertakings.  All of these sites are 
plotted in Map 5-2.

Most of HFC’s multi-family stock appears to 
be concentrated in Austin, where the majority 
of its multi-family structures are located.  Of 
16 such sites, 14 are located in the city, while 
two sites totaling a combined 510 units are in 
Pflugerville.  

HFC’s single-family assistance is, however, 
limited to unincorporated areas.  Self-
sufficiency tenants are focused in Pflugerville, 
though some households are scattered into 
other areas, including the western half of the 
County.  The locations of households receiving 
tenant-based assistance are limited to 
properties with landlords willing to participate 
in the program.  Due to record lows in rental 
vacancies, HFC has found that locating single-
family rental units that will accept households 
with assistance is very difficult.  To broaden 
opportunities, HFC is currently in the process 
of creating landlord collateral materials to 
increase landlord outreach and participation in 
the program.

c.  affirmative marketing

The County is federally required to adopt 
affirmative procedures and requirements for all 
CDBG- or HOME-assisted housing with five or 
more units.  Such a plan should include: 

• Methods of informing the public,  
 owners, and potential tenants about  
 fair housing laws and the Urban   
 County’s policies 

• A description of what the owners  
 and/or the Urban County will do to  
 affirmatively market housing assisted  
 with CDBG funds

• A description of what the owners and/ 
 or the Urban County will do to inform  
 persons not likely to apply for housing  
 without special outreach 

• Maintenance of records to document  
 actions taken to affirmatively market  
 CDBG-assisted units and to assess  
 marketing effectiveness, and 

• A description of how efforts will be  
 assessed and what corrective actions  
 will be taken where requirements are  
 not met. 

The County has prepared and implemented 
a comprehensive Affirmative Marketing Plan 
that applies to the CDBG program in particular.  
HFC complies with the requirements of its own 
funding programs, such as the HOME program, 
in ensuring adequate marketing of the housing 
opportunities it creates.

Though the County has not adopted a human 
rights ordinance to expand the classes 
protected by law from housing discrimination 
in the private market, the Affirmative Marketing 
Plan extends protection beyond the federally 
protected classes of race, color, national origin, 
religion, sex, familial status and disability to also 
include marital status, sexual orientation and 
gender identity.  This reflects recent changes 
to HUD program regulation prohibiting HUD-
funded entities from discriminating on those 
grounds.

Few of the affordable 
multi-family rental 
units created through 
HFC partnerships are 
located in the Urban 
County.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!
!

! !!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

! Neighborhood Stabilization Program

! Tenant-Based Rental Assistance

! Down Payment Assistance

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Multi-Family Bond Program
Number of Units

! Unknown

! Up to 250

! 250 to 400

! 400 to 600

map 5-2
Travis County Housing Finance Corporation
Portfolio of Assisted Units by Program, 2012

Source:  Travis County Housing Finance Corporation

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



The CDBG Affirmative 
Marketing Plan could 
be strengthened by 
adding a statement 
of consequences for 
noncompliance.

69

The Affirmative Marketing Plan states a policy 
to accommodate people with disabilities and 
those who do not speak English.  The latter are 
specifically accommodated by the presence of 
translators at community meetings in precincts 
where more than 25% of the population 
speaks a non-English language.  Additionally, 
all marketing and outreach materials are 
translated into Spanish for purposes of 
affirmatively marketing to the Hispanic 
population, and Spanish-language notices are 
published in Spanish-language periodicals of 
general circulation.  The Plan specifies that all 
materials, outreach and marketing for Hispanic 
households must be available in both English 
and Spanish.

According to the Plan, marketing plans for all 
housing projects will be specifically designed 
to reflect their location, the local demographic 
profile and the type of opportunities being made 
available.  (For instance, marketing for a home 
ownership program would involve special 
outreach to Hispanic and Black homebuyers, 
as they have experienced disproportionate 
cost burden related to home ownership.)

The Plan includes suggestions for targeted 
outreach efforts, including selecting 
neighborhoods in which to disseminate 
information, advertising in minority-specific 
publications and distributing information to 
community organizations, places of worship, 
fair housing groups, housing and social service 
centers and housing counselors.

In order to ensure awareness of and compliance 
with the Plan, the CDBG program requires 
subrecipients to maintain a training program 
that includes an overview of affirmative 
marketing and fair housing.  Affirmative 
outreach and marketing activites are required 
to be documented, and the Plan suggests use 
of the standardized HUD Form 27061H, “Race 
and Ethnic Data Reporting.”  Subrecipients are 
held accountable through annual reporting in 
the County’s CAPER. 

The Plan concludes with contact information for 
complaints and grievances related to problems 
with affirmative marketing, along with contact 
information related to fair housing issues in 
general.  

By fair housing standards, the Plan is 
comprehensive and specific, including detailed 
information on the County’s expectations 
for its own programs and for activities being 
administered by any subrecipients.  The only 
potential area for further specificity would be a 
statement of consequences for noncompliance 
with the Plan, which could potentially include 
a recapture of funds, disallowance of future 
participation in the CDBG program and/
or referral of the matter to HUD and/or a fair 
housing rights organization such as Austin 
Tenants Council.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



70

Appointed Boards
and Commissions

A community’s sensitivity to fair housing issues 
is often determined by people in positions of 
public leadership. The perception of housing 
needs and the intensity of a community’s 
commitment to housing related goals and 
objectives are often measured by board 
members, directorships, and the extent to which 
these individuals relate within an organized 
framework of agencies, groups, and individuals 
involved in housing matters. The expansion 
of fair housing choice requires a team effort 
and public leadership and commitment is a 
prerequisite to strategic action. 

The following boards and commissions were 
identified to influence issues related to housing 
and land use in Travis County.

a.  COA Comprehensive   
      plan advisory 
      committee

This panel was appointed by 
Commissioners Court to provide input to 
the City of Austin during the development 
of its latest Comprehensive Plan.  The city’s 
resolution called for one representative 
and one alternate to represent the extra-
territorial jurisdiction (ETJ) in the following 
areas: Land Use; Transportation; Storm 
Water Management and Water Quality; 
Natural Resources and Environmental 
Quality; Parks and Open Spaces; and 
Health and Human Services.  Members 
were appointed to serve no more than 35 
months and have finished their service, 
rendering the committee no longer active.  
Four White males and one White female 
participated, none of whom reported a 
disability.

b.  housing authority
      of travis county

The Housing Authority of Travis County 
provides affordable housing opportunities 
to low-income residents through the 
administration of the public housing and 
housing choice voucher programs, among 
other initiatives.  As of June 2012, its five-
member board of directors included a 
Black male, a Black female, a White male, 
a White female and a Hispanic male, none 
of whom were disabled.  Board members 
serve staggered two-year terms.

c.  STRATEGIC HOUSING 
      FINANCE CORPORATION

The Strategic Housing Finance 
Corporation of Travis County is the 
nonprofit development subsidary of the 
Housing Authority, created to finance the 
costs of acquiring residential property in 
the County.  As of June 2012, its board of 
directors included a Black female, a Black 
male, a Hispanic female, two Hispanic 
males, a White female and a White male.  
No disabilities were reported among board 
members.

While minorities and 
females are represented on 
appointed boards dealing 
with housing issues, persons 
with disabilities should 
also have a place in the 
discussion.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Retrofitting the aging 
housing stock in rural 
areas is often made 
infeasible by the poor 
condition of properties.

Instead of accessibility 
problems being identified 
during the initial phases 
of building, housing 
advocates reported that 
noncompliant features are 
often identified through 
the fair housing complaints 
process.

71

Accessibility of Residential 
Dwelling Units

Texas, a Dillon’s rule state, does not allow counties 
to adopt home rule; therefore, the powers they may 
exercise are limited to those explicitly granted by 
state government.  For Texas counties, this does 
not include the authority to adopt building codes.  
What applies outside of incorporated boundaries 
are the standards of the International Building 
Code, which has been effectively adopted by 
the state.  The responsibility for compliance is 
on builders, who submit construction reports 
to county governments.  Even if such a report 
indicates that a builder has not met an aspect of 
the code, however, counties do not wield direct 
enforcement power.

Therefore, Travis County’s authority over new 
residential construction projects concerns only 
the issuance of three permits: driveway (if the 
property is on a county-maintained road), flood 
plain and septic system.  During AI interviews, 
County staff members emphasized the limitations 
on their land use control: “basically anything” 
can be sited anywhere within unincorporated 
space, as long as its construction conforms to the 
minimal standards in place.

With regard to accessibility, the International 
Fire Code applies to commercial structures, 
including multi-family dwellings, but concerns 
the site plan only, to the exclusion of interior 
features such as door widths.  For single-family 
dwellings, the County requires developers to 
inform the Department of Transportation and 
Natural Resources (TNR) of the code to which 
they’ll be building and submit proof of a passed 
inspection.  Residences in incorporated areas 
are subject to any building codes that have been 
locally adopted.

The Texas Accessibility Standards require 
accessibility for persons with disabilities in publicly 
funded, state-owned and state-leased buildings, 
in addition to public and private buildings as 
defined by the ADA.  During the development of 
the AI, the Austin Tenants Council reported that 
its testing of newly constructed rental projects 
in Travis County, with and without assistance 
from public sources, has revealed sites of both 
types that are unlawfully inaccessible to persons 
with physical disabilities.  Given the limitations in 
powers afforded to Travis County by the State 
of Texas, the County is currently unequipped to 
adequately address such issues.

The absence of meaningful authority for local 
control over the design and construction of new 
residential structures is one possible reason 
for reported instances of noncompliance with 
federal and state accessibility requirements. 
The County has a design and construction 
problem, ATC staff members said: While TNR 
reviews structures from the slab down and the 
fire marshal reviews structures for fire issues 
from the slab up, no one reviews the structures 
to determine whether they meet accessibility 
standards.

The aging housing stock in the County’s more 
rural areas is not required to be accessible 
and, according to housing advocates, it largely 
is not.  Accessible units are even less common  
among single-family structures, many of 
which in rural areas are in poor condition.  
Agencies such as the Austin Resource Center 
for Independent Living (ARCIL) can provide 
retrofitting, but reported in AI interviews that 
“we can’t do bathroom modifications if the roof 
is falling in,” explaining that the deterioration 
of aging homes creates a set of challenges 
complicated and expensive to address.  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



72

Language 
Accommodations

As noted in an earlier section of this report, 
the number of LEP Spanish speakers in Travis 
County exceeds 100,000.   However, given 
limitations in ACS data, it is not clear how many 
persons with LEP are in the Urban County 
versus Austin, which is a separate entitlement 
community not served by the county.  Through 
experience working in the community, 
the CDBG office is aware of particular 
neighborhoods within the unincorporated areas 
where a substantial share of the population 
speaks Spanish as a first language.  

The County’s Citizen Participation Plan and 
CDBG Affirmative Marketing Plan address 
methods of ensuring that the limited-English 
population has access to County programs 
and services, largely through ensuring that 
translators attend critical community events 
and providing documents and advertisements 
in both English and Spanish.  CDBG staff 
members annually review ACS data to identify 
areas where more than 25% of the population 
speaks a non-English language, then ensures 
that various language services are available to 
meet needs in these areas.  The CDBG office 
translates documents related to all programs 
that provide services (applications, notices, 
primary surveys, marketing material, etc.) and 
requires subrecipients to demonstrate how 
they will serve LEP clients.

The CDBG office has incorporated HUD’s 
guidance relative to Executive Order 13166, 
“Improving Access to Services for Persons 
with Limited English Proficiency,” in developing 
a preliminary policy framework that will guide 
its formal Language Access Plan (LAP), which 
staff members expect to create during the 
next year.  Although there is no requirement 
to develop a LAP for persons with LEP, HUD 
entitlement communities are responsible for 
serving LEP persons in accordance with Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.  Preparation 
of a LAP is the most effective way to achieve 
compliance.  

In accordance with HUD’s guidance, Travis 
County’s LAP should include a four-factor 
analysis to determine the extent to which the 
translation of vital documents is warranted.   
(The term “vital document” refers generally to 
any publication that is needed to gain access 
to the benefits of a program or service.)  

The four-factor analysis requires entitlements 
such as the County to evaluate the need for 
translation and/or other accommodations 
based on four factors:

• The number or proportion of persons  
 with LEP to be served or likely to be  
 encountered by the program

• The frequency with which persons with 

 LEP come into contact with the   
 program

• The nature and importance of the  
 program, activity or services provided  
 by the program, and

• Resources available to the grantee  
 vs. costs

Currently, each County department is 
responsible to ensure that it provides adequate 
opportunities for engagement by LEP persons.  
Ideally, adoption of a set of government-wide 
LAP policies would somewhat standardize the 
ways in which Travis County serves its limited-
English population, which may need assistance 
accessing local government programs and 
services.

The CDBG Office is in the 
process of formalizing 
its LAP, which should be 
completed within the next 
year.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Public opinion favors 
greater land use control at 
the County level.

73

Zoning, Land Use 
and Comprehensive Planning

A community’s comprehensive plan is 
a statement of policies relative to new 
development and preservation of existing 
assets.  In particular, the land use element of 
the comprehensive plan defines the location, 
type and character of future development.  The 
housing element of the comprehensive plan 
expresses the preferred density and intensity 
of residential neighborhoods within the county.  
Taken together, the land use and housing 
elements of the comprehensive plan define a 
vision of the type of place that a community 
wishes to become.

Travis County has not adopted a comprehensive 
plan or similar document that contains broad 
objectives for land use or housing.  Like all 
Texas counties, Travis County is limited by 
state law in the extent of its land use authority.  
In unincorporated areas, Texas counties may 
approve the subdivision of land, construct and 
maintain subdivision roads and assess costs 
to landowners, and may specify minimum 
standards for road construction and drainage.  
County staff members in the Department of 
Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
have expressed a need to exercise more 
control over land use, particularly to buffer 
incompatible land uses and control sprawl.  

In 2008, the County contracted with a research 
firm, NuStats, to conduct an empirical study 
of community views on whether the County’s 
land use authority should be increased.  The 
results of the research, which included 29 
in-depth stakeholder interviews, an online 
survey and public forum, indicated that people 
supported the concept of more County control 
in unincorporated areas to manage growth 
and resolve incompatible uses.  By a three-
to-one margin, residents agreed that the 
Commissioners Court should have greater 

land use authority over unincorporated space, 
and by a similar margin they agreed that the 
Court should determine where growth should 
and should not occur and what types of 
activities should be allowed.  Comprehensive 
planning had “almost unanimous support,” 
with residents in favor of the Court developing, 
implementing and enforcing a comprehensive 
plan.

As a result, County staff members are 
examining existing plans for individual 
features (recreation, green space, etc.) to 
determine whether they can be combined in an 
overarching document of larger scope, which 
would also include study of land, water and 
transportation.  The County continues to lobby 
the state legislature to expand its local land 
use authority.  

In the meantime, in the absence of County 
authority, the rapid expansion of the County’s 
population has resulted in sprawling settlement, 
in which subdivisions of urban character have 
sprung up in rural areas, increasing traffic 
on County roads and driving a need for off-
site infrastructure improvements.  Within 
subdivisions, developers typically handle 
infrastructure.  Therefore, a disparity in quality 
has historically been noticeable: Wealthy 
subdivisions were built with high-quality living 
environments, while lower-income subdivisions 
were more often subject to substandard 
infrastructure.  The County has  more recently 
adopted subdivision standards, and those with 
substandard infrastructure are not approved.

Mobile homes in unincorporated areas are 
often scattered across lots that are not in 
mobile home parks and do not necessarily have 
access to public water and sewer amenities.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



74

While land use in Travis County’s 
unincorporated space is not governed by 
zoning regulations, control commonly takes 
the form of deed/covenant restrictions.  In 
Travis County, these contracts between 
buyer and developer are often similar to 
zoning criteria and are, according to County 
staff members, very prevalent.  Subdivisions 
and homeowner associations enforce these 
contractual obligations by litigation.  In AI 
interviews, TNR and housing advocates both 
acknowledged the existence of discriminatory 
convenants in some subdivisions: “no renters,” 
“no minorities.”  While such stipulations may 
be outdated and unenforced, they violate the 
Fair Housing Act.  Additionally, Texas Property 
Code Sec. 5.026 makes all discriminatory 
provisions in deed restrictions throughout the 
state illegal and unenforceable. 

Some deed restrictions, covenants and 
homeowners’ association rules violate the 
Fair Housing Act in more subtle ways.  Austin 
Tenants Council reported that requirements 
exist in some neighborhoods as a veiled means 
of weeding out the poor, such a a minimum 
structure size standard of 1,800 square feet or a 
stipulation that all sides of a home must consist 
of masonry.  HOAs have been known to deny 
reasonable accommodations, imposing rules 
such as “no window air conditioning units” or 
“no pets” along with stringent parking or grass 
mowing requirements regardless of a tenant or 
owner’s disability status.

The CDBG program reported that Habitat 
for Humanity, armed with a list of ready-to-
build subdivisions with infrastructure in Travis 
County, made calls to locate a site where 
it could construct affordable single-family 
housing using CDBG funds for land acquisition 
and had no success in Western Travis County.  
Many developers indicated that such housing 
“is not in [our neighborhood’s] financial model.”  
In the end, the only viable site Habitat located 
as a result of that search was in the Eastern 
part of the County, where more of its racially/
ethnically concentrated areas of poverty are 
located.

Discriminatory deed/
covenant restrictions 
are still in place in some 
neighborhoods, though they 
have been made illegal and 
unenforceable.

Advocates reported 
a general lack of fair 
housing awareness among 
HOAs, which has resulted 
in the enforcement of 
discriminatory rules and a 
lack of accommodation for 
persons with disabilities.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



75

Typically, an analysis of impediments includes 
an examination of local zoning ordinances 
within the CDBG program area to evaluate the 
extent to which regulations advance or limit fair 
housing opportunities.  The analysis of zoning 
regulations is based on the following five topics 
raised in HUD’s Fair Housing Planning Guide, 
which include:

• The opportunity to develop various  
 housing types (including apartments  
 and housing at various densities)

• The opportunity to develop alternative  
 designs (such as cluster developments, 
 planned residential developments, 
 inclusionary zoning and transit-
 oriented developments)  

• Minimum lot size requirements

• Dispersal requirements and regulatory 
 provisions for housing facilities for 
 persons with disabilities (i.e. group 
 homes) in single family zoning districts

• Restrictions on the number of unrelated 
 persons in dwelling units.

However, because the Urban County’s CDBG 
program includes only unincorporated space 
and the Village of Webberville, which does not 
have a zoning ordinance and has apparently 
maintained a development moratorium since 
its incorporation in 2003, there are no local 
zoning requirements affecting land areas where 
CDBG funds can be allocated.  The absence of 
local controls implies that outside of limitations 
imposed by deed and covenant restrictions, 
affordable housing types and group homes for 
persons with disabilities may be developed in 
any area of the Urban County.

Housing Authority of 
Travis County

The Housing Authority of Travis County 
(HATC) owns and manages 105 units of public 
housing spread across three sites in Austin 
and administers a Housing Choice Voucher 
program, three Shelter Plus Care projects and 
a lease-purchase program.  Additionally, the 
Authority’s nonprofit subsidary, the Strategic 
Housing Finance Corporation of Travis County 
(SHFC), is the general partner for three tax-
credit multi-family properties comprising 278 
senior units and 192 family units.

HATC’s three public housing developments, of 
51, 24 and 30 units, were constructed in the 
early 1980s.  One site is located in an area that 
was originally unincorporated space, though 
it has since been incorporated by Austin.  
HATC has no plans for new development, 
though SFHC is working to acquire tax credit 
properties for which affordability requirements 
are set to expire.  This would add 600 units to 
the inventory.

With regard to the Housing Choice Voucher 
program, HATC currently manages 568 
of its own vouchers and 80 port-ins from 
other jurisdictions.  The Authority maintains 
a reciprocal agreement with the Housing 
Authority of the City of Austin, non-exclusive 
jurisdiction, meaning that voucher applicants 
may apply in either the City or County for either 
program.  Voucher portability between the two 
jurisdictions, according to staff members, is 
seamless.

The waiting list for the voucher program has 
been closed since September 2005.  As of 
June 2012, there were about 250 households 
on the list.  When the list was opened to new 
applicants for two weeks in 2005, more than 
4,000 applications poured in.  Austin’s voucher 
waiting list, which exceeds 5,000 applicants, is 
also closed. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



HATC allows voucher holders 60 days to locate 
an appropriate unit.  Staff members reported 
that there are an adequate number of landlords 
participating in the program across the Urban 
County, and that participants generally do 
not experience difficulty in finding a unit that 
meets their needs.  HATC has not required any 
household to return a voucher due to inability 
to locate a suitable place to live.  

The distribution of voucher holders appears in 
Map 5-3.  The scale of the map is such that 
not all 680 sites plotted are discernible, so the 
map is best interpreted as a generalization of 
location trends.  The majority of HATC voucher 
holders (505, or 74.2%) had Austin addresses 
as of June 2012, while 97 were located in 
Pflugerville, 31 were located in Manor, 14 
were located in Round Rock and others were 
scattered in smaller numbers across Cedar 
Park, Del Valle and other areas.  A handful 
of port-outs were located in Dallas, Houston, 
neighboring counties and in other states.

The address data provided by HATC includes 
contract rent rates for each household.  Of all 
680 households plotted, 189 (27.8%) paid less 
than $700 per month, while 312 (45.9%) paid 
between $700 and $1,000.  The remaining 179 
households, or 26.3%, paid more than $1,000 
per month, up to a maximum of $1,630.  With 
only one exception, all of the above-$1,000 
rents were paid for units with three or four 
bedrooms.  The geographic distribution 
by contract rent suggests that higher rents 
are commanded in central areas of Austin, 
while more affordable units are available in 
and beyond the city’s eastern end.  Hornsby 
Bend contains a concentration of voucher 
households paying less than $700.  This area, 
as noted previously in the report, experienced 
a high proportion of residential foreclosures in 
2010 and 2011.

HATC voucher holders are 
scattered across the eastern 
half of Travis County, but 
hardly any are located in its 
western half, due primarily 
to the difficulty of finding 
a unit in this typically 
wealthier area affordable 
at the HUD FMR.

76

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!

!

!!!

!!!!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!!

!

!

!!!!!

!!!

!!

!

!!

!

!!!!!!!

!!

!

!!!!

!!!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!!!!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!

!

!

!!!

!

!!!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!!!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!!!!

!

!! !

!

!!!

!

!

!!!!!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!!

!

!!

!

!!!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!
!!
!
!!!!
!!

!

!!!

!!

!

!!!!

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Vouchers by Contract Rent
! Less than $700
! $700 to $1,000
! $1,000 to $1,600

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 5-3
Voucher Household Locations by Contract Rent, 2012
Housing Authority of Travis County

77

Source:  HATC

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Total households 670 222
Income level
  Extremely low income (30% or less of AMI) 543 81.0% 0.0%
  Very low income (30.1% to 50% of AMI) 105 15.7% 0.0%
  Low income (50.1% to 80% of AMI) 22 3.3% 0.0%
Household type*
  Families with children 326 48.7% 142 64.0%
  Elderly 96 14.3% 16 7.2%
  Member with a disability 321 47.9% 58 26.1%
Race and ethnicity 
  Black 416 62.1% 136 61.3%
  White 246 36.7% 85 38.3%
  Asian 5 0.7% 1 0.5%
  Other race 3 0.4% 0 0.0%

   0 Bedroom 0 0.0% 0.0%
   1 Bedroom 172 25.7% 0.0%
   2 Bedroom 171 25.5% 0.0%
   3 Bedroom 268 40.0% 0.0%
   4 Bedroom 58 8.7% 0.0%
   5+ Bedroom 1 0.1% 0.0%

* Categories are not mutually exclusive.
Source: Housing Authority of Travis County

Current Voucher Holders Waiting List Applicants

Characteristics by bedroom size

figure 5-1
Characteristics of Housing Choice Voucher 
Holders and Applicants, June 2012

78

Figure 5-1 describes demographic 
characteristics of both current voucher 
households and those who are on the voucher 
waiting list.  As mentioned previously, the 
relatively low number of households on the 
waiting list is a function of the list having been 
closed since 2005, since which time HATC has 
been working through the 4,000 applicants that 
submitted paperwork during the two weeks 
that year the list was opened.  As of June 2012, 
staff members were uncertain as to when the 
waiting list might again be opened.

Hispanic ethnicity was not reported separately, 
so it is assumed that Hispanic households are 
distributed among the racial categories listed 
in Figure 5-1.  Black households are extremely 
overrepresented among families using and 
applying for vouchers, comprising 62.1% 
of current voucher families and 64% of the 

waiting list, compared to their 8.6% share 
of all households in Travis County.  White 
families, conversely, are underrepresented, 
as they comprise just over one-third of 
voucher households, compared to their 
72.4% share of total households in the 
County.  

Also of note is the prevalence of households 
with a disabled member among voucher 
holders and applicants.  About half of 
all current voucher holders reported a 
disability, in addition to about one-quarter of 
those on the waiting list.  This suggests that 
lower-income households with disabilities in 
Travis County rely on the voucher program 
as a means of affording suitable housing.

Households with a 
disabled member and 
Black households are 
overrepresented among 
Housing Choice Voucher 
holders and applicants.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



A.  vOUCHER PROGRAM     
      ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN

The Housing Choice Voucher 
Administrative Plan (Admin Plan) is the 
policy and procedure manual that includes 
the regulations governing this housing 
assistance program.  Generally, the Admin 
Plan includes policies that describe the 
selection and admission of applicants from 
the PHA waiting list, the issuance and denial 
of vouchers, occupancy policies, landlord 
participation, subsidy standards, informal 
review/hearing procedures, payment 
standards, the Housing Quality Standard 
(HQS) inspection process, and reasonable 
rents, to name a few.  HATC’s Admin 
Plan was reviewed from a fair housing 
perspective to ensure that members of the 
protected classes are afforded adequate 
housing choices.  Specifically, the Plan 
was reviewed to determine the presence 
of the following policies and whether these 
policies were in compliance with the Fair 
Housing Act:

• 

•

  
•

 
•
  

Fair housing and equal opportunity 
non-discrimination clause that 
provides a list of the protected 
classes within a PHA’s jurisdiction, 

Reasonable accommodation 
policies for persons with disabilities 
(in the application process, unit 
search and selection, and grievance 
process), 

Accommodations for persons with 
limited English proficiency (LEP) 
and a list of services a PHA is 
willing to provide such persons, 

Definition of “family” and whether 
or not it includes non-traditional 
households with unrelated 
individuals,

• 

•

  
•

 
•

•

Tenant selection policies and 
waiting list preferences to 
determine whether members of the 
protected classes are given any 
special consideration or if the local 
preferences restrict their housing 
choice, 

Recruitment of landlords who own 
properties in non-impacted areas, 
 
Portability policies and procedures 
and their effect on members of the 
protected classes, 

Higher payment standards for units 
that accommodate persons with 
disabilities, and 

Grievance policies and procedures.

79

The edition of HATC’s Admin Plan reviewed 
for the AI was updated through May 2012.  
The Authority’s policy to affirmatively 
further fair housing, which goes beyond a 
simple declaration of non-discrimination, 
reflects  2012 changes to HUD program 
regulation that prohibit discrimination in 
HUD-funded programs on the basis of 
sexual orientation, marital status or gender 
identity, in addition to the classes protected 
by the Fair Housing Act.  

The Plan refers to an Affirmatively 
Furthering Fair Housing Addendum that 
documents fair housing efforts that exceed 
the requirements of federal, state and 
local non-discrimination and reasonable 
accommodation regulations.  However, the 
addendum was not included in the items 
provided for review in the AI.  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



80

HATC’s policies with regard to accommodating 
persons with disabilities serve a stated purpose 
of preventing disability-related discrimination 
as prohibited by the Fair Housing Act.  The 
Authority advises applicants in writing of 
their right to request acommodations.  The 
language is included on intake applications, 
re-examination documents and notices of 
adverse action.

Possible reasonable accommodations 
available through HATC come in the form of 
changes, exceptions or adjustment to rules, 
policies, practices or services.  Among the 
examples listed in the Admin Plan, HATC 
includes, among other considerations, higher 
payment standards for persons with disabilities, 
allowing applications and re-examinations to 
be completed via mail, conducting home visits 
and providing time extensions as needed for 
families seeking accessible units.

HATC responds in writing within 30 
business days to all requests for reasonable 
accommodation, either formal or informal.  
If HATC denies a request, the Authority 
endeavors to discuss with the family whether 
an alternative accommodation could effectively 
address its disability-related needs.

The Authority also provides accommodation 
for persons with sensory disabilities, including 
TTD/TTY communication, Relay Texas 
telephone interpreting service and sign-
language interpreters upon advance request.  
Large-print and audio versions of key program 
documents are made available upon request.

When issuing a voucher to a family that includes 
an individual with disabilities, HATC includes 
a current list of known available accessible 
units and will assist the family in locating an 
available accessible unit, if necessary.  In 
general, owners must permit the family to 
make reasonable modifications to the unit. 
However, owners are not required to pay for 
such modification and may require that the unit 
be restored to its original state at the family’s 
expense when the family moves.

Finally, HATC’s decision to deny or terminate 
the assistance of a family that includes a person 
with disabilities is subject to consideration of 
reasonable accommodation.  The notice of 
denial or termination informs applicants with 
disabilities of their right to request reasonable 
accommodations to participate in the informal 
hearing process.  When reviewing reasonable 
accommodation requests, HATC considers 
whether any mitigating circumstances can be 
verified to explain and overcome the problem 
that led to HATC’s decision to deny or terminate 
assistance. If a reasonable accommodation 
will allow the family to meet the requirements, 
HATC must make the accommodation.

The Admin Plan includes a section on 
accommodating limited English proficiency 
(LEP) persons.  HATC cites four factors in its 
consideration of the level of access needed by 
those with LEP, patterned upon HUD guidance:  
(1) the number or proportion of LEP persons 
eligible to be served or likely to be encountered 
by the Housing Choice Voucher program; (2) 
the frequency with which LEP persons come 
into contact with the program; (3) the nature 
and importance of the program, activity, or 
service provided by the program to people’s 
lives; and (4) the resources available to the 
HATC and costs.  

HATC will provide written translations of vital 
documents for each eligible LEP language 
group that constitutes 5% or 1,000 persons, 
whichever is less, of those eligible to be served 
or likely to be affected or encountered. Such 
documents include but are not limited to: the 
housing application, briefing packet, annual 
recertification packet, notice of rent change, 
termination notice, and notice of informal 
hearing. Translation of other documents, if 
needed, can be provided upon request.  If there 
are fewer than 50 persons in a language group 
that reaches the 5% trigger, HATC does not 
translate vital written materials, but provides 
written notice in the primary language of the 
LEP language group of the right to receive 
competent oral interpretation of those written 
materials free of cost.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



HATC has adopted HUD’s definition of family, 
which applies to two or more elderly or disabled 
persons living together, one or more elderly or 
disabled persons living with one or more live-
in aides, a family with a child or children, or a 
single person.  HATC expands the definition of 
a family to also include two or more individuals 
who are not related by blood, marriage (either 
licensed or Texas common law), adoption, 
or other operation of law but who either can 
demonstrate that they have lived together 
previously or certify that each individual’s 
income and other resources will be available to 
meet the needs of the family and will be living 
in the same dwelling unit.  This broad and 
inclusive definition supports non-traditional 
family types that may choose to live together 
for economic reasons.

HATC is not currently accepting applications 
for its voucher program, as its waiting list is 
closed.  According to the Admin Plan, the list 
is closed when the estimated waiting period 
for assistance for the most recent applicants 
reaches 12 months.  At least 15 days prior to 
any re-opening of the list, HATC must publish 
a notice in local newspapers of general 
circulation, minority media, and other suitable 
media outlets.

The Admin Plan includes what is essentially 
an affirmative marketing plan for the voucher 
program.  HATC monitors the characteristics 
of the population being served and the 
characteristics of the population as a whole in 
within its jurisdiction. If a comparison suggests 
that certain populations are being underserved, 
the Authority targets outreach efforts to ensure 
fair access.

PHAs are permitted to establish local 
preferences, and to give priority to serving 
families that meet those criteria.  HATC’s 
local preferences include a homeless set-
aside, 55-and-older families for project-based 
vouchers and a disability preference.  Within 
each targeted funding or preference category, 
families are selected on a first-come, first-
serve basis according to the date and time their 
complete application is received by HATC.

HATC provides oral briefings and briefing 
packets to households selected to participate 
in the voucher program.  Among standard 
inclusions in such briefings, which cover the 
basics of the programs and the rights and 
responsibilities of tenants, landlords and the 
Authority, HATC’s briefing packet includes a 
list of landlords or other parties willing to lease 
to assisted families or help families find units, 
especially outside areas of poverty or minority 
concentration.  Additionally, HATC policy 
states that it may also include additional items 
in the briefing packet related to expanding 
opportunity, including maps showing areas 
with housing opportunities outside areas of 
poverty or minority concentration, within and 
beyond Travis County; information about the 
characteristics of these areas including job 
opportunities, schools, transportation and other 
services; and an explanation of how portability 
works, including a list of portability contact 
persons for neighboring housing authorities, 
including names, addresses, and telephone 
numbers.

HATC’s payment standard is currently 100% 
of the HUD Fair Market rent according to unit 
size.  In 2012, this amounts to $713 for a 
studio, $812 for a one-bedroom unit, $989 for a 
two-bedroom unit, $1,331 for a three-bedroom 
unit and $1,516 for a four-bedroom unit.  As 
mentioned previously, HATC considers the 
reasonable accommodation of a higher 
payment standard as needed to assist persons 
with disabilities to find a suitable accessible 
unit, though HATC staff members reported in 
AI interviews that disabled voucher holders 
generally do not encounter difficulty finding a 
unit to rent. 

81

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



b.  admissions and  
      continued occupancy  
      policy

82

The Admission and Continued Occupancy 
Plan (ACOP) includes a public housing 
authority’s policies on the selection and 
admission of applicants from a waiting 
list, screening of applicants for tenancy, 
occupancy standards and policies, 
informal review/grievance hearing 
procedures, rent determinations, and 
procedural guidelines on conducting 
inspections, to name a few.  HATC’s 
ACOP was reviewed from a fair housing 
perspective to ensure that members of the 
protected classes are afforded adequate 
housing choices.  Specifically, the ACOP 
was reviewed to determine the presence 
of the following policies and whether these 
policies were in compliance with the Fair 
Housing Act:

• 

• 

• 

• 

Fair housing and equal opportunity 
non-discrimination clause that 
provides a list of the protected 
classes within a PHA’s jurisdiction,

Reasonable accommodation 
policies for persons with disabilities 
(relative to the application process, 
unit selection, and grievance 
procedures), 

Accommodations for persons with 
limited English proficiency (LEP) 
and a list of services a PHA is 
willing to provide such persons,

Definition of “family” and whether 
or not it includes non-traditional 
households with unrelated 
individuals,

Tenant selection policies and 
waiting list preferences to 
determine whether members of the 
protected classes are given any 
special consideration or if the local 
preferences restrict their housing 
choice,

Accommodations for applicants 
who refuse a unit offered due 
to a disability or other special 
circumstance, 

Transfer policies and procedures 
and whether such policies impede 
housing choice for members of the 
protected classes,

Pet policy accommodations for 
persons with disabilities that require 
service or assistance animals, and 
Grievance policies and procedures

• 

• 

•

• 

HATC’s Admissions and Continued 
Occupancy policy begins with a statement 
of fair housing and equal opportunity, 
noting that will comply fully with all federal, 
state, and local nondiscrimination laws, 
and with rules and regulations governing 
fair housing and equal opportunity in 
housing and employment, prohibiting 
discrimination on the basis race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, age, familial 
status or disability.  The list of protections 
does not explicitly reflect recent changes 
to HUD program regulation that expands 
the number of protected classes for 
agencies receiving HUD funds.  As of 
a Final Rule effective March 5, 2012, 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



83

HUD implemented policy with the intention of 
ensuring that its core programs are open to all 
eligible individuals and families regardless of 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital 
status, prohibiting discrimination of those types 
by any housing provider who receives HUD 
funding, including public housing agencies, 
those who are insured by the Federal Housing 
Administration, including lenders, and those 
who participate in federal entitlement grant 
programs through HUD.

HATC applies two different definitions of 
disability.  For the purpose of determining 
whether a person is entitled to the protections of 
federal disability civil rights laws, the Authority 
refers to a broad and inclusive definition; for 
the purpose of determining who is eligible to 
receive the disabled family preference, a $400 
elderly/disabled household deduction and an 
allowance for medical expenses, the Authority 
applies a more narrow HUD definition. 

In order to provide reasonable accomodation 
to persons with disabilities, HATC asks all 
households during the application process 
whether a specific accommodation is needed to 
allow the resident to fully utilize the Authority’s 
programs and services.  Provided examples 
include modifications to units or physical 
systems, allowing a live-in aide, allowing 
applications to be completed by mail and 
allowing an advocate to participate in meetings 
with staff.  Applicants or participants may 
request an exception, change or adjustment to 
policies and practices due to disability at any 
time, in writing or informally.

Within 10 days of a request for accommodation 
or modification, HATC returns a written decision 
regarding approval or denial.  Requests from 
persons with disabilities will be granted upon 
verification that they are made by or on behalf 
of a person with a disability, that there is a 

disability-related need for the accommodation 
and that the request would not impose an undue 
financial and administrative burden on HATC or 
fundamentally alter the nature of its operations.  
When a request is denied, the Authority may 
discuss alternative accommodation options 
with the family or inform the family of the right 
to appeal HATC’s decision through an informal 
hearing or the grievance process.

With regard to persons with limited English 
proficiency (LEP), HATC states that it will take 
“affirmative steps” to communicate with people 
who need services or information in a language 
other than English, determining the level of 
access according to HUD’s four-factor guidance 
for LEP compliance with Title VI.  Given the 
evidence from 2010 American Community 
Survey data that at least one LEP language 
group in HATC’s service area exceeds 1,000 
people, in order to fall within the “safe harbor” 
provided by HUD guidance, HATC would be 
required to translate its vital documents into 
Spanish.  During AI interviews, staff members 
indicated that its written materials are available 
in Spanish and that translators are available.  

HATC’s definition of a “family” allows those 
related by blood, marriage, adoption or other 
arrangement of law, as well as those who can 
demonstrate that they have lived together 
previously or certify that each individual’s 
income and resources will be available to 
meet the needs of the family.  Allowing non-
traditional households with unrelated members 
to share public housing units is a flexibility that is 
commendable from a fair housing perspective.

HATC policy is to close its waiting list when 
the estimated waiting period for applicants 
reaches 24 months for the most current 
applicants.  When the list reopens, 10 days’ 
notice is given in media outlets, including (but 
not limited to) the Austin American-Statesman, 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



84

El Mundo, Nokoa and the Manor Messager.  
When selecting families from the list, HATC 
applies only one local preference.  Working 
families, in which the head, spouse, co-head 
or sole member is employed at least 20 hours 
per week, are given preference “to bring 
higher-income families into public housing.”  
As required by HUD, this preference is also 
extended to households in which the head and 
spouse or sole member is age 62 or older or is 
a person with disabilities.

Beyond compliance with the federal 
requirements for poverty deconcentration and 
income-mixing among units, HATC adopted a 
statement of integration, specifying that it will 
not require any specific income or racial quotas 
per particular development; nor shall it steer 
based on protected class status for purpose of 
segregating populations.

HATC applicants who rise to the top of the waiting 
list and are offered a unit may refuse to accept 
it for “good cause,” with the Authority defines 
as situations in which the applicant is willing but 
unable to move, or the applicant demonstrates 
that accepting the offer would cause undue 
hardship not related to considerations of race, 
national origin, etc.  Some examples of “good 
cause” include inaccessibility to employment, 
education, job training or children’s day care.  
Such applicants are not removed from the 
waiting list.  However, when an applicant 
rejects a unit offer for reasons other than this, 
HATC removes the applicants name from the 
waiting list and informs the family of such, at 
which point the family may request an informal 
hearing.

HATC classifies three types of unit transfers: 
those occurring for emergency purposes (unit 
defects, a family health condition, a hate crime, 
etc); HATC-initiated transfers (immediate 
administrative transfers to accommodate 
households in need of accessibility features 
and regular administrative transfers to allow 

the Authority to meet occupancy goals) and 
resident-initiated transfers.  For the latter, HATC 
assigns a high priority to transfer requests for 
medical, safety or reasonable accommodation 
reasons, and regular priority for larger-unit and 
transportation access requests.

HATC places restrictions on the number and 
type of animals that residents may keep as 
pets and imposes requirements on their care 
and control.  However, exception is provided 
for assistance animals as a reasonable 
accommodation.

The ACOP describes HATC’s appeal 
procedures, including the informal hearing 
process and grievance handling.  The informal 
hearing process applies for applicants, while 
the grievance process is available to residents.  
Reasonable accommodations are available 
through both processes to ensure fair treatment 
for persons with disabilities.

HATC should update its 
ACOP to include the 
expanded class protections 
provided in recent HUD 
program guidance, 
prohibiting discrimination 
on the basis of marital 
status, sexual orientation or 
gender identity.

HATC should consider 
allowing public housing 
applicants to refuse a 
unit at least once without 
meeting the “good cause” 
criteria without losing 
position on the wait list.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Property Taxes

85

Taxes impact housing affordability.  While not 
an impediment to fair housing choice in and of 
themselves, real estate taxes can impact the 
choice that households make with regard to 
where to live.  Tax increases can be burdensome 
to low-income homeowners, and increases 
are usually passed on to renters through rent 
increases.  Tax rates for specific districts and 
the assessed value of all properties are the two 
major calculations used to determine revenues 
collected by a jurisdiction. Determining a 
jurisdiction’s relative housing affordability, in 
part, can be accomplished using tax rates.  
  
However, a straight comparison of tax rates 
to determine whether a property is affordable 
or unaffordable gives an incomplete and 
unrealistic picture of property taxes.  Local 
governments with higher property tax rates, for 
example, may have higher rates because the 
assessed values of properties in the community 
are low, resulting in a fairly low tax bill for any 
given property.  In all of the communities 
surrounding a jurisdiction, comparable rates 
for various classes of property (residential, 
commercial, industrial, etc.) are assigned 
to balance each community’s unique set of 
resources and needs.  These factors and 
others that are out of the municipality’s control 
must be considered when performing tax rate 
comparisons. 

Real estate taxes are the primary source of 
government revenue in Texas, levied on land 
and buildings to revenue streams for counties, 
municipalities, and school districts.  The state 
is one of only six in the nation that does not 
levy personal income taxes.  This, in part, 
explains what is a comparatively high property 
tax burden for Texas residents compared with 
those living in other states.  On the average, 
Texas residents pay 3.65% of their annual 
income in property taxes, the 12th highest 
percentage of income across the country, 
according to aggregated IRS records.   

The Travis Central Appraisal District (TCAD) 
decides what property is to be taxed and its 
appraised value, grants exemptions, and 
identifies what taxing jurisdictions can tax a 
property.  The TCAD is a separate local agency 
and is not part of County government or the 
County Tax Assessor’s Office.  The TCAD 
determines the market value of all taxable 
property, and the property is appraised at that 
value unless it is a primary residence subject 
to a cap. Once a property’s appraised and 
market values are equal, further increases (or 
decreases) in value will depend on the market 
in that neighborhood. The appraisal process 
allocates the tax burden to ensure that no one 
property pays more or less than its fair share. 

Following the TCAD assessment, each taxing 
jurisdiction levies a uniform tax millage rate 
against the assessed value of each property.  
Levies are measured in tenths of a cent and 
commonly called “mills.”  Levies are multiplied 
by the assessed value of a property to calculate 
a property owner’s real estate tax.  For FY 
2011, Travis County had a county-wide millage 
rate of 0.4855, in addition to individual school 
district rates ranging from 1.04 (Coupland) to 
1.62 mills (Dripping Springs) and city rates 
ranging from 0.02 in Bee Cave to 0.75 in Elgin.  

Additional levies exist on the level of municipal 
utility districts (MUDs), which are political 
subdivisions of the state authorized by the 
Texas Commission of Environmental Quality 
(TCEQ) to provide water, sewage, drainage 
and other services.  Sixty MUDs within Travis 
County maintain rates of 0.05 to 0.99 mills.

Finally, various levies exist in special districts 
to serve specific purposes, such as emergency 
service districts, volunteer fire departments, a 
community college, local road improvements 
or local parks and recreation programming.  
The total tax liability on a property reflects the 
layering of these various levies.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



86

A homeowner’s property tax costs in Travis 
County are considerable and vary greatly 
depending on a property’s location.  The Austin 
American-Statesman reported in June 2012 
that the typical Austin homeowner received 
a 2010 tax bill that was 38% higher than in 
2000, despite a median income that has held 
steady.    According to the Statesman, Travis 
County raised its levy on the average home 
46% during those years, from $667 annually to 
$975.  Other taxing authorities have kept pace 
with similar rate hikes.  

On a home at the County median value of 
$200,300, an owner would pay an average of 
1.98% in total property tax annually, amounting 
to $3,972.   Figure 5-2 contains a comparison of 
tax rates for municipalities and school districts 
in Travis County.

Texas and Travis County have several tax 
relief programs available to eligible property 
owners.  These include the following: 

figure 5-2
Property Tax Rates by Jurisdiction, 2011

Municipality Rate School District Rate
Austin 0.481100 Austin 1.242000
Bee Cave 0.020000 Del Valle 1.530000
Briarcliff 0.117500 Lake Travis 1.315900
Cedar Park 0.493501 Eanes 1.212500
Creedmoor 0.310900 Lago Vista 1.180000
Elgin 0.753900 Pflugerville 1.480000
Jonestown 0.560000 Hays 1.461300
Lago Vista 0.630000 Coupland 1.040050
Lakeway 0.199600 Elgin 1.540000
Leander 0.670420 Manor 1.515000
Manor 0.821200 Dripping Springs 1.620000
Mustang Ridge 0.357800 Marble Falls 1.290000
Pflugerville 0.599000 Johnson City 1.193000
Point Venture 0.090000 Round Rock 1.335000
Rollingwood 0.144600 Leander 1.499760
Round Rock 0.417280
San Leanna 0.249800
Village of the Hills 0.298000
Volente 0.128600
Webberville 0.302500
West Lake Hills 0.053400

Source: Travis CAD

• School taxes: All residential home  
 owners may qualify to receive a   
 $15,000 homestead exemption from  
 their home’s value for school taxes.
 
• County taxes: If a county collects a  
 special tax for farm-to-market roads or  
 flood control, a residential home owner 
 may qualify to receive a $3,000 
 exemption for this tax. 

• Age 65 or older and disabled   
 exemptions: Individuals 65 and older 
 and/or disabled residential home  
 owners may qualify for a $10,000  
 homestead exemption, in addition 
 to the $15,000 exemption for all   
 homeowners. If the owner qualifies for 
 both the $10,000 exemption for 65 and 
 older homeowners and the $10,000 
 exemption for disabled homeowners,  
 the owner must choose one or the  
 other. 

Optional percentage 
exemptions: 
Any taxing unit, including 
a city, county, school, or 
special district, may offer  
an exemption of up to 
20% of a home’s value or 
a property tax freeze for 
homeowners who are 65 
or older or disabled. Some 
restrictions apply. 

Optional 65 or older or 
disabled exemptions: 
Any taxing unit may offer 
an additional exemption 
amount of at least $3,000 
for taxpayers age 65 or 
older and/or disabled.

Disabled veterans are 
eligible for exemptions up 
to 100%.

• 

• 

•

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



87

Public Transit

Households without a vehicle, which in most 
cases are primarily low-moderate income 
households, are at a disadvantage in accessing 
jobs and services, particularly if public transit 
is inadequate or absent. Access to public 
transit is critical to these households. Without 
convenient access, employment is potentially 
at risk and the ability to remain housed is 
threatened.  The linkages between residential 
areas (of concentrations of minority and LMI 
persons) and employment opportunities are 
key to expanding fair housing choice.

According to the 2010 American Community 
Survey, there were 24,798 transit-dependent 
households in Travis County, comprising 6.3% 
of all households. The majority of households 
without access to a vehicle (85%) were renters.  
As further detailed in Figure 5-3, the vast 
majority of Travis County residents drove to 
work in 2010 (84.6%), with 73% driving alone.  
Throughout the County, only 3.9% depended 
on public transportation to commute.  Black and 
Hispanic households were more likely to use 
public transportation than White households.

Drove vehicle alone 373,443 73.0% 271,565 75.2% 29,204 76.3% 98,649 64.7%
Carpool 59,442 11.6% 35,580 9.9% 3,485 9.1% 30,656 20.1%
Public transportation 19,809 3.9% 10,612 2.9% 3,089 8.1% 7,783 5.1%
Walked 9,840 1.9% 6,843 1.9% 823 2.2% 2,635 1.7%
Taxi, motorcycle, bike or other means 17,339 3.4% 9,369 2.6% 685 1.8% 8,455 5.5%
Worked at home 31,610 6.2% 26,961 7.5% 969 2.5% 4,255 2.8%
Total 511,483 100.0% 360,930 100.0% 38,255 100.0% 152,433 100.0%

Source:  2006-10 American Community Survey (B08105A, B08105B, B08105I, B08301)

Total White Black Hispanic

figure 5-3
Means of Transportation to Work in Travis County, 2010

The Capital Metro Transportation Authority 
(Cap Metro) offers a variety of bus and rail lines 
within the City of Austin.  However, routes do not 
extend into many areas of rural Travis County.  
Municipal participation in Capital Metro calls for 
the approval of a 1% local sales tax to support 
the system. Texas law limits local sales tax to 
2%, so cities that already commit a 2% local 
sales tax to other purposes cannot participate.  
Round Rock, for example, could not consider 
a vote to participate in Capital Metro unless its 
voters rolled back a portion of the current sales 
tax to allow room for a 1% Capital Metro tax.  
When Capital Metro was originally formed in 
1985, Pflugerville and Cedar Park participated.  
These jurisdictions later withdrew, resulting 
in a withdrawal of service running through 
more areas of the County.  Increasing service 
through the Urban County’s CDBG jurisdiction 
would require some alternative arrangement 
with Cap Metro.

A fixed-route transit system connecting more 
employees to downtown Austin and job 
centers within the County could significantly 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



improve employment opportunities for lower-
income persons who typically rely on public 
transit to access jobs, thus increasing their 
potential success for better housing, including 
home ownership.  Current research indicates 
a strong connection between housing and 
transportation costs.  A recent study conducted 
by The Center for Housing Policy found that 
there is a clear trade-off between affordable 
housing and transportation expenses among 
working families.   The research revealed 
that families who spend more than 50% of 
their income on housing spend only 7.5% on 
transportation, while families who spend 30% 
or less of their income on housing spend 
almost 25% on transportation.  This equates to 
more than three times the amount spent than 
those in less affordable housing.  

The rationale behind this seemingly reverse 
equation is that many working families are 
moving further out into the suburbs where they 
may be able to afford housing, but then must 
spend much more of their income commuting 
to and from their jobs.  Others may live in 
urban neighborhoods but are forced to cross-
commute out to jobs in the suburbs.  In both 
cases, the study found that in their attempt 
to save money on housing, these families 
spent disproportionately higher amounts on 
transportation.  The study concluded that at 
about 12 to 15 miles in commuting distance, 
the increase in transportation costs outweighs 
the savings on housing.

These observations were echoed at the 
local level by social service providers, who 
noted that development and housing market 
patterns are pushing lower-income families to 
the outskirts of urban space, where no transit 
is available to connect them with jobs and 
services.  Jonestown, for instance, has one 
grocery store, to which people drive from a 
radius of many miles.  One affordable housing 

88

provider stated that transit service is “basically 
non-existent” outside of Austin.

Of course, limitations in the scale and 
frequency of Cap Metro service add up from 
an operational perspective.  Employment is 
heavily concentrated in Austin, which makes 
Cap Metro’s hub-and-spoke system model 
effective in efficiently providing service.  A 
representative from the transit agency 
explained “the classic transit trade-off” during 
an AI interview: Given limited resources, a 
balance must be achieved between service 
and coverage.  In past years, the agency has 
trimmed routes with low ridership and added 
capacity to other routes to meet demand.  In 
order for a route to be economically justifiable, 
it must average 16 riders per hour.  

Ultimately, Cap Metro follows federal 
requirements regarding where it can operate.  
The boundaries drawn by federal government 
are seemingly arbitrary and leave gaps, 
according to a staff member.  Other services 
may or may not cover the areas where Cap 
Metro does not and cannot operate.

The Capital Area Rural Transit System 
(CARTS) is one such provider, covering nine 
counties with fixed routes, commuter routes, 
curb-to-curb service and other offerings.  
CARTS was formed by an interlocal agreement 
among the nine counties and serves 161 
communities.  CARTS buses are based in 
five stations: Austin, Bastrop, Round Rock, 
San Marcos and Smithville.  CARTS connects 
communities outside of Austin with once-daily 
fixed route service, such as senior shopping 
days or local service, at a price of $1 to $4 each 
way.  In Travis County, routes generally depart 
between 8:00 and 9:00 a.m. on weekdays and 
return in the early afternoon, which indicates 
that they are not designed for work travel 
between communities.  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



map 5-4
Transit-Oriented Development Opportunities 
Identified by Capital Metro

Leander Station
Park & Ride

Tech Ridge
Park & Ride

Lakeline Station
Park & Ride

Jonestown 
Park & Ride

Manor
Park 
& Ride

Lago Vista 
Park & Ride

MetroRail Line

Plaza
Saltillo
Station

Highland Mall

Austin-
Bergstrom
International
Airport

FM 2222 

Bu
rn

et
 R

d. Rundberg   Ln

Parmer Ln.

45th

E. Riverside Dr.

M
oP

ac
 / L

oo
p 1

 

Oltorf St.

Lamar B
lvd.

MLK Blvd.

Airport    Blvd.

S.
 C

on
gr

es
s A

ve
.

51st

26th

Braker Ln.
Kramer Ln.

La
mar B

lvd
.

McNeil     
Dr.

7th

FM
 62

0

FM
 62

0

Lake 
Travis

183

290

290

183

71

71

71

183A

360

1

130

45

130

79

183

45

North Austin
Medical Center

Westgate
Transit Center

Domain—
mixed use

Domain

Pickle

Ohlen

Northcross

Koenig

49th
See
Inset
40th
38th

27th

UT

16th

Seaholm
Barton Springs
Lamar Square

Oltorf
Bluebonnet

Brodie Oaks

William Cannon

Stassney

S. Congress
Transit Center

St. Edwards
University

Oltorf

SoCo

Triangle

Koenig
Crestview

N. Lamar
Transit Center

Rundberg

Masterson
Kramer

Slaughter

Southpark Meadows
Retail Center

University
of Texas

TX Health and Human
Services Complex

Capitol

North
Loop

     Williamson   

Hays County

Bastr
op County

            Travis

Travis County

Tra
vis

 County

Round
Rock

Manor

Leander

Oak
Hill

Pflugerville

Cedar Park

Georgetown

Austin

To Elgin

To Bastrop

To San 
Antonio

To Dripping
Springs

North

Legend

Route 803
Burnet/South Lamar

MetroRapid Stops

Activity Center

MetroRail Station

MetroRail

Route 801
North Lamar/South Congress

Gu
ad

alu
pe

 S
t.

Capital Metro Facilities and Associated Properties:
Leander Station • Lakeline Station • Tech Ridge Park & Ride • Plaza Saltillo Station

      Travis   County

     W
illiam

son   County

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

LAKELINE

45 W

PARM
ER

183
H

W
Y

Lakeline TOD Neighborhood Connections

±

1 Mile Radius Around Station

0 0.1 0.2 0.30.05
Miles

Lakeline
Station

SWS
Beauty
School

Target

Home
Depot

Nvidia
Corp.

Applied Rigaku
Technologies

Forest North
Elementary

School
URS
Corp.

Avnet

RRISD
Athletic
Complex

Abacus
School of

Austin

Rutledge
Elementary

School Community
Pool

Avery
Ranch

Golf Club

AJ's
Cyclery

Park and
Ride

North American
Business

Consultants
Harmony School of

Political Science and
Communications

Walmart

Health
Clinic

Gym and
Pool

Town & Country
Youth Sports

Complex

Trail

Bike Route

Capital Metro Tract

MetroRail Station!

T.O.D. District

Bus Stop!

Applied
Materials Inc.

Reliance
Globalcom
Services

Health
Tronics
Group

E-MD

Swagelok

Blizzard
Entertainment

IncLakeline Mall
and

Lakeline Market

!
!
!!!

183A TOLL RD
E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

OLD 2243 WEST

RM 2243

Leander TOD Neighborhood Connections

±

1/2- Mile Radius Around Station

0 0.1 0.20.05
Miles

Park and
RideLeander

Station

HEB

Leander City
Office

Leander
Chamber of
Commerce

Leander
School District

Plain
Elementary

School

Leander
Grocery

MetroRail Station!

Capital Metro Tract

Bus Stop!

Cedar Park Regional
Medical Center

and
Cedar Park

Convention Center

Future Site of
Austin Community

College

!

!

!

!

!

!! !
!! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

HOWARD

H
EA

TH
ER

W
IL

D
E

LA
M

AR

§̈¦I-35

Tech Ridge TOD Neighborhood Connections

±

1/2 Mile Radius Around Bus Bay

0 0.1 0.20.05
Miles

Tech Ridge
Bus Bay

The Shops at
Tech Ridge

Pearson
Inc.

Memorial
Hill Park

Super
Target

Best
Buy

Sears

Walmart
Supercenter

Lowe's

John B.
Connally

High School

H.E.B.

Pet
Hospital

Hobby
Lobby

Foxconn

Animal
Day Care

Busy Bees
Preschool

Capital Metro Tract

Bus Stop!

T.O.D. District

Bike Route

Home
Depot

ATA Blackbelt
Academy

US
Farathane

Bella Springs
Apartments

Omega
Broadcast

Group

ChargePoint
Charging
Station

!

!

! !

! !
!

! !
!

! !

!
!
!

!

!
!!

!
!

! !

!

! 6TH

7TH

4TH

C
O

M
A

L

C
H

IC
O

N

W
A

LL
E

R

R
E

D
R

IV
E

R

CESAR CHAVEZ

Plaza Saltillo TOD Neighborhood Connections

§̈¦I-35

1/2-Mile Radius Around Station

Austin Library and
George Washington

Carver Museum

Huston
Tillotson
College

East Sixth
IBIZ District

Plaza Saltillo
Station

Zavala
Elementary

School

501
Studios

French
Legation
Museum

Downtown
Station

Texas
State

Cemetery

UT Elementary
Charter School

Lance Armstrong
Foundation

US Post
Office

Blackshear
Elementary

School

Comal
Park Heritage

Society of
Austin

Pan-American
Recreation

Center

Terrazas
Library

Corozon
(Mixed-Use

Project)

Kealing Park

±

0 0.1 0.20.05
Miles

±
Tejano Music Legends Trail

Tejano Healthy WalkingTrail

Capital Metro Tract

T.O.D. District

MetroRail Station!

Bus Stop!

Bike Route

Sanchez
Elementary

School

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



90

With regard to future planning, Cap Metro 
is pursuing opportunities to partner with 
communities to foster transit-oriented 
developent (TOD) in well-connected locations. 
TOD provides increased ridership, increased 
revenues from development, and more 
choices for the community.  Map 5-4 illustrates 
the location of sites Cap Metro has identified 
as opportunities where transit-oriented 
development would be appropriate.

However, future plans remain centered around  
connecting activity centers, all of which are in 
incorporated areas.  This leaves the problem 
of connection between employment centers 
and the lower-income households that live 
where affordable housing exists in the Urban 
County’s rural areas.

Fixed-route transit service 
is generally unavailable in 
most unincorporated areas 
of Travis County, isolating 
many lower-income 
neighborhoods from jobs 
and amenities.

Future transit-oriented 
development plans carry 
the potential to increase 
affordable housing 
opportunities in the 
communities where such 
plans are proposed, which 
could theoretically relieve 
some of the Urban County’s 
unmet affordable housing 
demand.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



91

6 Private sector
policies and
practices

The Fair Housing Act prohibits lenders from 
discriminating against members of the protected 
classes in granting mortgage loans, providing 
information on loans, imposing the terms and 
conditions of loans (such as interest rates and 
fees), conducting appraisals, and considering 
whether to purchase loans.  Unfettered access 
to fair housing choice requires fair and equal 
access to the mortgage lending market 
regardless of race, color, national origin, 
religion, sex, familial status, disability, or any 
other statutorily protected basis.

An analysis of mortgage applications and their 
outcomes can identify possible discriminatory 
lending practices and patterns in a community. 
Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (HMDA) data 
contains records for all residential loan activity 
reported by banks pursuant to the requirements 
of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, 
and Enforcement Act of 1989.  Any commercial 
lending institution that makes five or more 
home mortgage loans annually must report all 
residential loan activity to the Federal Reserve 
Bank, including information on applications 
denied, withdrawn, or incomplete by race, sex, 
and income of the applicant.  This information 
is used to determine whether financial 
institutions are serving the housing needs of 
their communities. 

The most recent HMDA data available for 
Travis County is for 2010.  The data included 
for this analysis is for three years, 2008 through 
2010, and constitutes all types of applications 
received by lenders by families: home 
purchase, refinancing, or home improvement 
mortgage applications for one- to four-family 
dwellings and manufactured housing units 
across the entire County.  The demographic 
and income information provided pertains 
to the primary applicant only.  Co-applicants 
were not included in the analysis.  Figure 6-1 
summarizes three years of HMDA data by race, 
ethnicity, and action taken on the applications, 
followed by detailed analysis.

Mortgage Lending Trends

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Figure 6-1
Cumulative Mortgage Data Summary Report, 2008-2010

92

Applicant 
Characteristics

Across Travis County during the last three 
years, lenders received 85,284 applications 
for home purchase, 94,016 applications for 
mortgage refinancing and 9,859 applications 
for home improvement equity loans.  The 
prevalence of demand for refinance is a function 
of historically low interest rates between 2008 
and 2010 that promised monthly housing cost 
savings to households that could qualify.  Of all 
three loan types, refinancing applications were 
the most likely to be successful, as 45.3% were 
originated, compared to 43% of home purchase 
loans and 35.7% of home improvement loans.  

More than two in every five home purchase loan 
applications were withdrawn or left incomplete, 
and 9.4% were denied.  By comparison, 31.7% 
of refinancing applications were not completed, 
and an additional 15.6% were denied.  Home 
improvement loans represent a smaller share 
of all applications, with 5.2% of the total, but 
carry a notably higher denial rate: 40.3% of 
applications of this type were rejected.

# % # % # % # % # %

Home purchase 85,284 45.1% 36,637 43.0% 3,374 4.0% 8,046 9.4% 36,069 42.3%
Refinancing 9,859 5.2% 3,516 35.7% 610 6.2% 3,974 40.3% 1,480 15.0%
Home improvement 94,016 49.7% 42,546 45.3% 4,261 4.5% 14,637 15.6% 29,766 31.7%

Conventional 147,617 78.0% 66,929 45.3% 7,190 4.9% 21,984 14.9% 47,744 32.3%
FHA 33,832 17.9% 12,642 37.4% 855 2.5% 3,869 11.4% 16,070 47.5%
VA 5,232 2.8% 2,205 42.1% 156 3.0% 391 7.5% 2,424 46.3%
FHS/RHS 2,478 1.3% 923 37.2% 44 1.8% 413 16.7% 1,077 43.5%

One to four-family unit 186,806 98.8% 82,082 43.9% 7,641 4.1% 25,867 13.8% 67,001 35.9%
Manufactured housing unit 2,324 1.2% 609 26.2% 604 26.0% 785 33.8% 301 13.0%
Multi-family unit 29 0.0% 8 27.6% 0 0.0% 5 17.2% 13 44.8%

Native American 1,158 0.6% 388 33.5% 49 4.2% 374 32.3% 314 27.1%
Asian 8,811 4.7% 4,689 53.2% 454 5.2% 1,132 12.8% 2,285 25.9%
Black 7,009 3.7% 2,461 35.1% 336 4.8% 2,012 28.7% 1,992 28.4%
Hawaiian 482 0.3% 223 46.3% 23 4.8% 108 22.4% 117 24.3%
White 127,406 67.4% 63,874 50.1% 6,039 4.7% 17,910 14.1% 36,720 28.8%
No information 26,580 14.1% 11,055 41.6% 1,343 5.1% 5,121 19.3% 8,185 30.8%
Not applicable 17,713 9.4% 9 0.1% 1 0.0% 0 0.0% 17,702 99.9%
Hispanic** 22,655 12.0% 8,682 38.3% 1,338 5.9% 5,700 25.2% 6,371 28.1%
Total* 189,159 100.0% 82,699 43.7% 8,245 4.4% 26,657 14.1% 67,315 35.6%

* Total applications also include 3,969 loans purchased by another institution.
** Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.

Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010
Note:  Percentages in the Originated, Approved Not Accepted, Denied, and Withdrawn/Incomplete categories are calculated for each line item 
with the corresponding Total Applications figures.  Percentages in the Total Applications categories are calculated from their respective total 
figures.

Loan Type

Property Type

Total 
Applications* Originated Approved Not 

Accepted Denied Withdrawn/
Incomplete

Loan Purpose

Applicant Race

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Loan application types varied slightly across 
racial and ethnic groups. The most common 
loan type for White and Asian households was 
refinancing, constituting 49.9% of applications 
for each of those groups. Blacks and Hispanics 
were somewhat less likely to refinance, as this 
loan type represented 42.9% and 42.0% of all 
applications for these households, respectively.  
Hispanics were more likely than any other 
group to apply for a home purchase loan, as 
50% of applications from Hispanic households 
were for this purpose. 

The vast majority of applications involved one- 
to four-family housing structures, with only 
2,324 applications (1.2%) requesting financing 
for manufactured units and 29 applications 
for owner-occupied multi-family units.  The 
denial rate for manufactured units, 33.8%, was 
substantially higher than the overall denial rate 
of 14.1% for all housing types.

The most commonly sought type of financing 
was conventional loans, a category that 
represented more than three-quarters (78%) 
of all loan applications.  An additional 17.9% 
of applications were for loans insured by the 
Federal Housing Administration (FHA), a 
type of federal assistance that has historically 
benefited lower-income residents.  Smaller 
percentages of applications were for loans 
backed by the Department of Veterans Affairs 
(VA) and the Farm Services Administration or 
Rural Housing Service (FSA/RHS).

Figure 6-2
Loan Application Type by Race/Ethnicity, 2008-2010

The racial and ethnic composition of loan 
applicants differs somewhat from the County’s 
general demographic distribution.  While 8.6% 
of all Travis County households in 2010 were 
Black, Blacks constituted only 4.8% of the 
loan applications for which racial/ethnic data 
were reported.  Similarly, Hispanic residents 
comprise 24.8% of all County residents, 
but only submitted 15.6% of all loans that 
reported ethnicity data. White households are 
overrepresented among mortgage applicants, 
representing a share of applications exceeding 
their share of households countywide (87.9% 
of applications compared to 72.4% of all 
households).  Asian applicants represented 
6.1% of applications, exceeding their 5.4% 
share of total households in 2010.  Lower 
participation in the market for home mortgages 
by Black and Hispanic households is likely a 
reflection of the lower median income of these 
minority groups. 

Grouping all three years of data into the 
analysis increases the likelihood that 
differences among groups are statistically 
significant.  This is especially important in view 
of the data on mortgage application denials, 
which also suggests differences according to 
race and ethnicity.

93

Total White  Black Asian Other  No data Hispanic* 

85,284 56,556 3,307 4,167 668 20,586 11,324
45.1% 44.4% 47.2% 47.3% 40.7% 46.5% 50.0%
94,016 63,634 3,005 4,397 787 22,193 9,510
49.7% 49.9% 42.9% 49.9% 48.0% 50.1% 42.0%
9,859 7,216 697 247 185 1,514 1,821
5.2% 5.7% 9.9% 2.8% 11.3% 3.4% 8.0%

189,159 127,406 7,009 8,811 1,640 44,293 22,655
100.0% 67.4% 3.7% 4.7% 0.9% 23.4% 12.0%

Note: Percentages within racial/ethnic groups are calculated within each group's total.
* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.
Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010

Home purchase

Refinance

Home improvement

Total

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Geographic Distribution of 
Approvals by Lender

Figure 6-3 provides a summary of the top 10 
lenders in the County based on total number 
of loan originations between 2008 and 2010.  
Wells Fargo was the top lender in the County, 
with more than 9,800 originations over the 
three-year period, and accounted for more than 
one in every 10 loans originated in the County.  
The U.S. Justice Department accused Wells 
Fargo, a major participant on a national scale 
in subprime lending prior to 2007, of lending 
practices that the Department described 
as reckless at best and predatory at worst, 
resulting in foreclosure concentrations that 
have decimated urban neighborhoods.    The 
result has been a disparate negative impact 
on minority homeowners, who were more 
commonly the targets of predatory lending.  As 
part of a settlement reached in 2012 with the 
Department regarding discriminatory policies, 
Wells Fargo will invest $50 million across eight 
metropolitan areas to revitalize neighborhoods 
blighted by foreclosure-related housing 
abandonment.  None of the metropolitan 
areas receiving settlement funds are located in 
Texas.

Figure 6-3
Top 10 Lenders in Travis County
by Number of Originations, 2008-2010

Map 6-1 illustrates the distribution of 
originations for the top 10 lenders, with 
each dot representing two mortgage loan 
originations.  There appears to be no particular 
concentration of loans by location for any 
particular lender, which suggests the absence 
of obvious redlining.  Notably, some areas in 
the eastern end of the Urban County are nearly 
entirely bereft of mortgage originations.  The 
comparative lack of loans by any lender in these 
areas is an indicator of low investment in their 
real estate during 2008 to 2010, whether due 
to disparate impact of the housing market crisis 
or difficulty of credit access for households who 
would purchase homes in these areas.

Wells Fargo, which 
recently agreed to a 
$50M settlement with the 
U.S. Justice Department 
related to allegations 
of discriminatory and 
predatory lending, was 
Travis County’s largest 
mortgage lender by number 
of originations in recent 
years.

94

Lending Institution # of Loans 
Originated 

 % of Loans 
Among All 

Banks 
Wells Fargo* 9,807 11.9%
Bank of America 5,829 7.0%
JP Morgan Chase 3,255 3.9%
Flagstar Bank 2,290 2.8%
Int'l Bank of Commerce 2,242 2.7%
Network Funding 2,067 2.5%
Countrywide Bank 2,035 2.5%
Prime Lending 2,004 2.4%
Capstar Lending 1,938 2.3%
Citimortgage 1,765 2.1%
Total 33,232 40.2%
*Wells Fargo Bank and Wachovia Bank merged on 
December 31, 2008.
Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 
2008 to 2010

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 Dot = 2

Wells Fargo

JP Morgan Chase

Flagstar Bank

Bank of America

Countrywide Bank

Int'l Bank of Commerce

Prime Lending

Capstar Lending

Network Funding

Citimortgage

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 6-1
Distribution of Originations by Lender, 2008-2010

1 dot = Two originations

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



96

Mortgage Application 
Denials

During the years 2008 through 2010, a total of 
26,657 mortgage loan applications were denied 
across Travis County.  The overall cumulative 
denial rate was 14.1% with denials by race 
and ethnicity ranging from 12.8% for Asian 
households to 32.3% for Native American 
households.  

In reporting denials, lenders are required to list 
at least one primary reason for denial and may 
list up to two secondary reasons.  As Figure 
6-4 demonstrates, a substantial proportion 
of denials occurred for no given reason.  
The primary basis for the rejection of 6,840 
applications, or 25.7% of all denials, was left 
blank.  This was even more prevalent in the 
denials for Black households, 41.3% of which 
(830 of 2,012) were rejected without a reported 
reason.  Other common reasons given for 
denial include credit history, lack of collateral, 
and debt-to-income ratio. 

More than 40% of 
mortgage denials for 
Black applicants occurred 
for no given reason.

Figure 6-4
Primary Reason for Mortgage 
Application Denial by Race, 2008-2010

Mortgage loan denial 
rates among most 
minority applicants were 
higher than denial rates 
for Whites between 2008 
and 2010. 

Total White Black  Asian Other Hispanic*  No Info 
No reason reported 24.9% 22.4% 41.3% 18.4% 41.7% 29.4% 27.3%
Credit history 17.7% 17.1% 24.8% 22.5% 23.2% 24.6% 18.3%
Debt-to-income ratio 17.7% 19.2% 10.0% 21.8% 11.2% 17.5% 15.0%
Collateral 12.8% 13.7% 8.8% 14.0% 8.7% 10.1% 12.8%
Incomplete application 10.3% 10.5% 4.6% 12.8% 6.0% 5.7% 11.7%
Other 9.4% 9.5% 7.4% 12.5% 6.4% 6.9% 9.1%
Unverifiable information 4.2% 4.3% 1.4% 7.1% 1.5% 3.0% 4.9%
Insufficient cash 1.5% 1.6% 1.0% 1.6% 0.8% 1.3% 1.1%
Employment history 1.4% 1.6% 0.5% 2.5% 0.4% 4.5% 1.2%
Insurance denied 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.4% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.
Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



For this analysis, lower-income households 
include those with incomes between 0%-
80% of MFI, while upper-income households 
include households with incomes above 
80% MFI.  Applications made by lower-
income households accounted for 29% of all 
denials between 2008 and 2010, though they 
accounted for only 24.5% of total applications 
for those three years.  

Figure 6-5 distributes the denials by income 
level among racial and ethnic groups.  Among 
lower-income households, denial rates were 
generally higher for minorities.  While the 
overall lower-income denial rate was 22%, 
the denial rates for lower-income Blacks, 
Other Race households (consisting primarily 
of Native Americans), and Hispanics were 
33.6%, 40.6%, and 31.1%, respectively.  
Lower-income Asian applicants experienced a 
denial rate of 21.6%, which was comparable to 
the 20.5% denial rate for Whites. 

While denial rates were generally lower 
for upper-income households, differences 
persisted across racial and ethnic groups.  The 
overall upper-income denial rate was 12.2%, 
compared to 10.6%, 20.3%, 22.9%, and 27.1% 
for upper-income Asian, Hispanic, Other Race, 
and Black households, respectively.  Lower-
income White households were much less 
likely to experience denial than upper-income 
Blacks households.  This pattern is consistent 
with discrimination.

Map 6-2 on the following page illustrates denial 
rates by census tract in Travis County.   Many 
of these tracts bearing higher denial rates are 
located in neighborhoods associated in a prior 
section of the AI with limited opportunity.

Figure 6-5
Mortgage Application Denials by Household Race/Ethnicity, 2008-2010

Over the course of the 
three years studied, upper-
income Black and Other 
Race households received 
mortgage application 
denials more often than 
lower-income White 
households.

97

Three-year high-cost aggregate

Total White  Black Asian Other  No data Hispanic* 

Total Originations 17,910 13,789 966 749 188 2,218 3,537
High-Cost 1,482 1,116 125 31 29 181 600
% High-Cost 8.3% 8.1% 12.9% 4.1% 15.4% 8.2% 17.0%
Total Originations 61,964 48,045 1,174 3,856 404 8,485 4,702
High-Cost 3,261 2,579 123 110 24 425 360
% High-Cost 5.3% 5.4% 10.5% 2.9% 5.9% 5.0% 7.7%
Total Originations 82,699 63,874 2,461 4,689 611 11,064 8,682
High-Cost 4,950 3,849 286 143 55 617 993
% High-Cost 6.0% 6.0% 11.6% 3.0% 9.0% 5.6% 11.4%

Three-year denials aggregate

Total White  Black Asian Other  No data Hispanic* 

Total Applications 46,407 32,788 3,168 1,748 630 8,073 10,754
Denials 10,202 6,732 1,065 377 256 1,772 3,341
% Denied 22.0% 20.5% 33.6% 21.6% 40.6% 21.9% 31.1%
Total Applications 124,378 89,632 3,093 6,837 947 23,869 10,675
Denials 15,125 10,604 839 727 217 2,738 2,164
% Denied 12.2% 11.8% 27.1% 10.6% 22.9% 11.5% 20.3%
Total Applications 189,159 127,406 7,009 8,811 1,640 44,293 22,655
Denials 35,197 17,910 2,012 1,132 482 5,121 5,700
% Denied 18.6% 14.1% 28.7% 12.8% 29.4% 11.6% 25.2%

Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010

Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010

Note: Total also includes 18,374 applications for which no income data was reported.
* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.

Lower-Income

Upper-Income

Total

Note: Total also includes 2,825 loans for which no income data was reported.
* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.

Lower-Income

Upper-Income

Total

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

Impacted Block Groups

Mortgage Denial Rate
Less than 10%

10% to 15%

15.1% to 20%

20.1% to 30%

30.1% to 50%

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 6-2
Denial Rates by Census Tract, 2008-2010

Source:  FFIEC HMDA Files

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



99

The widespread housing finance market 
crisis of recent years has brought a new level 
of public attention to lending practices that 
victimize vulnerable populations. Subprime 
lending, designed for borrowers who are 
considered a credit risk, has increased the 
availability of credit to low-income persons. 
At the same time, subprime lending has often 
exploited borrowers, piling on excessive 
fees, penalties, and interest rates that make 
financial stability difficult to achieve. Higher 
monthly mortgage payments make housing 
less affordable, increasing the risk of mortgage 
delinquency and foreclosure and the likelihood 
that properties will fall into disrepair.

Some subprime borrowers have credit scores, 
income levels, and down payments high 
enough to qualify for conventional, prime 
loans, but are nonetheless steered toward 
more expensive subprime mortgages. This is 
especially true of minority groups, which tend 
to fall disproportionately into the category of 
subprime borrowers.  The practice of targeting 
minorities for subprime lending qualifies as 
mortgage discrimination.

Since 2005, HMDA data has included price 
information for loans priced above reporting 
thresholds set by the Federal Reserve Board. 
This data is provided by lenders via Loan 
Application Registers and can be aggregated 
to complete an analysis of loans by lender or 
for a specified geographic area. HMDA does 
not require lenders to report credit scores for 
applicants, so the data does not indicate which 
loans are subprime. It does, however, provide 
price information for loans considered “high-
cost.” 

A loan is considered high-cost if it meets one of 
the following criteria:

• A first-lien loan with an interest rate 
 at least three percentage points higher 
 than the prevailing U.S. Treasury 
 standard at the time the loan   
 application was filed. The standard  
 is equal to the current price of
 comparable-maturity 
 Treasury securities

• A second-lien loan with an interest rate 
 at least five percentage points higher 
 than the standard

Not all loans carrying high APRs are subprime, 
and not all subprime loans carry high APRs. 
However, high-cost lending is a strong predictor 
of subprime lending, and it can also indicate 
a loan that applies a heavy cost burden on 
the borrower, increasing the risk of mortgage 
delinquency.

Between 2008 and 2010, there were 
82,699 home purchase, refinance, or home 
improvement loans made for single-family or 
manufactured units in Travis County.  Of this 
total, 79,874 (96.6%) disclosed the borrower’s 
household income and 4,950 (6%) reported 
high-cost mortgages.  Overall, upper-income 
households, with the exception of Black 
households, were significantly less likely to 
have high-cost mortgages as lower-income 
households.

High-Cost
Lending

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



100

An analysis of loans in Travis County by race 
and ethnicity reveals that Black households are 
overrepresented in high-cost lending.  Among 
lower-income minority households, 17% of 
mortgages obtained by Hispanic housholds 
and 12.9% of mortgages obtained by Blacks 
were high-cost, compared to 8.3% of the 
mortgages obtained by lower-income White 
households and only 4.1% of those obtained 
by lower-income Asian households. 

Similar trends were apparent among upper-
income households.  Asian households were 
the least likely to have high-cost mortgages 
(2.9%), while White households experienced 
a high-cost rate of 5.4%.  The high-cost 
mortgage rate for upper-income Hispanic 
households was much higher at 7.7%, and 
Black households had the worst high-cost rate 
among upper-income borrowers at 10.5%. 
Details appear in Figure 6-6.

Figure 6-6
High-Cost Home Purchase Loans
by Race and Ethnicity, 2008-2010

Upper-income Black and 
Hispanic households were 
more likely to receive a 
high-cost loan than lower-
income White or Asian 
households.

Map 6-3 on the following page depicts the 
distribution of high-cost loans by census 
tract across the County, indicating a higher 
prevalence along Austin’s eastern fringe.  
This area of Travis County is characterized 
previously in the AI as predominantly lower-
opportunity, especially compared to the stable, 
opportunity-rich neighborhoods west of the 
city.

Total White  Black Asian Other  No data Hispanic* 

Total Originations 17,910 13,789 966 749 188 2,218 3,537
High-Cost 1,482 1,116 125 31 29 181 600
% High-Cost 8.3% 8.1% 12.9% 4.1% 15.4% 8.2% 17.0%
Total Originations 61,964 48,045 1,174 3,856 404 8,485 4,702
High-Cost 3,261 2,579 123 110 24 425 360
% High-Cost 5.3% 5.4% 10.5% 2.9% 5.9% 5.0% 7.7%
Total Originations 82,699 63,874 2,461 4,689 611 11,064 8,682
High-Cost 4,950 3,849 286 143 55 617 993
% High-Cost 6.0% 6.0% 11.6% 3.0% 9.0% 5.6% 11.4%

Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010

Lower-Income

Upper-Income

Total

Note: Total also includes 2,825 loans for which no income data was reported.
* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

Impacted Block Groups

Percent High-Cost
Less than 4%

4% to 8%

8.1% to 15%

15.1% to 30%

More than 30%

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 6-3
High-Cost Loan Rates by Census Tract, 2008-2010

Source:  FFIEC HMDA Files

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



102

Annual Trends in
Mortgage Lending

Studying mortgage application data on an 
annual basis allows insight into the influence 
of housing market trends on the behavior of 
applicants and banks.  Figure 6-7 illustrates 
annual change. 

While housing markets across the country 
have experienced steep declines in sales 
volume and mortgage applications since 2008 
as a result of buyer reluctance in an unstable 
market, the number of applications in Travis 
County increased from 55,588 in 2008 to 
71,875 in 2009 before falling to 61,696 in 2010. 
As noted previously, refinancing loans account 
for a large percentage of total applications. 
This is true in all three years. 

Over the course of the three years studied, 
the percentage of applications that resulted 
in loan originations increased, on the whole 
and across most racial groups, including Black 
households.  The number of loans that were 
high-cost dropped substantially each year, 
likely as a direct result of increasing statutory 
control over predatory lending practices.  It 
is also possible that education and outreach 
related to borrowing has contributed to the 
decline in high-cost loans.  Between 2008 and 
2010, the proportion of applications resulting 
in denials declined from 17.2% to 13.1%.  
This change also occurred across all minority 
groups. 

Figure 6-7
High-Cost Home Purchase Loans
by Race and Ethnicity, 2008-2010

Between 2008 and 2010, 
high-cost lending rates 
dropped substantially, 
both overall and across all 
racial and ethnic groups.

# % # % # %

   Applied for 55,588    100.0% 71,875     100.0% 61,696     100.0%
        Black 2,575      4.6% 2,554       3.6% 1,880       3.0%
        White 37,250    67.0% 47,387     65.9% 42,769     69.3%
        Asian 2,283      4.1% 3,370       4.7% 3,158       5.1%
        Hispanic* 8,184      14.7% 7,714       10.7% 6,757       11.0%
        Other race 623         1.1% 570          0.8% 447          0.7%
        No information/NA 12,857    23.1% 17,994     25.0% 13,442     21.8%
   Originated 23,032    41.4% 31,333     43.6% 28,334     45.9%
        Black 778         30.2% 926          36.3% 757          40.3%
        White 17,884    48.0% 24,140     50.9% 21,850     51.1%
        Asian 1,128      49.4% 1,822       54.1% 1,739       55.1%
        Hispanic* 2,889      35.3% 2,973       38.5% 2,820       41.7%
        Other race 216         34.7% 210          36.8% 185          41.4%
        No information/NA 3,026      23.5% 4,235       23.5% 3,803       28.3%
   Originated - High Cost 1,914      8.3% 1,759       5.6% 1,277       4.5%
        Black 140         18.0% 77           8.3% 69           9.1%
        White 1,460      8.2% 1,386       5.7% 1,003       4.6%
        Asian 42           3.7% 61           3.3% 40           2.3%
        Hispanic* 487         16.9% 270          9.1% 236          8.4%
        Other race 31           14.4% 14           6.7% 10           5.4%
        No information/NA 241         8.0% 221          5.2% 155          4.1%
   Denied 9,581      17.2% 8,982       12.5% 8,094       13.1%
        Black 922         35.8% 701          27.4% 389          20.7%
        White 6,344      17.0% 5,964       12.6% 5,602       13.1%
        Asian 319         14.0% 417          12.4% 396          12.5%
        Hispanic* 2,463      30.1% 1,833       23.8% 1,404       20.8%
        Other race 237         38.0% 149          26.1% 96           21.5%
        No information/NA 1,759      13.7% 1,751       9.7% 1,611       12.0%

* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.
Source: Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008-10

Note:  Data is for home purchase, refinance and improvement loans for owner-occupied units.  
Other application outcomes include approved but not accepted, withdrawn, incomplete or 
purchase by another institution.

2008 2009 2010

Total loans

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



103

Newspaper Advertising

Under federal law, no advertisement with 
respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling 
may indicate any preference, limitation, or 
discrimination because of race, color, religion, 
sex, handicap, familial status or national origin.  
Publishers and advertisers are responsible 
under federal law for making, printing, or 
publishing advertisements that violate the Fair 
Housing Act on its face. Thus, they should 
not publish or cause to be published an 
advertisement that expresses a preference, 
limitation or discrimination on the basis of race, 
color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or 
national origin. The law, as found in the Fair 
Housing Amendments Act of 1988, describes 
the use of words, photographs, symbols 
or other approaches that are considered 
discriminatory.

The classified sections of The Austin American-
Statesman for August 26, September 2, 
and September 9, all Sunday editions, were 
reviewed for this analysis.  While many of the 
advertisements described be properties located 
outside of Travis County’s CDBG jurisdiction, 
the review of ads was conducted to determine 
the newspaper’s compliance with fair housing 
laws and its own publisher’s policy.

The real estate section of the three printed 
Sunday editions stretched across the pages 
of the Statesman Home newspaper section, 
containing ads for home sales as well as 
rental opportunities and feature stories.  The 
publisher’s policy on accepting advertisements, 
which would generally include a statement that 
the paper reserves the right to edit, refuse, 
reject or cancel an ad at any time, in addition 
to any demands of compliance with fair housing 
standards, was not prominently displayed in 
the print edition.  Nor was it obvious during 
the process of placing an apartment rental 
ad on Statesman.com, which provides “tips 
for an effective ad,” but no anti-discrimination 
guidelines.  Both in its print and online section 
of classified ads devoted to real estate, the 
Statesman should state that it will not knowingly 
accept any advertising for real estate that is in 
violation of the Fair Housing Act.

However, in the three print editions reviewed 
and in a sample of online-only listings, no 
potentially discriminatory language was found.  
This suggests that a screening system of some 
kind is in place at the Statesman to ensure that 
any discriminatory language is filtered out of 
published content.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



7 evaluation of 
current fair 
housing profile

Progress Since 
Previous AI

104

This document is Travis County’s first Analysis 
of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, though 
it builds upon efforts to affirmatively further fair 
housing that have already taken root in the 
County’s administration of the CDBG program.  
When the program was first implemented in 2006 
the County operated under the City of Austin’s AI, 
which contained some County-level data, with little 
specifically reported on the unincorporated areas.  
Since then, County staff members have developed a 
better picture of conditions and needs in those areas 
through the development of the Consolidated Plan, 
the social work project and other data sources.  Staff 
members have also increased capacity with regard 
to addressing fair housing issues.

In its Consolidated Planning documents and in day-
to-day program activities, the County has already 
demonstrated recognition of a need to affirmatively 
further fair housing that extends beyond the County’s 
statutory responsibility to uphold the tenets of the 
federal Fair Housing Act and the Texas Fair Housing 
Act.  This AI is the result of a comprehensive effort 
to identify and contextualize barriers to fair housing.  
Additionally, it provides a specific course for 
action with the ultimate goal of equalizing housing 
opportunities for all people.  The County will use 
the AI’s recommendations as a pattern for the 
implementation of fair housing initiatives, then will 
record fair housing accomplishments in each year’s 
CAPER.

Prior to the development of this document, the 
County based its understanding of local impediments 
on the AI conducted by the City of Austin and in 
collaborative work with community partners and 
the Kirwan Institute to produce a Geography of 
Opportunity analysis for the greater Austin region.  
This report characterized neighborhoods of Travis 
County and other areas with regard to minority 
concentrations and access to the indicators of 
opportunity that predict positive life outcomes.

Fair Housing
Activities

Travis County’s CDBG program spreads limited 
resources across projects intended to meet 
multiple aims: assisting low- and moderate-
income households in obtaining affordable 
housing, improving the safety and livability 
of neighborhoods and increasing access to 
services.  The County’s fair housing activities 
are built into the way in which these goals are 
addressed, with attention toward ensuring that 
housing opportunities are promoted among 
traditionally underserved populations and 
that the living environment is improved in 
isolated, lower-income rural neighborhoods.  
Infrastructure projects are designed to create 
access for the disproportionately minority LMI 
areas often forgotten by other social service 
providers, whether it is in the form of public 
water where there was none, safe roads to 
connect communities or social workers to link 
needs to resouces.  At the same time, the 
County has identified sites within proximity 
of opportunity-rich western neighborhoods 
where investments would broaden housing 
choice for members of the protected classes.  
The County’s fair housing activities are 
represented in the balance it aspires to strike 
between revitalizing the areas of greatest need 
and opening access to its areas of greatest 
opportunity.

Additionally, fair housing principles factor 
into the details of program administration, as 
represented by strong affirmative marketing 
requirements and expansive outreach to 
ensure that the Urban County’s substantial 
limited-English-speaking population has full 
access to County programs and services.

In its 2010 CAPER, the latest available for 
review, the County reported more concrete 
fair housing accomplishments.  The County 
published educational information on fair 
housing via the CDBG website and Travis 
County’s TV channel.  CDBG funds paid for 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



105

training from the Corporation for Supportive 
Housing to train Permanent Supportive 
Housing providers about fair housing and how 
to ensure the use of preferences and waiting 
lists without violating fair housing laws.  Grant 
funds also paid for land to assist with the 
development of affordable single-family homes 
being built to visitability standards.  Additionally, 
Travis County Social Service Contracts in the 
amount of $132,582.81 provided legal aid and 
tenants’ council services to provide fair housing 
resources for a total of 9,968 clients during the 
2010 program year. Social service contracts 
are also in place to address financial literacy 
and to increase income through workforce 
development efforts.

The County’s Housing Finance Corporation 
expands the local inventory of affordable 
housing through the issue of bonds for 
affordable residential construction.  The 
HFC’s primary consideration in proposal 
evaluation appears to be feasibility, as there 
are no geographic priorities in place for the 
multi-family bond financing program.  HFC 
works closely with the Texas Department of 
Housing and Community Affairs, which has 
recently built desegregation incentives into 
its qualified allocation plan for housing tax 
credits.  However, it is unclear whether the 
state agency has carried this policy priority into 
its other programs.

Travis County does not have the authority to 
empower a local commission to enforce anti-
discrimination statutes at the County level.  
Therefore, County residents living outside of 
Austin may experience legal discrimination 
on the basis of sexual orientation, gender 
identity, age, or student status, though such 
discrimination is illegal in Austin.  Across all 
of Travis County, landlords are still legally 
permitted to discriminate based on a person’s 
source of income.

Fair Housing
Advocates

The Austin Tenants Council (ATC) is a HUD-
certified counseling agency that participates in 
HUD’s Fair Housing Initiatives Program (FHIP), 
through which ATC partners with HUD to help 
people identify government agencies that 
handle complaints of housing discrimination.  
Additionally, the Council conducts fair housing 
and outreach activities in Travis County and 
conducts discrimination testing across Central 
Texas.  

The Council currently has a contract with 
Travis County to provide landlord-tenant 
services.  For the first six years of the CDBG 
program, ATC did not provide a project 
proposal for funding consideration to serve the 
unincorporated areas.  However, in 2012, the 
program approached ATC about providing fair 
housing services and negotiated the contract 
that is now in place.

While ATC focuses primarily on housing rights 
for tenants, other agencies serve more specific 
constituent populations.  The Austin Resource 
Center for Independent Living, Easter Seals 
and Family Eldercare provide housing-related 
services for persons with disabilities, and El 
Buen Samaritano Episcopal Mission targets 
the area’s Latino population for assistance with 
health care, education and economic stability.  
These agencies, among many others, are part 
of a local network of advocacy to advance fair 
housing for members of the protected classes 
in Travis County.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



8 general 
fair housing 
observations

Demographic and Housing 
Market Observations

106

This section of the AI is a summary of general 
observations included in earlier sections of 
the report.  General observations include the 
results of primary and secondary research 
that define the underlying conditions, trends, 
and context for fair housing planning in the 
Urban County.  These observations in and 
of themselves do not necessarily constitute 
impediments to fair housing choice.  Rather, 
they establish a contextual framework for the 
impediments to fair housing choice that are 
presented in the following section of the AI.

1

2

The Urban County’s population grew 
42.9% during the last 10 years, a 
net gain of 54,069 residents.  Travis 
County led all Texas counties in 
growth between 2000 and 2010.

Since 2000, a gain in the raw number 
of White residents across Travis 
County has outpaced the gain 
among non-Whites, especially in the 
City of Austin. However, the Urban 
County has become more diverse, 
driven primarily by strong growth in 
the Hispanic population.  Hispanics 
represent the Urban County’s largest 
minority group, accounting for 28.9% 
of all residents. (See Page 18 for more 
information on the difference on race 
and ethnicity in Census categories.)

4

5

3
Recent demographic shifts have 
been characterized as “bright 
flight,” an attraction of higher-
income professionals to Austin that 
has gentrified traditionally minority 
neighborhoods and drove lower-
income households to the fringes of 
urban development.

There are 22 racially and/or ethnically 
concentrated block groups in the 
Urban County, the majority of which 
qualify as low- and moderate-
income.  These impacted areas are 
concentrated in the eastern half of 
Travis County.

Though integration has increased 
during the last 10 years, Travis 
County’s Black and Hispanic 
populations remain moderately 
segregated from its White population.

6
The 2010 median income for Black 
and Hispanic households in Travis 
County was roughly two-thirds the 
median income for Whites.  Lower 
household incomes among Blacks 
and Hispanics are reflected in 
lower home ownership rates when 
compared to Whites and Asians. 

7
Based on the Pew Institute 
methodology of the largest 
metropolitan areas in the country, the 
metro in which Travis County is located 
ranks as the most economically 
segregated in the United States.  
Other areas across Texas also lead 
the nation in economic segregation.

8 Travis County residents with 
disabilities were substantially more 
likely to live in poverty than those 
without disabilties. In 2010, 24.1% of 
those with disabilities lived in poverty, 
compared to 14.5% of those without 
disabilities.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



107

9

10

Female-headed households with 
children accounted for 45.9% of all 
families living in poverty in Travis 
County.  About one-third of all 
households of this type were living 
below the poverty line in 2010.

Blacks and Hispanics were 
substantially more likely than Whites 
and Asians to be unemployed in 2010 
across the Urban County as well as 
across Texas.

The Urban County gained more than 
19,000 housing units between 2000 
and 2010, an inventory increase 
exceeding 40% in only 10 years.

Multi-family housing structures are 
less common in unincorporated 
areas, where they represent 15.4% 
of the housing stock.  By contrast, 
44.8% of the stock in cities and towns 
is multi-family.  A lack of larger rental 
units consisting of three or more 
bedrooms has a disproportionately 
greater impact on minority families, 
who tend to live in larger families.

11

12

The housing market in Travis County 
is widely considered to be increasingly 
unaffordable.  Generally speaking, it 
is the most unaffordable to Black and 
Hispanic households as a function 
of the lower median incomes among 
these groups.

13

The CDBG Office currently 
administers funds from multiple 
prior grant years simultaneously in 
an effort to meet HUD timeliness 
requirements.  

1

Programmatic
Observations

Between 2008 and 2010, high-cost 
lending rates dropped substantially, 
on the whole and across all racial and 
ethnic groups.  This is likely a direct 
result of increased statutory control 
over predatory lending practices, 
as well as increasing borrower 
awareness.

14

County departments take individual 
approaches to ensuring that 
the substantial limited-English-
proficiency population in Travis 
County is afforded full access to 
programs and services.  The CDBG 
Office implements its programs 
according to a comprehensive set 
of internal LEP policies as it works 
to formalize as a Language Access 
Plan.

2

The Housing Authority has adopted 
recent changes to HUD program 
regulation prohibiting discrimination 
on the basis of marital status, sexual 
orientation and gender identity.  The 
Authority has also recently adopted 
local preferences for homeless 
persons and those with disabilities.

3

Black and Hispanic households are 
overrepresented among housing 
voucher holders and applicants 
in comparison to their share of all 
households across the County.

4

The County has allocated general 
funds to activities that further fair 
housing, such as the AI and tenant 
services.

5

In its CDBG administration, the 
County balances a need to improve 
the quality of life in impoverished 
areas with expanding access to 
opportunity-rich neighborhoods.

6

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



9 impediments 
to fair housing 
choice

108

Public Sector Impediments:
Market Based 

1 isolation of low-income 
rural communities 

Pockets of extreme poverty exist in some rural 
areas of the Urban County, neighborhoods 
in which homes and living environments are 
substandard, sometimes unsafe, and in which 
residents largely do not interact with the local 
economy.  Settlement in the rural periphery 
has been accelerated by rising housing costs 
in Austin that have pressured lower-income 
minority households to seek affordable units in 
unincorporated areas beyond the city’s border.  
Jobs and amenities are scarce in such areas and 
transit connections are very limited.

2 poor condition of housing 
in stock in unincorporated areas

Due to the absence of building codes applicable 
to residential construction and mobile homes 
in unincorporated areas, a substantial share 
of housing in the Urban County is considered 
by housing advocates to be substandard, 
deteriorated or otherwise  unsuitable as a 
living environment.  These present challenges 
for agencies that attempt to provide minor 
rehabilitation or accessibility retrofitting, as many 
units actually require substantial rehabilitation.

action step 1: The County should continue to 
invest CDBG funds to provide basic 
living environment improvements 
in impacted areas.  Additionally, 
support for social workers should 
continue, as they have been a 
critical resource in connecting far-
flung low-income residents with 
available programs and services.

action step 1: The CDBG program should 
continue investment in the 
rehabilitation of owner-occupied 
housing in the Urban County.  

action step: 2 The County should study the 
feasibility of pursuing Section 108 
funds through the CDBG program.  
If secured, the County could 
access up to five times its annual 
entitlement grant to capitalize 
its rehab program.  This activity 
would make more funds available 
to the County at one time.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



3 increasingly prohibitive 
housing costs

The median housing value in Travis County 
shot up 55.2% between 1990 and 2010, while 
real median income rose only 17.7%.  Property 
taxes in the County, a substantial component 
of home ownership costs, have also risen over 
time.  Renting has also become more expensive, 
as the Urban County lost half of its units renting 
for less than $500 between 2000 and 2010, while 
the number of units renting for more than $1,000 
more than doubled.  Minimum-wage, single-family 
households and those depending on SSI cannot 
afford an apartment renting at the fair market rate.

action step 1: The County should support the 
Housing Finance Corporation in 
growing its tenant-based rental 
assistance program and seeking 
greater engagement among 
landlords, particularly with units 
outside of impacted areas.

action step 2: The County should encourage 
the HFC to continue its efforts to 
provide down payment assistance 
to income-eligible households 
and work with developers to 
create affordable units through 
the single-family and multi-family 
bond programs.

action step 3: The County should encourage 
the Strategic Housing Finance 
Corporation should proceed 
with plans to acquire and 
maintain the affordability of tax-
credit developments for which 
affordability requirements are set 
to expire.

4 persistence of housing 
discrimination 

The most common basis cited in housing 
discrimination complaints across the Urban 
County, far and away, was disability. Between 2007 
and 2010, six separate complaints were lodged 
against the same affordable housing development 
for seniors in Pflugerville.  Nearly all alleged a 
failure to make reasonable accommodation or 
allow reasonable modificaions  for persons with 
disabilities.  Austin Tenants Council noted that 
many landlords in the unincorporated areas are 
smaller outfits, owning only a few units, and 
may be less aware of fair housing rights and 
responsibilities. 

action step 1: The County should continue 
outreach and education efforts 
related to fair housing, including 
publication of such material online 
and on the County’s TV network.

action step 2: The County should continue to 
engage ATC to conduct further 
education and outreach or 
paired testing in unincorporated 
areas, focusing on disability 
discrimination in the rental market.

109

action step 4: The County should encourage the 
HFC to incorporate priority areas 
for new construction investment 
into its funding guidelines to 
expand affordable housing in 
opportunity areas.

action step 5: The County should develop an 
Affordable Housing Policy for 
Travis County that includes siting 
recommendations.

action step 6: The County should develop 
incentive-based permitting 
processes for mixed-income 
subdivisions.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



110

5 presence of discriminatory 
restrictive deeds/covenants

Because land use in the unincorporated areas 
is not governed by zoning regulations, control 
commonly takes the form of deed/covenant 
restrictions.  While discriminatory provisions are 
illegal and unenforceable, housing advocates 
reported a general lack of awareness with regard 
to fair housing rights and responsibilities among 
homeowners’ associations, which has resulted 
in the enforcement of discriminatory rules and a 
lack of accomodation for persons with disabilities.  
Explicitly discriminatory language still exists in 
some deeds and restrictions (“no minorities”), 
though less obvious discrimination is more 
common in requirements (minimum structure 
size, “masonry only”) that attempt to prevent 
the development of affordable housing types in 
certain neighborhoods.

action step 1: The CDBG office should file a 
fair housing complaint with HUD  
or ATC upon encountering any 
discriminatory restrictive deeds or 
covenants.

Public Sector Impediments:
Policy Based 

6 concentration of voucher 
holders in impacted areas

Due to the wide range of affordability levels across 
areas of Travis County, Housing Choice Voucher 
holders are located primarily in less expensive 
communities that are more likely to be impacted 
areas. The AI map displaying the distribution of 
voucher holders shows their near absence from 
the western half of the County.  This suggests 
that the FMR is insufficient to afford a unit in many 
neighborhoods within that region.

action step 1: HATC’s voucher briefing packet 
contains information on areas of 
opportunity.  The Authority should 
consider increasing its efforts 
toward assisting voucher holders 
to find affordable units in the 
western half of the County.

action step 2: HFC should continue its efforts 
to acquire affordable housing 
developments before their 
conversion to market-rate units.  
This would help to preserve the 
affordable housing inventory in 
Travis County.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



8 lack of local human rights 
or fair housing ordinance

While the state’s fair housing ordinance extends 
protection against discrimination to Travis County 
residents, there is no local institutional structure in 
place to coordinate fair housing efforts or collect 
housing discrimination complaints.  Additionally, 
private-market discrimination is currently legal 
in all areas except Austin on the basis of marital 
status, sexual orientation and gender identity.  In 
all areas of the County, landlords may discriminate 
based on a person’s source of income.

action step 1: The County should pass a 
resolution or proclamation 
that serves as a government-
wide statement of intention to 
promote fair housing and prohibit 
discrimination.

111

9 lack of transit options 
in rural areas

From an operational perspective, the footprint of 
Capital Metro’s fixed-route service area and its 
orientation toward connecting activity centers is 
logical.  However, the absence of regular Cap 
Metro and CARTS service in most areas of the 
Urban County creates a disconnect between lower-
income residents, employment and amenities.  
Additionally, the lack of connection represents a 
barrier to the development of affordable housing 
in many unincorporated areas.

action step 1: The County should continue to 
collaborate with Cap Metro and 
CARTS to create innovative 
solutions that serve particular 
neighborhood connection needs.  
One example is the success of the 
CARTS service in Del Valle.

The County should participate in 
Cap Metro’s long-range planning 
efforts to promote the expansion 
of public transit service in non-
impacted, high-growth areas of 
the Urban County.  This could 
include the creation of ride-to-work 
public transit routes that consider 
the needs of second shift workers.

action step 2:

7
absence of authority 
for local oversight over 
design and construction

Aside from the limited respects in which the 
International Fire Code applies to multi-family 
dwellings, the County has little authority 
to exercise oversight over the design and 
construction of residential units, particularly 
with regard to compliance with accessibility 
requirements.  ATC’s testing results have 
revealed newly constructed rental properties in 
Travis County that are unlawfully inaccessible to 
persons with disabilities.  Instead of these issues 
being identified early in the design process, non-
compliant features are often identified through the 
fair housing complaint process.

action step 1: The County should contract 
with ATC to provide training to 
architects, engineers and other 
design professionals.

action step 2: The County should continue its 
legislative advocacy efforts in the 
interest of gaining increased land-
use authority and the ability to 
adopt and enforce a building code.

action step 3: HFC should prioritize its 
investment funding criteria to 
focus on major corridors with 
public transit service.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



112

11 questionable patterns 
in private lending

Wells Fargo, which recently agreed to a $50M 
settlement with the U.S. Justice Department 
related to allegations of discriminatory and 
predatory lending, was Travis County’s largest 
mortgage lender by number of originations in 
recent years.  Mortgage loan denial rates among 
most minority applicants were higher than denial 
rates for Whites between 2008 and 2010, and 
more than 40% of the denials for Black applicants 
included no given reason.  During the same years, 
upper-income Black and Other Race households  
received mortgage application denials more often 
than lower-income White households.  Finally, 
upper-income Black and Hispanic households 
were more likely to receive  a high-cost loan than 
lower-income White or Asian households. 

action step 1: The County has no jurisdiction 
over lending practices.  However, 
to the extent that it can provide 
or connect residents to financial 
counseling and homebuyer 
education, these services would 
especially benefit lower-income 
and minority households.

Private Sector Impediment:
Market Based 

10 improvements needed in 
some policy documents

The CDBG program in Travis County was noted 
to incorporate fair housing principles, effectively 
advancing housing choice within the capabilities 
of the limited resources available.  The following 
recommendations would further strengthen the 
program and those of other agencies involved in 
housing across the county as noted.

action step 1: The CDBG Office should amend 
the Affirmative Marketing 
Plan to include a statement of 
consequences for noncompliance, 
which could potentially include a 
recapture of funds, disallowance 
of future participation in the 
CDBG program and/or a referral 
of the matter to HUD and/or a fair 
housing rights organization such 
as Austin Tenants Council.

action step 2:

action step 3: HATC should update its ACOP to 
specifically prohibit discrimination 
against the new classes protected 
by changes to HUD program 
administration as of March 2012 
(marital status, sexual orientation 
or gender identity).

The CDBG Office should formalize 
its Language Access Plan for 
persons with limited English 
proficiency.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



113

Fair Housing 
Action Plan

[To be added following discussion of 
proposed action steps]

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



appendix a

chart of stakeholders invited to
participate in the development of the ai Stakeholder Chart

Consultation Process for the
Williamson County, TX Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice

Type of Organization Name of Organization Type of Organization Name of Organization

Safe Place

Corporation for Supportive Housing

Foundation for the Homeless

AIDS Services of Austin

Capital Area Food Bank of Texas

Meals on Wheels and More

Travis County District Attorney's Office

Public Housing Authority
Housing Authority of Travis County

Society of St. Vincent de Paul  St. Margaret 
Mary - Cedar Park

Greendoors Society of St. Vincent de Paul St. Mary Our 
L d  f h  L k  L  ViAustin CHDO Roundtable Joseph's Food Pantry

Austin Habitat for Humanity/Homebase Travis County Health & Human Services & 
V  S i  S h R l C i  Frameworks CDC Austin Tenants' Council 

Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans 
Service

City of Austin Equal Employment and Fair 
Housing Office

Accessible Housing Austin Texas Rio Grande Legal Aid

Helping the Aging Needy and Disabled (H.A.N.D) Cap Metro

Family Eldercare CARTS

Texas Department of Aging and Disability Services

Literacy Coalition of Central Texas

Manos de Christo

Austin Board of Realtors

Social Service Organizations, 
Housing for Special Needs 

Populations, etc.
Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources 
Department

Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans 
Service

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation

Affordable Housing 
Providers, CHDOs

Advocacy Organizations 
for Persons with 
Disabilities

Ad  O i ti  

County CDBG & HOME 
Programs

County Planning / 
Zoning Staff / Director

Local fair housing 
organizations, legal aid 
agencies

Public transit agency

Realtors Association

Workers Defense Project / PDL

American Gateways

El Buen Samaritano

Refugee Services of Texas
Saheli

Advocacy Organizations 
for Persons with LEP

PAGE 1

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 12, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Juanita Jackson/854-4467 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Sherri E. Fleming,  
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and Take Appropriate Action on the Following Requests from Foundation 
Communities related to the Operation of its Tax Preparation Assistance Program for 
Eligible Residents during the 2014 Tax Season: 
 

A. Use of Space at Travis County's South Rural Community Center in Del Valle for 
the Operation of the Tax Preparation Assistance Program during the 2014 Tax 
Season;  
 

B. In-Kind Support in the Form of Printing Brochures, Fliers, Forms and Other 
Promotional Materials for the 2014 Tax Season; and  

 
C. In-Kind Support in the Form of American Sign Language Services (Services for 

the Deaf and Hard of Hearing) for the 2014 Tax Season. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached memo. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends approval of this request consistent with the Court’s past commitment 
to support the Community Tax Centers. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Please see attached memo. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Travis County’s Print Shop reviewed the documents received from Foundation 
Communities and staff believes the estimate to provide the requested documents would 
not exceed $8,500.00 in printing, materials and staff time. 
 
Travis County HHS&VS Services for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing estimates providing 
American Sign Language Interpreter Services at the Community Tax Center per 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 16Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

Foundation Communities request will not exceed $15,000 (based on previous year’s 
expenditures).  As in past years, these services would be scheduled in advance.  
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Mary Etta Gerhardt 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 

 Foundation Communities 1 
 

 
 

 
www.communitytaxcenters.org	

www.foundcom.org		
	

Request	to	Travis	County		
For	In‐Kind	Print	Services	and	ASL	Interpreters	for	Tax	Season	2014	

	
The Community Tax Centers  
The  Community  Tax  Centers  Program  provides  free‐income  tax  assistance,  education  and  outreach  to 
residents of Austin and  the  surrounding areas.   Each year,  volunteer  income  tax preparers  receive  IRS‐
based tax law training and must pass IRS certification exams in order to assist clients through this program. 
Volunteers help  clients  file  federal  income  tax  returns  for  the  current  and  prior  years  and  help  clients 
prepare  applications  for  Individuals  Taxpayer  Identification Numbers  (ITIN) when  required.   During  the 
2013 filing season, 18,310 tax returns were prepared brining  in over $32 million to the  local economy  in 
the  form of  refunds.   Of  the  total  refunds, over $12 million was  in  the  form of  the Earned  Income Tax 
Credit, our nation’s  largest anti‐poverty program.   The average  income for our tax center clients  in 2013 
was  $21,950.    Over  300  Deaf/HOH  clients  received  tax  preparation  through  appointments  with  ASL 
interpreters.    Foundation  Communities  (a  local  non‐profit)  administers  the  tax  center  program  in 
partnership with the Internal Revenue Service and receives federal, local and private funds to support the 
program.   
 
In the 2014 tax season, we expect to serve over 18,500 clients with five tax centers which collectively will 
be open 240 hours per week from the end of January through the filing deadline of April 15, 2014.  We 
anticipate brining  in over $34 million to the  local economy  in the form of refunds. To be eligible for our 
services, clients must have a household  income below $50,000 and  tax scenarios  that our volunteer  tax 
preparers are trained and certified to assist with.   
 
The Community Tax Centers serve clients off all backgrounds and abilities.  The Deaf/HOH population that 
we have been serving has been growing year‐to‐year due to increased outreach efforts to this population 
and  increased awareness of our service.   Deaf/HOH clients who would  like  to schedule an appointment 
with  an  ASL  interpreter  have  the  option  of  going  online  to  schedule  an  appointment  at 
www.communitytaxcenters.org,  calling  our  appointment  line  number,  or  sending  an  email  to 
appts@foundcom.org.  
 
Proposal for 2014 
Foundation Communities requests that Travis County Services for the Deaf/HOH provide 2 ASL interpreters 
at the Community Financial Center location (2600 W. Stassney Lane) from January 20rd to April 15, 2014.  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 

 Foundation Communities 2 
 

The proposed schedule is outlined below and will be adjusted according to what’s approved by the County. 
This schedule would allow us to provide tax preparation to 380 Deaf/HOH clients.   

 
 

Days  Proposed ASL Interpreter Schedule  

Mondays, Tuesdays, 
and Wednesdays  

2:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

	
We also request that the County continue to provide pro‐bono print services to support our volunteer 
training, community outreach, and program administration needs.  The attachment includes an itemized 
list of all selected print items, general specifications, and target deadlines for your consideration.  In total, 
the County would support the printing and delivery of over 111,560 print materials to the Community Tax 
Centers.   
 
With the County’s continued support we will be able to increase the number of eligible households served, 
ensuring that more refunds and credits are delivered to working individuals and families in Central Texas.  
Helping families save money on exorbitant commercial tax preparation fees is particularly important in 
these trying economic times. 

 
Thank you in advance for your consideration!   

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item�# Category Dimensions Pages�of�Text Double�Sided? Paper�color Qty Target�Rcvd�Deadlines

1 New�Volunteer�Training�Packet 8�1/2"�x�11" 25 YES pastel�yellow 200������� 11/15/2013 5000
2 Returning�Volunteer�Training�Packet 8�1/2"�x�11" 18 YES pastel�blue 100������� 11/15/2013 1800
3 Schedule�C�Training�PPT�Handouts�(black�&�white) 8/12�"�X�11" 4 YES white 50���������� 11/15/2013 200
4 ITIN�Training�Materials 8�1/2"�x�11"� 10 YES white 300������� 11/15/2013 3000
5 ITIN�Training�W�7 8�1/2"�x�11' 1 NO white 300������� 11/15/2013 300
6 ITIN�Resource�Guide�for�Volunteers�2014 8�1/2"�x�11" 16 YES white 30���������� 11/15/2013 480
7 Volunteer�Scheduling�Software�Instruction�Guide 8�1/2"�x�11" 1 NO florescent�orange 1,000���� 11/15/2013 1000
8 Volunteer�Certification�Instruction�guide 8�1/2"�x�11" 2 YES florescent�orange 1,000���� 11/15/2013 2000
9 New�Volunteer�Take�Home�Handouts 8�1/2"�x�11" 11 YES white 700������� 11/15/2013 7700
10 Returning�Volunteer�Take�Home�Handouts 8�1/2"�x�11" 13 YES white 200������� 11/15/2013 2600
11 Volunteer�Philosophy,�Bill�of�rights,�Job�Description 8�1/2"�x�11"� 2 YES white 1,000���� 11/15/2013 2000
12 Intake�Volunteer�Training�Guide 8�1/2"�x�11" 4 YES white 100������� 11/15/2013 400
13 It's�My�First�Day�Checklist 8�1/2"�x�11" 1 NO white 1,000���� 1/3/2014 1000
14 Volunteer�Sign�In�Sheet�2014 8�1/2"�x�11" 1 NO white 500������� 1/3/2014 500
15 Income�Expense�Sheets�(Bilingual) 8�1/2"�x�11" 2 YES white 2,000���� 11/15/2013 4000

16 CTC�General�Flyer 8�1/2"�x11" 2 YES pastel�yellow 30,000�� 11/15/2013 60000
17 ITIN�Brochure���English 8�1/2"�x�11",�tri�fold 2 YES pastel�green 500������� 1/3/2014 1000
18 ITIN�Brochure���Spanish 8�1/2"�x�11",�tri�fold 2 YES pastel�green 1,500���� 11/15/2013 3000
19 ITIN�Flyer 8�1/2"�x�11" 2 YES pastel�green 2,000���� 1/3/2014 4000
20 ASL�Flyer 8�1/2"�x�11"� 1 NO pastel�blue 3,000���� 1/3/2014 3000
21 FAFSA�Flyers 8�1/2"�x�11",�cut�in�1/2 2 YES dark�green 2,000���� 11/15/2013 4000

22 Client�Sign�In�Sheet�2014 8�1/2"�x�11"� 1 NO white 2,500���� 1/3/2014 2500
23 Processing�and�Tracking�Envelope� (Manila�(12�X�9�inches)�,�front�side,��Open�Top�Flap 1 NO manila 22,000�� 1/3/2014 22000
24 Taxpayer�Take�home�envelope� (White��12�X�9�inches),�Open�Top�Flap 2 YES white 22,000�� 1/3/2014 44000
25 Customer�Satisfaction�Survey� 8�1/2�"x�11",�cut�in�1/2 2 YES white 15,000�� 1/3/2014 30000
26 Client�Drop�Off�Agreement 8�1/2"�x�11" 2 YES white 500������� 1/3/2014 1000
27 Make�an�Appointment�Cards Business�card�size,�card�stock,�cut� 2 YES white 1,000���� 1/3/2014 2000
28 FAFSA�Intake�forms 8�1/2"�x�11"� 2 YES white 1,000 1/3/2014 2000
29 Most�Used�4012 8�1/2"�x�11" 72 YES white 80 11/15/2013 5760
30 Online�Self�Prep�Business�Cards Business�card�size,�card�stock,�cut� 1 NO White 2,000 1/3/2014
31 Options�for�filing�a�the�tax�center 8�1/2"�x�11" 2 YES Ivory 5,000 1/3/2014
32 What�you�need�to�know�MFS 8�1/2"�x�11" 2 YES Gray 800 1/3/2014
33 What�you�need�to�know�out�of�scope 8�1/2"�x�11" 2 YES Gray 800 1/3/2014
34 Savings�bond�promotion� 8�1/2"�x�11",�cut�in�1/4�(black�&�white) 2 YES Red 2,000 1/3/2014

Total�Quantity:� 111,560 216240

2014�Travis�County�Itemized�Print�Schedule�for�Community�Tax�Centers�

Community�Outreach�Materials

Volunteer�Training�Materials

Administrative�Materials

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 2014 Travis County Itemized Print Schedule for Community Tax Centers

Item #   Category  Dimensions 

Pages of 

Text 

Double‐

Sided?  Paper color  Qty 

Target Rcvd 

Deadlines

TTL Pg 

Count Cost

Volunteer Training Materials

1 New Volunteer Training Packet  8 1/2" x 11"  25 YES  pastel yellow  200 11/15/2013 5000 $189.00

2 Returning Volunteer Training Packet  8 1/2" x 11"  18 YES  pastel blue  100 11/15/2013 1800 $82.43

3 Schedule C Training PPT Handouts (black & white)  8/12 " X 11"  4 YES  white  50 11/15/2013 200 $18.50

4 ITIN Training Materials  8 1/2" x 11"  10 YES  white  300 11/15/2013 3000 $121.38

5 ITIN Training W‐7  8 1/2" x 11'  1 NO  white  300 11/15/2013 300 $19.64

6 ITIN Resource Guide for Volunteers 2014  8 1/2" x 11"  16 YES  white  30 11/15/2013 480 $27.86

7 Volunteer Scheduling Software Instruction Guide  8 1/2" x 11"  1 NO  florescent orange  1,000 11/15/2013 1000 $49.46

8 Volunteer Certification Instruction guide  8 1/2" x 11"  2 YES  florescent orange  1,000 11/15/2013 2000 $88.92

9 New Volunteer Take‐Home Handouts  8 1/2" x 11"  11 YES  white  700 11/15/2013 7700 $214.54

10 Returning Volunteer Take‐Home Handouts  8 1/2" x 11"  13 YES  white  200 11/15/2013 2600 $108.40

11 Volunteer Philosophy, Bill of rights, Job Description  8 1/2" x 11"  2 YES  white  1,000 11/15/2013 2000 $88.92

12 Intake Volunteer Training Guide  8 1/2" x 11"  4 YES  white  100 11/15/2013 400 $24.98

13 It's My First Day Checklist  8 1/2" x 11"  1 NO  white  1,000 1/3/2014 1000 $37.46

14 Volunteer Sign‐In Sheet 2014  8 1/2" x 11"  1 NO  white  500 1/3/2014 500 $24.73

15 Income Expense Sheets (Bilingual)  8 1/2" x 11"  2 YES  white  2,000 11/15/2013 4000 $145.84

Community Outreach Materials

16 CTC General Flyer  8 1/2" x11"  2 YES  pastel yellow  30,000 11/15/2013 60000 $1,539.60

17 ITIN Brochure ‐ English  8 1/2" x 11", tri‐fold  2 YES  pastel green  500 1/3/2014 1000 $44.46

18 ITIN Brochure ‐ Spanish  8 1/2" x 11", tri‐fold  2 YES  pastel green  1,500 11/15/2013 3000 $117.38

19 ITIN Flyer  8 1/2" x 11"  2 YES  pastel green  2,000 1/3/2014 4000 $138.84

20 ASL Flyer  8 1/2" x 11"  1 NO  pastel blue  3,000 1/3/2014 3000 $89.38

21 FAFSA Flyers  8 1/2" x 11", cut in 1/2  2 YES  dark green  2,000 11/15/2013 4000 $138.84

Administrative Materials

22 Client Sign‐In Sheet 2014 8 1/2" x 11" 1 NO white 2,500 1/3/2014 2500 $86.65

23 Processing and Tracking Envelope (Manila (12 X 9 inches) , front side,  Open Top Flap 1 NO manila 22,000 1/3/2014 22000 $1,470.00

24 Taxpayer Take‐home envelope (White‐ 12 X 9 inches), Open Top Flap 2 YES white 22,000 1/3/2014 44000 $1,686.00

25 Customer Satisfaction Survey 8 1/2 "x 11", cut in 1/2 2 YES white 15,000 1/3/2014 30000 $697.80

26 Client Drop‐Off Agreement 8 1/2" x 11" 2 YES white 500 1/3/2014 1000 $44.46

27 Make an Appointment Cards Business card size, card stock, cut 2 YES white 1,000 1/3/2014 2000 $56.00

28 FAFSA Intake forms 8 1/2" x 11" 2 YES white 1,000 1/3/2014 2000 $84.92

29 Most Used 4012 8 1/2" x 11" 72 YES white 80 11/15/2013 5760 $218.76

30 Online Self‐Prep Business Cards Business card size, card stock, cut 1 NO White 2,000 1/3/2014 $64.00

31 Options for filing a the tax center 8 1/2" x 11" 2 YES Ivory 5,000 1/3/2014 $232.60

32 What you need to know MFS 8 1/2" x 11" 2 YES Gray 800 1/3/2014 $63.94

33 What you need to know out‐of‐scope 8 1/2" x 11" 2 YES Gray 800 1/3/2014 $63.94

34 Savings bond promotion 8 1/2" x 11", cut in 1/4 (black & white) 2 YES Red 2,000 1/3/2014 $145.84

Total Quantity: 111,560 216240 $8,225.47

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 17Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis County Early Childhood 
Issue Area Investments 

Recommended investment strategies 
for FY14 and FY15

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Two Part Discussion

• Part 1 – FY15 Social Service Competition: 
Targeting all Travis County early childhood 
investments to align with or strategically 
compliment the Austin/Travis County School 
Readiness Action Plan 

• Part 2 – FY14 Interim Strategy: 

One‐time investment to Child Care Subsidies

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



PART 1: FY15 SOCIAL SERVICE 
COMPETITION

Targeting all Travis County early childhood investments to align with or 
strategically compliment the Austin/Travis County School Readiness 
Action Plan

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



TCCC‐endorsed Austin/Travis County 
School Readiness Action Plan

Outcomes and services fall in to the following 
categories:

• Supports to families with young children. 

• Early Care and Education. 

• Wraparound services to highly vulnerable 
families with young children. 

• Issue area planning, research, program design 
and evaluation

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Travis County Investments strategies:

• Direct service programming (i.e., Healthy 
Families, Parenting In Recovery)

• Directly negotiated contracts for service (i.e., 
ATCIC Children First, Workforce Solutions 
Childcare Local Match)

• Competitively procured contracts for service 
(Social Service Contracts)

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



FY15 Early Childhood Social Service 
Competition

The HHS/VS Department requests permission to offer a 
competitive bidding process with existing and expanded 
early childhood investments for FY15.

• December 2013 – Complete required documentation 
(scope of work, review criteria, etc.)

• February 2014 ‐ Release RFP 

• March 2014 ‐ Proposals due 

• March ‐ July 2014 ‐ Review and score proposals, 
negotiate and approve new contracts 

• October 1, 2014 new contracts begin

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



PART 2: FY14 INTERIM STRATEGY

One‐time investment to Child Care 
Subsidies

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



FY14 Interim Strategy

Recommendation: ONE‐TIME $500,000 investment over FY14 and 
FY15 to early childhood subsidies
This recommendation addresses the top community priority in this 
issue are ‐ increase local investments in childcare subsidies.

Many Travis County families need assistance with subsidized child care 
to obtain or maintain employment:
• Almost one‐half (46%) of all children in Travis County are below 

200% of the poverty threshold.
• Child care is an essential work support ‐ In Travis County, 53,653 

children under six years old live in families where their sole parent 
or both parents work.

• Central Texas has the most expensive child care in the state of 
Texas. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Benefit of a ONE‐TIME Childcare 
Subsidy Increase

In addition to increasing service capacity, a 
significant ONE TIME increase in resources for 
child care subsidies can offer greater stability to 
vulnerable Travis County families, as well as the 
overall child care system:

• Prevent and offset care disruption for 
vulnerable, working Travis County families.

• Stabilize the local child care system for Travis 
County infants.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 18Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 19Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 20Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 21Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 22Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for 
the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jason G. Walker/44562; Marvin Brice, 
CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Frate Barker Road 
Improvements, IFB No. B1306-021-JW, to the low bidder, Capital 
Excavation Construction Company. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 The Frate Barker Road Improvements project is for the improvement of 
1.3 miles of Frate Barker Road, between Brodie Lane and Manchaa 
Road, where the road will be widened to five (5) lanes from Manchaca 
Road to Buckingham Gate Drive, and to three (3) lanes from 
Buckingham Gate Drive to Brodie Lane.  Also to be included with these 
improvements are a bicycle lane and a sidewalk on each side of the 
road.  Part of the construction costs of this project are funded through an 
Advance Funding Agreement with the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TxDoT).     

 Subject IFB opened on July 26, 2013, with four (4) bids received in 
response to the solicitation.  The apparent low bidder is Capital 
Excavaton Construction Company with a base bid of $6,354,214.91.  

 TNR is recommending for contract award Capital Excavation 
Construction Company for the Base Bid amount of $6,354,214.91, in 
conjuction with the action the Commissioners Court takes 10/29 
regarding Additive Alternate 1, in the amount of $245,000.00, for tree 
relocation.  Purchasing concurs with TNR’s recommendation, and since 
the project is one that is a federally funded project, subsequent TxDoT 
concurence is required, and has been received (see TxDoT’s memo). 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 24Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for 
the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last N/A months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $6,354,214.91    
Contract Type: Construction   
Contract Period: 356 calendar days after issuance of notice-to-
proceed. 
  

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent: via Bidsync  Responses Received: 4  
HUB Information: Vendor is not a HUB  % HUB Subcontractor: 11.8%  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been notified. 
  Comments:  N/A 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300000318 
  Fund Center(s): 1490190000, 1498000001  
  Comments:  

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Funds Reservation 300000318
General Data

Document type FC

Company code 1000

FM area 1000

Controlling area 1000

Document type 030

Document date 09/21/2012

Posting date 09/21/2012

Currency USD/ 1.00000 

Statistics

Entered by WILLIAD

Last changed by HUFFH

Created on 09/21/2012

Last changed 02/25/2013

More Data

Text Frate Barker Rd - For Construction Contract Bid

Reference

Overall Amount           7,400,000.00  USD

Document item 001

Commitment item 521040

Fund 0001

Cost center 1498000001

Vendor

Funds center 1498000001

G/L account 521040

Due on

Customer

Text

Amount           409,470.34  USD

Document item 002

Commitment item 521040

Fund 2075

Cost center 1490190000

Vendor

Funds center 1490190001

G/L account 521040

Due on

Customer

Text GRANT PORTION ESTIMATE FOR CONST BID

Amount         5,920,000.00  USD

Document item 003

Commitment item 521040

Fund 4056

Cost center 1490190000

Vendor

Funds center 1490190000

G/L account 521040

Due on

Customer

Text MATCH FUND 4056 PORTION ESTIMATE FOR CONST BID

Amount         1,000,000.00  USD

Document item 004

Earmarked fund 300000318 printed on 09/17/2013/14:41:07 Side 1 of 2

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Funds Reservation 300000318
General Data

Document type FC

Company code 1000

FM area 1000

Controlling area 1000

Document type 030

Document date 09/21/2012

Posting date 09/21/2012

Currency USD/ 1.00000 

Statistics

Entered by WILLIAD

Last changed by HUFFH

Created on 09/21/2012

Last changed 02/25/2013

More Data

Text Frate Barker Rd - For Construction Contract Bid

Reference

Overall Amount           7,400,000.00  USD

Commitment item 522040

Fund 4063

Cost center 1490190000

Vendor

Funds center 1490190000

G/L account 522040

Due on

Customer

Text MATCH FUND 4063 PORTION ESTIMATE FOR CONST BID

Amount            70,529.66  USD

Earmarked fund 300000318 printed on 09/17/2013/14:41:07 Side 2 of 2

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

1 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECT of Frate Barker Road 
Improvement Project BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND CAPITAL 

EXCAVATION COMPANY 
 
 

This Agreement is made and entered into this day by and between Travis County, Texas, 
a political subdivision of the State of Texas (the "County") and Capital Excavation 
Company, (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor") and shall be binding upon their 
respective executors, administrators, heirs, successors, and  assigns. 

WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into a contract for the construction of 
Frate Barker Road Improvement Project in Travis County, Texas, in accordance with 
the provisions of state and federal regulations and conforming to the Contractor’s Notice 
of Construction, Bid Proposal, Specifications and Plans marked Frate Barker Road 
Improvement Project (IFB NO. B1306-021-JW), all of which are hereby incorporated 
by reference as if fully copied and set forth herein at length; 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has been engaged in and now does comparable work 
and represents that he/she is fully equipped, competent and capable of performing the 
above desired and outlined work, and is ready and willing to perform such work in 
accordance with all provisions of the above mentioned documents, Specifications and the 
Plans marked (IFB NO. B1306-021-JW). 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the County’s promise to pay the amount 
below as totaled in the Bid Proposal hereto attached and made part of this Contract, the 
Contractor agrees to do at his own proper cost and expense all the work necessary for the 
construction of, Frate Barker Road Improvement Project in Travis County, Texas, in 
accordance with the provisions of the aforementioned Contractors' Notice of 
Construction, the Bid Proposal  as awarded by the Commissioners Court, and the 
Specifications and Plans marked (IFB NO. B1306-021-JW), and the terms, conditions, 
and provisions of this Contract, to the satisfaction of the County Executive of the 
Transportation and Natural Resources Department of Travis County, Texas. 

1. Entire Agreement.  This contract document, the Contractor's Notice of 
Construction, the Bid Proposal, and the Specifications and Plans marked (IFB NO. 
B1306-021-JW) including all Exhibits and 12 Attachments thereto represent the entire 
and integrated Contract between the County and the Contractor and supersede all prior 
negotiations, representations, or agreements, either oral or written.   

2. Completion of Project.  The said Contractor further agrees to be available for 
work within fourteen (14) calendar, and to complete the work within 356 working days, 
after receiving a written “Notice to Proceed”, approved by the County Executive, the 
County Purchasing Agent, and the FHWA Division Administrator.  The Contractor 
warrants that the completed project shall be adequate for the purposes intended. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

walkerj
Draft



4400001650 
 

2 

3. Consideration.  Travis County, Texas, in consideration of the full and true 
performance of the said work by said Contractor in accordance with this Contract, hereby 
agrees and binds itself to pay to said Contractor the total contract amount of 
$6,354,214.91, consisting of $1,736,925.00 for materials to be incorporated into the 
Project or completely consumed at the job site and services required by or integral to the 
performance of the contract and $4,617,289.91 for all other charges, including the cost of 
other services, overhead, materials which do not become part of the finished project or 
are reusable, and machinery or equipment and its accessory, repair, or replacement parts, 
and in the manner provided for, within thirty (30) calendar days from the receipt of an 
acceptable invoice.   

4. Choice of Law/Venue.  This contract shall be construed according to the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America.  The performance for this Contract 
shall be in Travis County, and venue for any action will lie in Travis County, Texas.   

5. Delinquent Taxes.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if Contractor 
is delinquent in payment of taxes within Travis County at the time of invoicing, 
Contractor hereby assigns any payments to be made for service rendered under this 
Contract to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent 
taxes. 

6. Amendment.  This Contract may be amended only by written instrument signed 
by both the County and the Contractor and subject to the approval of the FHWA Division 
Administrator.  NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF 
THE COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO 
AMEND THIS CONTRACT, EXCEPT SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE 
GRANTED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF THE COUNTY. 

7. Notice. 
 
7.1 Manner.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing and 
may be effected by personal delivery, by hand delivery through a courier or a 
delivery service, or by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address: 

 
COUNTY: 

 
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or successor) 
Travis County Purchasing Agent 

  
Hand Delivery: 

 
700 Lavaca St., Ste. 800 
Austin, Texas 78701 
 
Registered or Certified Mail (Return receipt requested):  
 
P. O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

3 

Copy To: 
 
Steve Manilla, County Executive (or successor) 
Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
Capital Excavation Company 
P.O. Box 1301 
Austin, TX 78767 
Contact: Gary Botkin 
Title: Vice President 

 
7.2 Effect.  Notice by personal delivery or hand delivery shall be deemed 
effective immediately upon delivery, provided notice is given as required by 
Subsection 7.1 hereof.  Notice by registered or certified mail shall be deemed 
effective 3 days after deposit in a U.S. mailbox or U.S. Post Office. 
 
7.3 Change of Address.  Either party hereto may change its address by giving 
notice as provided herein. 

 
8. Forfeiture of Contract. 
 
 8.1 Forfeiture.  Contractor must forfeit all benefits of the Contract and County 

must retain all performance by Contractor and recover all consideration or the 
value of all consideration paid to Contractor pursuant to the Contract if: 
 

8.1.1. Contractor was doing business at the time of submitting its bid or 
had done business during the 365-day period immediately prior to the date 
on which its bid was due with one or more Key Contracting Persons listed 
in Exhibit A to the Ethics Affidavit which is attached to IFB No. B1306-
021-JW and incorporated by reference therein as Exhibit A (both 
contained in Attachment 4 thereto); or 

 
8.1.2 Contractor does business with a Key Contracting Person after the 
date on which the bid that resulted in this Contract is submitted and prior 
to full performance of this Contract. 
 

8.2 Definition.  "Was Doing Business" or "Does Business" mean: 
 

8.2.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable 
thing which is worth more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for 
personal services or for the purchase of any property or property interest, 
either real or personal, either legal or equitable;  or  

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

4 

8.2.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise 
creating or having in existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of 
more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

 
8.2.3 but does not include 8.2.4 any retail transaction for goods or 
services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a posted, published, or 
marked price available to the public; 
 
8.2.5 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for 
personal, family or household purposes in accordance with pricing 
guidelines applicable to similarly situated individuals with similar risks as 
determined by Contractor in the ordinary course of its business; and  
 
8.2.6 a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on 
behalf of Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational 
corporation by an agent, employee or other representative of Contractor 
who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have known 
about the Contract. 
 

8.3 Waiver.  The forfeiture provisions of the Contract imposed pursuant to the 
Travis County Ethics Policy may be waived in whole or in part by the Travis 
County Commissioners Court. 

9. Contract Construction.   

9.1 Gender and Number.  Words of any gender in this Contract shall be 
construed to include the other, and words in either number shall be construed to 
include the other, unless the context in this Contract clearly requires otherwise. 
 
9.2 Headings and Titles.  Headings and titles at the beginning of this Contract, 
including all Exhibits and Attachments hereto, have been included only to make it 
easier to locate the subject matter covered by that part, section or subsection and 
shall not be used in construing this Contract. 
 
9.3 Computation of Time.  Whenever any period of time is stated in this 
Contract, the time shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last 
day of the period.  If the last day of any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a 
day that Travis County has declared a holiday for its employees, these days may 
be omitted from the computation.  All hours stated in this Contract are stated in 
Central Standard Time or in Central Daylight Savings Time, as applicable.  
Contractor may obtain a copy of Travis County's holiday schedule from the 
Purchasing Agent. 
 
9.4 Interpretation.  Provisions, words, phrases, and Texas statutes and 
regulations, whether incorporated by actual use or reference into this Contract, 
including all Exhibits and Attachments hereto, shall be construed in accordance 
with Chapters 311 and 312 of the Texas Government Code.  Provisions, words, 
phrases, and federal statutes and regulations, whether incorporated by actual use 
or reference, shall be applied to this Contract, including all Exhibits and 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

5 

Attachments hereto, in accordance with applicable federal regulations and 
guidelines. 

 
 
10. Severability.  The provisions of this Contract are severable.  If any clause, 
sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this Contract, including the Exhibits and 
Attachments hereto, or the application of this Contract, including the Exhibits and 
Attachments hereto, to any person or circumstance is held by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable for any reason, such invalidity, 
illegality, or unenforceability shall not impair, invalidate, nullify, or otherwise affect the 
remainder of this Contract, including the Exhibits and Attachments hereto, but the effect 
thereof shall be limited to the clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article so held to 
be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, and the application of such clause, sentence, 
provision, paragraph, or article to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected. 
 
11. Sovereign Immunity.  The parties expressly agree that no provision of this 
Contract, including the Exhibits and Attachments hereto, is in any way intended to 
constitute a waiver by Travis County of any immunities from suit or liability that County 
may have by operation of law and, Travis County hereby retains all of its affirmative 
defenses. 
 
12. Compliance with Applicable Law.  The Contractor shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related in any way to 
this Contract. Contractor shall notify the County in writing of any failure to comply with 
such laws, regulations, or ordinances, where such failure affects in any way Contractor's 
ability to provide service(s) under this Contract.  This Paragraph shall be construed in 
conjunction with Paragraph 7.1 (entitled “Laws to be Observed”) of IFB No. B1306-021-
JW. 
 
13. Name and Ownership.  Contractor remains responsible for the performance of this 
Contract, including all Exhibits and Attachments hereto, when there is a change of name 
or change of ownership, other than an outright sale of Contractor's business such that 
Contractor, including its officers and executives, is no longer involved in the business's 
operations.  If a change of name or ownership occurs, Contractor shall immediately 
notify the County Purchasing Agent.  No change in the obligations of or to Contractor 
will be recognized unless or until it is approved by the Travis County Commissioners 
Court with the concurrence of the FHWA Division Administrator.  
 
14. Payments.   
 

14.1 Each payment made hereunder must be allowable under Title 48 Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 31 and must be consistent with this Contract including 
the Exhibits and Attachments hereto.  Payment shall be made by check or warrant 
upon satisfactory delivery and acceptance of items and submission of a Correct 
and Complete invoice to the address below for orders placed by the Purchasing 
Agent, or to the address indicated on Purchase Orders placed by other authorized 
County offices and/or departments.  Invoices shall be submitted to. 
 
 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

6 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
 

14.2 In addition to the information required under Subsection 9.4 of IFB No. 
B1306-021-JW, a “Correct and Complete” invoice shall include at least the 
following: 

 
14.2.1 Name, address, and telephone number of the Contractor and similar 
information in the event payment is to be made to a different address; 
14.2.2 County Contract, Purchase Order, or Delivery Order number,  
14.2.3 identification of items or services as outlined in this Contract; 
14.2.4 quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount; 
and 
14.2.5 any additional payment information which may be called for by this 
Contract. 

 
The Contractor shall also submit a statement with each invoice showing the 
percentage completion of the work accomplished during the preceding thirty (30) 
day period and the percentage completion to date, as well as any additional 
written information requested by the County to document the progress of the 
work. 

 
14.3 Payments made under this Contract are subject to the cost principles set 
forth in 48 C. F. R. Part 31.  In addition, this Contract is subject to the Prompt 
Payment Act, Chapter 2251, Texas Government Code.  In the event of a clear 
conflict between 48 C.F.R. Part 31 and the Prompt Payment Act, applicable 
provisions of 48 C.F.R. Part 31 shall control. 
 
14.4 Contractor must pay its subcontractors for satisfactory performance of 
their contracts, no later than ten (10) days from the Contractor's receipt of 
payments from County hereunder. The Contractor shall promptly make full 
payment of any and all retainage to subcontractors within 30 days after 
subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed.  Contractor must complete and 
submit the Prompt Payment Certification (Federal-Aid Projects) form set forth in 
Form 2177 as prescribed therein. 
 
14.5 Contractor shall complete and submit other forms and reports, as required, 
including the forms and reports set forth in Attachment 8 and other forms and 
reports required by FHWA or TxDOT. 
 
14.6 Contractor shall comply with the Cost Principles described in OMB 
Circular A-87, Revised. 
 
14.7 All payments under this Section 14 are subject to Paragraphs 5.15 (entitled 
“Final Payment”) and 9.6 (entitled “Acceptance and Final Payment”) of IFB No. 
B1306-021-JW. 

 
 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

7 

15. Successors and Assigns.  Upon County's execution of this Contract, including all 
Exhibits and Attachments hereto, the provisions of this Contract shall be binding upon 
and inure to the benefit of Travis County and Capital Excavation Company and their 
respective successors, executors, administrators, and permitted assigns. 
 
 

Additional Contract Provisions 

In addition to the Contract provisions set forth above and the Contract provisions 
set forth in IFB No. B1306-021-JW, the following Contract provisions apply. 

 

A. Incorporation of Provisions of Form FHWA-1273. 

FORM FHWA-1273 SETS FORTH REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS SUPPORTED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY 
FEDERAL FUNDS.  ALL OF THE PROVISIONS OF FORM FHWA-1273, 
INCLUDING ALL THE EXHIBITS AND ATTACHMENTS THERETO, ARE 
HEREBY INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE HEREIN AND ATTACHED HERETO 
AS ATTACHMENT 13.  ALL REFERENCES IN FORM FHWA-1273 TO THE SHA, 
SHA “CONTRACTING OFFICER” OR STATE ARE REFERENCES TO THE 
COUNTY, FOR PURPOSES OF THIS IFB AND ANY RESULTING CONTRACT.  
THE PROVISIONS OF FORM FHWA-1273 CONSTITUTE PERFORMANCES BY 
THE CONTRACTOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS CONTRACT 

Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts 
 

I. General  

II. Nondiscrimination  

III. Nonsegregated Facilities  

IV. Payment of Predetermined Minimum Wage  

V. Statements and Payrolls  

VI. Record of Materials, Supplies, and Labor  

VII. Subletting or Assigning the Contract  

VIII. Safety: Accident Prevention  

IX. False Statements Concerning Highway Projects  

X. Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

8 

XI. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Ineligibility, and Voluntary 
Exclusion  

XII. Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for Lobbying  

 

Attachments 
 

A. Employment Preference for Appalachian Contracts (included in Appalachian 
contracts only)  

I. GENERAL  

1. These contract provisions shall apply to all work performed on the 
contract by the contractor's own organization and with the assistance of 
workers under the contractor's immediate superintendence and to all work 
performed on the contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract.  

2. Except as otherwise provided for in each section, the contractor shall 
insert in each subcontract all of the stipulations contained in these 
Required Contract Provisions, and further require their inclusion in any 
lower tier subcontract or purchase order that may in turn be made. The 
Required Contract Provisions shall not be incorporated by reference in 
any case. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by 
any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with these Required 
Contract Provisions.  

3. A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these Required Contract 
Provisions shall be sufficient grounds for termination of the contract.  

4. A breach of the following clauses of the Required Contract Provisions 
may also be grounds for debarment as provided in 29 CFR 5.12:  

a. Section I, paragraph 2;  
b. Section IV, paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 4, and 7;  
c. Section V, paragraphs 1 and 2a through 2g.  

5. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of Section IV 
(except paragraph 5) and Section V of these Required Contract 
Provisions shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this 
contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the 
procedures of the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) as set forth in 29 CFR 
5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes 
between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting 
agency, the DOL, or the contractor's employees or their representatives.  

6. Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, the 
contractor shall not:  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

9 

a. discriminate against labor from any other State, 
possession, or territory of the United States (except for 
employment preference for Appalachian contracts, when 
applicable, as specified in Attachment A), or  

b. employ convict labor for any purpose within the limits of the 
project unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on 
parole, supervised release, or probation.  

II. NONDISCRIMINATION  

(Applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts of 
$10,000 or more.) 

1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal employment opportunity (EEO) 
requirements not to discriminate and to take affirmative action to assure 
equal opportunity as set forth under laws, executive orders, rules, 
regulations (28 CFR 35, 29 CFR 1630 and 41 CFR 60) and orders of the 
Secretary of Labor as modified by the provisions prescribed herein, and 
imposed pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 140 shall constitute the EEO and specific 
affirmative action standards for the contractor's project activities under 
this contract. The Equal Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications 
set forth under 41 CFR 60-4.3 and the provisions of the American 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set forth under 28 CFR 
35 and 29 CFR 1630 are incorporated by reference in this contract. In the 
execution of this contract, the contractor agrees to comply with the 
following minimum specific requirement activities of EEO:  

a. The contractor will work with the State Highway Agency (SHA) 
and the Federal Government in carrying out EEO obligations and 
in their review of his/her activities under the contract. 

b. The contractor will accept as his operating policy the following 
statement:  

"It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, 
without regard to their race, religion, sex, color, national origin, 
age or disability. Such action shall include: employment, 
upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, 
preapprenticeship, and/or on-the-job training." 

2. EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make known to the SHA 
contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have the responsibility for 
and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active 
contractor program of EEO and who must be assigned adequate authority 
and responsibility to do so.  

3. Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's staff who are 
authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge employees, or who 
recommend such action, or who are substantially involved in such action, 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

10 

will be made fully cognizant of, and will implement, the contractor's EEO 
policy and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade and 
classification of employment. To ensure that the above agreement will be 
met, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:  

a. Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office employees 
will be conducted before the start of work and then not less often 
than once every six months, at which time the contractor's EEO 
policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The 
meetings will be conducted by the EEO Officer.  

b. All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be given a 
thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering all major 
aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within thirty days 
following their reporting for duty with the contractor.  

c. All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the project 
will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the contractor's procedures 
for locating and hiring minority group employees.  

d. Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO policy will 
be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants for 
employment and potential employees.  

a. The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to implement 
such policy will be brought to the attention of employees by means 
of meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means.  

4. Recruitment: When advertising for employees, the contractor will include 
in all advertisements for employees the notation: "An Equal Opportunity 
Employer." All such advertisements will be placed in publications having a 
large circulation among minority groups in the area from which the project 
work force would normally be derived.  

a. The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid bargaining 
agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through 
public and private employee referral sources likely to yield 
qualified minority group applicants. To meet this requirement, the 
contractor will identify sources of potential minority group 
employees, and establish with such identified sources procedures 
whereby minority group applicants may be referred to the 
contractor for employment consideration.  

a. In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining agreement 
providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, he is expected to 
observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the 
system permits the contractor's compliance with EEO contract 
provisions. (The DOL has held that where implementation of such 
agreements have the effect of discriminating against minorities or 
women, or obligates the contractor to do the same, such 
implementation violates Executive Order 11246, as amended.)  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

11 

b. The contractor will encourage his present employees to refer 
minority group applicants for employment. Information and 
procedures with regard to referring minority group applicants will 
be discussed with employees.  

5. Personnel Actions: Wages, working conditions, and employee benefits 
shall be established and administered, and personnel actions of every 
type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, 
and termination, shall be taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, age or disability. The following procedures shall be 
followed:  

a. The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project sites to 
insure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate 
discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.  

b. The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid 
within each classification to determine any evidence of 
discriminatory wage practices.  

c. The contractor will periodically review selected personnel actions 
in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. 
Where evidence is found, the contractor will promptly take 
corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination 
may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action 
shall include all affected persons.  

d. The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of alleged 
discrimination made to the contractor in connection with his 
obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve such 
complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action within a 
reasonable time. If the investigation indicates that the 
discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, 
such corrective action shall include such other persons. Upon 
completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform every 
complainant of all of his avenues of appeal.  

6.  Training and Promotion:  

a. The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing the 
skills of minority group and women employees, and applicants for 
employment.  

b. Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements and as 
permissible under Federal and State regulations, the contractor 
shall make full use of training programs, i.e., apprenticeship, and 
on-the-job training programs for the geographical area of contract 
performance. Where feasible, 25 percent of apprentices or 
trainees in each occupation shall be in their first year of 
apprenticeship or training. In the event a special provision for 
training is provided under this contract, this subparagraph will be 
superseded as indicated in the special provision.  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

12 

c. The contractor will advise employees and applicants for 
employment of available training programs and entrance 
requirements for each.  

d. The contractor will periodically review the training and promotion 
potential of minority group and women employees and will 
encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and 
promotion.  

7. Unions: If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon unions as a 
source of employees, the contractor will use his/her best efforts to obtain 
the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minority 
groups and women within the unions, and to effect referrals by such 
unions of minority and female employees. Actions by the contractor either 
directly or through a contractor's association acting as agent will include 
the procedures set forth below:  

a. The contractor will use best efforts to develop, in cooperation with 
the unions, joint training programs aimed toward qualifying more 
minority group members and women for membership in the unions 
and increasing the skills of minority group employees and women 
so that they may qualify for higher paying employment.  

b. The contractor will use best efforts to incorporate an EEO clause 
into each union agreement to the end that such union will be 
contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to their race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability.  

c. The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral practices 
and policies of the labor union except that to the extent such 
information is within the exclusive possession of the labor union 
and such labor union refuses to furnish such information to the 
contractor, the contractor shall so certify to the SHA and shall set 
forth what efforts have been made to obtain such information.  

d. In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor with a 
reasonable flow of minority and women referrals within the time 
limit set forth in the collective bargaining agreement, the 
contractor will, through independent recruitment efforts, fill the 
employment vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, age or disability; making full efforts to obtain 
qualified and/or qualifiable minority group persons and women. 
(The DOL has held that it shall be no excuse that the union with 
which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement 
providing for exclusive referral failed to refer minority employees.) 
In the event the union referral practice prevents the contractor 
from meeting the obligations pursuant to Executive Order 11246, 
as amended, and these special provisions, such contractor shall 
immediately notify the SHA.  

8. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials and Leasing 
of Equipment: The contractor shall not discriminate on the grounds of 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

13 

race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability in the selection 
and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and 
leases of equipment.  

a. The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors and suppliers 
of his/her EEO obligations under this contract.  

b. Disadvantaged business enterprises (DBE), as defined in 49 CFR 
23, shall have equal opportunity to compete for and perform 
subcontracts which the contractor enters into pursuant to this 
contract. The contractor will use his best efforts to solicit bids from 
and to utilize DBE subcontractors or subcontractors with 
meaningful minority group and female representation among their 
employees. Contractors shall obtain lists of DBE construction firms 
from SHA personnel.  

c. The contractor will use his best efforts to ensure subcontractor 
compliance with their EEO obligations.  

9. Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such records as 
necessary to document compliance with the EEO requirements. Such 
records shall be retained for a period of three years following completion 
of the contract work and shall be available at reasonable times and 
places for inspection by authorized representatives of the SHA and the 
FHWA.  

a. The records kept by the contractor shall document the following:  

1. The number of minority and non-minority group members 
and women employed in each work classification on the 
project;  

2. The progress and efforts being made in cooperation with 
unions, when applicable, to increase employment 
opportunities for minorities and women;  

3. The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, 
training, qualifying, and upgrading minority and female 
employees; and  

4. The progress and efforts being made in securing the 
services of DBE subcontractors or subcontractors with 
meaningful minority and female representation among their 
employees.  

b. The contractors will submit an annual report to the SHA each July 
for the duration of the project, indicating the number of minority, 
women, and non-minority group employees currently engaged in 
each work classification required by the contract work. This 
information is to be reported on Form FHWA-1391. If on-the-job 
training is being required by special provision, the contractor will 
be required to collect and report training data.  

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

14 

III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES  

(Applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts of 
$10,000 or more.) 

a. By submission of this bid, the execution of this contract or subcontract, 
or the consummation of this material supply agreement or purchase 
order, as appropriate, the bidder, Federal-aid construction contractor, 
subcontractor, material supplier, or vendor, as appropriate, certifies that 
the firm does not maintain or provide for its employees any segregated 
facilities at any of its establishments, and that the firm does not permit its 
employees to perform their services at any location, under its control, 
where segregated facilities are maintained. The firm agrees that a 
breach of this certification is a violation of the EEO provisions of this 
contract. The firm further certifies that no employee will be denied 
access to adequate facilities on the basis of sex or disability.  

b. As used in this certification, the term "segregated facilities" means any 
waiting rooms, work areas, restrooms and washrooms, restaurants and 
other eating areas, timeclocks, locker rooms, and other storage or 
dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or 
entertainment areas, transportation, and housing facilities provided for 
employees which are segregated by explicit directive, or are, in fact, 
segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age or 
disability, because of habit, local custom, or otherwise. The only 
exception will be for the disabled when the demands for accessibility 
override (e.g. disabled parking).  

c. The contractor agrees that it has obtained or will obtain identical 
certification from proposed subcontractors or material suppliers prior to 
award of subcontracts or consummation of material supply agreements of 
$10,000 or more and that it will retain such certifications in its files.  

IV. PAYMENT OF PREDETERMINED MINIMUM WAGE  

(Applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts exceeding $2,000 and to all related 
subcontracts, except for projects located on roadways classified as local roads or rural 
minor collectors, which are exempt.) 

1. General:  

 a. All mechanics and laborers employed or working upon the site of 
the work will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a 
week and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account 
[except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations (29 
CFR 3) issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act 
(40 U.S.C. 276c)] the full amounts of wages and bona fide fringe 
benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment. The 
payment shall be computed at wage rates not less than those 
contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor 
(hereinafter "the wage determination") which is attached hereto and 
made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

15 

which may be alleged to exist between the contractor or its 
subcontractors and such laborers and mechanics. The wage 
determination (including any additional classifications and wage 
rates conformed under paragraph 2 of this Section IV and the DOL 
poster (WH-1321) or Form FHWA-1495) shall be posted at all 
times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the 
work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily 
seen by the workers. For the purpose of this Section, contributions 
made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits 
under Section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a) on 
behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such 
laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of Section IV, 
paragraph 3b, hereof. Also, for the purpose of this Section, regular 
contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period 
(but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, 
which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be 
constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such 
laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate 
and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification 
of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as 
provided in paragraphs 4 and 5 of this Section IV.  

b. Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one 
classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each 
classification for the time actually worked therein, provided, that 
the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent 
in each classification in which work is performed.  

c. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon Act and related 
acts contained in 29 CFR 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by 
reference in this contract.  

2. Classification:  

a. The SHA contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers 
or mechanics employed under the contract, which is not listed in 
the wage determination, shall be classified in conformance with 
the wage determination.  

b. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification, 
wage rate and fringe benefits only when the following criteria have 
been met:  

1.  the work to be performed by the additional classification 
requested is not performed by a classification in the wage 
determination;  

2.  the additional classification is utilized in the area by the 
construction industry;  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

16 

3.  the proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe 
benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates 
contained in the wage determination; and  

4.  with respect to helpers, when such a classification 
prevails in the area in which the work is performed.  

c. If the contractor or subcontractors, as appropriate, the laborers 
and mechanics (if known) to be employed in the additional 
classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer 
agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the 
action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the DOL, 
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment 
Standards Administration, Washington, D.C. 20210. The Wage 
and Hour Administrator, or an authorized representative, will 
approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification 
action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting 
officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period 
that additional time is necessary.  

d. In the event the contractor or subcontractors, as appropriate, the 
laborers or mechanics to be employed in the additional 
classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer 
do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate 
(including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where 
appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, 
including the views of all interested parties and the 
recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Wage and Hour 
Administrator for determination. Said Administrator, or an 
authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 
days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify 
the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time 
is necessary  

e. The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) 
determined pursuant to paragraph 2c or 2d of this Section IV shall 
be paid to all workers performing work in the additional 
classification from the first day on which work is performed in the 
classification.  

3. Payment of Fringe Benefits:  

a. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a 
class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is 
not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor or subcontractors, 
as appropriate, shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage 
determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an 
hourly case equivalent thereof. 

b. If the contractor or subcontractor, as appropriate, does not make 
payments to a trustee or other third person, he/she may consider 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

17 

as a part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of 
any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe 
benefits under a plan or program, provided, that the Secretary of 
Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that 
the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. 
The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in 
a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the 
plan or program.  

4.  Apprentices and Trainees (Programs of the U.S. DOL) and Helpers:  

a. Apprentices:  

1. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the 
predetermined rate for the work they performed when they 
are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a 
bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the DOL, 
Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of 
Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State 
apprenticeship agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a 
person is employed in his/her first 90 days of probationary 
employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship 
program, who is not individually registered in the program, 
but who has been certified by the Bureau of 
Apprenticeship and Training or a State apprenticeship 
agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary 
employment as an apprentice.  

2. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeyman-level 
employees on the job site in any craft classification shall 
not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as 
to the entire work force under the registered program. Any 
employee listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, 
who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated 
above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate 
listed in the wage determination for the classification of 
work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice 
performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio 
permitted under the registered program shall be paid not 
less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the work actually performed. Where a 
contractor or subcontractor is performing construction on a 
project in a locality other than that in which its program is 
registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in 
percentages of the journeyman-level hourly rate) specified 
in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program 
shall be observed.  

3. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate 
specified in the registered program for the apprentice's 
level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the 
journeyman-level hourly rate specified in the applicable 
wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe 
benefits in accordance with the provisions of the 
apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

18 

does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid 
the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage 
determination for the applicable classification. If the 
Administrator for the Wage and Hour Division determines 
that a different practice prevails for the applicable 
apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in 
accordance with that determination.  

4. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or 
a State apprenticeship agency recognized by the Bureau, 
withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the 
contractor or subcontractor will no longer be permitted to 
utilize apprentices at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the comparable work performed by 
regular employees until an acceptable program is 
approved.  

b. Trainees:  

1. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be 
permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for 
the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to 
and individually registered in a program which has 
received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification 
by the DOL, Employment and Training Administration.  

2. The ratio of trainees to journeyman-level employees on the 
job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan 
approved by the Employment and Training Administration. 
Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is 
not registered and participating in a training plan approved 
by the Employment and Training Administration shall be 
paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually 
performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the 
job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the 
registered program shall be paid not less than the 
applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the 
work actually performed.  

3. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate 
specified in the approved program for his/her level of 
progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman-
level hourly rate specified in the applicable wage 
determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in 
accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If 
the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, 
trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits 
listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator 
of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an 
apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding 
journeyman-level wage rate on the wage determination 
which provides for less than full fringe benefits for 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

19 

apprentices, in which case such trainees shall receive the 
same fringe benefits as apprentices.  

4.. In the event the Employment and Training Administration 
withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor or 
subcontractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees 
at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work 
performed until an acceptable program is approved.  

c. Helpers:  

Helpers will be permitted to work on a project if the helper 
classification is specified and defined on the applicable wage 
determination or is approved pursuant to the conformance 
procedure set forth in Section IV.2. Any worker listed on a payroll 
at a helper wage rate, who is not a helper under an approved 
definition, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on 
the wage determination for the classification of work actually 
performed. 

5. Apprentices and Trainees (Programs of the U.S. DOT):  

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and skill training 
programs which have been certified by the Secretary of Transportation as 
promoting EEO in connection with Federal-aid highway construction 
programs are not subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this 
Section IV. The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and 
trainees under such programs will be established by the particular 
programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to journeymen shall not 
be greater than permitted by the terms of the particular program. 

6. Withholding:  

The SHA shall upon its own action or upon written request of an 
authorized representative of the DOL withhold, or cause to be withheld, 
from the contractor or subcontractor under this contract or any other 
Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-
assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements 
which is held by the same prime contractor, as much of the accrued 
payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers 
and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed 
by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required 
by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, 
including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the 
site of the work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the SHA 
contracting officer may, after written notice to the contractor, take such 
action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further 
payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have 
ceased. 

 

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

20 

7. Overtime Requirements:  

No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract 
work which may require or involve the employment of laborers, 
mechanics, watchmen, or guards (including apprentices, trainees, and 
helpers described in paragraphs 4 and 5 above) shall require or permit 
any laborer, mechanic, watchman, or guard in any workweek in which 
he/she is employed on such work, to work in excess of 40 hours in such 
workweek unless such laborer, mechanic, watchman, or guard receives 
compensation at a rate not less than one-and-one-half times his/her basic 
rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek. 

8. Violation:  

Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages: In the event of any 
violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 7 above, the contractor and 
any subcontractor responsible thereof shall be liable to the affected 
employee for his/her unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and 
subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work 
done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such 
District or to such territory) for liquidated damages. Such liquidated 
damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer, 
mechanic, watchman, or guard employed in violation of the clause set 
forth in paragraph 7, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which 
such employee was required or permitted to work in excess of the 
standard work week of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages 
required by the clause set forth in paragraph 7. 

9. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages:  

The SHA shall upon its own action or upon written request of any 
authorized representative of the DOL withhold, or cause to be withheld, 
from any monies payable on account of work performed by the contractor 
or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract 
with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract 
subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is 
held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to 
be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor 
for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set 
forth in paragraph 8 above. 

V. STATEMENTS AND PAYROLLS  

(Applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts exceeding $2,000 and to all related 
subcontracts, except for projects located on roadways classified as local roads or rural 
collectors, which are exempt.) 

1. Compliance with Copeland Regulations (29 CFR 3):  

The contractor shall comply with the Copeland Regulations of the 
Secretary of Labor which are herein incorporated by reference. 

2. Payrolls and Payroll Records:  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

21 

a. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by 
the contractor and each subcontractor during the course of the 
work and preserved for a period of 3 years from the date of 
completion of the contract for all laborers, mechanics, apprentices, 
trainees, watchmen, helpers, and guards working at the site of the 
work.  

b. The payroll records shall contain the name, social security 
number, and address of each such employee; his or her correct 
classification; hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of 
contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or 
cash equivalent thereof the types described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) 
of the Davis Bacon Act); daily and weekly number of hours 
worked; deductions made; and actual wages paid. In addition, for 
Appalachian contracts, the payroll records shall contain a notation 
indicating whether the employee does, or does not, normally 
reside in the labor area as defined in Attachment A, paragraph 1. 
Whenever the Secretary of Labor, pursuant to Section IV, 
paragraph 3b, has found that the wages of any laborer or 
mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated 
in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section 
1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis Bacon Act, the contractor and each 
subcontractor shall maintain records which show that the 
commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan 
or program is financially responsible, that the plan or program has 
been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics 
affected, and show the cost anticipated or the actual cost incurred 
in providing benefits. Contractors or subcontractors employing 
apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain 
written evidence of the registration of apprentices and trainees, 
and ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.  

c. Each contractor and subcontractor shall furnish, each week in 
which any contract work is performed, to the SHA resident 
engineer a payroll of wages paid each of its employees (including 
apprentices, trainees, and helpers, described in Section IV, 
paragraphs 4 and 5, and watchmen and guards engaged on work 
during the preceding weekly payroll period). The payroll submitted 
shall set out accurately and completely all of the information 
required to be maintained under paragraph 2b of this Section V. 
This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional 
Form WH-347 is available for this purpose and may be purchased 
from the Superintendent of Documents (Federal stock number 
029-005-0014-1), U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, 
D.C. 20402. The prime contractor is responsible for the 
submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.  

d. Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of 
Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his/her 
agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons 
employed under the contract and shall certify the following:  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

22 

1.  that the payroll for the payroll period contains the 
information required to be maintained under paragraph 2b 
of this Section V and that such information is correct and 
complete;  

2.  that such laborer or mechanic (including each helper, 
apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during 
the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages 
earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and 
that no deductions have been made either directly or 
indirectly from the full wages earned, other than 
permissible deductions as set forth in the Regulations, 29 
CFR 3;  

3.  that each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less 
that the applicable wage rate and fringe benefits or cash 
equivalent for the classification of worked performed, as 
specified in the applicable wage determination 
incorporated into the contract.  

e. The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set 
forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy 
the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" 
required by paragraph 2d of this Section V. 

f. The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the 
contractor to civil or criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 
and 31 U.S.C. 231. 

g. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required 
under paragraph 2b of this Section V available for inspection, 
copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the SHA, 
the FHWA, or the DOL, and shall permit such representatives to 
interview employees during working hours on the job. If the 
contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or 
to make them available, the SHA, the FHWA, the DOL, or all may, 
after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, 
take such actions as may be necessary to cause the suspension 
of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. 
Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request 
or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment 
action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.  

VI. RECORD OF MATERIALS, SUPPLIES, AND LABOR  

1. On all Federal-aid contracts on the National Highway System, except 
those which provide solely for the installation of protective devices at 
railroad grade crossings, those which are constructed on a force account 
or direct labor basis, highway beautification contracts, and contracts for 
which the total final construction cost for roadway and bridge is less than 
$1,000,000 (23 CFR 635) the contractor shall:  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

23 

a. Become familiar with the list of specific materials and supplies 
contained in Form FHWA-47, "Statement of Materials and Labor 
Used by Contractor of Highway Construction Involving Federal 
Funds," prior to the commencement of work under this contract.  

b. Maintain a record of the total cost of all materials and supplies 
purchased for and incorporated in the work, and also of the 
quantities of those specific materials and supplies listed on Form 
FHWA-47, and in the units shown on Form FHWA-47.  

c. Furnish, upon the completion of the contract, to the SHA resident 
engineer on Form FHWA-47 together with the data required in 
paragraph 1b relative to materials and supplies, a final labor 
summary of all contract work indicating the total hours worked and 
the total amount earned.  

2. At the prime contractor's option, either a single report covering all contract 
work or separate reports for the contractor and for each subcontract shall 
be submitted.  

VII. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT  

1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization contract work 
amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a greater percentage if 
specified elsewhere in the contract) of the total original contract price, 
excluding any specialty items designated by the State. Specialty items 
may be performed by subcontract and the amount of any such specialty 
items performed may be deducted from the total original contract price 
before computing the amount of work required to be performed by the 
contractor's own organization (23 CFR 635).  

a. "Its own organization" shall be construed to include only workers 
employed and paid directly by the prime contractor and equipment 
owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or without 
operators. Such term does not include employees or equipment of 
a subcontractor, assignee, or agent of the prime contractor.  

b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that 
requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or equipment not 
ordinarily available in the type of contracting organizations 
qualified and expected to bid on the contract as a whole and in 
general are to be limited to minor components of the overall 
contract.  

2. The contract amount upon which the requirements set forth in paragraph 
1 of Section VII is computed includes the cost of material and 
manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the 
contractor under the contract provisions.  

3. The contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent or supervisor 
who is employed by the firm, has full authority to direct performance of 
the work in accordance with the contract requirements, and is in charge of 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

24 

all construction operations (regardless of who performs the work) and (b) 
such other of its own organizational resources (supervision, management, 
and engineering services) as the SHA contracting officer determines is 
necessary to assure the performance of the contract.  

4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or otherwise disposed 
of except with the written consent of the SHA contracting officer, or 
authorized representative, and such consent when given shall not be 
construed to relieve the contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment 
of the contract. Written consent will be given only after the SHA has 
assured that each subcontract is evidenced in writing and that it contains 
all pertinent provisions and requirements of the prime contract.  

VIII.  SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION  

1. In the performance of this contract the contractor shall comply with all 
applicable Federal, State, and local laws governing safety, health, and 
sanitation (23 CFR 635). The contractor shall provide all safeguards, 
safety devices and protective equipment and take any other needed 
actions as it determines, or as the SHA contracting officer may determine, 
to be reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of employees on 
the job and the safety of the public and to protect property in connection 
with the performance of the work covered by the contract.  

2. It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a condition of each 
subcontract, which the contractor enters into pursuant to this contract, 
that the contractor and any subcontractor shall not permit any employee, 
in performance of the contract, to work in surroundings or under 
conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her 
health or safety, as determined under construction safety and health 
standards (29 CFR 1926) promulgated by the Secretary of Labor, in 
accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety 
Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 333).  

3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract that the 
Secretary of Labor or authorized representative thereof, shall have right 
of entry to any site of contract performance to inspect or investigate the 
matter of compliance with the construction safety and health standards 
and to carry out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 333).  

IX. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY PROJECTS  

In order to assure high quality and durable construction in conformity with 
approved plans and specifications and a high degree of reliability on statements 
and representations made by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on 
Federal-aid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned with the 
project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, and honestly as possible. 
Willful falsification, distortion, or misrepresentation with respect to any facts 
related to the project is a violation of Federal law. To prevent any 
misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and similar acts, the 
following notice shall be posted on each Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

25 

635) in one or more places where it is readily available to all persons concerned 
with the project: 

NOTICE TO ALL PERSONNEL ENGAGED ON FEDERAL-AID HIGHWAY PROJECTS 

18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows: 

"Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United States, or of any 
State or Territory, or whoever, whether a person, association, firm, or 
corporation, knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, or false 
report as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to be 
used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to be performed, or the 
cost thereof in connection with the submission of plans, maps, specifications, 
contracts, or costs of construction on any highway or related project submitted for 
approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or 

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, false report 
or false claim with respect to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work 
performed or to be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in 
connection with the construction of any highway or related project approved by 
the Secretary of Transportation; or 

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false representation as to 
material fact in any statement, certificate, or report submitted pursuant to 
provisions of the Federal-aid Roads Act approved July 1, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as 
amended and supplemented; 

Shall be fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned not more than 5 years or 
both." 

X. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER 
POLLUTION CONTROL ACT  

(Applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts of 
$100,000 or more.) 

By submission of this bid or the execution of this contract, or subcontract, as 
appropriate, the bidder, Federal-aid construction contractor, or subcontractor, as 
appropriate, will be deemed to have stipulated as follows: 

1. That any facility that is or will be utilized in the performance of this 
contract, unless such contract is exempt under the Clean Air Act, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. 1857 et seq., as amended by Pub.L. 91-604), and 
under the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 
1251 et seq., as amended by Pub.L. 92-500), Executive Order 11738, 
and regulations in implementation thereof (40 CFR 15) is not listed, on 
the date of contract award, on the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) List of Violating Facilities pursuant to 40 CFR 15.20.  

2. That the firm agrees to comply and remain in compliance with all the 
requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air Act and Section 308 of the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act and all regulations and guidelines 
listed thereunder.  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

26 

3. That the firm shall promptly notify the SHA of the receipt of any 
communication from the Director, Office of Federal Activities, EPA, 
indicating that a facility that is or will be utilized for the contract is under 
consideration to be listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities.  

4. That the firm agrees to include or cause to be included the requirements 
of paragraph 1 through 4 of this Section X in every nonexempt 
subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as the government 
may direct as a means of enforcing such requirements.  

XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY 
AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION  

1. Instructions for Certification - Primary Covered Transactions:  

(Applicable to all Federal-aid contracts - 49 CFR 29) 

a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary 
participant is providing the certification set out below.  

b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out below 
will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered 
transaction. The prospective participant shall submit an 
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. 
The certification or explanation will be considered in connection 
with the department or agency's determination whether to enter 
into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary 
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall 
disqualify such a person from participation in this transaction.  

c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact 
upon which reliance was placed when the department or agency 
determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined 
that the prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an 
erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to 
the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate 
this transaction for cause of default.  

d. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate 
written notice to the department or agency to whom this proposal 
is submitted if any time the prospective primary participant learns 
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.  

e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," 
"ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," "person," 
"primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and 
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings 
set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules 
implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the 
department or agency to which this proposal is submitted for 
assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

27 

f. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this 
proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be 
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or 
agency entering into this transaction.  

g. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting 
this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," provided by the 
department or agency entering into this covered transaction, 
without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in 
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.  

h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification 
of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that 
is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is 
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by 
which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant 
may, but is not required to, check the nonprocurement portion of 
the "Lists of Parties Excluded From Federal Procurement or 
Nonprocurement Programs" (Nonprocurement List) which is 
compiled by the General Services Administration.  

i. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require 
establishment of a system of records in order to render in good 
faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 
information of participant is not required to exceed that which is 
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of 
business dealings.  

j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph f of these 
instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly 
enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, the department or agency 
may terminate this transaction for cause or default.  

* * * * * 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion--Primary Covered Transactions 

1. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, that it and its principals:  

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered 
transactions by any Federal department or agency;  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

28 

 b. Have not within a 3-year period preceding this proposal been 
convicted of or had a civil judgement rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, 
State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;  

 c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly 
charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with 
commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 1b of 
this certification; and  

d. Have not within a 3-year period preceding this 
application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, 
State or local) terminated for cause or default.  

2. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the 
statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach 
an explanation to this proposal.  

* * * * * 

2. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Covered Transactions:  

(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders and other lower tier transactions of 
$25,000 or more - 49 CFR 29) 

 a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier 
participant is providing the certification set out below.  

 b. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact 
upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier 
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, 
the department, or agency with which this transaction originated 
may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or 
debarment.  

  c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate 
written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at 
any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its 
certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.  

 d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," 
"ineligible," "primary covered transaction," "participant," "person," 
"principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this 
clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage 
sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

29 

contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for 
assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.  

 e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this 
proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be 
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or 
agency with which this transaction originated.  

 f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting 
this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, 
in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for 
lower tier covered transactions.  

 g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification 
of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that 
is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is 
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by 
which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant 
may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List.  

 h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require 
establishment of a system of records in order to render in good 
faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 
information of participant is not required to exceed that which is 
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of 
business dealings.  

 i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of these 
instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly 
enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated may pursue available 
remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.  

* * * * * 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion--Lower Tier Covered Transactions: 

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this 
proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department 
or agency.  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

30 

2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of 
the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall 
attach an explanation to this proposal.  

* * * * * 

XII. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT FUNDS FOR LOBBYING  

(Applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts which 
exceed $100,000 - 49 CFR 20) 

1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or 
proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:  

a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by 
or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making 
of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering 
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.  

b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid 
or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 
of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.  

2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance 
was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission 
of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the 
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.  

3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting his or her bid or 
proposal that he or she shall require that the language of this certification 
be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 and that 
all such recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.  

ATTACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN 
CONTRACTS 

 
(Applicable to Appalachian contracts only.) 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

31 

1. During the performance of this contract, the contractor undertaking to do 
work which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work, shall give 
preference to qualified persons who regularly reside in the labor area as 
designated by the DOL wherein the contract work is situated, or the 
subregion, or the Appalachian counties of the State wherein the contract 
work is situated, except:  

a. To the extent that qualified persons regularly residing in the area 
are not available.  

b. For the reasonable needs of the contractor to employ supervisory 
or specially experienced personnel necessary to assure an 
efficient execution of the contract work.  

c. For the obligation of the contractor to offer employment to present 
or former employees as the result of a lawful collective bargaining 
contract, provided that the number of nonresident persons 
employed under this subparagraph 1c shall not exceed 20 percent 
of the total number of employees employed by the contractor on 
the contract work, except as provided in subparagraph 4 below.  

2. The contractor shall place a job order with the State Employment Service 
indicating (a) the classifications of the laborers, mechanics and other 
employees required to perform the contract work, (b) the number of 
employees required in each classification, (c) the date on which he 
estimates such employees will be required, and (d) any other pertinent 
information required by the State Employment Service to complete the job 
order form. The job order may be placed with the State Employment 
Service in writing or by telephone. If during the course of the contract 
work, the information submitted by the contractor in the original job order 
is substantially modified, he shall promptly notify the State Employment 
Service.  

3. The contractor shall give full consideration to all qualified job applicants 
referred to him by the State Employment Service. The contractor is not 
required to grant employment to any job applicants who, in his opinion, 
are not qualified to perform the classification of work required.  

4. If, within 1 week following the placing of a job order by the contractor with 
the State Employment Service, the State Employment Service is unable 
to refer any qualified job applicants to the contractor, or less than the 
number requested, the State Employment Service will forward a 
certificate to the contractor indicating the unavailability of applicants. Such 
certificate shall be made a part of the contractor's permanent project 
records. Upon receipt of this certificate, the contractor may employ 
persons who do not normally reside in the labor area to fill positions 
covered by the certificate, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph 
1c above.  

The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections 1 through 4 of this Attachment A 
in every subcontract for work which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work. 

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

32 

B. Maintenance of and Right of Access to Records 
 
1. The Contractor shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records, 
other records and other evidence pertaining to goods, materials, supplies, and services 
provided under this Contract, including the Exhibits and Attachments hereto, and all costs 
and expenses for such goods, materials, supplies, and services provided hereunder.  With 
respect to accounting records, the Contractor shall maintain appropriate accounting 
records of costs, expenses, and payrolls of employees working on the Project, together 
with documentation of evaluations and study results.  This Paragraph is subject to and 
should be construed in accordance with Section V of Form FHWA-1273. 
 

2. The records described in Paragraph 1 above shall be maintained during this 
Contract period and for four (4) years from the date of completion of work defined under 
this Contract, including the Exhibits and Attachments hereto, or until any impending 
litigation has been completely and fully resolved, or until all pending matters relating to 
this Contract, including the Exhibits and Attachments hereto, are closed, whichever 
occurs last.   

 
3. At no expense, the County, TxDOT, the FHWA, [may substitute U.S.DOT] the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the U.S. Office of the Inspector General, and 
other federal agencies or any of their duly authorized representatives shall have access to 
the records described in Paragraph 1 above for purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts and transcriptions.   
 
C. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program Requirements 
 
1. In accordance with applicable provisions of the Memorandum of Understanding 
between Travis County and the Texas Department of Transportation ("MOU"), the 
Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements set forth in Attachment 8 to IFB No. 
B1306-021-JW, including all documents attached thereto, covering TxDOT's DBE 
Program requirements adopted by Travis County.   
 
2. The Contractor shall submit progress assessment reports (Form SMS.4903, 
Attachment 8), to report actual payments made to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises.  
One copy shall be submitted with each billing statement to the Transportation and 
Natural Resources Department, with one copy to the County's DBE Liaison officer at the 
Travis County Purchasing office, 700 Lavaca Street, Suite 800, Austin, Texas 78701. 

 
3. Prior to contract closeout, the Contractor shall submit a final report, (Form 
SMS.4904, Attachment 8),  to the County's DBE Liaison officer at the Travis County 
Purchasing office, 700 Lavaca Street, Suite 800, Austin, Texas 78701. 

 
4. The Contractor's subcontracting program must comply with the requirements of 
Attachment 8 to IFB No. B1306-021-JW, (DBE requirements). 

 
5. The Contractor must not terminate for convenience a listed DBE subcontractor or 
an approved substitute firm and subsequently perform the work of the terminated 
subcontractor with Contractor's own personnel or those of an affiliate, without prior 
written consent of County or FHWA [may substitute U.S.DOT] as appropriate. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



4400001650 
 

33 

6. All subcontracts for goods, materials, supplies, and services related to the 
construction contract shall include the provisions of this Section and any other provisions 
required by law. 
 
7. Contractor shall monitor DBE subcontractors to ensure that contracted work is 
performed, and County shall monitor Contractor to ensure Contractor's compliance with 
the DBE program requirements set forth in this Section and Attachment 8 to IFB No. 
B1306-021-JW. 
 
D. Subcontracting 

1. Before subcontracting the work or any of its other responsibilities under this 
Contract, the Contractor shall obtain the written consent of the Travis County 
Commissioners Court.  Before authorizing a subcontract, the County shall ensure that 
each subcontract is evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions 
required hereunder to be included in all subcontracts; and, in connection herewith, in its 
discretion and with the concurrence of the FHWA Division Administrator, the County 
may require that Contractor certify that each subcontract will be in the form of a written 
agreement containing all such required provisions. 

2. To ensure that all work under this Contract, including the Exhibits and 
Attachments hereto, and all related subcontract work is performed in accordance with the 
Contract requirements, Contractor shall furnish: (a) a competent superintendent or 
supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to direct performance of the 
work in accordance with the Contract requirements, and is in charge of all construction 
operations regardless of who performs the work; and (b) such other of its own 
organizational resources (supervision, management, and engineering services) as the 
County determines are necessary to assure the performance of this Contract. 

 

EXECUTED THIS ________________ DAY OF _________________, YEAR________. 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS ___________________________________ 
 CONTRACTOR NAME 

 
BY:_______________________________ BY:_______________________________ 
TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  APPROVED: 

___________________________________ ___________________________________ 

TRAVIS COUNTY ATTORNEY COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 

  

CERTIFIED FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE  

___________________________________  

COUNTY AUDITOR, TRAVIS COUNTY  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

walkerj
Draft



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, November 12, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Approve Modification No. 1, an Assignment of Contract No. 4400001477 from 
ErgoGenesis to ErgoGenesis Workplace Solutions, LLC. 

 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

This contract will provide the ErgoGenesis brand of furniture Countywide. 

This Modification No. 1 will approve assignment of Contract # 4400001477 to 
ErgoGenesis Workplace Solutions, LLC from ErgoGenesis.  ErgoGenesis 
Workplace Solutions, LLC will assume all rights and responsibilities to Contract # 
4400001477. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: N/A 
Modification Type: Unilateral, Requirements 
Modification Period:  June 25, 2013 – June 24, 2014 

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart # / Funds Reservation #:  
  Comments: N/A 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 25Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400001477, Countywide Furniture          PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES 

 
 
ISSUED BY: 
 
PURCHASING OFFICE 
700 LAVACA STREET 
8TH FLOOR 
AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST: 
 
CW Bruner 
TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9760 
FAX NO:    (512) 854-4211 

 
DATE PREPARED: 
 
October 28, 2013 

 
ISSUED TO:                       1000007860 
Ergogenesis 
Attn: Ken Gray 
1 BodyBilt Place 
Navasota, Texas 77868 

MODIFICATION NO.:  
 

1 

EXECUTED DATE OF 
ORIGINAL CONTRACT: 
 

June 11,  2013 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  June 25, 2013 to June 24, 2014 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  June 25, 2013 to June 24, 2014 

 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:  Original Contract Amount: $____N/A__________  Current Modified Amount $____N/A___________  

 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore 
modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 
The above referenced contract is hereby modified to reflect the following changes: 
 
Effective October 1, 2013, the Contractor’s name on Contract No. 4400001477 is changed as follows: 
 
 
  ErgoGenesis    to  ErgoGenesis Workplace Solutions, LLC. 
  1 BodyBilt Place     1 BodyBilt Place 
  Navasota, Texas 77868     Navasota, Texas 77868 
  Tax ID # 043719728     Tax ID # 352485796 
  Vendor ID # 1000007860    Vendor ID # 1000019044 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note to Vendor:  

[ X ] Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[ ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
 
LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:        
 
     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 
 
     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 
 
TITLE:            
            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
BY:            
      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
BY:            
      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  
 

 
DATE: 

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT 
 
The parties to this Assignment of Contract (this “Assignment”) are ErgoGenesis (Tax ID # 043719728), a limited liability company duly 
authorized and operating under the laws of the State of Texas (Assignor”), and ErgoGenesis Workplace Solutions, LLC. (Tax ID # 
352485796) a limited liability company duly authorized and operating under the laws of the State of Texas (“Assignee”). 
 
RECITALS: 

A. Travis County and ErgoGenesis, entered into a written Contract for the provision of Countywide Furniture (Contract No. 
4400001477) on June 11, 2013, which is hereby incorporated by reference herein for all purposes as if fully copied and set forth 
herein at length, (the "Contract"); and 

 
B. Assignor desires by this Assignment to assign all of its right, title and interest in and to the Contract to Assignee subject to the 

terms of the Contract and this Assignment. 

 
TERMS: 
In consideration of the mutual agreements set forth in this Assignment, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Assignor assigns, transfers and conveys to Assignee all of its right, title and interest in and to the Contract effective as October 

1, 2013 (the “Effective Date of Assignment”). 
 

2. Assignee accepts such assignment, and assumes and is bound by and shall perform all terms, conditions, covenants, obligations, 
and duties of Assignor under the Contract as of the Effective Date of Assignment. 

 
3. Assignor and Assignee acknowledge that nothing in this Assignment waives or modifies any of the provisions of the Contract. 

 
4. The provisions of this Assignment are binding on and inure to the benefit of the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of 

the parties. 
 

5. This Assignment shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. Venue for any action arising 
hereunder or connected herewith shall lie exclusively in Travis County, Texas. 

 

6. All references in this Assignment to the Contract encompass the original Contract, No. 4400001477, and modification 1.  Said 
modification is hereby incorporated by reference herein for all purposes as if fully copied and set forth herein at length. 

 
ErgoGenesis      ErgoGenesis Workplace Solutions, LLC 
 
By:        By:        
 
Printed Name:       Printed Name: ______________________________ 
 
Title & Date:        Title & Date: _______________________________ 
 
Attest:         Attest:          
 
Date:         Date:         
 
By its signature below, Travis County signifies its consent to and approval of this Assignment from ErgoGenesis to ErgoGenesis Workplace 
Solutions, LLC. 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
By:        
Samuel T. Biscoe 
Travis County Judge 
 
Date:        
 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 12, 2013    
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Rachel Fishback, 512.854.9853 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe      

Approve Contract Award for Sign Materials, IFB No. 1309-008-RF, to 
the following low bidders: 

(1) Vulcan Signs – Groups A, B, C and D 

(2) 3M Company – Groups E and G 

(3) Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas – Groups F, H, I and J 

(4) Nippon Carbide Industries – Group K 

(5) Custom Products Corporation – Group L (all Items except 1309-
008-RF—12-01) 

 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes.  

This contract requires for the vendors to provide Sign Materials to Travis 
County Transportation and Natural Resources.  

On September 27th, 2013, IFB No. 1309-008-RF was issued through 
BidSync. Five (5) bids were received on October 21st, 2013. The 
Purchasing Office concurs with Travis County Transportation and 
Natural Resources recommendation to award on a group basis to the 
lowest bidders. 

Travis County reserved the right to make multiple awards as specified in 
Special Provisions, Paragraph 4, Method of Award.  Travis County 
reserves the right to award by “group” or on an "all or none" basis.  
Bidder may bid on any or all categories in order to be considered 
responsive to this Invitation for Bid. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 26Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: estimated requirement    
Contract Type: Annual, Unilateral  
Contract Period: November 14, 2013 through November 13, 2014  

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Viewed:  52  Responses Received:    5  
HUB Information:       N/A  % HUB Subcontractor:   N/A  

 
 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #/Funds Reservation #: NA 
  Comments: Requisitions are processed at time of requirement 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Bid #1309‐008‐RF

Sign Materials

Group A Summary

Vulcan Signs $42,174.80

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION $45,121.65

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $51,802.65

Group B Summary

Vulcan Signs $15,598.85

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION $16,478.95

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $19,308.75

Group C Summary

Vulcan Signs $4,685.70

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION $4,854.50

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $5,728.90

Group D Summary

Vulcan Signs $1,459.20

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $1,630.30

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION $1,703.70

Group E Summary

3M Company $4,500.00

Nippon Carbide Industries $5,962.40

Vulcan Signs $6,311.80

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $6,440.00

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION $6,480.00

Group F Summary (partial)

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $42,518.00 $20,260.00

Vulcan Signs $45,791.40 $18,056.40

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION NA $23,750.95

Group G Summary

3M Company $32,307.00

Nippon Carbide Industries $32,670.00

Vulcan Signs $39,204.00

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $39,204.00

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION $39,850.96

Group H Summary (partial)

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $1,545.00 $800.00

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION NA $578.16

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Group I Summary (partial)

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $6,210.00 $2,136.00

3M Company $6,658.71 $2,337.62

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION $18,565.00 $6,517.50

Nippon Carbide Industries NA $1,361.22

Group J Summary

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $6,000.00

Group K Summary (partial)

Nippon Carbide Industries $3,301.77 $2,249.92

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $4,600.00 $3,200.00

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION NA $2,358.88

Group L Summary (partial)

CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORPORATION NA $2,919.50

Pathmark Traffic Products of Texas $4,800.00 $4,700.00

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Michael Long/854 4850; Marvin Brice/854 
9765  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Consider and take appropriate action on License 
Agreement between Lakeway Regional Medical Center (LRMC) and Travis 
County for Lakeway EMS Post Location to provide placement of a County 
EMS ambulance at the hospital in Lakeway. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 
LRMC currently provides emergency and hospital services to the City of 
Lakeway and the surrounding area. Travis County, through a 
cooperative interlocal agreement with the City of Austin, currently 
provides emergency medical ground transport services for the same 
geographic area. 
 
An agreement between LRMC and Travis County has been reached to 
allow for the placement of Austin/Travis County EMS Medic-9 at the 
hospital in Lakeway at 100 Medical Parkway. This will entail moving the 
EMS unit from its current location in Lakeway at Fire Station 602 to a 
more optimal setting along RM 620. 

The Travis County Emergency Services ("TCES") recommendation is to 
approve the license agreement with LRMC for posting Medic-9 at 
LRMC. Doing so will allow for collocating the Lakeway EMS ambulance 
and crew at the hospital and ER in Lakeway. Executive management at 
LRMC as well as TCES management and staff support this 
recommendation, as do our EMS partners at the City of Austin and city 
management for the City of Lakeway, City of Bee Cave, and Village of 
The Hills. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 27Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Travis County will compensate Lakeway Medical Center an amount of 
(One Dollar)$1.00 for the term of this contract. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: 1.00    
Contract Type: Interlocal Agreement   
Contract Period: November 15, 2013 – September 30, 2014   

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: N/A 
  Funding Account(s): 1590080001/511630 
  Comments: Fund Reservation No. 300000940  

 
 

 
 
 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



, OF

EMERGENCY SERVICES
DANNY HOBBY, COUNTY ExEcuTivE

P.O. Box 1748, AUsTIN, TEXAs 78767 Eme,gen9 Management
(512) 854-4416, FAX (51 2) 854-4786 Pete BaIdnpeienyMgmL

Fire Marshal
HershelLee

To: Travis County Commissioners Court
ChgMedica/Examiner

Dr David Do/maleVia: Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent

STAR FlightFrom: Danny Hobby, County Executive — Emergency Services Casey Pi, Program Manager

Date: October 25, 2013 Technology Communications

Subject: License Agreement with Lakeway Regional Medical Center for
EMS Posting at Hospital in Lakeway

Proposed Motion:

CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON LICENSE AGREEMENT BETWEEN LAKEWAY
REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER (“LRMC”) AND TRAVIS COUNTY FOR LAKEWAYEMS POST
LOCATION TO PROVIDE PLACEMENT OF A COUNTY EMS AMBULANCE AT THEIR HOSPITAL IN
LAKEWAY. (TCES, EMS)

Summary & Staff Recommendation:

Lakeway Regional Medical Center (“LRMC”) currently provides emergency and hospital services to the
City of Lakeway and the surrounding area. Travis County, through a cooperative interlocal agreement
with the City of Austin, currently provides emergency medical ground transport services for the same
geographic area.

An agreement between LRMC and Travis County has been reached to allow for the placement of
Austin/Travis County EMS Medic-9 at the hospital in Lakeway at 100 Medical Parkway. This will entail
moving the EMS Unit from its current location in Lakeway at Fire Station 602 to a more optimal setting
along RM-620.

The Travis County Emergency Services (“TCES”) recommendation is to approve the license agreement
with LRMC for posting Medic-9 at LRMC. Doing so will allow for collocating the Lakeway EMS
ambulance and crew at the hospital and ER in Lakeway. Executive management at LRMC as well as
TCES management and staff support this recommendation, as do our EMS partners at the City of Austin
and city management for the City of Lakeway, City of Bee Cave, and Village of The Hills.

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Budgetary Impact:

The necessary funding of $1.00 for Travis County to compensate LRMC for year-one of this licenseagreement is in the FY14 EMS budget overseen by TCES — 1590080001, 511630.

Please see attached FR 300000940.

Attachment(s:

- License Agreement between Lakeway Regional Medical Center and Travis County for Lakeway EMSPost Location

- Travis County SAP Funds Reservation Document 300000940

- Lake Travis Fire Rescue (Travis County ESD-6) September 23, 2013, notice to vacate A/TCEMS
Medic-9 from Fire Station 602

Cc:

Audit — Kapp Schwebke, Patti Smith
Legal — Barbara Wilson
PBO — Alan Miller, William Derryberry
Purchasing — Marvin Brice, Mike Long
TCES — Christine Lego, Toby Fariss (TF)

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Funds Reservation 300000940
General Data

Document type FC Document type 030
Company code 1000 Document date 10/23/2013
FM area 1000 Posting date 10/23/2013
Controlling area 1000 Currency USD/ 1.00000

Statistics

Entered by FARISST Created on 10123/2013
Last changed by Last changed

More Data

Text FY14 License Agreement for LRMC (Hosp.) EMS Post
Reference

Overall Amount 1.00 USD

Document item 001

Text LA for Posting NTCEMS Med-9 (Lakeway)

Commitment item 511630 Funds center 1590080001
Fund 0001 G/Laccount 511630
Cost center 1590080001 Due on
Vendor Customer

Amount 1.00 USD

Earmarked fund 300000940 printed on 10/25/2013/08:20:31 Side I of 1

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



LICENSE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN LAKEWAY REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

AND TRAVIS COUNTY
FOR LAKEWAY EMS POST LOCATION

This License Agreement (this “License Agreement”) is entered into by the following parties:

Travis County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (“County”), and

Lakeway Regional Medical Center, a Texas for-profit orporation (“Medical Center”).

RECITALS

Medical Center provides emergency services in the City of Lakeway and the surrounding
area.

County and Medical Center want to improve the EMS Response Time by moving the EMS
Unit from the Austin Travis County Emergency Medical Services System to a more optimal
location and facility in the City of Lakeway.

Medical Center has offered to allow County to use the Lakeway Regional Medical Center
as an EMS Post Location for minimal consideration.

It will serve a public purpose and benefit the citizens of Travis County if Medical Center
allows County to place an EMS Unit at the Lakeway Regional Medical Center at 100 Medical
Parkway, Lakeway, Texas 78738.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, Medical Center and County agree as follows:

1.0 GRANT AND SCOPE OF LICENSE.

1.1. Subject to the terms and conditions of this License Agreement, Medical Center grants a
license for County to enter and use Lakeway EMS Post Location to provide emergency services for
the consideration stated in this License Agreement.

1.2. County may not use the Lakeway EMS Post Location for any other purpose without the
prior, express written consent of Medical Center.

2.0 TERM OF LICENSE.

2.1. The term shall commence on November 15, 2013 effective upon signature of both parties
and terminates on September 30, 2014.

Page 1 of 8

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



2.2. The License Agreement shall automatically renew on October 1, 2014 for an additional
term of one year, unless either the Medical Center or the County give 120 days advance written
notice of termination.

2.3 After 2014, the License Agreement shall automatically renew on each October 1 for an
additional term of one year, unless either the Medical Center or the County give 120 days advance
written notice of termination or unless the License Agreement is terminated pursuant to section 3.5.
This License Agreement may be renewed for a maximum term of twenty five (25) years.

3.0 COMPENSATION.

3.1. Before any funds are payable, Medical Center shall provide County with an Internal
Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and certification completed in
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations.

3.2 Medical Center shall submit an invoice with at least the following information (i) Medical
Center’s name, address, and telephone number, (ii) County Contract number; (iii) identification
of services outlined in this Agreement; and (iv) if applicable, quantity or quantities, applicable
unit prices, total prices, and total amount to:

Travis County Executive, Emergency Services
P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767-1748

3.3 After compliance with 3.1 and submission of an invoice in compliance with 3.2, County
shall pay Medical Center $1.00 for the initial term of this License Agreement from November 15,
2013, until September 30, 2014, within 30 days after execution of this License Agreement by both
parties.

3.4 County shall pay Medical Center $1.00 for the first renewal term of this License Agreement
from October 1, 2014 until September 30, 2015 within 30 days after the beginning of this term.

3.5 Medical Center and County shall confer no later than the March 30th before the end of each
subsequent term about the effectiveness and appropriateness of the placement of an EMS Unit at
the Lakeway EMS Post Location and the appropriate level of compensation and services, both of
which may increase or decrease for one or both parties. If Medical Center is seeking an increase to
its compensation, Medical Center shall notify County in writing no later than March 30th of the
amount of the Medical Center’s requested increase. If County does not object to the amount of the
Medical Center’s requested increase or terminate the License Agreement at least 120 days before
the end of the current term, the adjustment to the compensation shall be effective at the beginning
of the next renewal term of this License Agreement. If County objects to the increase, Medical
Center and County may negotiate toward an acceptable resolution. If an acceptable resolution is
obtained, any change shall be stated in an amendment to this Agreement and executed by both
parties. If an acceptable resolution is not obtained, the License Agreement shall terminate at the

Page 2 of 8

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



end of the current term.

4.0 COUNTY OBLIGATIONS.

4.1. On or around November 15, 2013, County shall place an EMS Unit at the Lakeway EMS
Post Location and keep it in a good, workmanlike, clean, and orderly manner. County warrants
that:

4.1.1 the EMS Unit is knowledgeable in the work it will perform,
4.1.2 its employees and agents have been trained to follow all applicable laws, rules and
regulations, and
4.1.3 it will use the Lakeway EMS Post Location in accordance with sound public safety
and environmental practices.

4.2. County shall pay or cause to be paid the cost of any and all supplies, materials, equipment,
or services used in the operation of the EMS Unit placed at the Lakeway EMS Post Location.
County may be providing furniture and some equipment, including communications and computer
equipment, for the Lakeway EMS Post Location if County and Medical Center, jointly determine
that it would be beneficial and appropriate.

4.3. Upon reasonable notice to inform County who on behalf of Medical Center is entering the
Lakeway EMS Post Location, County shall permit Medical Center or its designees to enter and
inspect the Lakeway EMS Post Location, furniture, fixtures, and equipment at any time.

4.4 County shall maintain and keep in good order, condition, and repair all furniture and
household equipment, if it provides any, at the Lakeway EMS Post Location.

4.5 County shall use its best efforts to maintain co-operation and respect for the separate
functions, activities and operations of the Medical Center and the EMS Unit at this location by
using its influence so the EMS Unit is instructed not to interfere with or otherwise disrupt the
Medical Center activities and operations adjacent to the Lakeway EMS Post Location, and advising
its contractor of any improvements that must be implemented by the EMS Unit to maintain
appropriate cooperation and respect. County acknowledges that the EMS Unit is not entitled to
access to any areas or facilities outside the Lakeway EMS Post Location without the prior express
invitation or permission of the Medical Center or its representatives.

5.0 MEDICAL CENTER’S OBLIGATIONS.

5.1. Medical Center shall provide the following accommodations for the EMS Unit at the
Lakeway Regional Medical Center at 100 Medical Parkway, Lakeway, Texas 78738:

5.1.1 three adjacent patient rooms of the Medical Center for the sole use of the
EMS Unit to use as sleeping and living quarters for up to three (3) crew members and
access to a nearby lounge area for shared cooking and eating space;

5.1.2 a separate working telephone for local incoming and outgoing calls

Page 3 of 8

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



dedicated for use by the EMS Unit in each of the patient rooms,
5.1.3 dedicated Internet access for securely connecting to the City of Austin

computer network in at least one the patient rooms for use by the EMS Unit.
5.1.4 covered parking on the ER deck on the third floor of the Medical Center

with access to a wall-mounted electrical panel installed by Medical Center at the ambulance
parking area that has a 50-amp alternating current circuit so that City of Austin can install
electrical shoreline connector plugs for the emergency response vehicle used by the EMS
Unit,

5.1.5 permission for the installation of a wheel-hump or wheel-stop set for the
ambulance, and

5.1.6 unassigned parking spaces in the Medical Center’s public garage for
personal vehicles of EMS crew members on duty at no charge to the crew members.

5.2 Medical Center shall pay or cause to be paid when due any and all utility charges for the
Lakeway EMS Post Location, including the cost of electricity, telephone, internet service, cable
television, gas, heating, air conditioning, ventilation, garbage collection, water, and wastewater.
Medical Center shall provide access for the patient rooms designated as the Lakeway EMS Post
Location to County.

5.3. Medical Center shall pay or cause to be paid when due any and all taxes, charges, levies and
assessments and all other lawful claims required to be paid by Medical Center or levied against the
Lakeway EMS Post Location.

5.4. Medical Center shall maintain and keep in good order, condition and repair the roof,
foundation, walls, floor, plumbing, electrical system, and all other structural components of
buildings, including mobile buildings and carport; all fixtures; sidewalks; driveways; parking areas;
fences; signs; and all other interior and exterior areas licensed to County as part of EMS Post
Location.

5.5. Medical Center shall use its best efforts to maintain co-operation and respect for the
separate functions, activities and operations of the Medical Center and the EMS Unit at this
location by directing its employees and volunteers not to interfere with or otherwise disrupt the
EMS Unit’s activities and operations in the Lakeway EMS Post Location, and advising them of any
improvements that must be implemented by them to maintain appropriate cooperation and respect.
Medical Center acknowledges that its employees and volunteers are not entitled to access to the
Lakeway EMS Post Location without the prior express invitation or permission of the County or
EMS Unit or its representatives.

6.0. TERMINATION.

6.1. Medical Center may revoke the license granted to County herein and this License
Agreement shall automatically and immediately terminate if (i) County materially breaches this
License Agreement and County has failed to remedy the breach after notice and opportunity to
remedy and cure as provided in 6.2 below or (ii) County abandons the use of all or a significant part
of the Lakeway EMS Post Location licensed to County.

Page 4 of 8

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



6.2. If County fails for any reason to comply with this License Agreement, Medical Center shall
give County written notice of the non-compliance. This written notice shall be given in the manner
provided in Section 13 of this License Agreement. County has ten (10) days from receipt of the
notice to provide assurances satisfactory to Medical Center that County will take action to cure the
failure complained of. If County does not so respond, or if County responds but thereafter fails to
satisfactorily remedy and cure the failure within thirty (30) days of the notice, Medical Center may
terminate this License Agreement.

6.3. Upon either expiration or termination of the license granted by this License Agreement,
County shall remove the EMS Unit and cease use of the Lakeway EMS Post Location for any
emergency services immediately. County shall leave the Lakeway EMS Post Location in broom-
clean condition.

7.0. WARRANTIES.

Medical Center disclaims any and all express or implied representations and warranties concerning
the physical condition or suitability for any purpose of the Lakeway EMS Post Location.

8.0 CLAIMS NOTIFICATION.

If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an administrative agency, is made or
brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against County, or Medical Center, County
shall give written notice to Medical Center of the claim, or other action within three (3) working
days after being notified of it or the threat of it. The notice shall include the name and address of
the person, firm, corporation or other entity that made or threatened to make a claim, or that
instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or
proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action or proceeding was
instituted; and the name or names of any person against whom this claim is being made or
threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided in Section 13 of this License
Agreement. Except as otherwise directed, County shall furnish to Medical Center copies of all
pertinent papers received by County with respect to these claims or actions.

9.0 NON-ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS.

County shall not assign or transfer any interest in either this License Agreement or any portion of
the Lakeway EMS Post Location licensed to County, nor shall any assignment by operation of law
be effective, without the prior written consent of Medical Center. County acknowledges that
Medical Center owns all buildings, structures, permanent improvements, and fixtures at the
Lakeway EMS Post Location, and County shall not have any right to remove, mortgage, pledge,
assign, or otherwise convey any interest in any such buildings, structures, permanent improvements,
and fixtures. Medical Center acknowledges and agrees that County provides emergency services
through its contracted service provider, City of Austin, Texas, and hereby allows the use of the
Lakeway EMS Post Location by the City of Austin or other contracted service provider of the

Page 5 of 8

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



County. County shall promptly notify Medical Center of any change in the service provider of
County.

10.0 VENUE AND CHOICE OF LAW.

THE OBLIGATIONS AND UNDERTAKiNGS OF EACH OF THE PARTIES TO THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT SHALL
BE PERFORMABLE IN TRAvIs CouNTy, TExAS, AND THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED
BY AN]) CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STAm OF TExAs.

11.0 ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT.

This License Agreement represents the final written agreement between the parties with respect to
the subject matter herein and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either oral or written. This License Agreement may be amended only by written
instrument signed by both Medical Center and County.

12.0 AMENDMENTS AND WAIVER.

No OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF CouNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO AMEND THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO SUCH EXPRESS
AUTHORITY AS MAY BE GRANTED BY THE CoMMIsSIONERS COURT OF CouNTY. No waiver by any
party of any provision of this License Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a waiver of any
other provisions hereof (whether or not similar), nor shall such waiver constitute a continuing
waiver unless otherwise expressly provided.

13.0 NOTICE.

Any notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this License
Agreement by either party shall be in writing and deemed to be given when sent if delivered by
hand, or within three (3) days if mailed by first class mail, certified with postage prepaid and return
receipt requested. Notices shall be made or addressed as follows:

If to County: Danny Hobby (or successor)
County Executive --Emergency Services
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

with copy to: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or successor in office)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

If to Medical Center: David J. Kreye
Chief Executive Officer
Lakeway Regional Medical Center

Page 6 of 8

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



100 Medical Parkway
Lakeway TX 78738

with copy to: Medical Center’s Attorney
Lakeway Regional Medical Center
100 Medical Parkway
Lakeway, TX 78738

These addresses for notice may be changed by either County or Medical Center by delivering notice
in compliance with this section to the other party.

14.0 SEVERABILITY.

If any of the provisions of this License Agreement are held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable,
the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected
or impaired thereby.

15.0 HEADINGS.

Any heading in this License Agreement shall be deemed to be for convenience of reference only
and shall not limit, amend or modify substantive text.

16.0 MEDIATION.

When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising under this License
Agreement, the parties agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas as the provider
of mediators for mediation as described in Section 154.023 of the Texas Civil Practice and
Remedies Code. Unless both parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation
will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute. All communications within the
scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described in Section 154.073 of the Texas Civil
Practice and Remedies Code, unless both parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality.

17.0 DEFINITIONS

17.1 Austin-Travis County Emergency Medical Services System. “Austin-Travis County
Emergency Medical Services System” means the governmental entities that have entered into
interlocal co-operation agreements with Travis County that provide for emergency medical services
within Travis County, Texas.

17.2 EMS Response Time. “EMS Response Time” means the interval between the time when the
EMS call is received by the EMS Communications Center designated by County and the time when
the first EMS Response and Transport Resource arrives on the scene of the EMS call, or reports its
arrival to the EMS Communications Center, whichever is later.

17.3 EMS Unit. “EMS Unit” means a named functional group of staff, vehicles and

Page 7 of 8

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



equipment that is assigned to provide ground EMS services to a specific geographic area as its
primary service area in which the human resources, vehicles and equipment are interchangeable
with other units and which may provide services outside its primary service area to promote the
most efficient, effective use of all EMS System resources in providing EMS throughout the
system 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

17.4 Lakeway EMS Post Location “Lakeway EMS Post Location” means the accommodations
described in section 5.1 for the EMS Unit at the Lakeway Regional Medical Center at 100 Medical
Parkway, Lakeway, Texas 78738:

TRAVIS COUNTY LAKEWAY REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

By:

_________________

By:
Samuel T. Biscoe DavidE Kreye
Travis County Judge Chief Executive Officer

Date: Date: 1°

Page 8 of 7

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 12, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Kent Hubbard/854-6458 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Agenda Language:  PURSUANT TO TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
CODE, SECTION 263.152(A)(1), DECLARE CERTAIN ITEMS SURPLUS 
PROPERTY AND SELL AT PUBLIC AUCTION. 
 
 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 

and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

 
There are two capital items included in the auction list, two Yamaha boat 
motors.  Both motors are fully depreciated.  The remainder of the 
auction items are not included in the county’s asset inventory.   
 
Inventory and auction lot list is attached.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 28Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Asset Master Record Detail Report

Lot # Tag # Serial # Location Acquis Asset # Year RCC Description

#1 N/A N/A TC ADD TO AUC LIST N/A N/A N/A N/A GENERAL DYNAMICS TABLET DUO TOUCH 2
  INCLUDING DOCK,BATTERY,& CASE
#2 N/A N/A TC ADD TO AUC LIST N/A N/A N/A N/A GENERAL DYNAMICS TABLET DUO TOUCH 2

INCLUDING DOCK,BATTERY,& CASE
#3 N/A N/A  TC ADD TO AUC LIST N/A N/A N/A N/A GENERAL DYNAMICS TABLET DUO TOUCH 2

INCLUDING DOCK,BATTERY,& CASE
#4 N/A N/A TC ADD TO AUC LIST N/A N/A N/A N/A GENERAL DYNAMICS TABLET DUO TOUCH 2

INCLUDING DOCK,BATTERY,& CASE
#5 N/A N/A TC ADD TO AUC LIST N/A N/A N/A N/A GENERAL DYNAMICS TABLET DUO TOUCH 2

INCLUDING DOCK,BATTERY,& CASE
#6 N/A N/A TC ADD TO AUC LIST N/A N/A N/A N/A K-9 METAL CAGE UNIT
#7 124919 F225TXRC69JX1011014P TC ADD TO AUC LIST Purchase Order 1001302 V92013 1150020001 YAMAHA F225  25 SHAFT ( CAPITAL ASSET)
#8 124920 F225TXRD69JX1016870N TC ADD TO AUC LIST Purchase Order 1001303 V92013 1150020001 YAMAHA F225  25 SHAFT ( CAPITAL ASSET)
#9 N/A N/A TC ADD TO AUC LIST N/A N/A N/A N/A (5) PLASTIC TRUCK TOTES

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 
 
 
Meeting Date:  October 29, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tim Labadie 854.5864 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding 
payment for STAR Flight services rendered to Robin Arnott.  Executive Session also 
pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code § 551.071(1)(B). 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
Danny Hobby 854.9367 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 29Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 
 
 
Meeting Date:  October 29, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tim Labadie 854.5864 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding 
payment for STAR Flight services rendered to Elizabeth Gray.  Executive Session also 
pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code § 551.071(1)(B). 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
Danny Hobby 854.9367 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 30Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 
 
 
Meeting Date:  October 29, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tim Labadie 854.5864 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding 
payment for STAR Flight services rendered to Julia Guardione.  Executive Session also 
pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code § 551.071(1)(B). 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
Danny Hobby 854.9367 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 31Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 32Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 33Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 34Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 35Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Item 36Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  November 12, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Gina Hernandez for Elaine A. Casas, 854-9197 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David A. Escamilla 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  In consultation with County Attorney, receive 
briefing, consider settlement offer and/or take appropriate action in Brent 
Earles and Jane Earles, Individually and as Heirs at Law to the Estate of Sara 
Stillwell, vs. Travis County (EXECUTIVE SESSION UNDER GOV’T. CODE 
ANN. §551.071, CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY) 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 37Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 
 
Meeting Date:    November 12, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David A. Salazar, Executive Assistant 
      512-854-9558 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: County Judge’s Office 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
RECEIVE BRIEFING AND CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY REGARDING LEGAL TOOLS 
AVAILABLE TO COLLABORATE WITH OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES AND PRIVATE PARTIES 
ON THE DEVELOPMENT OF A COMPREHENSIVE ROADWAY SYSTEM AND ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES IN PRECINCT FOUR. (IN EXECUTIVE SESSION UNDER 
CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY EXCEPTION) 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 38Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 
 
Meeting Date:    November 12, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David A. Salazar, Executive Assistant 
      512-854-9558 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: County Judge’s Office 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON REQUEST FROM CITY OF AUSTIN TO LEASE 
AND MAKE IMPROVEMENTS TO COUNTY-OWNED PROPERTY IN EAST TRAVIS COUNTY. (IN 
EXECUTIVE SESSION UNDER CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY AND REAL PROPERTY 
EXCEPTIONS) 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 39Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the 
Voting Sessions of October 22 & 29, 2013, and the Special Voting Session 
of October 29, 2013. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item C3Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, October 22, 2013  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 

78714-9325 

October 22, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on October 22, 2013, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Public Hearings 

 
1. Receive comments regarding a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate a five-

foot wide public utility easement located along the south side lot line of lot 137 of Apache 
Shores, First Installment in Precinct Three. (Action Item #8) (Commissioner Daugherty) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, Transportation and Natural 

Resources (TNR) 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Thomas Bryan, Travis County resident 
Shaun Auckland, Environmental Specialist, TNR 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 22, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Ned McDaniel, Travis County resident 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 
Melissa Velasquez, Executive Assistant, Travis County Judge's Office 

Special Items 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 10/29/2013 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
3. Approve resolution in support of building State Highway 45 Southwest. (Commissioner 

Daugherty) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sharon Werner, Hays County resident 
Carol Vance, President, Shady Hollow Home Owners Association 
Pam Baggett, Travis County resident 
Vikki Goodwin, Travis County resident 
Laureen Chernow, Travis County resident 
Alan Barr, Travis County resident  
Peter Varteressian, Travis County resident  
DJ Cardamone, Travis County resident 
Thomas Bryan, Travis County resident  
Ken Jacob, Travis County resident  
Beth Ann Ray, Travis County resident  
Nancy McDonald, Real Estate Council of Austin 
Roy Waley, Conservation Chair, Austin Regional Group of the Sierra Club 
Bill Bunch, Executive Director, Save Our Springs Alliance 
Roger Baker, Travis County resident 
Dick Kellerman, Travis County resident 
Sarah Eckhardt, Travis County resident 
Andy Brown, Travis County resident 
Brigid Shea, Travis County resident 

MOTION: Approve the Resolution in Item 3. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action regarding contraflow operations on Pearce Lane from 

Ross Road to Kellam Road with regards to post-event traffic operations of the Formula One  

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 22, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

Grand Prix, November 15 through 17, 2013, in Precinct Four. (Commissioner Gómez) 
 

RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 
 
5. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. A resolution in support of the ozone advance plan emission reduction measures; and   
 
b. Renew emission reduction commitments made in recent 8-hour ozone flex plan and 

commit to new additional measures. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to enter into a participation agreement 

between Travis County and the Deer Creek Ranch Parks and Lakes Association for design and 
construction of sections of Lake Beach Drive, Lake Park Drive and West Lakeshore Drive in the 
Deer Creek subdivision in southwest Travis County in Precinct Three.  (Commissioner 
Daugherty) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 6. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
Clerk's Note: The Court noted that this plan provides for the design of three roads - Lake Beach 
Drive, Lake Park Drive, and West Lakeshore Drive; and the construction of two roads - Lake 
Beach Drive and Lake Park Drive. 

 
7. Consider and take appropriate action on a request for a variance to Travis County’s on-site 

sewage facility regulations to allow a second single family residence to be placed on less than 
two acres at 12606 Mistletoe Trail in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to 

vacate a five-foot wide public utility easement located along the south side lot line of lot 137 of 
Apache Shores, First Installment Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Justice and Public Safety Items 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action on an interlocal agreement with Capital Area Emergency 

Communications District (CAPCOG) for supplemental funding for ongoing public safety 
answering point maintenance, equipment and training. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 22, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 
 
10. Receive briefing on the Hispanic/Latino Quality of Life Report. (Judge Biscoe and 

Commissioner Gómez) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Teresa Perez-Wisely, Chair, Oversight Team, Hispanic/Latino Quality of Life Report 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related special 

budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. Application to the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, for a Prostitution 
Prevention Program Planning Grant in Criminal Justice Planning Department;   

 
b. Annual contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to continue the 

Family Violence Accelerated Prosecution Program in the County Attorney’s Office;   
 
c. Annual contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to continue the 

Family Drug Treatment Court Program in the civil courts; and   
 
d. Annual contract with Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration/Center 

for substance abuse treatment for a Juvenile Treatment Drug Court Program in the 
Juvenile Probation Department. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Consider and take appropriate action on the following for the Human Resources Management 

Department:   
 

a. Proposed routine personnel amendments;   
 
b. Non-routine salary adjustment from Star Flight for a variance to Travis County Code 

Section 10.03002, Salary Adjustment Greater Than 10% Above Midpoint;   
 
c. Non-routine request from Sheriff’s Office for a variance to Travis County Code Section 

10.03009, Voluntary Job Change;   
 
d. Non-routine request from the District Clerk for a variance to Travis County Code Section 

10.0155, Employment of Special Project Employees; and   
 
e. Non-routine request from Records Management and Communication Resources for a 

variance to Travis County Code Section 10.0155, Employment of Special Project 
Employees. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 22, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

14. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 
for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,321,181.23 for the period of October 4 to October 10, 2013. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Discuss and take appropriate action on an exception to the Travis County Parking Policy. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Bill Paterson, Risk Manager, Human Resources Management Department (HRMD) 
Daniel Bradford, Assistant County Attorney 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 

 
MOTION: Assign a space in the fleet parking area of the 700 Lavaca Building parking 

garage to the Travis County Safety Officer. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action on contract award to URS Corporation for program 

management services for development of the new civil and family courthouse. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
Belinda Powell, Capital Planning Coordinator, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 
Bill Oakey, Travis County resident 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 16 with the suggested language changes, as discussed; and 

that that language be added at the appropriate place or places.  
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge  
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
WITHDRAWAL 
OF MOTION 
MADE BY: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
WITHDRAWAL 
OF SECOND  
MADE BY: Bruce Todd, Commissioner  
RESULT: WITHDRAWN 
 
Clerk’s Note: Withdrawal of the Motion and Second were made to honor Commissioner 
Gómez’s request for a one-week extension on the Item. 

 
17. Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 5) to Contract No. 4400000027 (HTE 

Contract No. 08T00263OJ), Frost Insurance Agency, for excess workers compensation 
insurance. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 22, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

18. Approve modification No. 3, to Contract No. 4400000920, Cynthia C. Brinson, M.D., for 
specialized medical services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
19. Approve contract award for professional architectural and engineering services for the design of 

the 416 West 11th Street office building and parking structure, RFQ No. Q1306-014-RV, to the 
highest qualified respondent, Page Southerland Page (PSP). 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent 

 
MOTION: Approve the recommendation of staff. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Bruce Todd 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the new 416 West 11th Street office building 

and parking structure:   
 

a. Recommendation of short-listed firms in response to request for qualifications (RFQ); and   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Marvin Brice Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note:  The Court requested that the short list be presented to the Court on November 
12, 2013 and consist of three firms. 

 
b. Authorize the issuance of request for proposal (RFP) No. P1309-005-RV, for Construction 

Manager at Risk (CMAR) services. 

Members of the Court heard from:  
Marvin Brice Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 

MOTION: Approve the proposed RFP for the Construction Manager at Risk 
(CMAR) in Item 20.b. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
21. Approve contract award for courier service for daily mail delivery, IFB No. 1309-002-CW, to the 

responsive low bidder, Interstate Express Delivery Service. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 22, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

Other Items 

 
22. Consider and take appropriate action to authorize Sheriff Hamilton to execute memorandum of 

understanding and cost reimbursement agreement between the Travis County Sheriff’s Office 
and the Federal Bureau of Investigation related to participation in the Joint Terrorism Task 
Force (JTTF). 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
23. Consider and take appropriate action regarding lease agreements for Early Voting and Election 

Day polling locations for the November 5, 2013 Joint General and Special Elections with the 
following entities:   

 
a. Ben Hur Shrine Center for use of the Ben Hur Shrine Center, 7811 Rockwood Lane in 

Austin, Texas; and   
 
b. Lost Creek Municipal Utility District for use of the public building at 1305 Quaker Ridge 

Drive in Austin, Texas. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Consent Items 
 

MOTION: Approve the following Consent Items: C1–C3 and Agenda Items 4, 5.a–b, 7, 
8, 9, 11, 12.a–d, 13,a–e, 14, 17, 18, 21, 22, 23, A1, and A2. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, November 12, 2013 to receive comments 

regarding a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate a 10 foot wide public utility 
easement located along the northwesterly side lot line of lot 10, block D of River Place, Section 
15 in Precinct Two. (Commissioner Todd) 

Added Items 

 
A1. Consider and take appropriate action on the total cancellation of Bluff Springs Estates in 

Precinct Four. (Commissioner Gómez) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
A2. Consider and take appropriate action on the District Attorney’s Fiscal Year 2013 Chapter 59 

Asset Forfeiture Report. 
 

RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 22, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, October 29, 2013  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on October 29, 2013, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Morris Priest, Travis County resident 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Melissa Velasquez, Executive Assistant, County Judge's Office 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a proposed disposition of unused and excess 

right-of-way comprised of a 0.135 acre (5,883 sq. ft.) parcel of land previously intended for 
Meister Lane near its intersection with Heatherwilde Blvd – requested by the City of Pflugerville 
for development of a roadway infrastructure improvement project in Precinct One. 
(Commissioner Davis) 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that by approving this Item, the Commissioners Court 
authorizes him to sign on behalf of the Court. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
3. Revised language: Consider and take appropriate action regarding capital improvements 

program projects:   
 

a. Funding for and direction to staff to complete negotiations for the second amendment to the 
Braker Lane II Participation Agreement in Precinct One (Commissioner Davis);   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

 
MOTION: Approve staff's recommendation regarding Item 3.a, which is contained 

on page 3 of the backup memo; to negotiate an agreement which is 
consistent with the backup. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted a funding shortfall of $3,559,709.  TNR has proposed that the 
source of funding would be surplus Precinct One bonds. 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 3.a would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Clerk's Note: Upon returning from Executive Session, no further action was taken on Item 3.a. 
 
b. Funding for and direction to staff to complete negotiations for the first amendments to the 

Parmer Lane Participation Agreement and City of Austin Interlocal Agreement in Precinct 
One (Commissioner Davis); and   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 
Pete Dwyer, President, Dwyer Realty Companies 
Steve Sun, Assistant Public Works Director, TNR 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 3.b and direct staff to negotiate with the City of Austin 

regarding their cost share amount. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 3.a would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Clerk's Note: Upon returning from Executive Session, no further action was taken on Item 3.b. 
 
c. Source of funding for The Wells Branch Parkway Project in Precinct Two. (Commissioner 

Todd) 

Members of the Court heard from: 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 
Tom Nuckols, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 3.c. The source of funding is 1997 Precinct 2 bond 

savings. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on the following request:   
 

a. A plat for recording: Sweetwater Ranch Section Two Village F2 final plat (long form final 
plat – 25 total lots – Pedernales Summit Parkway – no ETJ); and   

 
b. A Travis County subdivision construction agreement between Travis County and WS-COS 

Development, LLC in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
5. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to transplant a 30-inch diameter oak tree or 

replace it with an equivalent diameter of oaks to facilitate the completion of improvements to 
Frate Barker road in Precincts Three and Four. (Commissioners Daugherty and Gómez) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Chiddi N’jie, Senior Engineer, TNR 
Michael Fossum, Executive Director, Austin Heritage Tree Foundation 
Zoila Vega-Marchera, Austin Heritage Tree Foundation 
Brooke Hughley, Travis County resident 
Cathy (last name unintelligible), Travis County resident 
Jessie Rainwater, Travis County resident 
Brittany Hughley, Travis County resident 
Tracy Hughley, Travis County resident 
Vikki Goodwin, Travis County resident 
Pam Baggett, Travis County resident 
Cynthia Wilcox, Travis County resident 
Peggy Maceo, Travis County resident 

Clerk's Note: The Court directed Staff to look at the two estimates for the tree removal and try to 
figure out a way to legally come in at the lower estimate. The Court also requested a breakdown 
of what is contained in the two estimates and communicate with the low-bid contractors about 
pulling the tree planting cost from the bid, communicate with TxDOT, and be prepared to update 
the Court on Tuesday, November 5, 2013. Further, the Purchasing Department is directed to 
meet with the County Attorney's Office and the Transportation and Natural Resources 
Department regarding this issue. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a license agreement with the Circuit of the 

Americas for the use of Richard Moya Park as a bicycle staging area for cyclists who will ride 
shuttle buses to the F1 races on November 15 through 17, 2013 in Precinct Four. 
(Commissioner Gómez) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

7. Consider and take appropriate action on a request for variance to County on-site sewage facility 
regulations to allow a second single family residence to be placed on less than two acres at 
16409 Jacobson Road in Precinct Four. (Commissioner Gómez) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Justice and Public Safety Items 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the following fire record management project 

interlocal agreements between Travis County and emergency services districts and mutual 
business associate agreements between Travis County and emergency services districts:   

 
a. Emergency Services District Number 1;   
 
b. Emergency Services District Number 3;   
 
c. Emergency Services District Number 4;   
 
d. Emergency Services District Number 5;   
 
e. Emergency Services District Number 10;   
 
f. Emergency Services District Number 12; and   
 
g. Emergency Services District Number 14. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to continue the administration and planning 

project, social work project and fair housing project of the Community Development Block Grant 
for the 2013 Program Year with internal Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
Department resources until a decision regarding the Program Year 2013 CDBG grant is 
received and a fully executed contract is obtained from HUD. 

MOTION: Approve Item 9. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action on items related to the Program Year 2012 Consolidated 

Annual Performance Evaluation Report for the Community Development Block Grant provided 
by HUD:     

 
a. Request to approve November 25 through December 9, 2013 as the 15-day public 

comment period for the public to review and comment on the draft;     
 
b. Request to approve a public hearing date on December 3, 2013, at 9:00 a.m. in the Travis 

County Commissioners Courtroom to receive public comment; and     
 

RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 
 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

c. Request to approve the advertisement announcing the public hearing date and 15 day 
public comment period in newspapers of general circulation: Austin Chronicle, Pflugerville 
Pflag, Hill Country News, Lake Travis View, Oak Hill Gazette, Westlake Picayune, The 
Villager, Ahora Si, and El Mundo. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human Services & 

Veterans Service (TCHHS&VS) 
Christy Moffett, Planning Project Manager, TCHHS&VS 

MOTION: Approve Item 10.c 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related special 

budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. Annual contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to continue the 
Trauma Informed Assessment and Response Program in Juvenile Probation Department;   

 
b. New contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to continue the 

Eagle Soars program in Juvenile Probation Department; and   
 
c. New contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to continue the 

Enhancing Services for Victims of Crime In Juvenile Probation Department. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Consider and take appropriate action on the following for the Human Resources Management 

Department:   
 

a. Proposed routine personnel amendments; and   
 
b. Non-routine salary adjustment from Constable Precinct Two office for a variance to Travis 

County Code Section 10.03002, Salary Adjustment Greater than 10% Above Midpoint. 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that in Item 13.a, the Human Resources Department (HRMD) 
requested that Position 30003127 be pulled from consideration. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
14. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$701,263.92 for the period of October 11 to October 17, 2013. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

15. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:    
 

a. Tuition reimbursements for employees who have completed classes in accordance with the 
Tuition Refund Program, Sections 10.020 through 10.022; and   

 
b. Authorization for County Auditor and Treasurer to reimburse employees as listed. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a license agreement with the Republic of Texas 

Biker Rally, Inc., for an event at the Travis County Exposition Center. (This item may be taken 
into Executive Session under the Consultation with Attorney exception) 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED   

 
17. Consider take appropriate action on a request from Ending Community Homelessness 

Coalition, Inc. to use Travis County meeting space for its annual board meeting on Monday, 
November 18, 2013. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
18. Receive presentation regarding the LEED Gold Certification awarded by the United States 

Green Building Council for the SMART Facility in Precinct Four. (Commissioner Gómez) 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/5/2013 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on contract award to URS Corporation for program 

management services for development of the new civil and family courthouse. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
John Hille, Assistant County Attorney 
Belinda Powell, Capital Planning Coordinator, PBO 

MOTION: That Commissioner Gómez share the recommended changes with staff; that 
staff provide a response, as well as that list of changes, to the Court; that 
staff be available to meet with Court members this week; and that, based on 
input from Court members, staff will decide whether or not to contact the 
contractor, which will depend on the nature of the proposed changes and 
what impact they will have on the contract. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
20. Approve contract award for water treatment systems, IFB No. 1307-010-RF, to the low bidder, 

Garratt Callahan Company. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

21. Approve contract award for engineering design services for the Bee Creek Road at Bee Creek 
Bridge project, RFQ No. Q110243-LP, to the highest qualified firm, Klotz Associates, Inc. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
22. Approve Modification No. 2, an assignment of Contract No. 4400000545 (H.T.E. Contract No. 

MA120135SW) from 8x8, Inc. to the IRC Company, Inc. (dba Black Lotus Communications, 
Inc.). 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
23. Authorize Purchasing Agent to commence negotiations with the most highly qualified firm, 

Binkley-Barfield Inc., for engineering services in response to RFQ No. Q1306-018-LP, Hamilton 
Pool Road safety improvements. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
24. Approve modification No. 14 to Contract No. 4400000074 (H.T.E. Contract No. 10K00250LP), 

STR Constructors, for Milton Reimers Ranch Park. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
25. Approve contract award for mechanical, electrical, plumbing engineering services for domestic 

water boiler replacement at Travis County Correctional Complex Building 400 (12) to Encotech 
Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
26. Approve Modification No.10 to Interlocal Agreement No. 4400000354, Austin Independent 

School District, for afterschool care. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action on reappointment Ofelia Elizondo to Place Three on the 

Strategic Housing Finance Corporation Board of Directors for a term to run from January 1, 
2014 to December 31, 2019. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
28. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a joint election agreement for the November 5, 

2013 Joint General and Special Elections with Travis County and 13 participating entities:   
 

a. City of Austin;   
 
b. City of Bee Cave;   
 
c. City of Jonestown   
 
d. City of Leander;   
 
e. City of Rollingwood;   

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

 
f. City of Round Rock;   
 
g. City of Sunset Valley;   
 
h. Village of Point Venture;   
 
i. Village of the Hills;   
 
j. Village of Volente;   
 
k. Marble Falls Independent School District;   
 
l. Pilot Knob Municipal Utility District #4 (establishing election); and  
 
m. Travis County Emergency Services District #4. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
29. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment of presiding judge, alternate 

presiding judge, manager, assistant manager and tabulation supervisor of the Central Counting 
Station and presiding judge and alternate presiding judge, and members of the Early Voting 
Ballot Board for the November 5, 2013 General and Special Elections. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
30. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment of presiding judge, alternate 

presiding judges to fill vacancies for the November 5, 2013 Joint General and Special Elections. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
31. Receive Fiscal Year 2014 State Forfeited Property Account budget from the Travis County 

Sheriff’s Office in accordance with the provisions of Article 59.06(D) of the Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
32. Consultation with County Attorney and take appropriate action concerning the extension of 

administrative leave with pay for Health and Human Services employee, Slot 30005370. 1 and 3 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 32 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.074, Personnel 
Matters. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

 
MOTION: Approve the request for 38 days of leave with pay, 28 of which have already 

occurred. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
33. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Robin Arnott. 1 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
34. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Elizabeth Gray. 1 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
35. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Julia Guardione. 1 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
36. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Julia Courtney. 1 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
37. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the use of the Exposition Center as remote 

parking lots for the Circuit of the Americas for the November 14, 15 and 16, 2013 Formula One 
events. 2 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 37 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 

 
MOTION: Approve the proposed contract. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Consent Items 
 

MOTION: Approve the following Consent Items: C1–C4 and Agenda Items 2, 4.a–b, 6, 
7, 8.a–g, 10.a–b, 11, 12.a–c, 13.a–b, 14, 15.a–b, 17, 20, 21, 22, 24, 25, 26, 
27, 28.a–m, 29, 30, 31, and A1. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

 
C3. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the Voting Session of October 15, 2013. 
 
C4. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, November 19, 2013 to receive comments 

regarding a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate the five-foot wide public 
utility easements located along the rear lot lines of lots 3 through 8, block D of the re-subdivision 
of Bauldwin’s Point in Precinct Two. (Commissioner Todd) 

Added Items 

 
A1. Consider and take appropriate action on memorandum of understanding with St. Edwards 

University for the placement of social work interns in the Travis County Health and Human 
Services and Veterans Service Department. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, October 29, 2013  

 Special Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Special Voting Session called to order on October 29, 2013, in the Travis County Administration 
Building, Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, 
County Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Agenda Items 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a delegation of county officials from Penghu 

County, Taiwan:   
 

a. An agreement establishing a sister-county relationship between Travis County and 
Penghu, Taiwan;   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Mike Ma, Chinese Society of Austin 
Wang Chien-Fa, Governor of Penghu County, Taiwan 
Sherry Wang, Translator 
Liu Chen Chao-Ling, Speaker of Penghu County Council 
Hung Tung-Lin, Senior Executive Officer, Penghu County Government 

 
MOTION: Approve the agreement and authorize the County Judge to sign on 

behalf of the Commissioners Court. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: The Commissioners Court Special Voting Session retired to an adjacent meeting room 
for a reception honoring the Penghu County delegation and to consider Items 1.b and c. The 
reception was not televised. 

 
b. A certificate bestowing honorary citizenship on individual members of the delegation;   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Wang Chien-Fa, Governor of Penghu County, Taiwan 
Mike Ma, Chinese Society of Austin 

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

c. Exchange of gifts between representatives of the two counties. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Wang Chien-Fa, Governor of Penghu County, Taiwan 
Mike Ma, Chinese Society of Austin 
Steve Hsia, Director General, Taipei Economic and Cultural Office (TECO), Houston 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



             
 
 
 
 
Meeting Date:  November 12, 2013, 9:00AM Voting Session 

Prepared By/Phone Number:  Janice Rosemond, Auditor’s Office, 854-8824 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Nicki Riley, Travis County Auditor 

Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Commissioner Daugherty 

AGENDA LANGUAGE:   Receive fiscal year 2012 financial audit reports 
for Emergency Services Districts 5 and 10 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:   

See attachments   
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:   

Please approve 

 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:   

None  

 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

None   

 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:   
Auditor’s Office   Nicki Riley, 854-9125 
Commissioner Pct 3 Office  Gerald Daugherty, 854-9333 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item C4Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 12, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Northwest Travis County Road 
District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Minutes for the Voting Sessions of October 
15 and 22, 2013. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 

 

NWRD Item 2Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



  

October 15, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

 Minutes for the Northwest Travis County 
 Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) 
 Tuesday, October 15, 2013  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on October 15, 2013, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
 
1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
2. Approve the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Minutes for the 

Voting Sessions of September 3 and 24, 2013. 

MOTION: Approve Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm



  

October 22, 2013 Minutes of the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Northwest Travis County 
 Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) 
 Tuesday, October 22, 2013  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on October 22, 2013, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
 
1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

MOTION: Approve the claims in Item 1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 11-07-13 @ 4:45 pm


	Item 01
	Item 02
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	TNR CO for Maha Loop Project vs 11-12-2013
	TNR PBOs backup to TNRs Maha Loop

	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Agenda Request Form AIFHC Comment Period_111213
	Meeting Date:  November 12. 2013
	Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:
	Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
	AGENDA LANGUAGE:
	BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
	STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
	ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:
	FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:
	No cost associated with the posting for public comment.
	REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:

	Travis County AI 9.27.13

	Item 16
	HHS Foundation Communities CTC Agenda Item111213 FINAL
	HHS FC Print Shop

	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 24
	9706 : Cont 4400001650 Frate Barker Rd Improvment, Capital Excavation
	Executive Summary
	TxDot Concurrence Letter
	Dept Memo
	B1306-021-JW FRD
	4400001650 Contract Draft


	Item 25
	9748 : Mod # 1, Assignment of Contract No. 4400001477 ErgoGenesis to ErgoGenesis Workplace Solutions, LLC
	Countywide Furniture - Executive Summary PAM Mod 1 Contract # 4400001477 (Assignment)
	Modification Countywide Furniture - ErgoGenesis 4400001477 Mod # 1 Assignment
	Assignment Letter for ErgoGenesis, W-9 VID # 1000019044


	Item 26
	9749 : Cont. Award, IFB 1309-008-RF, Sign Materials
	PAM_B1309-008-RF_Sign Materials
	TNR Memo
	Excel_Tabulation_for_Bid_1309-008-RF


	Item 27
	9751 : License Agreement with Lakeway Regional Med. Ctr
	dept memo and fund info
	license agreement for lakeway ems post
	Executive Summary


	Item 28
	9752 : Bates Public Auction
	Bates Public Auction Agenda Request for 11122013 CC
	Bates auction list CC 11122013


	Item 29
	Item 30
	Item 31
	Item 32
	Item 33
	Item 34
	Item 35
	Item 36
	Item 37
	Item 38
	Item 39
	Item C3
	CC 1022&29 and SVS 1029 Ag Rq
	CC 1022
	CC 1029
	Call to Order
	Citizens Communication
	Special Items
	Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items
	Justice and Public Safety Items
	Health and Human Services Dept. Items
	Planning and Budget Dept. Items
	Purchasing Office Items
	Other Items
	Executive Session Items
	Consent Items
	Added Items

	CC 1029 SVS

	Item C4
	Final ESD Transmittal Memo 10-30-13
	Agenda Request for Audit Reports
	ESD 5 2012 Audit
	ESD 10 2012

	NWRD Item 02
	NW 1015&22 Ag Rq
	NWRD 1015
	NWRD 1022




